

European Space Research and Technology Centre Keplerlaan 1 2201 AZ Noordwijk The Netherlands T +31 (0)71 565 6565 F +31 (0)71 565 6040 www.esa.int

# DOCUMENT

# **GSTP** Element 1 "Develop" Compendium of Potential Activities 2017

Prepared byTEC-TReferenceESA-GSTP-TECT-PL-005452Issue1Revision1Date of Issue19/05/2017StatusDocument Type

European Space Agency Agence spatiale européenne

Distribution



# **APPROVAL**

Title GSTP Element 1 "Develop" Compendium of Potential Activities 2017			
Issue 1	Revision 1		
Author	Date 19/05/2017		
Approved by	Date		

4 E 🗍

France Ongaro Director of Technology, Engineering and Quality Head of ESA/ESTEC Establishment

# CHANGE LOG

Reason for change	Issue	Revision	Date

# **CHANGE RECORD**

Issue 1	Revision 1		
Reason for change	Date	Pages	Paragraph(s)



#### **Table of contents:**

1. INTRODUCTION	6
2. LIST OF ACTIVITIES	9
SCI - Space Science	11
3. DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITIES	22
3.1. EO - Earth Observation	22
3.1.1. CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal	22
3.1.1.1. TD15 - Mechanisms	22
3.1.1.2. TD17 - Optoelectronics	23
3.1.1.3. TD21 - Thermal	24
3.1.2. CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)	26
3.1.2.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems	26
3.1.2.2. TD06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies	28
3.1.3. CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC	29
3.1.3.1. TD19 - Propulsion	29
3.1.4. CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing	31
3.1.4.1. TD06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies	31
3.1.4.2. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques	33
3.1.5. CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations	35
3.1.5.1. TD12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks	35
3.1.6. CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions	36
3.1.6.1. TD02 - Space System Software	36
3.1.6.2. TD26 - Others	
3.2. SCI - Space Science	40
3.2.1. CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal	
3.2.1.1. TD17 - Ontoelectronics	
3.2.1.2. TD21 - Thermal	
3.2.1.3. TD24 - Materials and Processes	42
3.2.2. CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)	
3.2.2.1. TD06 - RF Systems. Payloads and Technologies	
3.2.3. CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation. Communication and Remote Sensing	46
3.2.3.1. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques	46
3.2.4 CD7 - Propulsion Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles Propulsion	48
3.2.4.1. TD19 - Propulsion	
3 2 5 CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations	50
3.2.5.1 TD12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks	50
3.3 ST - Space Transportation	
3.3.1 CD2 - Structures Mechanisms Materials Thermal	51
3.3.1.1 TD20 - Structures	
3.3.1.2. TD24 - Materials and Processes	
3.3.2 CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles	
3.3.2.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems	
3.3.2.2. TD05 - Snace System Control	
3 3 2 3 TD18 - Aerothermodynamics	62
3 3 2 4 TD19 - Propulsion	02 64
2 4 NAV - Navigation	66
2.4.1 CD5 - End-to-End RE & Ontical Systems and Products for Navigation Communication and Remote Sensing	66
3 4 1 1 TD06 - RF Systems Payloads and Technologies	66
3 4 1 2 TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques	50
2 5 GEN - Generic Technologies	78
2.5.1 CD1 - EEE / Components / Photonics / MEMS	78
3 5 1 1 TD01 - Onboard Data Systems	78
cional a Data Official and a second a second s	

#### Page 3/234



3.5.1.2. TD17 - Optoelectronics	80
3.5.1.3. TD23 - EEE Components and Quality	83
3.5.2. CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal	89
3.5.2.1. TD15 - Mechanisms	89
3.5.2.2. TD20 - Structures	91
3.5.2.3. TD21 - Thermal	96
3.5.2.4. TD24 - Materials and Processes	98
3.5.3. CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)	102
3.5.3.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems	102
3.5.3.2. TD02 - Space System Software	107
3.5.3.3. TD05 - Space System Control	111
3.5.3.4. TD06 - RF Systems. Payloads and Technologies	114
3.5.3.5. TD26 - Others	118
3.5.4. CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC	120
3.5.4.1. TD03 - Snacecraft Electrical Power	120
3.5.4.2. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques	. 127
3.5.5. CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation. Communication and Remote Sensing	
3.5.5.1 TD06 - RF Systems Payloads and Technologies	129
3.5.5.2. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques	133
3.5.5.3 TD16 - Ontics	136
1111 TD17 - Optice Instance Control of Contr	138
2.5.6 CD6 - Life / Physical Science Payloads / Life Support / Robotics and Automation	139
3.5.6.1 TD01 - Onboard Data Systems	139
2 5 7 CD7 - Propulsion Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles	140
3.5.7.1 TD18 - Aerothermodynamics	140
3 5 7 9 TD19 - Propulsion	142
2 5 8 CD8 - Cround Data Systems / Mission Operations	147
3.5.8.1 TD08 - System Design & Verification	147
3.5.8.9 TD09 - Mission Operation and Cround Data Systems	149
3.5.8.3 TD12 - Cround Station Systems and Networks	157
2 5 0 CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions	161
3.5.9, CD0 Digital Engineering for Space Wissions	161
3.5.9.1. TD00 - System Design & Vernication	171
2.5.0.2. TD26 Others	174
0.5.10. CD10 Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space Environment	101
2.5.10. CDIO - AStrouynamics / Space Debits / Space Environment.	101
1.1.1.2 TD10. Flight Dynamics and CNSS	105
2.5.10.9 TD11 Space Debrie	100
5.5.10.2. IDII - Space Debris	. 10/
1.1.1.5 ID20 - Structures	192
3.6. Space Situational Awareness	194
3.6.1. Space Situational Awareness	194
3.0.1.1. IDUI - Undoard Data Systems	194
3.0.1.2. TD04 - Spacecraft Environments and Enects	190
3.6.1.3. ID09 - Mission Operation and Ground Data Systems	. 209
3.6.1.4. IDII - Space Debris	210
3.6.1.5. IDI2 - Ground Station Systems and Networks	213
3.0.1.0. 1D10 - Uptics	
3.7. Design to Produce	215
3.7.1. Design to Produce	215
3.7.1.1. TD08 - System Design & Verification	215
3.7.1.2. TD23 - EEE Components and Quality	. 223
3.7.1.3. TD26 - Others	. 226
3.8. Deep-space Optical Communication System	231

#### Page 4/234

# Cesa

3.8.1. Deep-space Optical Communication System	
3.8.1.1. TD12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks	
3.8.1.2. TD17 - Optoelectronics	233



### **1. INTRODUCTION**

During the Council meeting at Ministerial level held in December 2016, the updated structure of the GSTP was presented *"Declaration on the General Support Technology Programme (GSTP)"* ref. ESA/C(2016)190, and extensively subscribed by the states participating in GSTP with the following framework:

- GSTP Element 1 "Develop" Technology developments for future missions, ground applications and tools
- GSTP Element 2 "Make"- Development of technology and products for commercial competitiveness and sustainability.
- GSTP Element 3 "Fly"- In-orbit demonstration of new technologies, preparation of future missions, small missions
- Two programmatically and financially distinct Programme components:
  - "Precise Formation Flying Demonstration" component
  - "Asteroid Impact Mission (AIM)" component.

The GSTP E1 "Develop" Compendium is a list of 141 candidate activities for the GSTP E1 "Develop" Work Plan, pre-selected following the ESA End to End process, including programmatic screening and consistency checking with technology strategy. The aim of the GSTP E1 "Develop" Compendium is to provide to industry and Delegations a consolidated overview by Application Domain, Competence Domain and Technology Domain of the priorities for ESA in the development of technology within the GSTP Programme.

This document follows the previous GSTP-6 Element 1 Compendia of Potential Activities presented in 2013 and revised in 2016. In particular, the following five documents:

- *GSTP-6 Element 1 Compendium of Generic Technology Activities (*ref. TEC-T/2013-007/NP) *issued* in February 2013.
- *GSTP-6 Element 1 Compendium of Potential Activities Application-* Domains: Earth Observation, Human Spaceflight, Space Transportation, Navigation, Generic Technologies and Techniques, Space Situation Awareness and Robotic Exploration (ref. TEC-T/2013-028/NP) issued in December 2013.
- *GSTP-6 Element 1 Compendium of Potential Activities Advanced Manufacturing* (ref. TEC-T/2015-013/NP), issued in November 2015.
- *GSTP-6 Element 1 Compendium of Potential Activities (*ref. TEC-T/2016-03/NP) issued in February 2016.
- *GSTP Element 1 "Develop" Compendium of Potential Activities: Clean Space -* (ref. ESA-GSTP-TECT-PL-003997), issued in January 2017.

This GSTP E1 "Develop" Compendium provides a list and descriptions of candidate activities for the Work Plan of the GSTP Element 1 (Chapter 2 and 3 of this document). The pre-selection of the activities corresponds to activities belonging to the following Application Domains.

- EO Earth Observation
- SCI Science
- ST Space Transportation
- NAV Navigation
- GEN Generic Technologies and Techniques

The activities that belong to the Application Domain - Human Spaceflight and Exploration - are under review and they will be provided in a further revision of the Compendium.



In addition to the core activities in the Generic Technologies and Techniques domain which are dedicated to the development of technologies, building blocks and components for future space missions, the following special areas have been identified.

- **Clean Space:** This is an ESA cross-cutting initiative with the aim to contribute to the reduction of the environmental impact of space programmes, taking into account the overall life-cycle and the management of residual waste and pollution resulting from space activities. The list and descriptions of candidate activities for this special area is provided in a separate document. Activities corresponding to this specific area are described in the document "*GSTP Element 1* "*Develop*" *Compendium of Potential Activities: Clean Space*" (ref. ESA-GSTP-TECT-PL-003997), published in EMITs News in January 2017.
- Additive Manufacturing: Advanced Manufacturing as a cross-cutting activity captures the opportunity of new manufacturing, materials, processes and creates sustainable competitive advantage for the European Space Industry in the global market. This is achieved by restructuring the supply chain to facilitate faster and more agile entry to the market place and by creating performance enablers thanks to new materials, added degrees of freedom in the design phase and novel manufacturing capabilities.

Activities corresponding to this specific areas are described in the document "*GSTP-6 Element 1 Compendium of Potential Activities Advanced Manufacturing*" (ref. TEC-T/2015-013/NP), published in EMITs News in November 2015.

• **Space Situation Awareness:** The objective of the Space Situational Awareness (SSA) is to support the European independent utilisation of and access to space for research or services, through providing timely and quality data, information, services and knowledge regarding the environment, the threats and the sustainable exploitation of the outer space. The activities within this specific area are structured in three segments - Space Weather (SWE), NEO, and Space Surveillance and Tracking (SST) - as well as a new fourth segment, a SWE mission to the Lagrange points L1 and L5 (LGR).

New technologies and ideas are thereby used or exploited to ensure the evolution of the SSA system towards an efficient system.

The concrete technology activities corresponding to SSA are presented in this document in chapter 3.6.

• **Design to Produce:** Design 2 Produce is an ESA cross-cutting initiative with the objective to introduce innovative techniques and benefit from spin-in from non-space industry in order to improve the space systems end-to-end development process, reducing engineering lead time and budget and serving the competitiveness of the European Space Industry. The challenge to design space systems towards manufacturability, integration and verification, feeding relevant lessons learned from the MAIT process back to the design, requires a multidisciplinary approach.

Activities corresponding to this area are presented in this document in chapter 3.7.

• **Deep Space Optical Communication System.** Optical communication from deep-space has the potential to substantially increase the returned science data volume at the same on-board burden (mass, power) compared to radio frequency communication, or to reduce the on-board terminal mass and power at similar data rates. A Deep-space Optical Communication System (DOCS) In-Orbit Demonstration (IOD) on the Space Situational Awareness (SSA) Space Weather (SWE) L5 mission will demonstrate the technology and at the same time serve as a scientific objective, namely the transfer of high resolution solar imagery.

The first technology activities corresponding to this area are presented in this document in chapter 3.8.



Furthermore, the activities in each Application Domain are also categorised according to the following Competence Domain Structure:

- CD1 EEE / Components / Photonics / MEMS
- CD2 Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal
- CD3 Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)
- CD4 Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC
- CD5 End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing
- CD6 Life / Physical Science Payloads / Life Support / Robotics and Automation
- CD7 Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles
- CD8 Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations
- CD9 Digital Engineering for Space Missions
- CD10 Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space Environment

This compendium is issued to Delegations of GSTP Participating States and their industries for comments. Such comments will be considered in the following updates of the work plan for this GSTP Element 1 "Develop".

The objective is to have a good indication of the developments the participants intend to support in order to present updates of the GSTP E1 "Develop" Work Plan with consolidated set of activities to the IPC for approval.



### 2. LIST OF ACTIVITIES

### **EO - Earth Observation**

#### **CD2** - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT11-001MS	High-fidelity reaction wheel for stable microvibration performance	675
GT11-002MM	Development and evaluation of curved silicon 2D array	900
GT11-003MT	Low Noise Miniaturized very high frequency Pulse Tube cooler	750
GT11-004MT	New Generation Cold Finger for 40-150K application	600
	Total	2,925

# CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT11-005ED	SpaceFibre multilane optical link prototyping, demonstration and evaluation	1,000
GT11-006ES	Multi Gb/s payload data transmitter EM for Earth Observation missions	2,000
	Total	3,000

#### CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT11-007MP	PPU for all-electric scientific platforms	700
	Total	700



# **CD5** - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT11-008EF	Radar High Power Amplifier for Ka-band Radar	900
GT11-009EF	Miniature filter for L-band radiometer	500
GT11-010EF	Frequency stabilisation of QCL for Supra-THz applications	400
GT11-011EF	Compact Multi-Frequency Feeds for Multi-Frequency Radiometers	500
	Tota	1 2,300

#### **CD8** - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT11-012GS	Tri-band (S/X/K) feed system design for future EO missions	500
	Total	500

#### **CD9** - Digital Engineering for Space Missions

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT11-013EO	Data Analytics for EO (DANEO)	1,000
GT11-014EO	New Generation Virtual Reality for Big EO data sets (VIREO)	400
	Total	1,400



### **SCI - Space Science**

#### **CD2** - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT12-001MM	Application of Black Silicon surface treatment to photodiodes and silicon drift detectors	350
GT12-002MT	Low CTE Heat Pipes for Highly Stable Structures	600
GT12-003MS	Large Aluminium-based Optical Mirrors Processed by Solid State Joining	800
	Total	1,750

# CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT12-004ET	Integrated transponder/PDT for Near Earth Science missions	800
	Total	800

# **CD5** – End-to-End **RF** & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT12-005EF	Development of multi-color Kinetic Inductance Detector pixels for CMB applications	750
	Total	750

#### **CD7** – **Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles Propulsion**

Activity Title	Budget (k€)	Budget (k€)
GT12-006MP	Diaphragm Propellant Tanks compatible with MON and MMH for spacecraft applications	1,000
	Total	1,000



Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT12-007GS	500 W Ka Band Solid-State Power Amplifier	800
	Total	800

#### **CD8** – Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations



#### **ST - Space Transportation**

#### CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT14-001MS	Development of New Interface Concepts for Launcher Main Tanks	1,000
GT14-002QE	Out Of Autoclave (OOA) Manufacture with Very High Temperature Conductive CFRP Resin systems for Launcher Applications	450
	Total	1,450

#### **CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles**

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT14-003ED	Time-Triggered Ethernet as Command & Control for launchers and space tranportation applications	1,500
GT14-004SA	Enhancement of the NGT-ATB: New Generation Launcher and Space Transportation Advanced Avionics Test Bed	2,000
GT14-005SA	ADAMP Ascent and Descent Autonomous Maneouverable Platform	3,000
GT14-006SA	End-To-End preliminary design for a Lunar Ascent Vehicle	1,500
GT14-007MP	Acoustic propellant management for fuel tanks of spacecraft and launcher upper stages	500
GT14-008MP	6kN, Deep-throttling, Pump-fed, Bi-propellant Engine	8,400
	Total	16,900



### NAV - Navigation

#### **CD5** - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT16-001ES	GNSS Receiver Chain Technology Enabler and Integrity Techniques for the Railway environment	500
GT16-002ES	Definition of multipath and electromagnetic interference scenarios and models for GNSS in railway environments	500
GT16-003ES	Development of Scenarios, Models and Tools for Simulation of Intentional Interference and Spoofing in Railway Environments	500
GT16-004ES	Technologies for Resilience Against Intentional Interference and Spoofing in Railway Environments	500
GT16-005ES	Beam-Forming Technology for GNSS Reference-Station	800
GT16-006ES	Study and design of a Smart city Living Lab Location Test-bed	300
GT16-007EF	Technology Validation of a Cold Atom Microwave Atomic Clock (CAMAC)	1,000
GT16-008EF	Clock Ensemble Monitoring and Switching Unit for Robust Timescale Generation	600
GT16-009EF	Environment survey and calibration instrumentation for GNSS propagation error sources	1,000
	Total	5,700



## **GEN - Generic Technologies**

CD1 - EEE / Components / I	Photonics / MEMS
----------------------------	------------------

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-001ED	SpaceFibre demonstration chip and routing switch ASIC development	2,200
GT17-002MM	Demonstration of high-performance CMOS image sensor pixels for space applications using advanced technology nodes	1,000
GT17-003MM	Radiation Testing of a COTS General Purpose CMOS Image Sensor	400
GT17-004MM	CMOS image sensor based on high-resistivity epitaxial silicon	1,000
GT17-005ED	New Power MOSFETs development	700
GT17-006ED	Space evaluation and enhancement of European GaN MMIC offering	1,500
GT17-007ED	New decoupling capacitors for next generations of integrated circuit technologies	600
GT17-008QE	Radiation characterization and functional verification of COTS components for ESA space applications.	1,200
GT17-009ED	Definition and validation of an European source of Flip-chip bump services for 28nm and lower technology nodes	600
GT17-010ED	Space qualification of a pigtailed InGaAs photodiode @ 1550 nm	500
	Total	9,700



Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-011MS	Adaptation of industrial actuator for space applications	800
GT17-012MS	Development of a family of space actuators based on brushless DC motors.	650
GT17-013MS	Modelization and Validation of the dynamic effect of compressible Xenon in propellant tank	500
GT17-014MS	Highly accurate measurement techniques of large reflector surface	500
GT17-015MS	Passive damping for satellite and instrument design	1,000
GT17-016MT	Integration Simplification of Capillary Driven Heat Transport Systems	500
GT17-017MT	Efficient mounting of MLI blankets to spacecraft structures	500
GT17-018QE	Transparent polyimide films for thermo-optical applications	500
GT17-019MS	Application of new and novel Non Destructive Inspection (NDI) Techniques for Spacecraft and Launchers Critical Applications	700
GT17-020MS	Morphing Structures Processed by 4D Printing for Space Applications	1,000
	Total	6,650

#### CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

# CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-021ED	COTS-based highly integrated computer system for mini/nano satellites	800
GT17-022ED	High Performance Reconfigurable Processing Module (HiPeR-Pro)	1,000
GT17-023SW	CAN System and SW Stack consolidation	800
GT17-024SW	SAVOIR Data Storage Services Demonstration	800
GT17-025SW	Integration of model-based avionics design and FDIR analysis tools	600
GT17-026SA	Low-cost high reliability wide FoV Sun Sensor EM	600
GT17-027SA	Object-oriented hybrid modelling of avionics systems using Modelica	700
GT17-028ES	Miniaturized Space GNSS receiver for microsat and cubesat	800
GT17-029ES	Nanosat X-band TT&C transponder EM	1,000
GT17-030GE	SDLS-Flex: Flexible Space Data Link Layer Security Protocol implementation and End-to-End Verification	1,000
	Total	8,100



Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-031EP	Improving density of power modules by up to a factor 2	1,000
GT17-032EP	Integrated Power Switch ASIC for small DC/DC converters	600
GT17-033EP	High Frequency DC/DC converter module with Digital Control	500
GT17-034EP	Semiconductor Bonded Low-Mass Space Solar Cells and SCAs with 33% Efficiency at EOL	1,000
GT17-035EP	High Power, long duration Titanate technology batteries	400
GT17-036EP	Qualification of novel grounding for composite structural panels	1,000
GT17-037EP	Immunity to In-Band Electromagnetic Interference for Radio-Frequency Receivers using Signal Modulation	1,000
	Total	5,500

#### CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC

# **CD5** - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-038EF	Broadband and low-loss 3D RF micro-structure for high integrated high frequency front-ends and distribution networks	700
GT17-039EF	Development of High Performance ferrite material very high power switches and isolators	700
GT17-040EF	Next Generation Temperature Compensated High Power Filters Based on Novel Materials	600
GT17-041EF	Waveguide switches based on friction-free mechanisms	600
GT17-042EF	Large center-fed deployable reflector for small satellite	500
GT17-043EF	Antenna Measurement Methods for Phase-less Gain Pattern Acquisition	300
GT17-044EF	Fast Diagnostic Methods for Large-Scale Full-Satellite Antenna Measurements	300
GT17-045MM	Optomechanical mounts for large lenses	500
GT17-046MM	Diffractive optical elements for metrology	500
GT17-047MM	Versatile laser terminal for metrology, communication and time and frequency dissemination	600
	Total	5,300



# $\mathbf{CD6}$ - $\mathbf{Life}$ / $\mathbf{Physical}$ Science Payloads / $\mathbf{Life}$ Support / Robotics and Automation

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-048ED	Independent verification of new Synthesizable VHDL IP Cores for space	200
	Total	200

#### **CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles**

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-049MP	Enabling Technologies for Advanced Orbital Transfer Capabilities	3,600
GT17-050MP	Development and performance demonstration of a high specific impulse propulsion system for micro/nano/cubesat class spacecraft.	700
GT17-051MP	High Temperature thruster engine chambers	2,500
GT17-052MP	Building blocks for enhanced apogee and RCS engines	2,500
	Total	9,300

#### **CD8** - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-053SW	RATIO-SIM Rationalization of Simulators	1,500
GT17-054GI	GEMCAV: Generic Monitoring and Control system for high rate TM / TC including Audio and Video	500
GT17-055GI	GOSADD (GrOund StAtion Data Discovery) - Ground Station data collection, archiving, integration, correlation, distribution and preparation for post processing	500
GT17-056GI	C2SoS: Monitoring and Control of System of Systems for constellations of satellites and complex network of Ground Stations	900
GT17-057GI	C2LOCO Generic MCS / EGSE for smallsats and low cost operations	800
GT17-058GS	Water cooled 2-10kW X-Band Solid State Power Amplifier (SSPA)	1,000
GT17-059GS	Enhanced antenna servo controller performance under high wind conditions	600
GT17-060GS	Automated Laser Ranging for Uncooperative Targets	3,400
GT17-061GS	Low Cost Pointing Calibration System for Antennas	500
	Total	9,700



Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-062GE	ADGE - Advanced Digital Ground Segment Engineering	1,300
GT17-063SW	Information Systems & Ontologies & Semantic modelling for Semantic Interoperability	1,900
GT17-064GE	E2E Reference Environment for Space Missions (ERES)	1,500
GT17-065GE	SSE4Space - Secure Systems Engineering for Space Missions	1,000
GT17-066OS	Data Analytics for multiple Space Applications (DASA)	1,900
GT17-067GI	FASSADE - Federation of Assets supporting the Storage, Search and Access to spacecraft Data for Engineering analysis	3,500
GT17-068EO	Microservices to Applications - a Generic Interdomain Composer (MAGIC)	1,000
GT17-069EO	BlockChain for Space Activities (BC4SA)	700
GT17-070GE	Automated Fault Root Cause Analysis and Forecasting (ARCA)	600
GT17-071GE	EuGRA - European Ground Reference Architecture	600
	Total	14,000

#### **CD9** - Digital Engineering for Space Missions

#### **CD10** - Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space Environment

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT17-072EP	Low resource spacecraft plasma monitor prototype	500
GT17-073EP	Radiation energy effects on electronic components with very high energy heavy ion and electron beams	500
GT17-074EP	Radiation monitor data analysis for radiation belt modelling	700
GT17-075EP	Microparticle model validation based on in-flight data	400
GT17-076GF	Challenges for the future Flight Dynamics system and processes	350
GT17-077GR	Large impact detectors for mm-particles resolving impact momentum vectors	500
GT17-078GR	Advanced Collision Avoidance Techniques	650
GT17-079GR	Numerical simulation of hypervelocity collisions for breakup model calibration	400
GT17-080GR	High-resolution spectroscopy of space debris fragments	500
GT17-081GR	Development of an enhanced spacecraft fragmentation code	1,000
	Total	5,500



Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)		
GT18-001ED	Prototype Remote Interface Unit (RIU) for SWE hosted payloads	650		
GT18-002EP	Solar Activity Onset Modelling	600		
GT18-003EP	Radiation Monitor System in a Package	600		
GT18-004EP	Heliospheric modelling techniques	1,000		
GT18-005EP	Virtual Space Weather Modelling Centre (VSWMC) - Part III	800		
GT18-006EP	Fireball Monitor for Space Situational Awareness	800		
GT18-007EP	Impact effects tool	500		
GT18-008EP	Space Weather Instruments for SmallSat and Hosted Payloads Missions	1,800		
GT18-009EP	3D Ionospheric Modelling	600		
GT18-010EP	Global Magnetospheric Modelling to Drive Geomagnetic Services	600		
GT18-011L	Data Analytics for Early Warning of Space Weather Events	300		
GT18-012GR	Streak detection algorithm validation through field campaign data	300		
GT18-013GR	Maturing the sub-catalogue debris characterisation capabilities of a space- based optical component	500		
GT18-014GS	Optimisation of L-Band Transmit/Receive Modules used in Surveillance Radar Antenna Arrays	1,000		
GT18-015MM	8-015MM Compact EUV Imager for the Lagrange Space Weather mission			
	Total	11,250		

### **Space Situational Awareness**



#### **Design to Produce**

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)
GT1P-001MX	Procedure viewer and authoring tool for ground AIV/AIT applications	1,200
GT1P-002SW	Optimization by Digital Engineering applied in Projects	800
GT1P-003SY	Exploring Enhanced Procurement in a Fully Digital Environment	700
GT1P-004ED	Improvement of design and product, based on analysis of data from embedded sensors	1,500
GT1P-005ED	Embedded Sensors for AIT	800
GT1P-006SY	Digital Engineering Hub Pathfinder (CD09)	800
GT1P-007MX	Multidisciplinary 3D Digital Models for AIT environment	700
	Total	6,500

### **Deep-space Optical Communication System**

Programme Reference	Activity Title	Budget (k€)	
GT1D-001GS	Deep-space Optical Communication System (DOCS) In-Orbit Demonstration (IOD) Ground Terminal Technology Developments		6,500
GT1D-002MM	Deep-space Optical Communication System (DOCS) In-Orbit Demonstration (IOD) Space Terminal Technology Developments		5,900
		Total	12,400



### **3. DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITIES**

#### 3.1. EO - Earth Observation

#### 3.1.1. CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

#### 3.1.1.1. TD15 - Mechanisms

Domain	Earth Observation - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal						
Tech. Domain	15 – Mechani	sms					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT11-001MS Budget (k€):</b> 675						
Title:	High-fidelit	y reaction wheel	for stab	le microvibratio	n performance		
Objectives:	The objective competitive w	of this activity is th ith non-European p	e develo roducts	opment and test of in terms of microvi	a reaction wheel EM, bration performance.		
Description:	Some non-European reaction wheel products possess superior properties in terms of microvibration performance. In particular the low frequency content of their noise spectrum (i.e. <100 Hz), which cannot be effectively damped by state-of-the-art wheel isolation systems, appears to be disturbance free. This appears to be due to a high-fidelity rotor balancing process as well as the presence of a viscous damping system at bearing level (i.e. wheel internal damping).						
	deficits in terms of stability of rotor balancing and bearing noise. In particular, static and dynamic unbalance regularly drift outside of their specified range when exposed to environmental as well as operational loads.						
	<ul> <li>The activity aims at developing techniques to produce reaction wheels with highly stable unbalance and bearing noise characteristics which should particularly include:</li> <li>development of a high-fidelity rotor balancing technique,</li> <li>development of wheel internal damping features, e.g. on bearing level.</li> <li>The activity would include production and test of a reaction wheel EM to demonstrate microvibration performance in a relevant environment.</li> </ul>						
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Engineering N	Model					
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18		
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Every three-a Metop-SG, Ea resolution op	xis stabilized satelli arthCARE. Furthern tical payloads (e.g. P	te with f nore, agi leiades c	ine pointing requir le Earth Observatio or SPOT 6/7). TRL 5	ements such as MTG, on missions with high 5 by 2019.		

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



#### 3.1.1.2. TD17 - Optoelectronics

Domain	Earth Observation - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal					
Tech. Domain	17 - Optoelectronics					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT11-002MM Budget (k€):</b> 900					
Title:	Developme	nt and evaluation	ı of curv	ved silicon 2D arr	ay	
Objectives:	The aims of the activity are to develop/demonstrate a repeatable method to spherically curve existing CCD or CIS detector arrays, characterise the electro- optical performance and compare to the equivalent flat detector and validate the environmental suitability for future space applications.					
Description:	Curved focal plane detectors offer a well-known method for simplifying the optical design without sacrificing performance for many applications. The reduction in mass and volume offered by the utilisation of such detector arrays can clearly help in achieving these key objectives of space instrument design. The objective of this activity is to demonstrate that existing, high-performance 2D detector arrays, already used in space applications, can be successfully curved and still meet both performance and environmental requirements.					
	<ul> <li>This activity encompasses the following tasks:</li> <li>Procurement of 4 planar detectors, fulfilling at least the following specifications: <ul> <li>backside thinned with a large active area,</li> <li>the array size should be at least 6x6cm to be able for easy adaptation to an existing Schmidt telescope.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Post-processing of 3 devices (out of the 4) to curve them at a selected radius.</li> <li>Electro-optical performance evaluation of all devices to compare the performance before and after the curvature process.</li> <li>Qualification campaign for environmental testing following the ESCC 9020, meaning humidity test, thermal cycling, storage, etc. Additional electro optical tests must be performed on all devices during this qualification campaign to access degradation of performances.</li> </ul>					
Deliverables:	the devices. I Breadboard	For this investigation	n smaller	detector devices cou	ıld be used.	
		_		Duration		
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	(months):	24	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Future EO ar	nd science missions.	TRL 5 by	y 2019.		
Applicable THA	Applicable THAG Roadmap: Optical Detectors, Visible Range (2015).					



#### 3.1.1.3. TD21 - Thermal

Domain	Earth Observat	ion - CD2 - Structures	s, Mechanisms, Materials, '	Thermal
Tech. Domain	21 - Thermal			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT11-003MT		Budget (k€):	750
Title:	Low Noise Mi	niaturized very hig	h frequency Pulse Tube	cooler
<b>Objectives</b> :	The objective o miniaturized Pu missions. More require cooling a	f this activity is to a lse Tube cooler that specifically small/m around 120K.	levelop, build and test a can suit the needs of Eart edium sized SWIR/MWIR	prototype of a h Observation missions that
Description:	SWIR/MWIR is interest for Eart medium term tra limited resource cooling (which considering tha toward bigger cc One of the poter Pulse Tube coo permits to limit	and will remain in t th Observation missic end of EO missions wi es. In the past period have an impact at t the current portfol poler and cooling pown tial solutions to answe lers. Such coolers an microvibration distur	he foreseeable future a det ons (linked to the CO2 dete ll lean toward medium sized d, those missions had to r t system level e.g. attitu io of European Coolers is er. ver this type of need is to us re driven at high frequenc bances to frequencies above	ection band of ection) and the l satellites with ely on passive de limitation) s more geared e miniaturized cy, which also e 90Hz.
	The objective of Tube cooler with Mass: < 750 Cooling Po 2.5W@120H Driving Free Exported M Exported M In a first design solutions for t developments. The detail desi breadboarding i An Engineering/ with PA/QA sta undergo a full demonstrate the The last task of	this activity is therefore in the following charact of the following charact of the following charact of the second second wer at 20W input the term of the second second phase, the contractor the HFPTC based of the HFPTC based of the the second second second of the term of the second of the second second second the term of the second the second second second second second second second second second second the second	re to answer this need by pro- teristics: Power and 20degC I/F on axis (assuming compensa- sverse axis: <0.35N. shall propose designs and on existing technologies e the trade-offs thanks to ea (e.g. cryogenics). of Pulse Tube cooler shall be his kind of development. ' acterization and test prog- level of TRL 6. lay down a comprehensive	poposing a Pulse Temperature: ation): <0.1N. manufacturing and on-going analysis and manufactured This unit shall gram so as to route to flight
Deliverables:	plan for the pr aspects and the Prototype	oduct including criti cooler drive electronic	cal material and processe cs.	s qualification
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	(Duration (months):	36
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Potentially drive	en by missions like Ca	rbonSat.	

**Applicable THAG Roadmap:** Cryogenics and Focal Plane Cooling (2013).



LASSIFIED - For Official I	Use			esa	
Domain	Earth Observa	tion - CD2 - Structures,	Mechanisms, Materials, T	Thermal	
Tech. Domain	21 - Thermal				
Ref. Number:	GT11-004MT		Budget (k€	): 600	
Title:	New Generat	ion Cold Finger for 4	0-150K application		
Objectives:	The objective o test a new gene answer the need to 150K. This cold finger techniques, less domains. The technical o the cryogenic p more consisten	f this activity is to deve eration Cold Finger for d of Earth Observation r r should make the max sons learnt from past bjective of such develop erformances of the Cryot t the manufacturing of t	lop, build in an industrial Stirling/Pulse Tubes coo nissions in the temperatur imum use of the latest m projects and advances in ment is not only to potent pecolers but also to simplif he Cold Fingers	zed way and lers that can e range of 40 anufacturing the material ally increase y and render	
Description:	Active cryogeni 10 years saw, ir Tube) that just Missions (e.g. N	Active cryogenic cooling is a critical technology for Earth Observation. The past 0 years saw, in Europe, the developments of coolers (both Stirling and Pulse Cube) that just meet the performance standards of current Earth Observation Missions (e.g. MTG, MetOP).			
	Nevertheless, due to more and more stringent mission requirements (detection, agility etc.), it is mandatory to prepare the future and to not only improve the efficiency of the cold finger but also to improve the manufacturing process of this performance sensitive part of the coolers.				
	After a first pha the current gen and manufactu on the thermod and flow straig industrialized p	ase consisting in gatheri eration of Cryocooler a ring solutions for the C dynamic performances ghtener) but also the p roduct.	ing relevant requirements nd also from future users, old Fingers shall be propo (e.g. new regenerator, he nanufacturability and the	coming from new designs sed, focusing at exchanger cost of the	
	Following a det with ESA (e.g. Engineering/Qu PA/QA standar a full comprehe the full perform	ailed design/industrial 120K) which will perm ualification Model of the ds suitable for this kind ensive characterization nance at a level of TRL 6	ization phase for a temper it to close the remaining t cold finger shall be manuf of development. This unit s and test program so as to	ature agreed rade-offs, an `actured with hall undergo demonstrate	
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Prototype				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6 <b>Duration</b> (months):	24	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Potentially driv	en by missions like Carl	bonSat.		
Applicable THA	AG Roadmap:	Cryogenics and Foc	al Plane Cooling (2013).		



### 3.1.2. CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)

#### 3.1.2.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems

Domain	Earth Observation - CD3 - Avion / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)	nic Architecture / DHS / Onboa.	rd SW / (FDIR)
Tech. Domain	01 - Onboard Data Systems		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT11-005ED	Budget (k€):	1,000
Title:	SpaceFibre multilane optica evaluation	l link prototyping, demonst	ration and
Objectives:	The objective of the activity is to the technology as physical layer of the frame of the activity, an opt made available. An optical trans fibre cable assembly shall be dev to early adopter of the technology frame of early development stage	demonstrate the feasibility and for SpaceFibre links. To achieve ical physical layer for SpaceFib sceiver array, multi-fibre conne eloped. The components shall be and to allow assessment of the ss for future products.	performance of the objective, in re links shall be ector and multi- e made available properties in the
<b>Description:</b>	SpaceFibre is a multi-Gbit high sp It runs over copper and fibre-op Multi-lane capability allows to c link to achieve data rates of sev built-in quality-of-service (QoS), Suitable technologies have all manufacturers for the technolog transimpedanz amplifier ASICs previous activities. Suitable lass technology to place them in dio The envisaged multi-fibre MT co has been selected for comin components of the technology ar A SpaceFibre node needs for a s TX, 1x RX). The protocol allows which results in the goal of 32 filt	beed serial link developed for spatic cables and allows serial link ombine several physical links to reral hundred Gbit per second. isolation and recovery (FDIR) of ready been identified and set y are available. Laser driver ar with multiple channels have be ser and receive diodes are av de arrays for multi-fibre operat nnector has been demonstrated g optical telecom satellite p e used by CERN in the LHC dete- ingle link 2 fibres to be able to the to combine up to 16 links to a sin- pres for the whole system (16x T.	ace applications. s up to 10Gbps. o a single logical SpaceFibre has apabilities. everal potential d receive diode en developed in ailable and the ion is available. on Proba-V and ayloads. Active ectors. ransfer data (1x ngle logical link, X, 16x RX).
	<ul> <li>Tasks to be performed:</li> <li>architecture definition and d (goal:32) in a single cable as:</li> <li>development and evaluation laser, 16x receiver and corres</li> <li>development and evaluation driver array chip (goal: 16x la development and evaluation multiple fibres (target:4 goa current single SpW connect and a user without special tr mate/demate the connector,</li> <li>development and impleme technology to show the performance</li> </ul>	evelopment, capable to combine sembly, connector and optical tr of a laser and receiver diodes ponding optic), a of transimpedance amplifiers aser driver, 16x transimpedance of a fibre-optical connector suit 1:32). The connector shall not h or. Fibre-fibre connection shall aining in handling optic devices ntation of a demonstrator in rmance of the whole system.	e multiple fibres ansceiver array, array (goal: 16x and laser diode amplifier), able to combine be bigger than a not be allowed s shall be able to chip-on-board



<b>Deliverables</b> :	Prototype
-----------------------	-----------

**Current TRL:** 

Target TRL:

5 **Duration** (months):

24

TargetApplication/TRL 5 as of 2019.Timeframe:

3

Applicable THAG Roadmap: On-Board Payload Data Processing (2016).



#### 3.1.2.2. TD06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies

Domain	Earth Observation - CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)				
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Syste	ems, Payloads and Te	chnolo	gies	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT11-006ES	5		Budget (k€):	2,000
Title:	Multi Gb/s j missions	payload data trans	mitter	r EM for Earth Ob	servation
Objectives:	The objective payload data previous TRP Earth Observ	of this activity is to transmitter, implem activity and enablin ation missions.	desigr enting g multi	n, develop and test advanced technique -Gb/s data rate in 2	an EM model of a s resulting from a K- and K-band for
Description:	The EGRET TRP activity investigated in depth the extension of the CCSDS 131.2- B standard, introducing 128- and 256-APSK modulations and accompanying low complexity coding options, on top of the ones already in the standard covering up to 64-APSK. Making use of these new modulation and coding options, the bandwidth available for Earth Observation missions (both X- and K-band) can be fully exploited in the high elevation regime without saturating the data rate, while still respecting realistic constraints, e.g. limited available power and hardware resources. The use of higher constellations is also in line with the trend followed by other satellite standards, e.g. the extension of DVB-S2 (DVB-S2x). A payload data transmitter implementing the CCSDS 131.2-B standard as well as the new options introduced by EGRET up to EM level will prepare the way for near-future use of such techniques by missions needing multi-Gb/s data rates. In this activity, such model will be designed and developed and used to perform				
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering N	Model			
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL6 by 202	l.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: TT&C Transponders and Payload Data Transmitters (2012).



### 3.1.3. CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC

Domain	Space Science - CD4 - Electric A	Architecture / Power and Energy	y / EMC
Tech. Domain	19 - Propulsion		
Ref. Number:	GT11-007MP	Budget (k€):	700
Title:	PPU for all-electric scientif	ic platforms	
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to suitable for scientific platform stringent pointing requirements	o develop and test a Power Proce is, all-electric, devoted to ultra s.	ssing Unit (PPU) -low orbits with
Description:	In the frame of LISA PF, two P and Indium mN-FEEP thruster more recently, orbit raising, all mass. This reduction can be tra total mass, which means signi imply economic benefits for the for the satellite manufacturers t	PUs were bread-boarded and test s. The use of EP systems for stat ows for a very significant reduct nslated into larger payload mass ficantly lower launch costs. Bot operators, which means a comp hat can offer EP systems in their	sted for Caesium ion-keeping and, ion of propellant s, or in a reduced h of these cases etitive advantage spacecraft buses.
	For scientific missions, electri example in missions like GOCE the mission lifetime is required in order to perform measureme Depending on the application, a various thrust levels and speci- thrust levels are quite well ad electronics, there are not so ma Especially for small spacecraft, and there are strong constraint system, electric propulsion has thrusters. Recently developed promising candidates for small low thrust levels and long lifetin The Power Processing Unit (PP of a propulsion subsystem, v mass/volume and cost. In or competitive and enabling tech requiring low thrust levels on development of the PPU is prop- very much dependent on the sp so called coupling tests between	c propulsion can be an enabling c, where constant drag compensa- , due to the presence of air drag nts in a ultra-quiet environment a wide spread of electric propuls fic impulses are being used. Wh dressed by thruster development ny alternatives available for the 1 where electrical power typically s in terms of mass and volume for and optimized thruster technol spacecraft, especially where fine the ne is required. U), as driving electronics, is a very which has great influence on in- rder to prepare electric propu- nology candidate for future sc small spacecraft with limited ro- posed. Since the development of ecific electrical properties of a pa- n electronics and thruster shall b	g technology, for ation throughout at this low orbit, ion systems with hereas the higher nts and available low thrust levels. y is quite limited or the propulsion ete with cold gas ologies could be hrust regulation, y important item its performance, ilsion as a real ientific missions resources, a pre- the electronics is rticular thruster, e an integral and
	essential part of the development As a starting point an existing Pl adaptions to the selected thru- breadboard level to identify specification for an EM/QM I confirm the correct baseline of the The second step will focus on the PPU, optimized for scientific requirements) and taking into	nt. PU development will be used, whi uster technology. This approach hard points and to develop PPU. First coupling tests with the design. the development of an engineer platforms (e.g. against the account the typical constraints	ich might require ch will allow on a requirement a thruster shall ing model of the NGGM mission

#### 3.1.3.1. TD19 - Propulsion



mass/volume and cost. Intermediate coupling tests with a real thruster shall safeguard the development and pave the way for a the future.

<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering Model verified in a representative environment				
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	30
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Electric pro	pulsion systems for n	nissions	like NGGM. TRL 5 by	7 2021.

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Electric Propulsion Technologies (2009).



## 3.1.4. CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing

#### 3.1.4.1. TD06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies

Domain	Earth Observation - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing					
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Syst	ems, Payloads and	Technol	logies		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT11-008E	F		Budget (k€):	900	
Title:	Radar Higl	n Power Amplifie	er for K	a-band Radar		
Objectives:	The objective pulsed HPA band SAR in	e of this activity is to (High Power Ampli struments (3.5 kW,	o design ifier) me 14% dut	manufacture and test eting the specification y cycle, 500MHz BW)	t a breadboard of a 1 for use in the Ka- ).	
Description:	Recently the Observation evolved. In observation	Recently the interest of Synthetic Aperture Radar (SAR) instruments for Earth Observation purposes at the higher frequencies as Ka-band has significantly evolved. In this band single pass single platform interferometer for land observation and ocean wide swath altimetry have developed strong momnetum.				
	In particular ocean wide swath altimetry applications have developed high interest at the European Copernicus Marine Services. Various ESA internal activities on the feasibility of a Ka-band SAR instrument and interferometer have pointed to the need of a European Ka-band high power source e.g. Klystron with capabilities beyond what is currently available on the worldwide market. The activity will reflect this need by building a vacuum tube demonstrator fulfilling European needs					
	<ul> <li>The activity of Phase 1 will of end of the critical restriction of the study of end of the critical restriction of the critical restr</li></ul>	will be divided in tw cover the following eview of the trade-o a pulsed HPA for K ation of a baseline d design, ance prediction by ation and update of be dedicated to: turing and testing greed at the end of 1 d programmatic d up to Flight Mode and cost of each de	vo phase tasks: ff and re a-band S technol analysi the prel of a HP. Phase 1, lescriptic el, toget	s: sults of the TRP activit SAR, ogy, e.g. Extended In s/simulation and tes iminary specification. A Breadboard accordi on of the necessary of her with a realistic ent phase.	ty on the feasibility iteraction Klystron ts at subassembly ing to the baseline development steps estimation of the	
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard					
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	4	Duration (months):	24	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Ka-band SAI	tinterferometer. T	RL 5/6 2	022.		
Applicable TH	AG Roadmag	• Not related to a	Harmon	isation subject.		



Domain	Earth Observation - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing				
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Syst	tems, Payloads and	Technol	ogies	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT11-009H	CF		Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Miniature	filter for L-band	radiom	eter	
<b>Objectives</b> :	The objectiv synthetic ap	ve is to develop mi erture radiometer aj	niaturis oplicatio	ed high performan ns.	ce filter for L-band
Description:	Synthetic ap similar recei elementary i to improve miniaturisat larger numb	perture radiometer i ivers to be accommo receivers correlates w the performance tion and mass saving per of receivers to be	nstrume dated. In with the s of sim g of the n accomm	nts like MIRAS (SM n this kind of instrum system performance ilar instruments i receiver is crucial in modated.	IOS) require several ment, the number of . Therefore, in order in the future, the order to allow for a
	One key bloc very efficien transfer func coaxial reso and bulky an of the other However, th of miniaturi It is presume the insertion for the appli lossy filter th	ck in the receiver is t nt out-of-band inter- ction has to be repro- nator filters are emp nd they are not any parts of the receiv- ere are potential ter- sation while mainta ed that the RF filter of n loss is not necessar cation of novel effici- heory.	he high p ference ducible a bloyed fo more in ver (Inte chnologi ining the could be ily a key ent desig	performance RF filte protection and on and uniform from ur or this function which line with the minia grated digital recei- es that can provide e performance (Diel- located after the low design parameter. T in approaches such a	er that has to provide the other hand its hit to unit. Currently, ch, however, are big turisation objectives ver TRP WP 2013). the required degree lectric, SAW, BAW). -noise amplifier and 'his could open ways as pre-distortion and
	This activity for SMOS for requirement best technor breadboarde selected for a and tested.	aims first at revisiti ollower like missior ts. Secondly, taking ologies and archite ed. Based on the bu an EM development.	ng the Lus and th into accectures readboar Finally,	band elementary re nen flowing down f ount also the quali for the miniaturis ding results, the bo the EM shall be desi	cceiver requirements from there the filter fication aspects, the sed filter shall be est concept shall be gned, manufactured
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering	Model			
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	SMOS/MIR 2022.	AS type future instru	uments:	SMOS-Ops, Super N	/IRAS. TRL 7 for
Applicable TH Roadmap:	AG	Not related to a H	Iarmoni	sation subject.	



#### 3.1.4.2. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques

Domain	<i>Earth Observation - CD5 - End-to-End RF &amp; Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing</i>				
Tech. Domain	07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques				
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT11-010EF Budget (k€):</b> 400				
Title:	Frequency stabilization of QCL for Supra-THz applications				
Objectives:	The objective is to demonstrate the feasibility of the frequency stabilization of a Quantum Cascade Laser (QCL) and demonstrate the improvement of a stabilization loop with respect to passive stabilization.				
Description:	<ul> <li>stabilization loop with respect to passive stabilization.</li> <li>The supra-THz (&gt;3 THz) bands have been recently proposed for low Earth orbit THz remote sounding missions such as LOCUS (Low-Cost Upper-atmosphere Sounder). In order to achieve coherent detection, heterodyne receivers at supra-THz frequencies are under development by integrating in a single waveguide cavity a Schottky based mixers fed by a Quantum Cascade Laser (QCL) as Local Oscillator (LO). Thanks to the QCL, enough LO power is available to drive the mixer.</li> <li>Currently, a simple combination of passive thermal and electrical bias control is proposed for the frequency stabilization of the QCL. In order to achieve the frequency stability that would allow meeting the scientific requirements, phased lock loop systems such as the beating tone of two lasers injected into the QCL shall be investigated.</li> <li>The activity aims at proposing, manufacturing and testing a frequency stabilization loop for QCLs used as LO of supra-THz Schottky based supra-THz heterodyne receivers and QCL LO,</li> <li>issuing the main mission, receiver and LO performance requirements including frequency stability.</li> <li>performing trade off analysis and selecting one baseline frequency stabilization loop solution including its integration with the QCL and Schottky mixer,</li> <li>designing and analyzing the selected configuration,</li> </ul>				
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Breadboard				
Current TRL:	3 Target TRL: 5 Duration 18				
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Remote Sounding EO Missions. TRL5 by 2019.				

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Technologies for Passive Millimetre and Submillimetre Wave Instruments (2016).



Domain	Earth Observation - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing				
Tech. Domain	07 - Electrom	agnetic Technologi	es and 'i	Techniques	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT11-011EF			Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Compact Mu	ılti-Frequency Fo	eeds fo	r Multi-Frequenc	y Radiometers
Objectives:	The aim is to o horn for futur	develop a compact r e microwave radion	nulti-fro neter in:	equency and dual-pestruments.	olarisation feed
Description:	Earth Observation radiometers often use multi-frequency feeds to comply to the colocation requirement of certain beams on ground. Besides the colocation requirement there is sometimes also the requirement to have the dual linear polarisation for certain frequency channels. Although this does not impact the design of the feed horn itself, it has a significant impact on the design and complexity of the feed chain excitor part.				
	Similar design issues can be seen in Telecommunication feed horns with receive and transmit capability and often use dual polarisation as well. The constraint these feed horns have is that they form part of a larger array and hence need to have a very compact feeding chain with the lateral dimensions not larger than the feed horn aperture. In a previous ESA activity a very compact Ka-band feed horn was designed, manufactured and tested operating at 20 and 30 GHz.				
	In this activity an assessment shall be done to see what simularities exist between the feed requirements for EO radiometers and Telecommunication array feed horns at e.g. Ka-band. If feasible a feed horn shall be designed, analysed manufactured and tested at 18/23 GHz for a future EO radiometer similar to MWI instrument on Metop SG.				
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Engineering N	ſodel			
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 5 by 2020	0.			
Applicable THA	AG Roadmap:	Technologies for I Instruments (2010	Passive 1 6).	Millimetre and Subr	nillimetre Wave



### 3.1.5. CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations

#### 3.1.5.1. TD12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks

Domain	Earth Observation - CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations				
Tech. Domain	12 - Ground	l Station Systems an	d Netwo	orks	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT11-0120	S		Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Tri-band (	S/X/K) feed syste	m desiş	gn for future EO m	issions
Objectives:	The objectiv (TT&C) and to X-Band a activity is to running and	ve of the activity is so l in X-Band (payload and payload data will o design a feed that l upcoming EO missi	o far EO data). I be tran will be a ons.	missions have been on n the future TT&C se smitted in K-Band. T able to operate in S/2	operated in S-Band ervices will migrate he objective of this X/K-Band to cover
Description:	The layout of the 14m X/K-Band antenna developed under a previous GSTP activity will be used as starting point to define the feed specifications. A trade-off among different feed configuration will be performed. After selection of the preferred solution the feed will be designed including diplexers/filters and tracking couplers. Mechanical drawings will be prepared and critical components will be manufactured and tested in order to de-risk the project.				
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Breadboard	l			
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	All future E	arth Observation mis	sions.		
				(0015)	

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Ground Station Technology (2015).



### 3.1.6. CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions

#### 3.1.6.1. TD02 - Space System Software

Domain	Earth Observation - CD9 - Digital	Earth Observation - CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions		
Tech. Domain	02 - Space System Software			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT11-013E0	Budget (k€):	1,000	
Title:	Data Analytics for EO (DANEO)			
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to methods and tools for advanced emerging exploitation platforms co	design, develop, benchmark data analytics capabilities, oncept and processing paradig	and implement tailored for the gm.	
<b>Description:</b>	Emerging concept of exploitation fostering and promoting the massi as possible specific applications of specific platform, etc.). On their sic range of sensors, and possibly from future missions. Today, all these of platforms, where it is expected to h The proposed activity shall design, perform advanced data analytics of variety) hosted on these public clos small scale data archives, usually st key/value data store. Therefore, m to support upcoming storage app currently an issue for many tools), analytics capabilities on massis complemented with meteorologics methods shall permit to analyze lon patterns and trends, and even gets series. The analysis of the di measurements can permit to effect data and bring advantages in the co making (e.g. by forecasting the url probability of a fire in a particular to	In platforms and network of we use of EO data, in order to like e.g. in thematic platfor le, these applications require in long time series built with p lata are becoming collocated wave low-level access to these develop, deploy and test ope in such big data sets (in terms uds. They are today only par ored on a shared file system o ethods and tools to be develo roaches (like e.g. the Object and to provide and benchma we heterogeneous datasets al or hydrological ones). In ing and dense data time series, herate predictions of next va fferences between prediction tively extract the information ontext of monitoring, prevent ban expansion, or by assessin area).	of platforms are support as much ms, or mission- data from a wide oast, current and on public cloud data. n-source tools to s of volumes and tially applied on r in a distributed ped shall permit Store, which is rk different data (e.g. EO data particular, these , infer and derive lues in the time ons and actual n embedded into ion and decision ng the forecasted	
	<ul> <li>To achieve the above objectives, th</li> <li>data Fusion between the diobservations in cases of clouds</li> <li>machine/Deep Learning (ML/and algorithms to be applied stored on the public clouds complementary or in-situ data and dense data time series, in generate predictions of next va</li> <li>tools to apply and analyse met different data analytics techninext acquisition is performed,</li> <li>a powerful time series Visualia current solutions), targeted to refer to the series of the series</li></ul>	e following functionalities sha ifferent sensors, in order and collect more dense time (DL) and Artificial Intelligen on such huge and heteroge (not only from satellite data ); these methods shall permi fer and derive patterns and t lues in the time series, rics, in order to assess the acc ques, or to evaluate the pred sation Tool (i.e. going much researchers and developers wh	all be provided: to obtain more series, ce (AI) methods eneous data sets a, but also from t to analyse long trends, and even curacy across the lictions once the further than the no need powerful	
**Deliverables:** 

Prototype



and interactive Web based analytics with built-in map viewer (considering the emerging data cube technology),

- a programming client interface (like e.g. Python) on top of data analytics components, since this is usually extensively used by researchers communities,
- developed software components shall be distributable as open source, with an adequate license, and shall run on cloud-based scalable infrastructures (with data collocated with processing components). Their performance and scalability shall be ensured by demonstration in pilot project areas (to be identified and agreed during the project),

To achieve project objectives, at list the following activities shall be addressed:

- state-of-the-art technology survey (with gap analysis) and analysis of requirements and needs, including formulation of real use cases in pilot project areas,
- development of required data analytics algorithms and design of software components to be implemented,
- integration and verification of implemented components into the selected infrastructure,
- validation and demonstration on identified use cases.

The activity shall be linked and take into account the outcome of parallel activities in order to create synergies between different application domains (like e.g. data analytics on operations or on satellite design data).

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Explotation	of Earht Observation	n Data. 2	2019.	



#### 3.1.6.2. TD26 - Others

Domain	Earth Observation - CD9 - Digit	al Engineering for Space Missic	ons
Tech. Domain	26 - Others		
Ref. Number:	GT11-014EO	Budget (k€):	400
Title:	New Generation Virtual Rea	lity for Big EO data sets (VI	REO)
Objectives:	The objective of the project is to c technologies enabling immersive scale EO data sets.	levelop a new generation of Virt and real-time exploration of cu	ual Reality (VR) urrent Petabyte-
<b>Description</b> :	EO has now fully entered the erroutinely by the new generation biggest challenges of Big Data is human mind can comprehend Reality) are now providing a very hidden in a large amount of data to walk through these large dat visualization to reduce the cognit more able to focus. VR can help g of the data representation. At the same time, VR technolog mainly for entertainment purp equipped with technologies (e.g. a VR viewer with the addition of a	a of Big Data with Petabytes of of satellites, such as the Sentin extracting small information in . Immersive environments (li powerful tool to better capture . There is currently a growing m a sets, by simplifying as much ive load, thus keeping the user le guide the scientists and other us by has also become available to oses. All main high-end mob Google Cardboard) which allow relative cheap external device. S	f data delivered hels. One of the h a way that the ke e.g. Virtual the information eed for scientist as possible the ess stressed and bers to key areas general public, ile phones are to turn them in Such technology
	can of course be used to develop both for data analysis or outrea Intelligence (AI) with VR permit This convergence of technologi extracted information and situa explore and interact with Petaby exploring trends, correlations, pa	EO data visualization apps for ch purposes. In addition, com s to find the hot spots where to tes represents the next frontie ational awareness to users, all rte-scale EO data sets (e.g. for f atterns, shared context, etc.).	mobile phones, bining Artificial focus attention. er in delivering owing them to finding outliers,
	In this context, the idea of this pr generation of immersive experier The main idea is to integrate thes enable to target the VR gaze to t when looking at the archive of S the 'Hot Spots' according to use coastal environments, land use, a automatically compute the place VR will enable to look at it and sl	roject is to combine VR and AI to nees to advance our understandi e 2 technologies (AI and VR). AI he most interesting 'hot spots'. 2 (several Petabytes), an AI syst r needs, like e.g. changes in for tmosphere, infrastructures, etc. s of changes according to user in hare it between people.	o create the new ing of Big Data. I techniques will As an example, tem can tell you ests, ocean and The system will hterest; then the
	In particular, one key idea is to visualization methods that m capabilities (in terms of what hu to detect, synthesize and mode combined with VR) is to incorpor data visualization techniques. T comprehension of the data, impr Furthermore, the technology dev used by mobile apps, in order to for mobile devices.	investigate the characteristics nost effectively leverage hun man senses, brain and emotion l). The advantage of this new rate the science of human visual 'his results in tools that delive roving over traditional visualisate eloped in this project shall also be create ergonomic virtual enviro	ot the data and nan neurologic is are optimized technology (AI perception into er great human tion techniques. be adapted to be nments tailored



The outcome of the activity is a 'Prototype Demonstrator' showing the capability of AI combined with VR to capture the spots of a changing planet (observed by satellite, like e.g. S-1/2/3), with a focus on a series of use cases, related to urban, coastal, ocean, and vegetation changes. The main components to be developed are:

- the AI package enabling to mine the satellite data archive for hot spots of change,
- interface with VR tools to enable immersive dive into the archive and timelapse of change on demand,
- demonstrator of the combined technologies (AI+VR) on a series of use cases (e.g. cities, coastal, ocean, vegetation changes).

To achieve activity objectives, at list the following tasks shall be addressed:

- state-of-the-art technology survey (with gap analysis) and analysis of requirements and needs, including formulation of real pilot use cases,
- development of required algorithms and methodologies, and design of software components to be implemented,
- integration and verification of implemented components into a consistent software prototype,
- validation and demonstration on identified use cases, including analysis of strategic evolution.

#### **Deliverables:** Prototype

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Exploitatio	n of Earth Observatic	on Data.	Q2 2019.	
Applicable THA Roadmap:	<b>A</b> G	Not related to a H	Iarmon	isation subject.	



# 3.2. SCI - Space Science

## 3.2.1. CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

## 3.2.1.1. TD17 - Optoelectronics

Domain	Space Science - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal							
Tech. Domain	17 - Optoeleo	etronics						
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT12-001M	IM		Budget (k€):	350			
Title:	Application of Black Silicon surface treatment to photodiodes and silicon drift detectors							
Objectives:	The objectiv existing phot	e of this activity is codiodes and silicon	to trar drift de	isfer black silicon su tectors.	rface treatment to			
Description:	In the recent years, light trapping by nanostructured surface has been successfully applied to solar cells, resulting in excellent performance devices. This technology, in combination with other modifications, has been already proven to be beneficial for silicon photodiode devices. The nanostructure advantages are: a longer optical path, a wider acceptance angle and a close to zero surface reflection. All these characteristics will provide devices with superior performances.							
	<ul> <li>This activity encompasses the following tasks:</li> <li>transfer of the black silicon technology to existing photodiode and silicon drift detectors,</li> <li>electro-optical performance evaluation to compare standard process and the new technology,</li> <li>qualification campaign for environmental testing following the ECSS 9020 standard,</li> <li>radiation campaign to assess radiation hardness of the new technology.</li> </ul>							
Deliverables:	Breadboard							
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18			
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Application i	n optical detectors.	TRL 5 b	y 2019.				

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Optical Detectors, Visible Range (2015).



#### 3.2.1.2. TD21 - Thermal

Domain	Space Science	- CD2 - Structur	es, Mecha	nisms, Materials, Z	Thermal
Tech. Domain	21 - Thermal				
Ref. Number:	GT12-002M	ſ		Budget (k€):	600
Title:	Low CTE He	at Pipes for H	ighly Stal	ble Structures	
Objectives:	The objective mounted to hi operating tem	of this activity ghly stable struc perature range.	is to deve ctures with	elop Low CTE Hea nout inducing therm	t Pipes that can be nal stresses over the
<b>Description</b> :	Structures that are used to achieve a high pointing accuracy requirement are usually constructed using CFRP since it provides a low thermal distortion solution. However, these structures have a low thermal conductivity which makes it difficult to evacuate heat from dissipative components that are mounted to the structure. The current approach to remove the power dissipation via radiation heat transfer since other alternatives as conduction, are not a viable solution. However, radiation heat transfer can only be used for low power density units since higher power units would simply overheat. One method to solve this problem, is to use heat pipes to transport this excess heat to a radiator. A previous ESA activity studied the option of mounting low CTE Heat Pipes (e.g. Ivar or Titanium) to a CFRP structure. However, the trade-off revealed that the bonding low CTE saddles to the Invar or Titanium tube was too complex and heavy. With the advancement of Additive Layered Manufacturing (ALM), the thermal interfaces or saddles located on the heat pipe, could be made using the ALM process and welded/joined to a standard arterial heat pipe made of the same material as the ALM pieces. The ALM heat pipe sections could also increase the performance of the heat pipe by widening the avancement or condensary				
Deliverables:	The activity wi working fl material s material c ALM para ALM samp Engineering M	ill focus the follo uid selection, election, haracterization a meters optimiza ple manufacturir ng Model ma ion and environ fodel	wing aspec and compa tion, ag and test anufacturin ment.	cts: tibility testing, ing, ng and testing i	n a representative
<b>Current TRL:</b>	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	28
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Application in	stable structure	s. TRL 6 20	( <b>months)</b> . 020.	

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Two-Phase Heat Transport Systems (2009).



800

#### 3.2.1.3. TD24 - Materials and Processes

Domain	Space Science - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal
Tech. Domain	24 - Materials and Processes

#### Ref. Number: GT12-003MS

#### Title: Large Aluminium-based Optical Mirrors Processed by Solid State Joining

**Objectives:** This activity aims to demonstrate the potential of applying solid state joining technologies for the manufacturing of Al-based optical mirrors, in order to increase the achievable Al-based mirror size and allow more complex mirror designs.

During the activity, suitable combinations of Al-based alloys and solid state joining techniques will be identified, with respect to microstructure and surface roughness requirements for optical applications.

Budget (k€):

An optimum manufacturing route will be identified in terms of base material processing, solid state joining of mirror sub-elements, mirror surface polishing, thermal treatments and surface treatments. An optical mirror demonstrator will be manufactured and characterized.

**Description:** Aluminium-based alloys have been successfully used in optical mirror applications, for space missions. The attractiveness of Al-based alloys comes from their high thermal conductivity, low weight and relatively low cost compared to optical ceramics. Al-based mirrors have been produced both in Niclad and bare-polished forms. Alloy 6061 is the most frequently used Al-based alloy in aerospace optical systems.

One of the challenges of using Al-based alloys for mirror surfaces is the achievable surface roughness. Surface processing for these alloys is usually performed by single point diamond turning (SPDT). The final surface roughness is affected by the grain size within the material, as grain boundaries produce irregularities on the polished surface. The use of rapidly-solidified Al-based alloys, such as RSA6061, has led to improvements in the surface roughness of optical mirrors processed by SPDT, as these very fine grain sizes minimize the irregularities on the surface.

However, the size of rapidly solidified Al-based mirrors is currently limited by the maximum size of Al-based material billets which can be produced.

A possible way of increasing the attainable size of Al-based mirrors would be to join Al-based material elements together and process the assembly to an adequate surface condition. This can only be achieved if the joining operation does not adversely affect the fine grain structure of the base material. In addition, the applied joining method should not induce a large amount of residual stresses, which could result in deformation of the mirror assembly. Solid state joining techniques limit microstructure changes in the base metals, as well as residual stresses, as the joint is performed below the melting point of the base metals. Among those techniques, friction welding methods were observed to generate fine grain structures in the joints. The combination of fine grain Al-based materials and solid state joining could therefore allow to produce assemblies which can be processed into large mirrors, with adequate surface finish and dimensional stability. This would increase the achievable size of Al-based optical mirrors and enable new mirror designs, by assembly of smaller mirror elements. In this activity, suitable combinations of Al-based materials and solid stain joining methods will be identified. Optimum processing route and process parameters will be investigated and a demonstrator will be produced and



characterized, to show the feasibility of a large Al-based optical mirror obtained by joining of smaller elements.

The activity will consist of the following tasks:

- conducting a literature review of joining techniques for metallic materials, with respect to their ability to generate or maintain small grain sizes in the joint. This shall include solid state joining and friction welding techniques in particular, but can cover other joining techniques,
- conducting a literature review of suitable Al-based alloys used for optical mirror applications, with respect to their applicability to solid state joining techniques,
- performing preliminary joining trials on potential Al-based alloys with selected joining techniques, in order to assess the effect of joining on the grain size,
- performing a trade-off to identify Al-based alloys and joining methods which will be investigated in this study. Criteria for the trade-off will include maturity of the materials for optical applications, maturity of the joining methods, achieved grain sizes from the preliminary trials and potential for industrialization,
- establishing the requirements of the large mirror demonstrator, at system level, sub-element level and material level. This will include surface roughness, dimensional tolerances, thermal stability, CTE, specific stiffness, mechanical properties. The target size for the demonstrator is 300 mm,
- optimizing the processing route for the mirror assembly. This will consist of producing Al-based mirror specimens, varying the process parameters and testing those specimens, in order to identify the optimum manufacturing sequence (in terms of base material processing, solid state joining, surface treatments, SPDT, thermal treatments, stress relief treatments) and the optimum process parameters for all manufacturing steps,
- producing the large mirror demonstrator and characterizing it, to assess compliance with the requirements,
- performing a critical assessment of the potential of applying solid state joining techniques to Al-based alloys for the production of large Al-based mirrors.

**Deliverables:** Prototype

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Optical mir	rors. TRL 6 by 2020.			
Applicable THA Roadmap:	AG	Not related to a H	larmon	isation subject.	



# 3.2.2. CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)

### 3.2.2.1. TD06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies

Domain	Space Science - CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT12-004ET Budget (k€):</b> 800
Title:	Integrated transponder/PDT for Near Earth Science missions
Objectives:	The objectives of this activity are to assess , design and develop an integrated X/X band transponder/PDT unit, able to provide essential TT& C (telemetry, command and ranging) and Payload Data Transmission functionalities (PDT) for Near Earth (NE) Science missions, with a significant reduction of costs, mass and volume for the overall communications sub-system.
Description:	In a number of cases, NE Science missions are designed coupling stringent requirements on costs/mass/volume and demanding, often variable, data volume. Traditionally, such missions had often relied on either an X/X band transponder or on the combination of a X/X transponder and a separate (K-band) data transmitter. In the former case, data return is maximized providing a high data rate mode, within the limitations of the available bandwidth (up to 10 MHz available for mission). In the latter, such limitations are overcome by the availability of a separate data transmitter (PDT), with an overall increase of cost/mass/volume. Considering a cold-redundancy scheme, a dedicated PDT would increase the mass by at least 4-5 kg (plus amplifiers, waveguides, switches, for another 4-5 kg) and this, combined with the associated costs may not be acceptable, depending on the required data rate
	To bypass such limitations, it is proposed to assess and develop an integrated transponder/payload data transmitter that would be able to cover, in a single X/X band unit, the functionalities of both the TT&C transponder and PDT. In particular, such unit, should work as a X/X band transponder during the critical phases of the mission (e.g. LEOP, safe mode), providing real time telemetry, telecommand and ranging functionality. During nominal phases, instead, the unit would work as a PDT, enabling an extended flexibility in the supported data rates. To this end, a number of options will be investigated: use of different (suppressed carrier) modulation formats (CCSDS standards beyond OQPSK or GMSK) and different error correction codes and code rates (encoding in the unit) to increase the spectral efficiency (over the limited bandwidth); use of different TX power levels (up to 15 dB variations) to adjust the overall system conditions (including PFD on ground). Advanced techniques such as VCM should be considered, allowing a data return increase up to 100% (LEO missions, e.g. THOR or XIPE). Housekeeping telemetry would be guaranteed by the receiver section (always able to receive standard TC signals). Trade-offs will be needed on the ranging functionalities, either suppressing it during this mode (and allowing instead ranging sessions during the initial and last part of each pass, beside the critical phases), or introducing ranging capabilities compatible with a suppressed carrier transmissions The activity will foresee an initial assessment phase, where different trade-offs will be performed to ensure achieving the overall targets. An initial architecture design will complete the study phase. Following that, a functionally representative (EM/EBB) model of the



Deliverables:	integrated transponder/PDT will be designed and implemented, to increase the confidence of this novel unit by bringing to a suitable technological maturity. Engineering Model					
Current TRL:	2	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Near Earth Sc	tience missions. TRI	. 6 by 20	)22.		

Applicable THAG Roadmap: TT&C Transponders and Payload Data Transmitters (2012).



# 3.2.3. CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing

## 3.2.3.1. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques

Domain	Space Science - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing
Tech. Domain	07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT12-005EF Budget (k€):</b> 750
Title:	Development of multi-color Kinetic Inductance Detector pixels for CMB applications
Objectives:	The objective is to develop a multi-color, dual polarization sub-array based on Kinetic Inductance Detector (KID) pixels, in combination with an Ultra-Wide Band (UWB) leaky-wave antenna that covers the entire high frequency range of 255-600 GHz, required for the upcoming CMB missions like CORE.
Description:	Recently, imaging systems with close to 1000 pixels based upon Microwave Kinetic Inductance Detectors (MKIDs) have been demonstrated, combining high sensitivity, high yield, high dynamic range and a good hardness against cosmic ray interactions. As a result, this technology has been considered for the high frequency arrays of the proposed M5 mission CORE, requiring, in the baseline design, 768 pixels in 7 frequency bands in between 255 and 600 GHz. In its baseline design, CORE uses a single detector per spatial pixel, sensitive to a single linear polarization and 5.3 mm diameter lenses for the 255, 295 and 340 GHz bands, and 3.8 mm diameter lenses for the 390, 450, 520 and 600 GHz frequency bands.
	Major improvements in terms of instrument observing speed per spatial pixel are possible by developing a broad-band, dual polarization, multi-band pixel using superconducting stripline technology. In this concept, one spatial pixel consists of a lens-antenna or horn that allows broad band, 2 polarization radiation coupling. On-chip superconducting striplines, Orto-mode transducers and band pass filters are then used to separate the detected radiation in several frequency bands and 2 polarizations. An individual detector is coupled to each filter output. This pixel will be faster than a single band, single polarization pixel as used now in the CORE instrument baseline.
	For CORE, which uses MKIDs, this becomes even more promising, since MKID technology allows for 1000 pixels to be read-out with a single readout chain.
	<ul> <li>This activity includes the following tasks:</li> <li>to develop a dual polarization, 255-600 GHz UWB leaky wave antenna,</li> <li>to modify conceptual designs available in the literature to operate in the higher frequency band and investigate efficient coupling mechanisms to couple it to MKID detectors,</li> <li>to investigate how many frequency bands can be coupled to a single pixel without deteriorating the coupling to the detectors. The baseline would be to develop 2 different pixels to remain close to the CORE pixel design: One for 255-340 GHz, 5.2 mm lenses and one for 390-600 GHz, 3.8 mm lenses. The 255-340 GHz pixel will combine 3 bands and 2 polarizations coupling to 6 MKIDs. The 390-600 GHz will combine four bands and 2 polarizations, coupling to 8 MKIDs,</li> <li>to demonstrate a small sub-array that can detect radiation with 2 pixel designs for the entire 255 600 CHz band</li> </ul>



This development will enable to build the entire 255-600 GHz focal plane array of CORE using 2 different pixels. When using the same focal plane area, i.e. 768 spatial pixels, each coupled to 6 or 8 detectors depending on the band, the instrument will be  $\sim$ 7x faster in observation speed, using 2688 MKIDs in total ( $\sim$ 7x more than in the baseline design). This would require 3 readout chains. This also implies that it will be possible to reduce the amount of spatial pixels to  $\sim$  110, and keeping 768 detectors. This instrument concept will be as fast as the original proposal, but will use only 1/7th of the focal plane area. It is important to note that the technology, when developed, can be easily scaled to the lower frequency channels of the instrument.

**Deliverables:** Breadboard

Current TRL:     3     Target TRL:     4     Duration (months):	24
--	----

Target

**Application**/ Cosmic Microwave Background (CMB) missions. TRL4 by 2020. **Timeframe:** 

**Applicable THAG Roadmap:** Technologies for Passive Millimetre and Submillimetre Wave Instruments (2016).



## 3.2.4. CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles Propulsion

#### Domain Space Science - CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations Tech. Domain 19 - Propulsion **Ref. Number:** GT12-006MP Budget (k€): 1,000 Diaphragm Propellant Tanks compatible with MON and MMH for Title: spacecraft applications **Objectives:** The objectives of this activity are the following: Develop a propellant tank diaphragm, and manufacture and integration processes of previously qualified materials, following on from previous activities: under a GSTP contract and under the VEGA upper stage evolution programme (PDR completed in 2017). Develop the diaphragm for application to offset acceleration vector due to • spin stabilised spacecraft. **Description:** In the frame of the THOR mission, the specific requirements that have to be considered while assessing the Tank technology TRL are: spinning spacecraft: 2-5 rpm; bi-propellant: MMH and MON • in-orbit mission lifetime of 3 years at HEO ~6 x 45 Re total propellant load and configuration: ~1 t which drives the need of at least tanks of more than 160L capacity to have them equality distributed, 4 tanks for MON and other 4 tanks for MMH are recommended. Due to lack of suitable propellant tanks in Europe a development activity is necessary to achieve the Mission. Due to the offset acceleration vector of the relatively slow spin rate, the currently available surface tension type propellant management device equipped tanks are not suitable. The diaphragm tank technology enables spacecraft propulsion systems to cope with many different acceleration vectors without constraints or limitations, allowing flexibility in mission design and operations. Materials compatible with bi-propellants have been identified, and undergone a material qualification programme as part of a GSTP activity, completed in 2011 for hydrazine compatibility and for oxidiser compatibility in 2016. The hydrazine compatible material has been manufactured and flown for commercial programmes; however, the oxidiser compatible diaphragm needs to complete a formal qualification programme in an appropriate tank design. Similar needs have also been identified in the VEGA-C programme: materials compatible with bipropellants have been identified, and undergone a material qualification programme as part of VEGA upper stage evolution, completing PDR in 2017. The diaphragm material has already proven long term compatibility, however diaphragm and shell need to complete a formal qualification programme in an appropriate tank design tailored for long term spacecraft applications. **Deliverables: Engineering Model** Duration

#### 3.2.4.1. TD19 - Propulsion

5

**Target TRL:** 

6

(months):

**Current TRL:** 

15



TargetApplication/THOR. 2019.Timeframe:



# 3.2.5. CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations

## 3.2.5.1. TD12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks

Domain	Space Science - CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations					
Tech. Domain	12 - Ground	Station Systems an	d Netwo	rks		
Ref. Number:	GT12-007G	S		Budget (k€):	800	
Title:	500 W Ka I	Band Solid-State	Power A	Amplifier		
Objectives:	The aim of th amplifier (SS at least 500V	iis activity is to deve SPA) suitable for Sc V of rated power.	lop a Ka l ience Res	Band (34.3 - 34.7 Gh search Service and t	z) solid state power herefore capable of	
Description:	The development of a SSPA able to support this uplink would provide a much higher reliability to the mission. The final cost of a modular SSPA is lower than the klystron solution since fewer spares are required. Power Amplifier (PA) technology at Ka Band frequencies is essentially dominated by vacuum tube technologies whenever power above few tens of Watts is required.					
	A previous TRP activity, driven essentially by missions like Bepi Colombo and Juno (during the cruise), dug into the status of the technology and concluded with the manufacturing of an air-cooled 100W GaAs prototype. Future missions such as Juice will require higher EIRP levels. For distances at around 6AU a PA suitable of transmitting at least 500W is needed. There is no SSPA on the market that has such power capability in Ka Band.					
	The new development shall take over from the previous TRP - the 100W can be considered as the building block of the 500W SSPA. A trade-off between air cooling and water cooling shall be investigated. Water cooling is indeed favored over air cooling because more efficient (mainly at high altitude), less noisy and will reduce overall size of the amplifier (one of the challenges compared to the previous development). The new amplifier shall adopt modularity concept, the biggest advantage towards Klystron based amplifiers. Modularity will enable soft degradation conversely the klystron is instead a single point of failure. State of the art of GaAs Vs GaN technologies shall also be explored at the time of the development. Previous design favored GaAs towards the more efficient GaN due to reliability considerations based on the relatively young age on the market of the taken some and to the former.					
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype					
<b>Current TRL</b> :	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	30	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Science research applications. TRL 6 by 2021.					
Applicable THAG Roadmap: Ground Station Technology (2015).						



# 3.3. ST - Space Transportation

# 3.3.1. CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

### 3.3.1.1. TD20 - Structures

Domain	Space Transportation - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal			
Tech. Domain	20 - Structures			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT14-001MS	Budget (k€):	1,000	
Title:	Development of New Interface Con	cepts for Launcher M	fain Tanks	
Objectives:	The objective is to redesign the bifurcat aiming at both cost and mass reduction suppression of the problematic y-ring machined altogether.	ion area of launchers s . In particular the focus raw part and structu	tructural tanks, s will be on the tral component	
Description:	The core of the activity is to assess an optimize the selected solution in more de the interface as well as alternative new jube be achieved by detailed design of a s necessary manufacturing process sample	alternate design of th tail. This includes both, oining technologies. The caled demonstrator, in s and breadboards.	e interface and the geometry of e objective shall cluding all the	
	The design of the Y-ring area is driven present in this region: stresses due to tan and bending effects from tank pressure. V second ones can be minimized. Bending effects in the y-ring from tank European tank dome spherical cap shape align the dome gore panel segments for r Thus, to avoid the y-ring raw part the ber can be achieved by e.g. Cassini-curve sl manufactured in one piece without men technology can be one possibility to man Postulating the use of this dome manufact stir-welding, the design of the bifurcation tank dome part directly to the tank cylind the inter-tank non-pressurized tank skirt tank cylinder, shall be investigated in t analyses and damage tolerance analysis friction-stir and friction-spot welding. Standard material AA2219 as used for th should be considered or AlLi 2195, as for	by the high bending s ak shrinkage from cryog Whilst the first ones are u pressure are induced l e, which in turn is requin neridional welding. Inding stresses need to be haped domes. These do cidional weld seams. The ufacture such domes. turing technique, and the n area without y-ring part ler part via one weld seam part via friction-spot we erms of design, strengt with supporting sample the more recent Ariane 5 esseen for Ariane 6, or a	tresses that are enic propellants mavoidable, the by the standard red to be able to reduced, which mes need to be a spin-forming e use of friction- rt, attaching the m and attaching lding also to the h and buckling e testing of the cryogenic tanks combination.	
	<ul> <li>The tasks to be performed are:</li> <li>design and dimensioning of a sta alternate tank design,</li> <li>investigation into dome forming to demonstrator and a full-scale applica</li> <li>scale down of the alternate tank of design and dimensioning of the demonstrator, p preduction of the demonstrator, p</li> <li>testing of the demonstrator,</li> </ul>	ate-of-the-art reference echnologies for a subse- ation, lesign onto demonstrat onstrator, preliminary to reparation of the test	tank and the cale technology or dimensions, est plan, setup and test	



- test evaluation and correlation to the prediction,
- evaluation of the mass and cost saving potential of the alternate tank design.
   Deliverables: Engineering Model

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	2	4
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Main tanks f	for launchers. TRL 5 l	oy 2020			



#### 3.3.1.2. TD24 - Materials and Processes

Domain	Space Transportation - CD2 - St	ructures, Mechanisms, Mater	ials, Thermal	
Tech. Domain	24 - Materials and Processes			
Ref. Number:	GT14-002QE	Budget (k€):	450	
Title:	Out Of Autoclave (OOA) Ma Conductive CFRP Resin syste	nufacture with Very Hig ems for Launcher Applica	h Temperature tions	
Objectives:	<ul> <li>The objectives of this activity are</li> <li>resin characterization of temperature polyimide, i environment performant</li> <li>breadboard demonstrate high temperature (up to</li> </ul>	the following: Novel Resins (Pthalonitrile or like PETI-3xx) for thermal and ce, or mechanical performance of 500degC).	r High 1 space part tested at	
high temperature (up to 500degC). <b>Description:</b> Launcher applications are constantly seeking new mater performance for reduced mass. Current developments launcher bodies and fairings by using carbon or glass fi one area that could also yield benefit is the development resins that could be used to develop rocket nozzles or st high temperature systems. These would otherwise and instead focus on heavy metallic or expensive ceramic on Two types of resin exist that can benefit very high the Phthalonitrile resins are a class of resin that whe structural/fire resistant, high-temperature polymert moisture absorption and some electrical conductivity. to numerous military and commercial industries. May systems with low melting temperatures up to a Tg on The other type of resin is under the trade name of PETI- 330degC, with operational limit to properties around claims stable viscosity specifically designed for RTM a aerospace industry. This activity will develop one or both of these resins for of parts and characterise the mechanical and thermal			ons that optimize reduced mass of posites. However, high temperature parts that support aposite parts and ure applications. are lightweight, also exhibit low hey are attractive thalonitrile resin cesses exist, that degC. claims Tg around C. This resin also processing for the TM manufacture al conductivity of	
	<ul> <li>Phase 1 (planned duration: 6 months):</li> <li>perform literature review on Pthalonitrile resins and PETI-3xx and their high, temperature performance,</li> <li>develop a table of potential applications for this technology, including, associated sources of potential contaminants and defects during processing,</li> <li>develop matrix of specimens and tests to conduct to determine the feasibility of this concept.</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>Phase 2 (planned duration: 12 mo</li> <li>manufacture trials for specir room Temperature of CFRP a</li> <li>assess performance achieved depending on the resin).</li> </ul>	onths): nens (coupon testing at high and GFRP with this resin), at target temperatures (5006	temperature and degC or 300degC	
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Qualification reports, Flight mod	el parts.		
Current TRL:	3 Target TRL:	5 Duration (months):	18	



Target<br/>Application/<br/>Timeframe:High temperature composites, such as rocket nozzles. TRL 6 by 2020.

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Composite Materials (2014).



## 3.3.2. CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles

Domain	<i>Space Transportation - CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry</i> <i>Vehicles</i>
Tech. Domain	01 - Onboard Data Systems
Ref. Number:	<b>GT14-003ED Budget (k€):</b> 1,500
Title:	Time-Triggered Ethernet as Command & Control for launchers and space transportation applications
Objectives:	Launchers and Space Transportation are actively working since few years in the definition and development of a new Command &Control (C&C) bus that should preserve the high reliability, large EMI immunity, proven determinism and clear verification and validation strategy of the MIL-STD-1553B but should additionally provide a higher data bandwidth. The Time Triggered Ethernet has been identified as the best candidate for the high data rate-high reliable C&C bus. The aim of the activity is to perform an overview and trade-off of possible solutions available for Ethernet/ Time Triggered Ethernet (TTE) physical layer. The activity will focus on the reuse of already existing cabling/connectors and finding new providers of components.
Description:	<ul> <li>Recently several activities have started to support the definition and the successful deployment on Time Triggered Ethernet in space Furthermore a new ECSS Standardization WG has been created to complete the full definition of Time Trigger Ethernet. In the scope of this activity it is proposed to cover all the areas that require improvement and increase the maturity level of Avionics based on Time Triggered Ethernet. In summary the tasks include: <ul> <li>requirement consolidation, architectural study,</li> <li>development of a demonstrator of an Avionics based on Time Triggered Ethernet,</li> <li>assessment of the maturity of Time Triggered Ethernet building blocks,</li> <li>characterization of COTS parts in a relevant environment (passive parts as connectors and cable and active parts as transceiver),</li> </ul> </li> <li>development of a network simulator for TTE based network. The foreseen tool would allow network analysis both on high-level (i.e. unit) and low-level (i.e. bit-wise error injection). The output of this activity will be very useful for designing, verification and validation of TTE networks used for future missions,</li> <li>TTEthernet network stress tool. The proposed tool shall allow to test response of TTE network to erroneous/unpredictable traffic. The tool should be able to: <ul> <li>drop packet,</li> <li>impose latencies/delays on the line,</li> <li>impose time jitters to packets,</li> <li>modify packets (i.e. transparent clock modification, sequence number),</li> </ul> </li> <li>complete verification and validation process.</li> </ul>
	Time-Triggered Ethernet is currently used in launchers and Human Spaceflight applications. Both those applications are safety critical and require high reliability. As for TTE, at this point no standardized verification and validation

procedures are available to assure reliable operation of TTE network. Existing

#### 3.3.2.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems

**Deliverables:** 

Breadboard



standards (i.e. SAE AS6802) do not cover this topic. A demonstrator will be developed at breadboard level (a Time Triggered Ethernet based SAVOIR-SAT) to be integrated with system and sensor/actuator simulator(s) and to be used as a reference architecture in order to test and validate HW, SW and sensor /actuators building blocks. Output of this activity shall provide inputs to future standardization process for verification and validation of TTEthernet.

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	2019
--------------	---	-------------	---	-----------------------	------

TargetApplication/Launchers and space transportation applications. TRL 5 by 2018.Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Data Systems and On-Board Computers (2016).



# 3.3.2.2. TD05 - Space System Control

Domain	<i>Space Transportation - CD7</i> <i>Vehicles</i>	- Propulsion, Space Transportatio	n and Re-entry		
Tech. Domain	05 - Space System Control				
Ref. Number:	GT14-004SA	Budget (k€):	2,000		
Title:	Enhancement of the NGT-ATB: New Generation Launcher and Space Transportation Advanced Avionics Test Bed				
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to upgrade the existing New Generation Launcher and Space Transportation Advanced Avionics Test Bed, raising the TRL level from 3 to 6.				
<b>Description</b> :	<ul> <li>The Next Generation Space Transportation System Advanced Avionic Bench (NGT-ATB) reached TRL 3, in the frame of a previous TRP (?) activiallows creating a reference implementation of a space avionics test bench the re-used in several ESA projects.</li> <li>The NGT-ATB facilitates the integration of elements from the three avidisciplines Data Systems, Guidance, Navigation and Control (GNC), an Board Software (OBSW) together with the components of a System Simu Facilities into a harmonized set of ATB configurations for simulatio verification purposes. Currently, the NGT-ATB includes two different scer 3-stage micro-launcher and active debris removal (ADR) mission. In order to reach the status of a complete avionics solution, able to cop modern and demanding avionics verification and validation needs for ES future Space Transportation Systems, the NGT-ATB needs to reach TRL 6. A level, the NGTB will be able to support the full range of verification at validation of the specification, design, implementation and operations of space avionics transportation systems.</li> <li>Building on the previous TRP contract achievements, this activity will p enhancements in three main areas:</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>increase the sensors and actuators suite of the bench,</li> <li>expand the simulation tools of the ATB.</li> </ul> To fulfil those objectives, the work will be divided in three tasks: <ul> <li>Improve architecture and design of the test bench.</li> <li>Based on the current design /architecture, the adaptability/configurability of the NGT-ATB bench will be improved to allow a more user-friendly process of creating and adapting new scenarios. Additionally the NGT-ATB will be enhanced to accommodate the use of other modelling tools such as: EcosimPro, Modelica, SimMechanics, DCAP, 20-sim and PANGU 4.0 among others. <ul> <li>As such, the end-users will have more freedom / capabilities of choosing/using the most convenient tooling for the task at hand, while being still fully supported by the ATB-NGT workflow process: <ul> <li>modelling stage,</li> <li>configuration setup (fes, svf, egse),</li> <li>configuration package setup (which test scenario to run),</li> <li>simulation execution (post) result processing.</li> </ul> </li> </ul></li></ul>				



Deliverables:	<ul> <li>This task will investigate which sensors and actuators are most suitable to increase the fidelity of the NGT-ATB. The following is non-exhaustive list of the elements which will be procured and integrated: <ul> <li>multi spectral camera,</li> <li>infrared camera,</li> <li>LIDAR model (using a dSpace box),</li> <li>CAMSIM (camera Simulator),</li> <li>Beagle-2 board,</li> <li>Thruster simulation set (using a dSpace box).</li> </ul> </li> <li>In addition, during this task the NGT-ATB will be enhanced such that it can make use of the GRALS facility (robotic arm) to increase the fidelity of the Hardware-in-the-loop scenarios.</li> <li>Design, assembly, integration and testing of the new scenarios.</li> <li>This task will test the new improvements on the NGT-ATB by the design, assembly, and integration and testing of at least the following new scenarios: <ul> <li>space transportation of humans and cargo to the Moon: both orbiting around the Moon and landing to the South Pole,</li> <li>space Rider type mission.</li> </ul> </li> <li>In addition to these new scenarios to be developed from scratch, this task will test the migration into the NGT-ATB of two other existing scenarios developed in the frame of previous ESA test bench activities. These migrated scenarios will be: <ul> <li>Mars Entry, Descent and Landing scenario (taken from the SAGE and VisNav ESA funded activities),</li> <li>Earth Observation mission, based on EagleEye.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Current TRL:	3 Target TRL: 6 Duration 18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Space transportation systems (launchers, re-entry, rendezvous missions). TRL 5 by 2019.
Annlicable TH	AG Roadman: AOCS Sensors and Actuators: IL - Specific Sensors and Actuators

Applicable THAG Roadmap: AOCS Sensors and Actuators: II - Specific Sensors and Actuators (incl. IMU) (2015).



Domain	<i>Space Transportation - CD7 - I</i> <i>Vehicles</i>	Propulsion	n, Space Transportatio	on and Re-entry
Tech. Domain	05 - Space System Control			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT14-005SA		Budget (k€):	3,000
Title:	ADAMP Ascent and Descen	t Autono	omous Maneuverab	ole Platform
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is Landing vehicle, which will be validation of space technolog payloads can be hosted in order	to develop used as p ies. A flyi to suppo	o an experimental Ver latform for the testing ing platform will be rt novel autonomous f	tical Take-Off and g, verification and developed where light operations.
Description:	<ul> <li>The activity will develop an ascent and descent autonomous maneuverable platform (called ADAMP) which will be used as platform for the testing, verification and validation of space technologies.</li> <li>The vehicle shall be capable of performing vertical take-off and landing. The main performance requirements shall be: <ul> <li>capable to carry a payload of 60 kg,</li> <li>reach a minimum altitude of 2000 m,</li> <li>hovering duration of at least 30 min.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
	It shall allow to test ascent flight (optimal trajectories, robust control) as well as descent and landing technologies (hazard avoidance, high accuracy landing, hybrid navigation). ADAMP will be able to dest GNC, data handling, on-board software, structures and mechanisms, power, thermal, propulsion, etc. The starting point shall be the EAGLE platform developed by a German National activity, and the INCAS DTV, which have to be further matured with rocket propulsion systems. In contrast to its predecessors, ADAMP shall make use of a thrust vectored throttable rocket engine. The development of this demonstrator shall be supportedby different ESTEC sections including System, Avionics,Software Propulsion, and Structures, with the objective of serving ESA as test facility for technology acceleration.			
Deliverables:	Hardware: the Ascent and Software: the Avionics SW to co	Descent ontrol it ar	Autonomous Maneuv nd connect it to the pay	verable Platform. yloads.
Current TRL:	4 <b>Target TRL</b> :	6	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Future launcher developments landing phases on the Moon, M	with re-u ars or ast	sable stages. Explorat eroids. TRL 6 by 2019	ion missions with ).



Domain	<i>Space Transportation - CD7 - P.</i> <i>Vehicles</i>	ropulsion, Space Transportation	n and Re-entry	
Tech. Domain	05 - Space System Control			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT14-006SA	Budget (k€):	1,500	
Title:	End-To-End preliminary de	sign for a Lunar Ascent Veh	icle	
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to perform an End to End (E2E) preliminary design of an integrated set of subsystems for a lunar ascent vehicle for the Human Lunar Exploration Precursor Program (HLEPP).			
Description:	Departing from the work done in Aurora, TRP, GSTP, the HLEPP and E3P ESA programs, this activity shall perform the analysis, design, and preliminary development of an integrated set of subsystems for a Lunar Ascent Vehicle (LAV) for planetary exploration. This activity shall be performed in the frame of the ESA international cooperation in exploration. The main objective shall be to consolidate a multidisciplinary design of the vehicle including mature design, analysis and simulation of the following subsystems: GNC, structures, mechanisms, propulsion, thermal and power.			
	<ul> <li>The following tasks are prelimin</li> <li>Requirements and trade-off the mission scenario provie phase A system-level study i technical requirements of th of including requirements o the technology and technolo</li> <li>Preliminary design at syste design by means of models o bi-propellant, pump-pressu tanking shall also be analyz vehicle. Flow down the syste for GNC, structure, propuls shall also provide a prelimin</li> <li>Detailed Subsystem Design shall include the definition a</li> </ul>	ary envisaged: : based on the user and system led by the HLEPP (originated n the frame of E3P), this task sh e subsystems. This task shall trac f re-usability and human rating gy development cost. em level: multidisciplinary prel f each of the subsystem. The opt rized engine shall be investig red as an option to reduce the m level requirements to subsyste sion, thermal and power subsyste ary test plan definition. for the five subsystems: the sul and modelling of sensors, GNC a	requirements of from a parallel all elaborate the de-off the impact on the choice of liminary vehicle ion to use a 6kN ated. Structural dry mass of the m requirements stems. This task bsystems design lgorithm design,	

- Detailed Subsystem Design for the five subsystems: the subsystems design shall include the definition and modelling of sensors, GNC algorithm design, software implementation, thrusters, tanks, valves, structures and mechanisms, thermal and power. This task shall also provide a detailed test plan definition.
- E2E software tool development: this task shall consolidate all the models of the subsystems into a single End-to-End Simulator which will be used to verify and validate the capability of the LAV design to fulfil the mission system and subsystem requirements. This End-to-End simulator shall be implemented using the ESTEC avionics test bed facility (NGT-ATB).
- Validation of the Lunar Ascent Vehicle (LAV) design: testing, verification and validation of the LAV design by means of the ESTEC NTG-ATB Software in the Loop (SIL) and Processor in the Loop (PIL) framework. The activity shall also make use of the GNC Rendezvous Approach, Landing and Ascent Simulator (GRALS) for the Hardware in the Loop (HIL) simulations.
- Assessment of Human Rating Requirements: As the HLEPP ascender is intended as a subscale version of a human ascender, each subsystem shall be analyzed for potential human-rating in accordance with NPG: 8705.2 section 2.5.3 (in lieu of ESA human rating requirements).



<b>Deliverables:</b>	Documentation. E2E simulator and algorithms. the testbed	sensors or actuators required for
	n	

Current TDI + 2	Target TDI .1	Duration	19
Current IKL: 5	Target IKL.4	(months):	10

TargetApplication/Launcher technologies, planetary exploration. TRL 4 by 2020.Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap:

Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



## 3.3.2.3. TD18 - Aerothermodynamics

		-	_
Domain	<i>Space Transportation - CD7 - Propu Vehicles</i>	lsion, Space Transportatio	on and Re-entry
Tech. Domain	18 - Aerothermodynamics		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT14-007MP	Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Acoustic propellant manageme launcher upper stages	nt for fuel tanks of spac	ecraft and
<b>Objectives:</b>	The purpose of the activity is two-fol	d:	
	• to use an acoustic beam for sou	nding the fluid location in a	ı tank.
	• to show the ability of induce flu for liquid/gas mixtures, includi	id movements and control on ng those of cryogenic flows.	of the free surface
Description:	Management of fluids on fuel tanks of spacecraft and launcher upper stages under microgravity conditions has always presented a challenge, because it does not naturally accumulate in a neat shape near the exit port. Gauging requires measurement or knowledge of the shape of the fluid free surface in microgravity. Knowledge of the residual quantity and location of propellant is essential for management and control of both satellites and launcher upper stages, for the latter in particular if multiple firings are anticipated. Manipulation of fluids in partially filled tanks serves the purpose to ensure it is connected to the exit port.		
	In a previous TRP activity, ultraso motion in fluids (water, kerosene and in the close vicinity of the transduce be managed with an array of ultraso control to each unit are used to ge manipulate the fluids. Based on those of transducers, and through phase acoustic beam. With help of this be tank. Using a range of experimenta fluid at one end; containing the fluid gas/fluid boundary locations and demonstration done in the first stud showing the ability to induce fluid m under these circumstances.	nic transducers have been I LN2), as result of asymmetr. This offers the possibility nic transducers where pha- enerate focused acoustic be results, it is proposed to im d driving of these, to ger eam one can sound the fluid l setups (e.g. tipping the ta- in balloons, and so on), the shapes will be investigated by, using liquid only, to liquid ovement and control of the	a used to impose tric flow patterns that fluids could se and amplitude eams, which can aplement an array herate a directed id location in the ank to collect the effects of varying ed to extend the uid/gas mixtures, e free surface also
	A specific set of trials will include an transducer array outside the tank an tank wall construction (including Ti immersed in fluid attached to the co will be in the gas-filled part of the ve will be adapted for a future accomm flight to demonstrate the technique to show the compatibility of transdu and, if a safe configuration can be manipulation and sensing with LH2 experimental results will be used also the coupling between acoustics and f	a assessment of the viability of sounding through the wa and CFRP). Some of the tr ontainer walls by surface to ssel. Further, the test equip odation and operation on l under micro-gravity condit icers in operation at cryog e designed, first trials with will be performed on groo to validate numerical tools luid behavior.	y of mounting the all using a typical ansducers will be ension, and some oment and set-up board a parabolic ions. In addition, enic temperature h acoustic liquid bund. Finally, the for simulation of
Deliverables:	Breadboard experimental set-up and for further applications, and quan purposes.	l technical reports describin tifying the results for nun	ng the technology nerical validation



Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
--------------	---	-------------	---	-----------------------	----

Target Application/ Fuel tanks for satellite and launcher upper stages. TRL 5 in 2019. Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Fluid Mechanic & Aerothermodynamic Tools (2012).



## 3.3.2.4. TD19 - Propulsion

Domain	Space Transportation Vehicles	- CD7 - Propulsion, S	Space Transportat	ion and Re-entry
Tech. Domain	19 - Propulsion			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT14-008MP	]	Budget (k€):	8,400
Title:	6kN, Deep-throttlin	g, Pump-fed, Bi-p	ropellant Engine	e
Objectives:	The proposed activity throttlable, pump-fed, will be designed, man clear route for inclusi landing technology tes	will focus on at t bi-propellant engine ufactured and tested on of the engine as t bed.	the preliminary d e. An early develop I. Finally, the activi a part of a ground	esign for a deep- oment model (DM) ity shall provide a d based integrated
<b>Description</b> :	Studies for lunar su demonstrated a clear m classical apogee boost configurations, based such missions can acco Thrusters for these sys thrust-to-weight ratios higher thrust, pump fe around 60. In addition, pump fe potentially low press additional mass saving capability increase of a The overall activity wi pressurized, throttlea preliminary design ph an initial development engine shall also be us test bed.	rface missions (Me eed for thrust levels I motor (ABM). This on classical ABM ha ount for over two thir tems are based on sp (T/W) of around 10 d, engines that can p d engines allow the ure structural tanks g on structure and p round a factor of two Il cover the prelimin ble 6kN engine for ase will be supported /engineering (DM/E ed for ground based	oonNext, LSR, L higher than those p has led to the use irdware. Propulsion ds of the dry mass. accecraft technology ). A solution to this botentially achieve a e use of low press s). This would response of the overall lan hary flight engine d for lunar robotic d by the manufactu (M) model of the er demonstration in a	LB1, LPSR) have or ovided by a single of multiple engine n and structure on y and are limited to s problem is to use a unit level T/W of sure tanking (and sult in significant a result, a payload der. lesign for a pump- exploration. This rring and testing of ngine. The DM/EM an integrated flying
	A three phase approach Phase 1 (propo- will be perform Agency's defin propellant eng Design solutio - deep thro systems, - advanced d - pump sys turbogene - pressuriza - mechanica - thrust vect 0 Th se ite 0 Th ar	n is envisaged in this sed budget: 400k eur ned and approaches ned user requirement ine shall be consider ns shall be traded. Co ttling of engines by chamber cooling app tem design includin rators, tion approach and cy l thermal fluidic and or control approach ne most promising ca lected and examined ration. ne ability to include a	s proposed activity: ros)An initial engin shall be defined in nts. The existing red as a major refer onsiderations shoul y using new inject roaches, ng potential for el ycle choice, l electrical interface and strategy. andidate technolog d in more detail in an early developme ased landing platf	e trade assessment order to meet the 5 kN storable bi- ence if applicable. Id include: ction and ignition ectric pumps and e, gies shall be down- n a further design ent model (DM) in form demonstrator



shall be a major objective within the design development and verification plan (DDVP).

	• Ph im con An the Ele inc	ase 2 (proposed budg plement elaborating ncept and any techno y test bench activities e integrated engine ha emental developme cluding test of critical	get: 3000 the base logy options require ardware wo nt activite technolog	Ok euros) The DDV eline design of the ons carried over. d to expedite the ea will be defined. vities (e.g. pun gies shall be under	/P from phase 1 shall flight lander engine arly demonstration of p/injector/chamber) taken.
	• Ph DM de	ase 3 (proposed bu I/EM engine will be o monstration requiren	dget:500 complete nents. be	Ook euros)The de d in order to meet f fore manufacturing	tailed design of the the established lander g the DM/EM engine.
	In parallel,	any test bench modif	fications	shall be finalized.	
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineerin	ng Model			
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	36
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Propulsion	systems for space tra	insportat	tion. TRL5 2020.	

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Chemical Propulsion - Components (2012).



# 3.4. NAV - Navigation

## 3.4.1. CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing

### 3.4.1.1. TD06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies

Domain	Navigation Navigation,	- CD5 - End-to-End Communication an	RF & O d Remo	ptical Systems and Protect Sensing	roducts for
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Sys	tems, Payloads and	Techno	logies	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT16-001H	ES		Budget (k€):	500
Title:	GNSS Rec for the Rai	eiver Chain Tech ilway environmen	nology it	Enabler and Integ	grity Techniques
Objectives:	The objecti technology algorithms, the activity a GNSS-based System (ER)	ve of this activity enabler, to support and techniques for aims to develop, test d virtual balise detec TMS) / European Tr	is to d the test receiver and cor ction in ain Con	evelop a railway GN ing and validation of s in a railway enviror isolidate integrity tech the European Rail T itrol System (ETCS).	ISS receiver chain integrity concepts, ment. In addition, miques suitable for raffic Management
Description:	A key issue confidence of the railway electromagn misleading Effective bar the threat of level. This act	for use of GNSS in s on the residual positi environment such a netic interference (E information (i.e. p rriers are needed to of of under-bounding t ctivity foresees the de crivity foresees the de	afety cr tioning as mult MI) car osition detect a he resid evelopn	itical train control systerror. Errors caused lipath, non-line of sign lead to an increased not bounded by cond mitigate these fear dual errors is mitigate there and be and barriers and	stems is the lack of by feared events in ght conditions and l risk of hazardous nfidence interval). ed events such that ed to the required the necessary tools
	<ul> <li>to test and v</li> <li>This activity</li> <li>review c</li> <li>design comprise testing of railway domain position integrat</li> <li>design a on the environ</li> <li>testing algorithm</li> </ul>	and ate them. foresees the followi of the state of the art and development sed of a complete GN of mitigation and se environment at all st , DSP domain (pre- domain. The platfi ion architectures, and implementation receiver platform ment, and validation of	ng tasks and cor of an SS recei- uppress cages of e-correl- orm sh of integ to m develop r plato	s: nsolidation of requiren advanced real-time wer chain. The platfor ion techniques for fe the receiver chain inc ation, correlation), r all also provide supp rity concepts, techniq itigate feared event ed integrity concept	nents, receiver platform m shall support the ared events in the luding antenna, RF ange domain and bort for GNSS/INS ues and algorithms s in the railway s, techniques and
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype	ins using the receive	i piacio		
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	12
Target					

**Application**/ Future satellite navigation services for railway applications. TRL 5 by 2019. **Timeframe:** 



					esa
Domain	Navigation - CDS Navigation, Com	5 - End-to-End R munication and	F & Opt Remote	ical Systems and Sensing	Products for
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Systems,	Payloads and Te	echnolog	gies	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT16-002ES			Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Definition of m and models for	nultipath and o GNSS in railw	electro ay env	magnetic inter ironments	ference scenarios
Objectives:	The objective of electromagnetic environments. It of simulation too virtual balise det constituent.	this activity is interference mo is expected that t ls and support fu ection within th	to de dels au his activ uture ce e Euroj	velop comprehen nd scenarios for vity will contribut rtification efforts pean Train Contr	sive multipath and GNSS in railway e to the development for use of GNSS for rol System on-board
<b>Description</b> :	A vital tool to su GNSS equipment simulate nominal testbed are accur electromagnetic existing models environment and operations. This baseline reference that can be used simulation testbe	pport testing, va in safety critica and extreme rai ate models of th interference (EM that originate fro threats are very s activity aims to e scenarios for a l in a simulation d facility at ESA (	lidation al train lway en e railwa fI). Su om oth pecific t develop range o a testbe output	and future certific control systems, wironments. A vit y propagation en ich models cann er environments to the railway appl o comprehensive f representative r d. The activity for of TRP activity).	fication activities for is a testbed able to cal component of the vironment including ot be derived from or applications; the lication and intended models and a set of ailway environments presees the use of a
Deliverables:	<ul> <li>This activity fores</li> <li>review of stat</li> <li>design and electromagne</li> <li>validation of</li> <li>development nominal cond</li> <li>Engineering Mod</li> </ul>	ees the following e of the art and co implementation tic interference in the models using of scenarios an litions and fault-i el	tasks: onsolida of moo n railwa field da d comp njection	ation of requireme dels for multipa y environments, ta, trehensive datase n testing.	ents, th propagation and ts for simulation of
Current TRL:	3 <b>T</b> a	rget TRL:	5	Duration (months):	12
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Future satellite na	avigation services	s for rail	way applications.	TRL 5 by 2019.



					esa
Domain	Navigation Navigation	n - CD5 - End-to-End n, Communication an	RF & O d Remo	ptical Systems and Pr ote Sensing	roducts for
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Sys	stems, Payloads and	Techno	logies	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT16-003	BES		Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Developn Intention	nent of Scenarios al Interference and	, Mod d Spoa	lels and Tools for ofing in Railway Env	r Simulation of vironments
Objectives:	The objecti tools for environme efforts for Control Sy track-area sufficiently	ve of this activity is to simulating intention nts. It is expected th use of GNSS in virtu stem on-board const augmentation system resilient against inter	o develo nal in at this al bali ituent a ns, pro ntional	op comprehensive mo terference against ( activity will support : se detection within th and within the track- widing confidence G interference.	dels, scenarios and GNSS in railway future certification ne European Train side when used in NSS equipment is
Description:	The develo GNSS equi intentional scenarios f on-board c the Europe virtual bali Incidental within rang (e.g. applic	pment of tools, mode pment used in safety interference and spo or intentional interfer onstituent and / or tr ean Train Control Sy ise detection using G interference is also to ge of interference or ation on a road parall	Is and s critical oofing. T rence ta ack-sid stem co NSS an be con spoofin el to th	cenarios is an importa train control systems This activity aims to d argeting the safety and e constituent of the fo omprising satellite-ba d the track-area augu sidered, where the rai g that is targeted at a e rail corridor).	ant step in ensuring is resilient against evelop models and d availability of the reseen evolution of sed functions (e.g. mentation system). ilway application is mother application
	The activity <ul> <li>review</li> <li>design spoofir</li> <li>develop spoofir</li> <li>testing</li> <li>develop</li> </ul>	y foresees the followin of the state of the art and implementatio ng in the railway envin pment of simulation t ng to support testing of and validation of the pment of scenarios an	ng tasks and con n of n conmen ools for of techn models ad comp	: nsolidation of requiren nodels of intentional t, injection of intention ologies for improving s using simulation tool prehensive test dataset	nents, interference and al interference and resilience, ls, .s.
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Software				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	12
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Future sate	ellite navigation servio	ces for r	ailway applications. T	RL 5 by 2019.



					esa	
Domain	Navigat Navigat	ion - CD5 - End-to-Er ion, Communication (	nd RF & C and Remo	ptical Systems and P ote Sensing	Products for	
Tech. Domain	06 - RF	Systems, Payloads an	nd Techno	logies		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT16-0	04ES		Budget (k€):	500	
Title:	Techno Spoofir	logies for Resilie 1g in Railway Envir	nce Aga onment	unst Intentional s	Interference and	
Objectives:	The objection for important important for important relationships for the second secon	ctive of the activity is roving resilience agai environment suitable n Trail Traffic Manag	to develog inst inter e for GN3 gement S	p technologies, algori ntional interference SS-based virtual bal ystem / European T	thms and techniques and spoofing in the ise detection in the rain Control System	
Description:	A key issue for the use of GNSS in safety critical train control systems is resilience against intentional interference and spoofing. This includes interference specifically targeting the safety and availability of the on-board constituent and the track-side constituent of the foreseen evolution of the European Train Control System (ETCS) comprising satellite-based functions (e.g. virtual balise detection using GNSS and the track-area augmentation system). This activity foresees the development of technologies, algorithms and techniques to improve resiliency against intentional interference and spoofing.					
	The activ • Revi • desi imp ETC • desi imp stati • testi 'Dev Inte	vity foresees the follow ew of the state of the a gn and implementati rove resiliency agains S on-board with GNSS gn and implementati rove resiliency again ons of a GNSS track a ng and validation us elopment of Scenario rference and Spoofing	ving tasks art and co on of tec st intenti S functior on of tec nst inten rea augm sing simu s, Models g in Railwa	:: onsolidation of requir hnologies, algorithm onal interference ta os (dynamic case), hnologies, algorithm itional interference entation system (stat ilation tools from tl s and Tools for Simu ay Environments'.	ements, is and techniques to rgeting the foreseen is and techniques to targeting reference ic case), he proposed activity ilation of Intentional	
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototyp	e		-		
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	12	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Future s	atellite navigation ser	vices for r	railway applications. '	TRL 5 by 2019.	
Applicable TH Roadmap:	AG	Not related to a H	armonisa	tionHarmonisation s	ubject.	



Domain	Navigation - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing					
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Systems, Payloads and T	echnologies				
Ref. Number:	GT16-005ES	Budget (k€):	800			
Title:	Beam-Forming Technology for GNSS Reference-Station					
Objectives:	The objectives of this activities complexity beam forming refere multipath rejection capability co antenna GNSS reference station e	is to study and prototype ence station with superior ompared to that achieved l quipment.	e a low cost-low interference and by current single			
Description:	RF interference and multipath performance of the GNSS Commen- fact of being the navigation signal	are relevant error sourc rcial-Reference-Station equip	es affecting the ment. Despite the visibly vulnerable			

performance of the GNSS Commercial-Reference-Station equipment. Despite the fact of being the navigation signal of spread-spectrum type, it is visibly vulnerable to interference, due to its very low power at reception. Excessive interference may provoke loss of lock and false lock in the equipment. Multipath may induce ranging errors visibly correlated over time, not easy to mitigate at signal processing level or/and at output-observables processing level. The impact of both interference and multipath could be largely reduced by incorporating beamforming techniques to the GNSS Reference-Station equipment (comprising antenna plus receiver). Beam-forming techniques could enable efficient spatial and time filtering of RF interference and strong multipath. Because of the cost and complexity, current technology is nowadays based on single antenna element, therefore this activity shall demonstrate the viability of beam-forming technology with low complexity. The design shall target the minimization of the overall equipment complexity and technological risk.

The detailed objectives of this activities are:

- To investigate a GNSS Reference-Station equipment (antenna plus receiver) profiting from beam-forming (spatial and time filtering) technology; offering a visibly superior interference and strong-multipath rejection capability, compared to that achieved by current GNSS reference station equipment. The design shall target the minimization of the overall equipment complexity and technological risk.
- To develop a GNSS Reference-Station prototype, fully representative from functional and performance perspective, and to validate it under real GNSS signals.

The target applications of this technology are the commercial reference stations (Geodetic Reference Stations, RTK Reference Stations, Differential-GNSS Stations, etc.).

The activity high level tasks are as follows:

- Consolidation of the equipment specification; namely functional, performance and external interfaces requirements. Definition of the equipment physical architecture; namely main physical blocks, related internal interfaces, core hardware blocks transfer function(s) and core processing.
- Definition of the equipment physical detailed design; namely hardware elementary blocks, elementary processing modules, detailed internal and external interfaces.
- Development and verification of the equipment.
- Consolidation of the validation scenarios definition.



- Extensive analysis of the equipment performance (code-phase and carrierphase tracking errors, probability of loss of lock, probability of false lock, acquisition and re-acquisition time, etc), in the above validation scenarios; which shall include at least the:
  - Operation with real GNSS signals (Galileo & GPS) under nominal RF-environment conditions.
  - Operation with real GNSS signals (Galileo & GPS) under extreme RFenvironment conditions, in terms of either interference or/and multipath.

**Deliverables:** Prototype

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	GNSS Refe	rence Stations. TRL 5	6 by 2019		



<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT16-006ES	Budget (k€):	300			
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies					
Domain	Navigation - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing					

#### Title: Study and design of a Smart city Living Lab Location Test-bed

**Objectives:** The objective of this activity is to assess and design a so called 'Smart city Living Lab Location Test-bed' in support of GNSS/4G/5G location service development.

**Description:** The Smart City Living Lab test bed is a tool conceived to support development of current and future GNSS and/or 4G/5G terrestrial location based capabilities and the associated applications. The test bed is based on the deployment of a network of wireless sensors distributed in fixed points and/or vehicles (e.g. taxis and buses, bicycles) over the city. These sensors record RF samples of multiple frequency bands (GNSS, 4G,5G etc.), can be coupled with application specific sensors (e.g. meteo etc.), and stream their outputs to a control center able to process the data enabling any suitable usage, such as cloud-based GNSS navigation,4G location services,5G planned evolution testing, localization of interference, traffic estimation, pollution monitoring etc.

New services and capabilities can be validated with this flexible and open-access architecture able to provide RF field measurements in real-time and to store them in a centralized manner. For this purpose, to ensure the optimization of the system for a large variety of usages, and to be flexible enough to allocate any dedicated experiment, the re-utilization of a Smart City connection resources should be maximized.

This activity shall provide a thorough assessment and design of the architecture and mechanisms required to implement this test bed within a Smart City with distributed and accessible data connection services, with the preliminary identification of the technology and proof of concepts. This will be the first step towards its implementation.

The tasks of this activity are to:

- Identify an existing Smart City that may support a GNSS Living Lab and assess the resources available in such Smart City.
- Assess and design a flexible architecture for the testbed based on a network of sensors and control centers, ensuring open access of data sets to end users.
- Assess the potential reuse of existing infrastructure deployed by the city council and the inclusion of the testbed in the existing Smart City platform.
- Investigate the sensor technology, by trading off accuracy with costs.
- Investigate the resource management and cloud computing strategies.
- Assess the applications and main usages of the testbed, particularly in the GNSS and communication fields.
- Assess the economic exploitation of the test bed and the economic impact of the test bed over the city.
- Demonstration and concept proof of the key elements of the retained concept for implementation in the Smart City selected.


<b>Deliverables:</b>	Documentat	tion			
Current TRL:	2	Target TRL:	4	Duration (months):	12
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Applications or pollution	s can be numerous e monitoring. TRL 4 l	.g. local by 2019	ization of interferen	ce, traffic estimation



Domain	Navigation - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing						
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Sys	tems, Payloads and Z	Technol	logies			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT16-007EF Budget (k€):</b> 1,000						
Title:	Technolog (CAMAC)	y Validation of a C	old At	om Microwave Ato	omic Clock		
Objectives:	The objecti validation of frequency st	ve of this activity is of a Cold Atom Mic tability below 1E-13/S	the decrowave SQRT(t)	esign update, full ch e Atomic Clock (CA ), for t = 1sec to 10 day	naracterization and MAC) providing a ys.		
Description:	Today, the g any local re- and well pro- intrinsic fre (mostly ava and automa the ESA Gro CAMAC teo Active Hyd stability, res The activity identification operational implemented	generation of a refere alization of UTC) reli- oven technology, but quency drift. This crit- ilable in Metrology I tize in an operationa- ound Stations, especia- hnology is expected rogen Maser, with a sources and operabili shall start with a revi- on of the design u- and resources requi- ed and validated. Fina- including short-te	ence tin es on A that ne ical ste aborate contex lly whe to hav similar ty. ew of the pdates rementa ally, a f	nescale (like the Galil ctive Hydrogen Mase eds to be regularly ste ering process require ories) and proves diff t like the Galileo Pree n they operate in auto e much lower freque performances in ter the existing design of t required to meet ts. Second, the desig ull characterization o ability, reproducibili	leo System Time or r, which is a robust eered to correct for s relevant expertise ficult to implement cise Time facility or momous mode. The ency drift than the rms of short-term the CAMAC and the the performance, n updates shall be of the clock shall be ity, sensitivity to		
	environmen	it, and long-term stat	ility.	5 1	5 5		
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype						
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18		
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Ground seg	ment of all missions.	TRL 5 I	oy 2020.			
Applicable TH	AG Roadma	D: Fraguancy and Ti	ma Car	paration and Distribut	tion Space (2013)		

**Applicable THAG Koadmap:** Frequency and Time Generation and Distribution - Space (2013).



Domain	Navigation - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing					
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT16-008	EF		Budget (k€)	: 600	
Title:	Clock Ense Timescale	emble Monitoring Generation	and Sv	vitching Unit f	or Robust	
Objectives:	The objectiv of a clock generation.	e of this activity is the ensemble, monitor	ne design ing and	n, development, switching unit	manufacturing and t t for robust timesc	test cale
Description:	Current solutions for robust timescale generation, in terms of stability and continuity relies on a distributed and complex hardware architecture with dedicated equipment that require specific skills and experience to operate and maintain. Several alternative solutions relying on a more integrated system have been proposed, and some of them have been investigated.					
	<ul> <li>This activity shall be dedicated to:</li> <li>Review of Timescale functional requirements in terms of:</li> <li>clock ensemble,</li> <li>clock steering,</li> <li>clock monitoring,</li> <li>clock switching in case of failure,</li> <li>clock distribution.</li> </ul>					
	(prototype l	evel) and testing.			0	.,
Deliverables:	Prototype					
<b>Current TRL</b> :	3	Target TRL:	4	Duration (months):	18	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Ground seg	nent of all missions.	TRL 4 I	oy 2019.		
Annliaghle TIL	AC Deed-me	- English and T	ma Can	anation and Dist	wibution Succe	

**Applicable THAG Roadmap:** Frequency and Time Generation and Distribution - Space (2013).



## 3.4.1.2. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques

Domain	Navigation - CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing						
Tech. Domain	07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techn	iques					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT16-009EF	Budget (k€):	1,000				
Title:	Environment survey and calibration propagation error sources	instrumentation	for GNSS				
Objectives:	Design and development of a multi-freque evaluate and calibrate propagation error sour Systems (GNSS) in fixed and mobile environm measure all required inputs that would allow m error sources, including spatial discrimination would allow an eventual replay/simulation in facility for terminal (receiver plus antenna) test	ncy multi-instrumen rees of Global Naviga nents. This facility sha nore realistic characte on and direction of n an existing Over-Th ting.	nt facility to tion Satellite all be used to rization of all arrival, that he-Air (OTA)				
<b>Description:</b>	would allow all eventual replay/simulation in all existing over-rine-All (OTA) facility for terminal (receiver plus antenna) testing. Current technologies and techniques are not able today to accurately estimate the error sources from fixed and, particularly, mobile GNSS receivers. For example, regarding multipath, the high-frequency components can be estimated together (in addition) to noise and interference, but the slowly varying components are more difficult to separate. In fact, for ionosphere, the ionospheric delay calibration relies on a dual-frequency technique that requires a very good estimation / calibration of inter-frequency bias from the receiver. This is difficult to obtain and often masks other errors. The efficient use of meteorological stations or even radiometers is required for tropospheric calibration. In addition, the effects of the antenna as installed on a given platform are of critical importance for this evaluation. Recently several activities where antenna array processing is used to estimate spatial-dependent contribution or mitigate multipath and interference were successfully completed. However, the contributions of beam-forming network (analogue or digital) and its effects on error source evaluation should be taken into account to properly measure the direction of arrival of interferers and possibly exploited to increase the sensitivity of receivers against propagation impairments (e.g. Ionospheric scintillation). The activity shall implement very precise GNSS carrier-phase measurement techniques for accurate positioning of mobile users and integration of these techniques with inertial sensors for separating environmental effects from other error sources. Configurations with hemispherical antennas, antenna arrays and oper sensors like laser ranging may be also						
	<ul> <li>The technique shall enable to evaluate and ca mobile environments including:</li> <li>multipath (bias - slowly varying - and range of arrival),</li> </ul>	llibrate error sources dom components, inc	in fixed and				
	<ul> <li>snadowing,</li> <li>ionospheric delay and instrumental frequencies),</li> <li>tropospheric delay,</li> <li>ionospheric scintillation,</li> </ul>	inter-frequency bias	ses (for all				

- interference (narrowband and wideband, including direction),
- noise.



The developed techniques shall be instrumental to the exploitation of 'record and replay' OTA measurements, to allow more realistic simulation scenarios, which will account for different angle of arrivals during receivers testing.

The following tasks are anticipated:

- Consolidation of the facility definition and identification of instrument requirements, with particular care to OTA interfaces, architectures and processing algorithms.
- Critical evaluation of architectural concepts.
- Development and procurement of hardware and algorithms.
- Facility integration and testing.
- Qualification including in the field experimental campaign.
- Interface demonstration of the facility with an existing OTA lab.
- OTA experimental campaign and validation.

**Deliverables:** Instrumentation Facility prototype and associated calibration algorithms.

Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
--------------	---	-------------	---	-----------------------	----

Target<br/>Application/<br/>Timeframe:Future EGNOS and Galileo site survey, user performance evaluation, GNSS site<br/>characterization and receiver developments. TRL 6 by 2020.



# 3.5. GEN - Generic Technologies

# 3.5.1. CD1 - EEE / Components / Photonics / MEMS

## 3.5.1.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD1 - EEE / Components / Photonics / MEMS					
Tech. Domain	01 - Onboard Data Systems					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-001ED	Budget (k€)	2,200			
Title:	SpaceFibre demonstration development	chip and rou	ting switch ASIC			
Objectives:	The objectives of the activity are to (high speed serial link, HSSL) ava- standard and demonstrate the viabi to make SpaceFibre network routi satellite bus architectures based on	make SpaceFibre CC ailable to early adop ility of the approach ng switch available the ECSS SpaceFibre	DDEC and physical layer pters of the SpaceFibre in ST 65nm process and to industry to allow for e standard.			
Description:	SpaceFibre is a multi-Gbit high speed serial link developed for space applications. It runs over copper and fibre-optic cables and allows serial links up to 10Gbps. Multi-lane capability allows to combine several physical links to a single logical link to achieve data rates of several hundred Gbit per second. SpaceFibre has built-in quality-of-service (QoS), isolation and recovery (FDIR) capabilities. A SpaceFibre IP core has been developed and is now available to be implemented in state-of-the-art ASIC process. In the frame of the activity, two devices shall be developed and implemented on the ST65nm process to allow the implementation of SpaceFibre based networks on satellite systems					
	<ul> <li>Tasks to be performed:</li> <li>Phase 1 (1000k Euro): <ul> <li>integrate SpaceFibre IP core on ST 65nm process,</li> <li>layout and tape-out of the design,</li> <li>packaging and testing of the chip,</li> <li>design, manufacture and test a SpaceFibre demonstration chip evaluation board,</li> <li>demonstrate the performance of the SpaceFibre technology using the evaluation board,</li> <li>make the evaluation board available to interested industries.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>					
Deliverables:	<ul> <li>Phase 2 (1200 kEuro):         <ul> <li>design the SpaceFibre route</li> <li>integrate the SpaceFibre route</li> <li>layout and tape-out of the d</li> <li>packaging and testing of the</li> <li>design, manufacture and te</li> <li>demonstrate the performant board,</li> <li>make the evaluation board and</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	er architecture, uter on ST 65nm pro lesign, e chip, st a SpaceFibre route ace of SpaceFibre rou available to intereste	cess, er evaluation board, iter using the evaluation d industries.			
Denverables:	rototype					



Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	36
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 5 as by	2020.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: On-Board Payload Data Processing (2016).



#### 3.5.1.2. TD17 - Optoelectronics

Domain	Generic Te	chnologies - CD1 - E	EE / Con	ponents / Photonics	/ MEMS	
Tech. Domain	17 - Optoele	ectronics				
Ref. Number:	GT17-002	ММ		Budget (k€):	1,000	
Title:	Demonstr space app	ation of high-per lications using ad	rforman vanced	ce CMOS image s technology nodes	ensor pixels for	
<b>Objectives</b> :	The objecti sensor with	ve of this to design large pixels using st	i, manufa ate of the	ecture and characteri e art technology proce	ze a CMOS image ss nodes.	
Description:	<ul> <li>Advanced technology node processes (0.13 um and smaller) are typically utilized for CMOS image sensors with pixel sizes of order 1 um or less. In order to meet observation requirements, space applications require pixel sizes of between 10 and 20 um (possibly down to 5 um for Star Trackers applications). The aim of this activity is to demonstrate that such large pixels can still be designed and manufactured using current and future foundry process nodes, while still retaining the necessary high electro-optical performance. The activity shall also investigate specific aspects such as robustness to radiation environment (impact of total ionising dose and Displacement Damage). Achievable performance (e.g. read noise, cross talk, FPN, dark current and dark current non uniformity, QE) vs pixel size shall be established.</li> <li>This activity's added value and potential benefits will be multiple:</li> <li>The feasibility of combining in one CMOS image sensor design the state of the art technology process nodes and the observation requirements will be investigated.</li> <li>The manufacturability of the designed CMOS image sensor in a European CMOS wafer foundry will be demonstrated.</li> <li>A tested and characterised manufactured CMOS image sensor will be available for further qualification.</li> <li>An evaluation of CMOS image sensor design and particularly manufacturing capability within Europe will be assessed.</li> <li>Foundry processes used and or developed can be made available in the public domain such that these processes can be used by other design houses if needed.</li> <li>The following tasks will be done in the frame of this activity:</li> <li>Detector specification and trade-off study.</li> <li>Preliminary detector design.</li> </ul>					
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Breadboard		. 1000000	cindutions.		
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	4	Duration (months):	24	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Earth Obse	rvation and Science	missions	TRL5/6 by 2020.		



					esa
Domain	Generic Tech	hnologies - CD1 - El	EE / Com	ponents / Photonics	/ MEMS
Tech. Domain	17 - Optoeleo	ctronics			
Ref. Number:	GT17-003M	ſM		Budget (k€):	400
Title:	<b>Radiation</b>	<b>Festing of a COT</b>	5 Genera	al Purpose CMOS	Image Sensor
Objectives:	The objectiv after radiatic The CMOS requirement	e of this activity is on of a Commercial ( IS should be alr s of Space application	to perfo Off the Sh eady ava ons.	rm the electro-optic elf CMOS Image Sen ilable and its desi	al characterization sor (IS). As a COTS, gn should fit the
Description:	Commercial different size targeted at m science appli- end applicat The aim of relevant space sensor will b current/futu A detailed st terms of elect will be the evaluation of and available for space app and not on d of this activity technology/ off-the-shelf Sensor) is co The followin State-of- Test Plan Test Sysi Detector Analysis Roadma	Off The Shelf (CO is and formats but ty nobile or automotiv cations. However, a ions, with a larger p this activity is to e ce environment thr e selected based on re space application udy into the currer tro-optical perform first task to be perf f state-of-the-art CO e sensors, keeping ir plications. The activ esign and/or detect ty to undertake spect / is performance architecture in CM device (scientific, nsidered prerequising g tasks will be done the-art review and n preparation. tem Development a cradiation test and o of results. p, conclusions and i	TS) CMO vpically w ve techno in number pixels and evaluate t ough cha a number is and ava- and ava- nt state-of ance, com rformed. DTS CMO in mind the ity shall l or fabrica cific devel oriented OS Image commer- ite. in the fra trade-off nd Senso electro-op recomme	S image sensors are ith very small pixels a logy and are not com CMOS image sensors larger area are now he performance of racterization and rac r of parameters inch ailability. f-the-art COTS CMO figuration, qualificat The main focus of S image sensors with e large pixel and large be focus mainly on se tion. It is therefore r lopment of CMOS im and does not focu e Sensor. Neverthele cial or specific purp ame of this activity: analysis. r procurement. otical characterisatio ndations.	available in many and small footprint, npatible with space s aimed at the high- coming to market. such a sensor in a liation testing. The uding suitability for S image sensors in ion and availability this activity is the n the use of existing a rea requirements ensor performances not within the scope mage sensors. Is on a particular ess, the usage of an pose CMOS Image n.
Current TDI	o	Tongot TDI .	Λ	Duration	10
Current TKL: Target Application/ Timeframe:	3 TRL 4 by 20	1 arget 1 KL:	4	(months):	12

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Optical Detectors, Visible Range (2015).



Domain	Generic Tec	hnologies - CD1 - EB	EE / Com	ponents / Photonics .	/ MEMS		
Tech. Domain	17 - Optoele	ctronics					
Ref. Number:	GT17-004	MM		Budget (k€):	1,000		
Title:	CMOS ima	ge sensor based o	on high-	resistivity epitaxia	al silicon		
<b>Objectives:</b>	The objectiv CMOS imag	e of the activity is th e sensor based on hi	ne design gh-resist	, manufacture and ch ivity epitaxial silicon.	naracterisation of a		
Description:	Visible imag are in high o missions. Th previously d	Visible image sensors with high sensitivity extending into the Near Infrared (NIR are in high demand for many planned and future Earth observation and Science missions. The benefits of high-resistivity silicon in this area for CCDs has been previously demonstrated.					
	The aim of this activity is to extend these benefits to CMOS image sensors as subsequently exploit the enhanced read-out capabilities and radiation toleran which are inherent to CMOS image sensors.						
	<ul> <li>The benefits of the developed technology will be:</li> <li>Better electro-optical performance will be achieved, due to the use of thicker starting material e.g. increased Quantum Efficiency (QE) at higher energies (above ~3keV) or at long wavelengths (NIR).</li> <li>The possibility to achieve improved MTF performance by using appropriate processes and controlling the photodiode depletion with respect to the total thickness of the material.</li> </ul>						
	Emphasis shall be given to the schematic representation of the pixel layout as well as detailed detector architecture with schematics at transistor level of the main building blocks including pixel, column amplifier, programmable gain amplifier (if applicable), multiplexer and output amplifier. The pixel design with a schematic representation of metal layers and diffusion areas etc is expected to be based on detailed simulations and modelling of predicted performance.						
	<ul> <li>The following tasks will be done in the frame of this activity:</li> <li>Detector specification and trade-off study.</li> <li>Preliminary detector design and pixel simulation.</li> <li>Detailed detector design.</li> <li>Detector manufacture.</li> <li>Detector characterization including radiation testing.</li> <li>Evaluation, conclusions and recommendations.</li> </ul>						
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Engineering	Model					
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	4	Duration (months):	24		
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Future EO a	nd science missions					
Applicable TH	AG Roadma	<b>p:</b> Optical Detectors	s, Visible	Range (2015).			



#### 3.5.1.3. TD23 - EEE Components and Quality

Domain	Generic Tech	Generic Technologies - CD1 - EEE / Components / Photonics / MEMS				
Tech. Domain	23 - EEE Components and Quality					
Ref. Number:	GT17-005E	D		Budget (k€):	700	
Title:	New Power	MOSFETs develo	opment			
<b>Objectives:</b>	The objective MOSFETs to	e of the activity is complement existir	to develo 1g EU MC	op 2 new variants o DSFET solutions.	of European power	
Description:	The developm power domai achieve radia non-depende to compete existing Euro	nent of a Rad-Hard in. After developing tion tolerance, we r nce by developing a with the main nor pean portfolio.	European g the kno now need a catalog n-Europe	n MOSFET has beer ow-how and the teo to tackle the next c with enough MOSF an competitors an	a major step in the Chnology needed to hallenge: European ET types to be able d complement the	
	The main competitors in this area have an extensive list of models and, if European companies cannot offer similar components, it will be impossible to compete adequately.					
	In terms of power MOSFETs, the new trend in ancillary electronics to turn into digital most of the circuits demand power MOSFETS with low gate threshold voltage (Vth). In order to drive them directly from the digital ICs, a Vth below 3 V is highly requested. With this characteristic, there will be a specific interesting model to develop:					
	Circuit Polar Single N-char	rity VDSS (V)max nnel 60 V, 10A-20	Drain C A, + 2 V,	urrent (Dc)(A) Vth < 50 mOhm.	(V) RDSon(Ohm)	
	Another model that is highly demanded is a low current MOSFET that is extensively used in auxiliary circuitry in power systems. The basic specifications are as follows:					
	Quad MOSFI	ET, 2xN channel + 2	xP chanr	nel, 100 V, 1A, <10h	m	
	The radiation Operating Ar	n tolerance to be ac ea for SEE up to 37	chieved is MeV cm2	s at least 100 krad 2/mg.	(TID) and full Safe	
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering	Model				
<b>Current TRL</b> :	2	Target TRL:	4	Duration (months):	24	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	The proposed	l variant are not ava	ilable too	day from European	sources.	
Applicable TH	HAG Roadmap: Power Management and Distribution (2013).					



					esa
Domain	Generic Te	chnologies - CD1 - EE	EE / Com	ponents / Photonics	/ MEMS
Tech. Domain	23 - EEE Co	omponents and Qual	lity		
Ref. Number:	GT17-006	ED		Budget (k€):	1,500
Title:	Space eva	luation and enhan	cement	t of European GaN	MMIC offering
Objectives:	The purpos GaN MMIC the technolo Band and V and would European c	e of the activity is perf processes covering ogy towards smaller t /-Band applications. strengthen the positi ompetitors.	form ESC power a cechnolog This sec ion of Eu	CC space evaluation o nd low-noise applica gy node (0.15 um or l cond part is therefor uropean GaN foundr	f existing European ations and boosting ower) to achieve X- e highly innovative ries wrt to the non-
Description:	GaN HEM Telecommu power and/ GaN founds control. ES discrete Ga However, n trend is to frequency of required by The objectiv processes t state ampli readiness la perform the • Phase Europe band. - Def - des - pro • Phase 2 Europe band. - Def - des - pro	Is are an enabling to mication, Earth observers on low noise amplific every process in Europe as A is currently perform N HEMT process to hajority of satellite ap further increase can communication chan emerging high-throut we of this activity is to o ensure European to fication at frequence evel of different GaN e activity in two consect 1 (Duration 24 mon an 0.25 um GaN MM finition of capability of ign of test vehicles (Ta cess space evaluation 2 (Duration 24 mon an 0.15-0.1 um GaN I finition of capability of ign of test vehicles (Ta cess space evaluation an 0.15-0.1 um GaN I finition of capability of ign of test vehicles (Ta cess space evaluation finition of capability of ign of test vehicles (Ta cess space evaluation	technolog rvation, A and non- rming sp b be used plication rier free nels becc ughput a o perform non-depo- ies abov MMIC equent pl dMIC proc domain, CCV, DEC n. ths, buc MMIC pr domain, CCV, DEC n.	gy for a wide range Navigation and Scie t the moment there is European componer bace evaluation of a d in power applications sutilize higher freque juency to even up t ome congested and pplications. n ESCC space evaluate endence in application e C-band. Based or processes in Europe hases: lget 750kEuro): Space cocess to be used in ap cocess to be used in a C, RIC),	e of applications in ence requiring high s no space qualified nts fall under export European 0.5 um ions up to C-band. tency bands and the o V-band as lower more bandwidth is ation of GaN MMIC ons requiring solid in the technological e, it is proposed to ace evaluation of a pplications up to V-
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Report			-	
<b>Current TRL:</b>	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	48
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Space evalu are needed Navigation amplificatio 0.15 um pro	ated GaN MMIC pro- in a variety of applica and Science requir on. TRL 6 is targeted ocess.	cesses wi ations in ing solic by 2020	th gate length lower Telecommunication, d state high power for 0.25 um process a	or equal to 0.25 um Earth observation, and/or low noise and by 2021 for 0.1-

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Critical Active RF Technologies (2014).



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD1 - EEE / Components / Photonics / MEMS							
Tech. Domain	23 - EEE Co.	mponents and Qual	lity					
Ref. Number:	GT17-007E	D		Budget (k€):	600			
Title:	New decou technologi	pling capacitors : es	for next	generations of in	tegrated circuit			
Objectives:	The aim of technologies technologies	this activity is to compliant with the	evaluate e requirer	and to qualify de- nents of most recen	coupling capacitor t integrated circuit			
Description:	A lot of effort or mass men (up to 7Amj voltage (1V (i.e. capacito	t was put on develop nory. The increase o ps for mass memor or less) lead to mor r decoupling).	ment of n of operatio ry) togeth e stringer	ew generation of mic on frequency and po er with the decreas nt impendence matc	roprocessor, FPGA wer supply current e of power supply hing requirements			
	This new integrated circuits products can only operate if suitable passive devices are implemented. Due to the performance increase of the IC, the following requirements on capacitors shall be considered:							
	<ul> <li>high capacitance value to provide high current needed,</li> <li>low ESR and ESL to assure correct impedance matching on the need frequency range,</li> <li>reduce the distance between high frequency decoupling capacitor and t</li> </ul>							
	achieved	by using small capa	acitor size	······································	F			
	Capacitor va applications space qualifi is only possi test, docume be avoided if	lues (16V range 060 are only available i ed product that mee ble is sufficient atter intation review, add FESCC qualitied par	03 or 080 in comme ts this rec ntion is pa itional co ts are ma	5 case 4,7uF 1812 ca crcial range. At the p puirements. Using co aid during procurem sts and delay, etc. The de available.	ase 47uF) for these present there is no mmercial products lent: lot acceptance lese drawbacks will			
	<ul> <li>Therefore, to provide to the space industry the capacitors with performances and mandatory quality level , this activity will encorfollowing tasks:</li> <li>benchmark and selection of adequate technology of capacitor,</li> <li>manufacturing/procurement of representative samples,</li> <li>evaluation and qualification of these components in line</li> </ul>							
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering	/Qualification Mode	el					
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	7	Duration (months):	24			
Target Application/ Timeframe:	FPGA 65 and	d 28nm, mass memo	ory, new g	generation of microp	rocessor.			



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD1 - EEE / Components / Photonics / MEMS								
Tech. Domain	23 - EEE Components and Quality								
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-008Q	Е		Budget (k€):	1,200				
Title:	Radiation component	characterization s for space applic	and fations.	functional ver	ification of (	COTS			
Objectives:	The objective of COTS cor approach to component of candidates as conditions (n other the folle interface cor photodiodes,	e of this activity is to nponents. Importar identify promising ount, increased perfo screened and char nainly radiation: TI owing components s ntrollers, ADCs/DA etc.	o radiatio ntly, this g high-p ormance cacterise D, DD, S hall be c ACs, op	on characterise an s activity aims a performance (e.g , reduced power, o d for relevant SEE Heavy Ions a onsidered; Memo toelectronics, CM	nd assess perforn t utilising the s j. reduced equip etc.) COTS Comp space environr and Protons). An ories, microcontr MOS Image Se	mance pin-in pment oonent nental nongst collers, ensors,			
Description:	Based on a p activity to cri system requi specific req applications s EEE Compor- also be conside The compone The selected of as far as poss	reliminary COTS Co tically survey and se rements (e.g. fault uirements for ch such as Cubesats, M nents offered as rad dered in the survey. ents selected shall be components shall be ible including comp	mponen lect pote tolerant allenging icrosats liation to testable purchas	It list, it is propos ntial component of OBC/Data hand g ESA mission and Minisats sha olerant by variou (i.e. possible to d sed in lots to ident raceability inform	eed in the frame candidates in-lin ling systems). B us, requirement ll be considered. us manufacturers e-lidd for SEE te tify lot-uniformit ation (e.g. lot nu	of this he with desides ts for Novel s shall sting). ty, and umber,			
	Following the Single Event remaining su irradiation te undergo ful verification v For all tests dedicated tes Experiences of the Compon	datecode, etc.). Following the component selection process, an irradiation pre-screening (TID and Single Event Latch-Up) to remove weak components shall be performed. The remaining successful candidates shall undergo a comprehensive but relevant irradiation test campaign (TID, DD and SEE). Components shall additionally undergo full functional and electrical characterisation for performance verification vis-a-vis ESA requirements. For all tests, Test Plans shall be generated. Following completion of tests dedicated test reports shall be generated. Experiences gained during testing of candidate components shall be submitted to							
	guidelines fo standards. W	r possible inclusion hen found necessary	n in Eur and wit	ropean Radiation hin the financial e	Hardness Assu envelope of the ac	urance ctivity,			
Deliverables:	COTS Compo / Reports.	onent list / Test plan	, test rep	oorts / All COTS (	Components prod	cured			
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	36				
Target Application/	2020. COTS	Components for Spa	ice Appli	ications.					

Application/ Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Data Systems and On-Board Computers (2016).



					esa			
Domain	Generic Tec	chnologies - CD1 - EE	E / Con	ponents / Photonics	s / MEMS			
Tech. Domain	23 - EEE Co	omponents and Qual	ity					
Ref. Number:	GT17-0091	ED		Budget (k€):	600			
Title:	Definition services fo	and validation o or 28nm and lower	f an E techn	uropean source o ology nodes	of flip-chip bump			
Objectives:	The objectiv wafer bump Memories, e	ve of the activity is to ing for microelectror etc.) using a technolo	enable a nics pacl gy node	a validated Europear caging for VLSI techn of 28 nm or smaller	n source for flip-chip nology (ASIC, FPGA,			
Description:	Semiconductor industry is moving to technologies (<65nm) where wire bonding will no longer be a suitable solution for components packaging. Flip-chip is seen as the only feasible solution for those technologies combining both low pitch and high I/Os number. Currently this technology with the adequate reliability level is only offered by subcontractors from the Far East which are mainly only accessible to non-European large semiconductor companies (Xilins, Microsemi, etc)							
	The work to be performed is to identify, define and validate a European Flip chip technology able to provide wafer bumping services to both large and small semiconductor manufacturers.							
	Flip-chip te develop is te to space req	chnology is widely o define and validate uirements.	availabl an exis	e to commercial m ting flip-chip comm	arkets, the work to ercial technology up			
	The propose The target w of the activ describing t	ed technology must c vafer dimensions wou vity shall be a spa he technology ready	over bot ıld rang .ce valio to use ir	h solder bumps and e from 8 to 12 inches dated process iden n new component de	Lead-free bumping. s diameter. Outcome tification document velopments.			
	The followir technole samples release	The following tasks shall be done in the frame of this activity: technology identification and selection, samples manufacturing and Testing, release of a Process Identification Document for Space applications.						
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Prototype							
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	4	Duration (months):	24			
Target Application/	Microelectro	onics: FPGA, ASICs,	Memori	es. TRL5 by 2020.				

Timeframe:



					esa			
Domain	Generic Tech	nnologies - CD1 - EE	EE / Com	ponents / Photonics	/ MEMS			
Tech. Domain	23 - EEE Cor	nponents and Qual	lity					
Ref. Number:	GT17-010E	D		Budget (k€):	500			
Title:	Space qual	ification of a pigt	ailed In	GaAs photodiode	@ 1550 nm			
Objectives:	The main ob photodiode ( process repr assembly an performed.	jectives of the activi ⊉ 1550 nm. Dependi oducibility, nature d test; lot type q	ty is the s ing on the of the es ualificati	space qualification of e selected supplier (te stablished supply cha ion or an ESCC qu	a pigtailed InGaAs chnology maturity, ain (Chip, package alification will be			
Description:	For various s monitoring 1 systems and	For various space applications (optical link, optical frequency conversion, signal monitoring 1550 nm photodiode is used. This detector is part of complex photonic systems and presently is primarily procured from non-european companies.						
	In order to promote a European source, the trade off, assessment and later selection of a fully packaged photodiode from a sustainable supplier is required.							
	This activity suitable phot development solution with	This activity is divided in 3 steps: product trade off and selection evaluation of a suitable photodiode die, followed by a package and associated assembly process development, manufacturing evaluation and space qualification of the chosen solution with potential entry into the EPPL.						
	In particular consolid: chip delt prototyp enduran package drafting prototyp drafting heat, sho qualifica	cular, the main tasks will be: solidation of the module technical requirements, o delta design activities for radiation hardness, PDR, CDR, cotyping, characterization and radiation testing (TID, TNID, SEE) and urance testing, cage design activities, PDR, CDR, ting of a PID (Process Identification Document), cotyping and characterization, ting of a Detail specification for the photodiode including storage, damp t, shocks, lification testing as a minimum using ESCC 5000 as baseline requirement.						
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Flight Model							
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	24			
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Space applica TRL 4 in 202	ations: optical link, 20.	optical fi	requency conversion,	signal monitoring.			

**Deliverables:** 

**Current TRL:** 



## 3.5.2. CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD2 - St	ructures, Mechanisms, Materi	als, Thermal			
Tech. Domain	15 - Mechanisms					
Ref. Number:	GT17-011MS	Budget (k€):	800			
Title:	Adaptation of industrial act	uator for space application	15			
<b>Objectives</b> :	The activity aim at adaptation o motors with speed reducers from	f existing European actuators industrial suppliers to space u	based on stepper usage.			
Description:	The activity shall aim at competitiveness and independence of European industry wrt actuator based on stepper motor and gearbox, which is commonly used on a wide variety of mechanisms. The main objective is to identify, in collaboration with main primes and final users, the sizes and configurations which are missing on the OTS market and enlarge the catalog of readily available space qualified actuators.					
	Selection of gear materials, th addressed, in order to improve and load capabilities.	eir surface treatments and performances of speed reduce	coatings shall be rs in terms of life			
	The foreseen scope of testing sha test in thermal vacuum conditior	ll include vibrations, shock, t-v as.	vac cycling and life			

#### 3.5.2.1. TD15 - Mechanisms

	_	 8	 	-	-	(m	onths)	:	
<b>.</b> .			•.	c	,		a		

TargetAll ESA missions, vast majority of mechanisms. Some very preliminary work has<br/>already been done in this field, therefore the initial TRL 4.Timeframe:

6

Duration

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Electrical Motors and Rotary Actuators (2015).

Target TRL:

Engineering/Qualification Model

4

24



Domain	Generic Tec	hnologies - CD2 - St	ructures,	Mechanisms, Mater	rials, Thermal
Tech. Domain	15 - Mechan	isms			
Ref. Number:	GT17-012M	15		Budget (k€):	650
Title:	Developmo motors.	ent of a family of	f space	actuators based of	on brushless DC
<b>Objectives:</b>	The activity application i	aims at the adap including enhanceme	tation of ent of the	existing brushless ir commanding stra	motors for space tegies.
<b>Description:</b>	Independen performance mechanisms motors read In close coll EQM actuate in terms of commutatio remain the l loop drive an The activity Identific adapted review of includin motor d manuface MGSE, testing robustme strategie	ce of European spa es shall be fostered w s. The activity is int ily available for space aboration with prim ors based on brushle size and torque capa n strategy and in imiting factor of bru- nd self-piloting solut work plan shall inclu- cation of already exis- for space application of their design thro- g definition of comme esign, cturing of EQM actu- of the hardware w ess of the design tow as shall be validated a	ace indus vith off th ended to e applica es and er ess motor abilities. the com ishless se ions shal ide: sting brue ns, ugh a pr nanding s ators and with an vards spa and trade	stry and competitive he shelf products as cover the lack of E tions. ad users, the Contrace s, to cover a large ra Specific attention sl manding electronic lection for common l be addressed. shless motor design eliminary and a cri strategies optimized d their integration in extensive campaignee environment. Va d off for different op	veness in cost and building blocks for European brushless ctor shall develop 2 ange of applications hall be put into the s, which currently applications. Open s suitable for being tical design phase, with respect to the heluding EGSE and on to demonstrate prious commanding perating duty cycles.
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering	Model			
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 6 by 20	19.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Electrical Motors and Rotary Actuators (2015).



#### 3.5.2.2. TD20 - Structures

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal						
Tech. Domain	20 - Structures						
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-013MS	Budget (k€):	500				
Title:	Modelization and Validatio Xenon in propellant tank	n of the dynamic effect of	f compressible				
Objectives:	The overall objective of the act dynamic effects of compressib particular objective is the clarific The objective shall be achieved w	ivity is the modelization and vole Xenon in propellant tanks ation of the verification approach with analytical studies and bread	validation of the s. An important h within projects. lboard testing.				
Description:	<ul> <li>Electric propulsion system bas popularity since a decade or mosuccessfully flown with such propulsion system is Xenon, we pressurized propulsion tank. The superiority in mass to strength r Xenon itself being in supercritica and the dynamics of this superor sufficiently known. With more an being offered, it is important coupling effect of the acoustic m interface loads) to the structural order to avoid unforeseen amplite.</li> <li>Computations of the coupling efficiently known. With more an being offered, it is important coupling effect of the acoustic m interface loads) to the structural order to avoid unforeseen amplite.</li> <li>Computations of the coupling efficiently known. With more an being offered, it is important is coupling effect to be most provide the effect to be most provide by the study include im schedule within projects.</li> <li>The tasks of the activity are sepane.</li> <li>Analytical Part:     <ul> <li>to perform literature studing propellant tank,</li> <li>to perform correlation or to establish analytical part:     <ul> <li>to perform reference with media such as IPA or FF</li> <li>to validate the existence with a coustic modes of Xenon at the interface of the ta whether the effect is signing to study the sensitivity of pressure level.</li> </ul> </li> </ul></li></ul>	sed on Hall effect thruster ha re. ESA missions like Artemis a system. The primary propell which is stored in supercritical e tank itself is mostly of COPV ty atio. cal state, acts as a heavy, but co- ritical media in an enclosed en- nd more electric propulsion syste to have a better verified under odes of Xenon (with significant of modes of the tanks already at the fication of the combined subsyst fect suggest significant effect or redominant in slender tanks. Im proved verification of these tand rated into analytical part and ex dy of this topic, tical prediction of the dynamic be c study to support the se f the predicted responses with te ocedure on the modeling of Xenon pests, any real phenomenon of coupl n and the tank structure. Effect inks shall also be assessed, which ificant at spacecraft level, oupling in different tank geomet f coupling in regard to different	as been gaining nd Smart-1 were lant for electric al state inside a ype because of its ompressible fluid vironment is not em in larger scale rstanding of the effective mass on he design stage in tem. In interface loads, nportant benefits ks and control of perimental part: ehavior of Xenon election of test est data, hon filled tanks. ion-compressible propellant during ling between the in terms of loads ch will determine tries, temperature and				

•



By the end of the activity, it should be able to establish for spacecraft:

- the necessity of having to perform mechanical test with Xenon or the possibility to use simulant for a given tank configuration,
- the possibility of performing qualification mechanical test with Xenon with lower tank pressure and a procedure to account for Xenon dynamic behavior in numerical model,
- guidelines for the practical implementation of the above.

<b>Deliverables:</b>	Report				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 5 by 20	019.			



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal							
Tech. Domain	20 - Structur	res						
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-014M	S		Budget (k€):	500			
Title:	Highly accu	ırate measureme	ent techi	niques of large ref	lector surface			
Objectives:	The objective reflector surf built surface accuracies be	e of this activity is to aces with high accu of reflectors in the r etter than 20 micror	analyze a racy. The ange of 3 1s (3sigm	nd develop techniqu techniques will allov to 5 m projected ape a).	tes to measure large v to measure the as- rture diameter with			
Description:	Recent trend larger and op accurate dim an accurate predict with correlate RF	shows that reflecto perate at higher fre- ensional measurem knowledge of the confidence the R pattern measureme	rs for spa quencies lent of the reflector F perform ent to as-h	ce applications are b (e.g. Ka or Q/V ban- ir surfaces (less than as-built surface, it nances of the refle built based prediction	ecoming larger and d) and require very a 20 microns). With will be possible to ector antenna, and ns.			
	Different measurement techniques shall be identified and studied for their suitability. These techniques shall be compatible with all types of reflectors (solid, mesh). Among available techniques (photogrammetry, laser radar and interferometric measurements), new methods of suitable accuracy and sufficient data processing capability for the dimensions of the reflector, shall be explored. No development of new metrological instruments is required. Existing metrological instruments are to be used by implementation of new measurement methodologies.							
	A demonstra accuracy on conditions to is necessary. chamber and	tion of the measur an existing surfac consider are room Options for this in observation throug	ement teo e of suff temperat clude the gh a glass	hnique shall be per- icient representative ure and pressure, bu use of instruments window.	formed to prove its ely. Environmental it also TVAC testing inside the vacuum			
	<ul> <li>The activity s</li> <li>State of a minim</li> <li>Comparin ambi</li> <li>Demons minimu</li> <li>Demons reflector</li> </ul>	ctivity shall be carried out in the following steps: tate of the art investigation on surface measurement methods, including a minimum photogrammetry, laser radar, interferometry, et alter. Comparison of different methods on a sample of antenna reflector surface a ambient conditions and in vacuum chamber. Demonstration of measurement on an existing reflector of 3 m as a minimum, in laboratory conditions.						
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Report							
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24			
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Surface meas	surement technique	s for large	e reflectors. TRL6 by	<sup>7</sup> 2019.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Reflector Antennas (2016).



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal					
Tech. Domain	20 - Structures					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT17-015MS Budget (k€):</b> 1,000					
Title:	Passive damping for satellite and instrument design					
Objectives:	The objective of the activity is the demonstration of mass saving potential when passive damping measures are already foreseen in early design of satellite and instrument structures. This demonstration shall be performed by analysis and tests on breadboards and demonstration models. The applicability is to all service domains and the target is the improvement of mechanical environment for instruments and equipment, reduction of development cost and life cycle cost and schedule risk of spacecraft, especially during AIV.					
Description:	Passive damping measures are usually only studied and sometimes introduced in satellite or instrument design if problems, e.g. higher loads due to dynamic amplification, are encountered in late stages of the analysis loops or even during testing. At that time it is very difficult to introduce optimized passive damping due to many accommodation constraints, if at all possible. Usually fixing such problems than carries a significant mass penalty. In addition, a recurrent problem on spacecraft is high amplification factor seen for units mounted on brackets (eg. Thruster, antenna, sun sensor).					
	The aim of this study is to evaluate the benefits of introducing passive damping measures and in particular constrained layer damping in early design phases. With an early introduction of passive damping measures most likely already the load specification for structure design and for satellite equipment or instrument design can be reduced. This should already lead to reduced mass of equipment and instrument design. The study should address modelling of damping systems, predictions with and without damping, and demonstrator testing to confirm the results and expected mass savings.					
	A precedent of this can be seen in the project Aeolus, where a shock attenuation device was developed in very short time. This development aims however at a wider spectrum of application.					
	<ul> <li>Demonstration shall be performed on standard spacecraft structures:</li> <li>primary and secondary structural plates, cylinders, struts, or interface elements, after selection,</li> <li>tertiary structure brackets and support elements dedicated to sensors, thrusters, antenna or telescope mounts,</li> <li>dedicated additional intermediate structures devoted to the specific function of load attenuation.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>Development tests shall consider:</li> <li>load damping and structural response attenuation metrics (amplitude for sine response, PSD and RMS for random response),</li> <li>stiffness and mass,</li> <li>compatibility with thermal environment (thermal cycling and thermal vacuum),</li> <li>thermal distortion (particularly for sensitive instruments) and thermo-elastic stresses.</li> </ul>					



**Deliverables:** Breadboard

**Current TRL:** 4

Target TRL:

Duration (months):

6

24

TargetApplication/TRL6 by 2020.Timeframe:



#### 3.5.2.3. TD21 - Thermal

Domain	Generic Techno	logies - CD2 - Strue	ctures, M	lechanisms, Materia	ls, Thermal			
Tech. Domain	21 - Thermal							
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-016MT			Budget (k€):	500			
Title:	Integration Si	mplification of <b>(</b>	Capillar	y Driven Heat Tra	nsport Systems			
Objectives:	The objective of that would gree systems. These ammonia charg the integration f	the activity is to de atly simplify the i new technologies ing rig allowing the loor.	velop an ntegratio and m e purging	d qualify new technol on of Capillary Driv ethods can range fi g and filling of capilla	logies and methods ven heat transport rom connectors to ary driven loops on			
Description:	Capillary Driver loop heat pipe m where sometime cases, the LHP inserting these used by LHPs co multiple times. than one LHPs In addition, flex working fluid to chamber volume	a Loops, as Loop He hanufacturer. LHPs es these units could tubing routing co two-phase devices ould be an access p Flex lines could al would share the sa k line has a negation be added in the e to be increased wh	at Pipes are used be in an uld be v very ch anel whi low the me radia ive impa LHP. T hich incr	are currently assemb to transport heat fro area that is difficult very complex which allenging. Furthern ch would need to be panel to be opened to tor increasing the nu ct in demanding ad 'his demand causes eases the overall mas	led and filled at the om dissipative units to access. In these makes the task of nore, the radiators opened and closed but typically, more umber of flex lines. ditional volume of the compensation ss of the system.			
	If new technolog at the LHP man filled on the into safety, this wou Similar technolo and the propose systems.	If new technologies and methods are developed to allow the LHP to be dismantled at the LHP manufacturer and assembled within the spacecraft, then purged and filled on the integration floor while guaranteed the performance, the life time and safety, this would greatly simplify the design and integration of these products. Similar technologies and methods are currently being used for propulsion systems and the proposed activity is to apply something similar to Two-Phase heat transport systems						
	The activity wou ground support covering all of th	ld cover the develo equipment for emp ne safety aspects of	pments o otying, p perform	of connectors, quick o urging, filling with a ing such an operation	lisconnects, valves, mmonia, as well as ns.			
	It is important t since the LHP e.g.(connectors, this filling proce	to note that there i and MPL would ports, or even wel ss multiple times in	s some o l need ding on s n order to	qualification needed to be designed for site.) The activity we overify that it is repe	on flight hardware • charging on-site •uld allow to repeat atable and reliable.			
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering Mo	del		<b>D</b>				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	28			
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Several applicat need to be asse 2022.	ions e.g. Science, I mbled on multiple	EO. As o heat so	ne of the examples, urces for the ATHEN	multiple LHPs will NA mission. TRL 6			
Applicable TH	AG Roadmap:	Two-Phase Heat	Transpo	rt Systems (2009).				



					esa
Domain	Generic Te	chnologies - CD2 - Sti	ructures	s, Mechanisms, Mater	ials, Thermal
Tech. Domain	21 - Therm	al			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-017	ИТ		Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Efficient r	nounting of MLI b	lankets	s to spacecraft strue	ctures
Objectives:	The objecti installing N to shorten i MLI integri to offer adv installation cost. A brea in a relevan	ve of this activity is ILI blankets when connegration time and r ty and installation co antages over the curr and removal, time r dboard shall be devel t environment.	to dev mpared reduce in nstraint ent met required oped ar	velop a faster and re to the current state-o mpact on system AIT, s. The alternative solu hods in terms of mass. for installation and d tested for critical fu	liable method for f-the-art methods, while maintaining tions are expected , flexibility, ease of finally the related nction verification
Description:	Satellites ha to control the fixed to the thermal perpayloads as MLI blanke of the either than 1000 - satellite. The completed. overall MLI An advance number of a into account ensure that of attachme requirement Contamination initiatives the by MLI sup to develop for the TRL/me reducing sy The main ta charact identifi detailed manufa mechar	ave an outer skin of m he thermal balance of S/C structure to wi formance taking into well as access constr- ts are currently mour r MLI lay-ups or at 1 1500 pcs. of MLI attac- nis is a very time con Furthermore the mon performance is to be ed MLI mounting con- attachments needed f t mechanical aspects the mechanical aspects the mechanical and p- nents without impa- ts as well as other pri- tion and cleanliness o develop this new m pliers. Grounding asp further aturity on the basis of stem AIT time and con- scation / selection of a d design of these conc- acturing of a breadboa- nical testing (incl. dep- part. Balance of the second for ment.	ultilayer the spattheres of the spattheres of the spattheres of the spatter and the spattheres of the spatter and the spatter between the spatter of the spa	r insulation blankets la accecraft (S/C). These b launch loads and pro- t field-of-views of instr- he S/C structure by a c Li templates involving (stand-offs and / or ve g task, which takes se- bances, the more ther ed. all be investigated, whi lable fixation of the M sed to during launch. loads can be taken by the MLI integrity, ostitoning requirements a need to be address approach have alread ve also been covered. I seeds on most projects this activity are the fol on of state-of-the-as ve concepts, new MLI installation cation test) of the select function verificatio	ayer that is needed lankets need to be ovide the required ruments and other cut-to-fit approach g bonding of more elcros) for a typical veral weeks to be mal impact on the sich minimises the LI blankets taking Focus is on how to a reduced number the field-of-view ts on the satellite. Sed. A number of ly been carried out it is now envisaged (strong benefits in lowing: rt methods and method, cted concept, in in a relevant
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard	I		<b>D</b>	
<b>Current TRL:</b>	4	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Targeted ap	plications are multip	le. TRL	5 by 2019.	



# **3.5.2.4. TD24 - Materials and Processes** Domain Generic Technologies - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal

Tech. Domain	24 - Materia	ls and Processes					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-018Q	E		Budget (k€):	500		
Title:	Transparer	nt polyimide film	s for the	rmo-optical appl	ications		
Objectives:	The objectiv (colourless) j improvement	e of this activity polyimide hybrid m t for typical MLI an	is the ful aterials a d OSR cor	l optimisation of nd demonstration nfigurations.	highly transparent of the performance		
Description:	The polyimide films materials combine the performance of polyimide that is intrinsically radiation stable but exhibit higher solar absorptance (yellow colour) and fluoropolymers that are highly transparent with very low solar absorptance (colourless) but suffer durability in a radiation environment.						
	Development materials as radiation env films and the substrates ex and low-cost	evelopments in previous contracts showed solar absorptance of such hybrid aterials as low as 0.07 in pristine form and between $0.15 - 0.25$ after combined diation environment (UV, e-, p+). The mechanical flexibility of such polymer ms and the ease of surface modifications by vapour deposition make them ideal bstrates exterior spacecraft applications, such as enhanced MLI performance d low-cost OSRs.					
	Within this ac tested to cove UV, particle effects to ena performance OSR as well a	thin this activity the materials matrix shall be fully optimised and performance ted to cover all environmental parameters, i.e. not limited to radiation (vacuum ', particle radiation) and temperature but also atomic oxygen and synergistic ects to enable full performance assessment for all relevant earth orbits. The formance of the optimised polymer film shall then be demonstrated for an R as well as MLI configuration.					
	The gained improvement compared to conventional applications shal quantified in terms of technical performance (e.g. thermal efficiency, in-orbitime), and through a cost/benefit analysis for both, MLI and OSR application						
	<ul> <li>The tasks to l</li> <li>building fluorinate environm</li> <li>manufact transpare</li> <li>full envir trade-off</li> <li>demonstr</li> </ul>	to be done in the frame of this activity will consist of: ag from previous activities, full matrix optimisation of hybri- nated polyimides and performance evaluation for LEO and GEO nment, facturing of demonstrators for OSR and MLI application for arent polyimide as well as conventional reference systems, wironmental testing of demonstrators, performance evaluation, an off analysis for technical performance and cost, hybrid astration of large-scale manufacturing capability.					
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard	U					
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	24		
Target Application/ Timeframe:	2019.						



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal				
Tech. Domain	24 - Materi	als and Processes			
Ref. Number:	GT17-019N	MS		Budget (k€):	700
Title:	Applicatio Technique	on of new and r es for Spacecraft a	ovel North	on Destructive In nchers Critical Ap	nspection (NDI) plications
Objectives:	The objectiv destructive applications	ve of the activity is to inspection techniqu s.	evaluate es for NI	the performance of 1 DI of critical parts us	new and novel non- ed in space critical
Description:	<ul> <li>destructive inspection techniques for NDI of critical parts used in space critica applications.</li> <li>The last decade has seen the development of many new high performanc materials which can be used for space applications. These include new lightweight metallic materials such as Al-Li based alloys, metal matrix composite such as TiSiC, and non-metallic structures based on CFRP and glasses. In orde for these materials to be adopted for space applications, the manufacturing an assembly of these and other advanced materials must be addressed. In parallel to the development of new advanced materials, there has also been a significan improvement in the availability of non-destructive inspection (NDI) technique which can be used to detect flaws.</li> <li>The tasks to be done in the frame of this activity are the following:</li> <li>Literature review and Trade-off of current state-of-the art NDI techniques the technology trade-off shall include at least the current detection limits, th handling and the applicability to different metallic, ceramic and metal and ceramics matrix materials.</li> <li>Evaluation of novel NDI techniques: NDI techniques currently unde development shall be evaluated on their possible improvements on th detectability of flaws and/or their improved handling (e.g. portability of the equipment, accessibility of complex structures). The techniques to b considered for evaluation shall include (but not be limited to): <ul> <li>Long range ultrasonic testing.</li> <li>Digital radiography.</li> <li>Laser UT.</li> <li>Alternating current field measurement.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Micro-focus X-ray practical testing (with fatigue pre-cracked samples) or novel NDI techniques and comparison to the state-of-the art: Finally, th most promising non-destructive inspection techniques and materia combinations shall be compared with equivalent designs inspected be conventional techniques. The trade-off shall at least include detection limits; reliability, industrial efficiency, cost and environmental frie</li></ul>				high performance hese include new matrix composites ad glasses. In order manufacturing and essed. In parallel to been a significant n (NDI) techniques <i>v</i> ing: rt NDI techniques letection limits, the mic and metal and s currently under provements on the g. portability of the techniques to be l to):
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Report				
<b>Current TRL:</b>	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	2019. Space	ecraft and launchers.			



	esa
Domain	Generic Technologies - CD2 - Structures, Mechanisms, Materials, Thermal
Tech. Domain	24 - Materials and Processes
Ref. Number:	<b>GT17-020MS Budget (k€):</b> 1,000
Title:	Morphing Structures Processed by 4D Printing for Space Applications
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to investigate how innovative combinations of materials, topological design and additive manufacturing processes can create new functionalities in structures intended for space applications. This shall be demonstrated through the design, manufacturing and characterisation of an adaptive morphing structure demonstrator for a selected space application.
<b>Description</b> :	Smart materials, i.e. materials which change one or several of their properties as a response to an environmental stimulus, are already being used in various engineering applications, including space products. Among those, shape memory alloys or piezoelectric materials found applications in space mechanisms (e.g. valves, release mechanisms, piezo-actuators), while other smart materials are the subject of advanced research and development (e.g. ferrofluid thrusters for spacecraft propulsion).
	Additive Layer Manufacturing (ALM), otherwise known as 3D printing, is having a profound impact on the manufacturing of parts across various industries, due to the significant increase in design freedom that this family of processes offer. Complex geometries and material combinations, not obtainable with conventional processes, are possible, leading to improved designs and resulting gains in performance, manufacturing cost and lead time. An emerging engineering discipline, colloquially named 4D printing, aims at combining the design freedom offered by 3D printing with the shape-changing ability of smart materials, to produce structures which can evolve in time and change their functions depending on the surrounding environment.
	This activity is aimed at designing and producing active adaptive morphing structures, targeting shape-changing reflectors, adaptive mirrors, adaptive propulsion nozzles, morphing solar panels, thermal control parts, antenna pointing structures, deployment systems. A trade-off will be conducted to select the targeted space application with associated requirements, bringing the highest benefits.
	Given the multiple aspects involved in this study (materials design and manufacturing, system-level design, space applications) the activity shall be run by a multi-disciplinary team using a concurrent engineering approach.
	<ul> <li>The tasks to be done in the frame of this activity will consist of:</li> <li>conducting a literature review of the state of the art in 4D printing techniques and more generally in the combination of ALM and smart materials,</li> <li>conducting a review of available computational tools which can support the design, optimisation and simulation of 4D printed structures,</li> <li>performing a trade-off analysis to select an application for which an active adaptive structure demonstrator will be developed in this activity, together with the associated 4D printing process,</li> <li>preparing a detailed design of the adaptive structure demonstrator,</li> <li>conducting the 4D printing process development,</li> <li>manufacturing the active adaptive structure demonstrator,</li> </ul>



	<ul> <li>character requirer</li> <li>validation character</li> <li>perform technologies design of the second second</li></ul>	erising the demons ments for the selecte ng the computation erisation results, ning a critical assess ogy for the targeted of space systems.	strator f d space nal mod ment of space a	to assess compliant application, del of the adaptive the potential of the pplications and the i	ce with the defined structure with the selected 4D printing impact on the future
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/	2019.				

Timeframe:



# 3.5.3. CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)

#### 3.5.3.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)				
Tech. Domain	01 - Onboard Data Systems				
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-021ED	Budget (k€	E):	800	
Title:	COTS-based highly integrated satellites	computer sys	stem for	mini/nano	
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to built since its radiation performances are so This type of computer can stem to an (30+ kg class) satellites or be used as evolution of already existing Zinq-bass The use case for validation shall acquisition and pre-processing the implementation on the target demonst	d a demonstrator uitable for mini/na ancillary 'OBC hel standalone for cu ed computers). incorporate some unctions to be trator.	based on Zi ano commend elper' unit/b ubesat-class e existing A e optimised	inq 7000 SoC rcial services. oard for mini platforms (as AOCS sensor d for their	
<b>Description</b> :	Data fusion can play an important role and low cost spacecraft. Those platfor sensory data, pre-processing and f regarding their objectives, informati sensor alone with the same level of re Sensor fusion is particularly applicable and autonomous maneuvers. To perform data fusion a performance required, since available (and propos SoC (SCOC3, GR712, GR740) are not V5 or Microsemi's RTG4 might not has to do this job, since a close optimisat based) and slow control (processor based)	in future avionics rms require reliab using them to ob on which cannot liability and availal e for AOCS for obj e leap in space-bon ed) processing plat sufficient. Even cur ive the right perfor ition of pure bitsti sed) is needed.	especially in ble and diffe btain better be acquired ability. opect detection orne control atforms, like arrent FPGAs rmances and tream proces	n smart, small erent types of information d by a single on, navigation electronics is LEON-based s, like Xilinx's d architecture ssing (FPGA-	
	The activity targets demonstration of 'COTS-based platform' (mini/nand superconstellations fallout products) to perform an intermediate sensor dat sensors or payloads with sensor ac selection, checks, monitoring, fusion) parameters monitoring) and newer fu STR data fusion, in flight orbit and em- based navigation, autonomous visual fusion for physical measurement gat plasma). Due to the vast number of s demands on the memory capacity and	of use of hi-perfor b/cube etc, but to be used as an hig a processing and fu quisition and pre- , actuators data pr nctions like SW-de vironmental param based target point hered from diverse ensors inputs, suc l bandwidth.	rmance SoC with mai ighly integra fusion step f e-processing (c lefined-GNS neters propa ting but also se sensors (e ch applicatio	C FPGAs in a n target to ted computer or (e.g) AOCS (calibration, configuration, S, assisted by gation, visual payload data e.g. radiation, ons pose high	
	FPGA-based reconfigurable comput electronics) the most cost and power- sensing system by means of a com software. Multiple designs for multis FPGA-based platforms, have demons solutions. Past results of related ESA	ing systems are effective solutions, imonly employed cale data-fusion al strated speedup ov activities depict th	already (in , in particula l application algorithms, o ver pure pro that well ove	a commercial ar in a remote a and fusion developed for ocessor-based er an order of	



magnitude improvement in speed, and two order improvement in power efficiency can be obtained with efficient designs and appropriate hardware resources.

Choice of Zinq7000 series SoC FPGAs as baseline demonstration platform is related to some existing space heritage (GOMSpace, CNES) and knowledge of good radiation performance and may lead to products applicable to the aggressive commercial (cubesat, minisat, telecom constellations) market, with an additional HW+SW layer that takes care of guaranteeing a good dependability after radiation effects.

The target TRL is 5, starting from existing studies that have demonstrated feasibility of high-frame-rate image processing, Star Tracker processing, SW-based GNSS in this type of platform.

The activity includes the following tasks:

- Identify a common, modular architecture, based on Zinq7030 SoC COTS FPGA, that fulfils dependability and budget (size, cost, power) requirements for different COTS based class of missions (cubesat, minisat, aggressive commercial, possibly LEO institutional).
- Detailed design of an hardware proof-of-concept demonstrator.
- Selection and design of a GNC demonstrator use case, incorporating some existing AOCS sensor acquisition and pre-processing functions to be optimised for their implementation on the target demonstrator.
- Manufacturing of the computing system, testing, software integration in field demonstration.

**Deliverables:** Prototype

<b>Current TRL</b> :	4	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 5 by 201	19.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Data Systems and On-Board Computers (2016).

E



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD3 - Avia (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E.	onic Architecture / DHS / Onb 2E)	oard SW /
Tech. Domain	01 - Onboard Data Systems		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-022ED	Budget (k€):	1,000
Title:	High Performance Reconfigu	rable Processing Module (	(HiPeR-Pro)
Objectives:	The HiPeR-Pro activity aims at pro- for payload data processing tasks applications. Within this frame, the objective o manufacture a data processing me DSP, one to several high capacity r switch to interlink the processing interfaces (SpaceFibre, SpaceWire natively or as a bridge to Analog in	viding a high performance and using EEE parts which are de f the HiPeR-Pro development odule hosting a high performa econfigurable FPGAs and a Sp nodes. The module will supp e, CAN) and lower level digita iterface devices.	I flexible solution signed for space is to design and nce processor or aceFibre routing ort standardised l interfaces used
Description:	<ul> <li>The approach while designing a Module will follow the general printoneral time data set implementing real-time data set implementing non-real time a</li> <li>Providing a scalable and versa drivers.</li> <li>Extending digital I/Os by Ana</li> <li>Developing at EBB level a HW high performance and capacity processing nodes and corresponteration.</li> <li>Implementing and validating from ESA's portfolio.</li> </ul>	High Performance Reconfigunciples organized with the follostream processing functions in and lower data rate processing attile I/O system supported by logue Front-ends. Windule hosting a high end pity FPGAs, a SpaceFibre router onding support equipment.	rable Processing owing tasks: FPGA firmware. in software. flexible software rocessor or DSP, r to interlink the of IP Cores taken
	<ul> <li>The selected hardware platform in DSP, one or several high-end rectiniterlinking the processing nodes space applications. The platform s</li> <li>Supporting exploratory and eviduring early development phireduce costs thanks to using platform.</li> <li>Allowing in-flight reconfiguration changes during mission lifetiinstance, processing algorithm re-defined during the execution data processing to be applic community will be higher in the launch for the whole missis</li> <li>Allowing in-flight PARTIAL refor the next task without servi</li> <li>Allowing staggered data processing chain. This will transdes, if the application all processing chain can be used for the same processing chain. This is possib mode and do not need the processing chain.</li> </ul>	s the combination of a power onfigurable FPGAs and a Spa , based on EEE parts which hall fulfil the following needs: volutionary designs according ases. The advantage at this st ; a flight representative and tion for adaptation and to allo me, different mission phases is can be tuned according to e on of the mission. This will ex ed on board, as acceptance his case than fixing the process on lifetime. econfiguration to prepare the ce interruption of the on-going essing by using in-flight recon emendously reduce the numb lows for staggered processin for different tasks. ain for different instruments the le when several instruments wo cessing chain all the time.	ful processor or ceFibre network are designed for to mission needs tage is clearly to stable hardware ow for algorithm and modes. For volving needs or tend the level of of the science sing chain before processing chain g task. figuration of the per of processing ag, as the same oy using in-flight ork in windowing



• Enabling a mission rescue in case of FDIR events or failures that could be overcome by a deep reconfiguration of the data processing functions.

The activity will consist in developing at EBB level a HW module hosting a high end processor or DSP, high performance and capacity FPGAs, a SpaceFibre router to interlink the processing nodes and corresponding support equipment. A selection of IP Cores taken from ESA's portfolio will be implemented and validated on the target.

Potential FPGAs for this activity are the European FPGA BRAVE large and ultra, as well as Xilinx Virtex 5. Potential processors are the ones provided by the BRAVE FPGAs (e.g. Leon4), GR740, SSDP (Dual-Core DSP + Leon3FT) and RC64 (many-core DSP, SpFi interface). The SpFi routing switch can be implemented in Microsemi RTG4 or as ASIC in ST65SPACE 65nm technology.

**Deliverables:** Breadboard

TargetTRL5 in 2019.Application/Timeframe:	Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
	Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL5 in 2019.				

Applicable THAG Roadmap: On-Board Payload Data Processing (2016).

Domain



	01 - Onboard Data Systems						
Ref. Number:	GT17-023S	W		Budget (k€):	800		
Title:	CAN Syster	CAN System and SW Stack consolidation					
Objectives:	The objective of the activity is to improve the industrial use of the CAN bus for distributed intelligence systems, targeting ramping up use of space grade microcontrollers. Starting from the ECSS-E-ST-50-15 standard, which addresses the use of the CAN protocol extended with some CANOpen features, and from existing hardware (e.g. R-CCIPC CANOpen VHDL IPCore) and software solutions, the activity will draw the landscape of the CAN technology and consolidate some industrial needs.						
Description:	The CAN sta first two lay issues in the the software guidelines or	he CAN standard defines the hardware and the communication protocols at the irst two layers of the ISO/OSI stack. The software community has identified sues in the use of the various CAN solutions, and a more structural approach to he software must be defined, implemented and disseminated, as well as uidelines on the configuration of the CAN for different types of missions.					
	The activity i gath expla netw clari conc for r iden mass for t with the i guid prote cont for r	<ul> <li>The activity includes:</li> <li>gathering the problems in the use of CAN in various missions (planeta exploration, robotics, telecom platform and payload, etc)e.g. throug networking contacts in European industry,</li> <li>clarify identified open issues related to the use of CAN e.g. redundan concept, use of CANOpen, large data unit transfer, boot loader protoct for remote programming, etc),</li> <li>identifying growth potential for CAN (e.g. CAN-FD, mul master, asynchronous control),</li> <li>for those topics, identifying the necessary complementary requirement with the network of contact in European Industry and proceeding with the implementation:</li> <li>guidelines on how to use CAN according to the system configuration,</li> <li>protocols (independent from the hardware execution [Leon.micr controller], and from the hardware driver),</li> <li>pre-qualified software drivers or test suite.</li> </ul>					
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Handbook a	nd software					
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18		
Target							

Generic Technologies - CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)



## 3.5.3.2. TD02 - Space System Software

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD3 - A (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C	vionic Architecture / DHS / Or. (E2E)	nboard SW /
Tech. Domain	02 - Space System Software		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-024SW	Budget (k€):	800
Title:	SAVOIR Data Storage Serv	ices Demonstration	
Objectives:	The main objectives of the acti identified during the FMSIS MASAIS Working Group and de	vity are to apply the concepts a IRP activity and consolidated evelop a reusable library to mana	and specifications by the SAVOIR- age files on-board.
Description:	<ul> <li>The FMSIS TRP activity has led the SAVOIR-MASAIS Working Storage System Requirement I generic Data Storage Functiona. The FMSIS activity verified m through the development of a documents are being updated SAVOIR Advisory Group for the Document' and a public review. Specification'. At this stage, for documents will be consolidated reference implementation shall term of execution platform and</li> <li>To achieve the objectives, the advisory of the complement document. Identify a representative M is compliant to the SAV maximise the number requirement document.</li> <li>Identify a COTS FMS libraring is compliant to the SAV can be easily qualified with a license scheme Software.</li> <li>Develop the reusable FMS I if a COTS FMS library applications and to Ma if no such COTS FMS library applications and to</li></ul>	to the production of two docur Group. The first document is to occument'. The second docume I Specification'. ost of the requirements of these fully simulated demonstrator. Twith respect to the results of the 'SAVOIR Data Storage Sys for the 'SAVOIR generic Data S esseen to be reached end Q2 2017 and allow a first reference imp be performed on a representation Mass Memory device. ctivity shall at least include the fa- ass Memory equipment that: 'OIR-MASAIS requirement docu- er of requirements of the s that can be verified. y that: OIR-MASAIS requirement docu- with respect to ECSS-E-ST-40C, compatible with its integration ibrary: is identified, develop the requires s Memory, brary exists, develop the FMS Se- pplications and to Mass Memor lemory shall allow a quick port rary: covering the applicable require we Use Cases, i.e. real scenar i.e. CFDP. all be compliant with the archi ion Platform Software (PEPS) T	nents reviewed by the 'SAVOIR Data nt is the 'SAVOIR se two documents The two reference the review by the tem Requirement torage Functional 7, the requirement blementation. This we environment in following tasks: uments, SAVOIR-MASAIS uments, on in space flight tired interfaces to ervices supporting y, on different Mass ments, ios from existing tecture defined in RP activity so that
	- including file transfers, In addition, the FMS library sh the frame of the Payload Execut it can be easily included and pr	i.e. CFDP. all be compliant with the archi ion Platform Software (PEPS) T ovide FMS services to the Paylo	tecture defined in RP activity so that ad developers.



Delivera	bles:	Software

Current TRL:4Target TRL:5Duration<br/>(months):18Target<br/>Application/<br/>Timeframe:TRL 5-6 by 2019.18

Applicable THAG Roadmap: On-Board Software (2014).


Title:	Integration of model-based avionics design and FDIR analysis tools			
Ref. Number:	GT17-025SW	Budget (k€):	600	
Tech. Domain	02 - Space System Software			
Domain	Generic Technologies - CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)			

- **Objectives:** The objective of this activity is to create an integrated approach for model-based verification of safety and performability analysis of complex avionics systems, by bringing together recent advances in model-based systems engineering (Capella/Arcadia, AAML, SysML), system verification (COMPASS) and AOCS/GNC design and analysis (GAFE). Integration of these technologies, by coupling of tools, will enable and foster multi-disciplinary design trade-offs early in the life-cycle, which will significantly lower the risk of downstream V&V challenges, in particular w.r.t. FDIR. In this perspective, the Power discipline will be considered in the multi-disciplinary context together with avionics.
- **Description:** This proposal brings together results available from a number of completed R&D activities:
  - COMPASS is a toolset for model-based verification of safety and performability analysis of complex aerospace systems; it has evolved through a strand of TRP research activities such as COMPASS, AUTOGEF, FAME, HASDEL, CATSY and the COMPASS Harmonisation activity, leading to the recent 3.0 release in 2016. It provides a very rich set of features for analysis of system models defined in AADL using state-of-the-art model checking,
  - AAML (Avionics Architecture Modeling Language), which is now part of the VERICOCOS toolset, both developed and funded under the TRP programme,
  - the SAVOIR On-board Software Reference Architecture (OSRA) and the TASTE toolset (also part of VERICOCOS),
  - the Capella toolset, a model-based notation to describe avionic architectures, supported by the Arcadia methodology, which was initiated from Thales R&D and is now available in open source, supported and used by a large group of industrial stakeholders in the space domain,
  - the Generic AOCS/GNC Technigues & Design Framework for FDIR (GAFE) study, a simulation based approach built on top of Matlab/Simulink, an R&D activity that will conclude in 2017.

The MBSSE workshop held in December 2016 clearly showed the potential impact and readiness for usage at scale of these individual technologies, but improvements are currently very localised in the system life-cycle and typically mono-disciplinary oriented. The full power of the technology is therefore not yet exploited, the weak integration currently hampers the up-take in industry, as was confirmed by the SWOT analysis performed during the workshop.

The foreseen GSTP activity will address this need by providing facilities for bidirectional exchange of avionics models, creating a loosely coupled, federated tool integration platform. During the MBSSE workshop, this was identified as the COMPASS\* (COMPASS-star) approach, whereby the analysis tools can be applied to a range of modelling formalisms, rather than solely on AADL. The aim is therefore not to physically integrate the existing tools into a single tool (which is not feasible due to the diversity of implementation platforms), but to provide additional facilities for consistent model exchange between these existing tools, much akin to the Open Concurrent Design Tool (see https://ocdt.esa.int) but at a higher level of semantic integration. The tool integration platform is likely to be



implemented using existing web and scripting technologies, to allow distributed access and Harmonisation with other on-going developments such as the OCDT (upstream) and TASTE (downstream).

The approach will enable the early analysis of avionics models with those powerful analysis tools, by transferring models and results back and forth. Consistency is enforced as automated model translation is used. As the analysis tools typically address different system aspects using different analysis approaches, they complement each other significantly, further supporting the multi-disciplinary design trade-offs that need to be made during the system design. The approach taken will allow other tools and notations to be added, supporting evolution.

Moreover, the intent is also to formalise the proposed design approach from the SAVOIR FDIR Handbook, which is currently under development, as methodogical support into the same tool set. The activity will also produce a relevant (open source, IPR free) case study for benchmarking and dissemination of the approach.

The following tasks will be performed:

- define an approach to harmonize the various existing modeling toolsets,
- define and implement a translation from the harmonized model to the downstream tools,
- demonstrate the resulting federated toolset on a case study, following the SAVOIR-FDIR handbook.

**Deliverables:** Software

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 6 by 2019	).			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Avionics Embedded Systems (2016).



## 3.5.3.3. TD05 - Space System Control

Domain	Generic Techn (FDIR) / GNC	ologies - CD3 - Av + AOCS / TT&C (I	ionic Ar E2E)	chitecture / DHS / O	nboard SW /
Tech. Domain	05 - Space Sys	tem Control			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-026SA			Budget (k€):	600
Title:	Low-cost hig	h reliability wid	e FoV S	Sun Sensor EM	
Objectives:	The aim of the mission sun se on commercial	e activity is to des nsor Engineering or ESA missions.	ign, dev Model (	relop and build a hig EM) with wide field	gh reliability multi of view, to be used
Description:	The AOCS Sensors and Actuators Harmonisation roadmap has identified the need to develop a second source for high reliability sun sensors in Europe.				
	<ul> <li>The following tasks shall be performed:</li> <li>identification of the sun direction detection method (solar cell, photodiodes, pixel array),</li> <li>design and manufacturing up to EM level of the Sun Sensor,</li> <li>subject the manufactured EM to de-risking tests (environmental and performance), preparing for a qualification [which is out of the scope of this activity],</li> <li>development of all the required test equipment required for calibration and acceptance/qualification testing.</li> <li>The product should target: <ul> <li>hemispheric FoV (180 deg),</li> <li>limited albedo sensitiveness,</li> <li>high accuracy if not too detrimental on the recurring price (below 1 degree - 99.7% CL- over the whole FoV),</li> </ul> </li> </ul>				
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering M	odel			
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	15
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL6 in 2019.				
Applicable THA	G Roadmap:	AOCS Sensors an (incl. IMU) (2015)	d Actuat ).	ors: II - Specific Sen	sors and Actuators



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD3 - Avi (EDIR) / CNC + AOCS / TT&C (EDIR)	onic Architecture / DHS / Onboa 2F)	rd SW /
Tech Domain	(PDIR) / GIVE + AUCS / IT&C (E	4Ľ)	
	05 - Space System Control		
Ref. Number:	GT17-027SA	Budget (k€):	700
Title:	Object-oriented hybrid mode	lling of avionics systems usir	ng Modelica
Objectives:	<ul> <li>The activity will build and consolit to adapt it to the needs of ESA proverify hybrid avionics systems for</li> <li>multibody system of the contappendages, high communication hybrid system for on-orbit set</li> <li>launch vehicle multibody dy SAVOIR open architecture restriction</li> </ul>	late a Modelica Space Avionics Sy jects and it will use the outcome to 3 key mission scenarios: rol of an Earth observation satel tion data rates, and high pointing vicing of spacecraft with robot ar namics. The models will be qua erence implementation of the veh	stems Library o simulate and lite with large requirements, ms. alified for the icles avionics.
Description:	Modelica is an open object-or heterogeneous hybrid physical sy Europe covering the fields of a automotive industries. Modelica is processes, generation and distrib robotics, automotive and aerospa hydraulic and control subsystem models and component libraries a the tools to build Modelica mo simulation environment similar to	tented language for modeling estems. The use of Modelica is we herospace, car, ships, trains, ar is used to create models for contro- ution of electric power, mechatro ace models that require mechani is in process oriented application re fully portable between softward dels is Dymola: a commercial mo- pomATLAB/Simulink by Dassault	of large and ride-spread in ad in general ol engineering onic models in cal, electrical, ons. Modelica e tools. One of modeling and Systems.
	Modelica allows to model combined by a set of synchronous different deterministic behavior and automediscrete event parts. This allows systems and for deterministic very Modelica to perform very well for Other simulation environment do	ed continuous time and discrete ial, algebraic and discrete equatic atic synchronization of the contin to arrive at safe implementation erification purposes. For exampl r hardware-in-the-loop simulatic not have these capabilities.	event systems ons leading to uous time and s of real time e, this allows on campaigns.
	In space, Modelica is widely used etc. DLR has developed an impre gas dynamics, multi-body, noise control blocks, satellite dynamics	across DLR, PoliMilano, TU-Delft essive collection of models rangir , faults, estimation filters, sense and kinematics, rockets, rovers, e	, TU-Dresden, ng from gears, ors, actuators, tc.
	<ul> <li>The following tasks shall be perfo</li> <li>Assess the limitations of the with respect to the upcom Modelica based methods can avionics level is the Modelica of hybrid systems. The activit the continuous time and dis behaviour without conflicts etc). The activity shall also or reduce the risks to discover la avionics and thermal or mech account the potential link with ECOSIM).</li> </ul>	rmed: current libraries and modelling e ng hybrid avionics systems an be used effectively in ESA. Import synchronous data flow principle ty shall look into the synchroniza crete event parts that leads to a (very important for state transit consider a multi-physics approace ately in projects the issues of cou- anics subsystems, etc. This task is a already existing tools (e.g. ESAT	nvironements d study how ant for ESA at in the context ation between deterministic ion diagrams, ch in order to pling between shall take into AN, ESARAD,



• Provide a thorough set of modelling requirements and needs for hybrid systems in the areas of trajectories, control engineering, data handling, onboard software, estimation and navigation, and TT&C. Links with languages/tools like SySML and Capella shall be taken into account. Interface with FMI will be addressed. Potential evolution towards SysML2 will be considered. The activity will also consider the needs for other related subsystems like structures, propulsion, operations and scheduling.

Consolidation of the performance and environment requirements for the ESA mission needs taking into account the mission objectives and constraints of the 3 cases proposed. The activity shall pay attention to the object oriented modeling, bidirectional flow and direct access to signals, symbolic manipulation of equations, modeling of inverse kinematics and how those are used in Modelica to aid the needs of ESA projects.

- Definition of the models library architecture, including mathematical methods trade-off. This architecture shall also comprise the design of the use and operational modes of the library. The architecture of the library shall take into account the SAVOIR reference architecture.
- Implementation of the library algorithms in a fast, simple, software package that can be used within ESA tools.
- Validation and verification of the library and performance tests by its use in the 3 problem cases: a) multibody system of the control of an Earth observation satellite with large appendages, high communication data rates, and high pointing requirements ; b) hybrid system for on-orbit servicing of spacecraft with robot arms; c) launch vehicle multibody dynamics.
- **Deliverables:** Documentation: in the form of Technical Notes. Software: the Modelica Libraries and the simulation of the 3 scenarios.

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	4	Duration (months):	12
Target					

Target

**Application**/ Launchers, In-orbit servicing, Earth observation missions / 2018. **Timeframe:** 

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Avionics Embedded Systems (2016).



## 3.5.3.4. TD06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)				
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Systems, Payloads and T	lechnologies			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-028ES	Budget (k€):	800		
Title:	Miniaturized Space GNSS rec	eiver for microsat and c	ıbesat		
Objectives:	<ul> <li>The objective of the activity is to of GNSS receiver for microsat and cu</li> <li>precise relative navigation bet</li> <li>precise onboard POD down to level velocity accuracy.</li> </ul>	levelop an Engineering Mode ubesat. It shall serve two use tween S/C, o submeter level position ac	el (EM) for a space cases: curacy and mm/s		
Description:	GNSS space receiver produced by 4) and provide state-of-the-art pe including EO applications like G power consumption of those space microsat missions. An alternative however they have not been subjuthe necessary reliability in space advanced concepts in space.	the agency are based on advan erformances for ESA and thi NSS Radio Occultation. The e receivers are not compatible we is the use of COTS profe- ect to space qualification and ce, not the configurability	nced ASIC (AGGA- rd-party missions e form factor and e with cubesat and essional receivers, l may not provide needed to prove		
	On the other hand, small satelli opportunities with constellation navigation between S/C with very to submeter position and mm/s ve	n the other hand, small satellites (microsats and cubesats) also opens new pportunities with constellations, which may require relative and absolute avigation between S/C with very accurate positioning and timing possibly down o submeter position and mm/s velocity accuracy.			
	The activity aims at developing targeting low cost, low power co cubesats). The target platform sho expected to be based on COTS c platforms. Particular interest is on (eg: GOMSPACE Nanomid7000 S determination), both on ground reference case) and onboard in re- accuracy). The real-time part is th this activity.	g a GNSS space receiver, i onsumption missions (e.g. n ould be hosted in a 1U cubesa omponents and SDR (Softw the powerful SoC currently a oC). The product shall allow F I (current approach with p al time with 10 cm pos accura e novel approach developed f	ncluding antenna nicrosatellites and at (target) and it is are Define Radio) dopted for cubesat POD (Precise Orbit ost-processing as acy and 1mm/s vel for the first time in		
	The architecture will likely requi frequency used for reception of pr	are triple frequency reception recise GNSS clock and orbit c	n, being the third orrection.		
	<ul> <li>The activity covers tasks on:</li> <li>implementation of the GN techniques to improve integravailability (that is not the material a tailored qualification processace technology on large of qualification tests,</li> <li>radiation testing in order to vasa select a COTS antenna suitable adequate for POD,</li> </ul>	ISS receiver, including ra ity of the platform, at the ex in requirement for IOD and or ss (similar to that expected constellations), and the exe alidate the radiation hardening le for space with carrier pha	diation-hardening pense of reducing cubesat missions), to be followed for ecution of related ng approach, se center stability		



• all the necessary steps for qualification of the product for IOD (following tailored version of ECSS for IOD missions).

The target price for the recurrent unit should be around 50Keuro with low power consumption suitable for Cubesats and POD.

The proposed concept of onboard real time POD requires an In-Orbit-Demonstration (IOD) with high modularity and re-configurability (e.g. with FPGAs). This activity should provide here the fundamental step which is to have a product ready to fly for a future IO activity.

If the IOD is successful proving this technique, multiple future missions, including constellations, should benefit from this development. In case the IOD is successful, this will pave the way to port the solution developed in this activity to more robust space qualified hardware.

**Deliverables:** Engineering Model. GNSS receiver and antenna(s) in cubesat format ready for IOD.

Current TRL:3Target TRL:6Duration<br/>(months):18

TargetApplication/Need date end 2018.Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: On-Board Radio Navigation Receivers (2013).



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD3 - Avionic Architecture / DHS / Onboard SW / (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E2E)			
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technology	ogies		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-029ES	Budget (k€):	1,000	
Title:	Nanosat X-band TT&C transponder	r EM		
Objectives:	The aim of this activity is to make availab all the S/S functionality (namely also TEC/Science suitable for non-LEO cubes the whole satellite, M-ARGO study).	le a micro TT&C trans HPA, RFDN, input/ ats (i.e. NE and DS) (1	ponder embedding output filters) for 2U as reference for	
Description:	<ul> <li>Historically for TT&amp;C functions most of (generally VHF/UHF). This is still oftitransition to ITU S-Band for SR,SO,EES (with some ESA/TEC support, e.g. IOD). However, nothing is currently in place if distances, where X-Band is a need and w powerful HPA are required. NASA has (MARCO) as InSight companions. Compliance with standard ESTRAK statiperformance) and therefore implementas ST-50 series is a basic condition: for cubesat/microsatellite missions and very as of today.</li> <li>For LEO, GNSS receiver or simply TLE of therefore integrated Doppler and rangin DDOR) have never been implemented for also RadioScience purposes.</li> <li>In addition, the architecture, either at T thought in order to achieve the extreme the performance at same time. As an exa or even direct conversion to/from X-band stages; as result architectures with LNAs may be envisaged.</li> <li>Even though the relevant applicable standedicated and completely new integrated CDF M-ARGO is identifying the lack of the class of missions. Industrial studies such NASA product IRISv2 as solution.</li> <li>Target mass: &lt;1.5 kg (X/X) for the whole Target power: &lt;4W (RX mode). RF pow port.</li> <li>The following tasks shall be performed: <ul> <li>architecture design at S/S level with</li> <li>TRASP architecture definition &amp; p modularity,</li> <li>transponder detailed design,</li> <li>develop/build EM modules with tech also a roadmap for the final qualific missions req.),</li> <li>integrate and test the overall EM modulas the such as a such and a such as a such as a such and a such as a s</li></ul></li></ul>	f the cubesats relied en the case but for 5 S (2025/2110, 2200/2 n Europe to support where more sensitive r s already built 2 6U ions is also necessary tion of the air interfat this is not a comm y limited/partial imple datasets can ensure or ng function (either To or such class of missi FRASP and S/S level, miniaturization requ mples the TRASP free d vs the more usual 2 of /HPA direct connection dards for the air inter d TRASP-S/S have to nis unit as a major sho as Hel10Nano from A e S/S (antenna exclude er out (TX mode) up definition of main bui reliminary design wi hnology allowing path ation (ECSS tailored a del.	on amateur bands LEO missions the 2290) is underway missions at bigger ecceivers and more cubesats to Mars (due to the unique ce as per ECSS-E- non standard for ementations exists bit determination, one, Code or PN & on. This can serve must be specially ested but boosting puency plan: single or more conversion on to each antenna face are not new, a be developed. The w-stopper for such dirbus consider the ed). to 15W @ antenna lding blocks, th Scalability and a to fly, developing accordingly to IoD	



<b>Deliverables</b> :	Engineering	g Model			
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL6 by 20	20.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: TT&C Transponders and Payload Data Transmitters (2012).



#### 3.5.3.5. TD26 - Others

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD3 - Avi (FDIR) / GNC + AOCS / TT&C (E	ionic Architecture / DHS E2E)	/ Onboard S	5W/
Tech. Domain	26 - Others			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-030GE	Budget (k€):	1,00	00
Title:	SDLS-Flex: Flexible Space implementation and End-to-	Data Link Layer End Verification	Security	Protocol
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is capabilities of the SDLS standard end-to-end SDLS and SDLS Ex operational prototype development side SDLS implementation also a stringent safety and security req FPGAs implementing mission crit	to demonstrate to miss ls through the combined tended Procedures impl ent both on space and gr ims to be flexible and ad uirements in the contex tical safety and/or securi	ions and ind l developmer ementation, round side. T dress at the s t of reconfig ty functions.	lustry the nt of a full including the space- same time uration of
Description:	The Space Data Link Layer (SDLS by CCSDS. It is the first interm objective to provide authentication space link between ground station this standard, the SDLS Extended Extended Procedures standard management and security monited In the light of ever-rising global standards to protect future mission (e.g. development of a classified experimental implementations for order to help and lower the bound unclassified operational prototy missions and industry for the span The objective of this activity is capabilities of the SDLS standards end-to-end SDLS standards implevelopment both on space and g and industry as a baseline for future It is expected that the space segn hardware and software developm be in software. The space-side SD address at the same time stringen of reconfiguration of FPGAs which security functions. A key design e for FPGA reprogramming in a stre exclusive memory areas and e reconfigure the FPGA. In order to be fully representative and ground verification environ for ground and the SAVOIR-SAT space). This will ensure that the d the art ground and space segm environments are then connector testing campaign for the SDLS stated and space segm	G) Security protocol has r ational space-link secur on, integrity, and confide ons and spacecraft. A ma Procedures, is currently lise key management, oring & control services. security threats, ESA in ons. Some work is alread prototype chip for high or CCSDS interoperability laries for adoption by mis pes for the SDLS stand ce segment and for the gr to demonstrate to miss ds through the combined olementation, including ground side. The prototy ire operational developm ment implementation wi nent and the ground segn VLS implement mission lement is the isolation of rictly isolated SAVOIR-S xclusive access to the e, the development will b nents (the ESA Enginee and Secure Systems En evelopments integrate di ent systems (e.g. EGS-C ed to allow a full end-to andards implementation	ecently been ity standard ntiality servi anagement a under finalis security a tends to use y on-going in security mis y testing). He ssions, it is cr lards are av round segme ions and ind developmer operational pe can be use eents. Il be a comb nent develop aims to be fle irements in t critical safe the function AT OBC part IO interface e integrated ring Develop gineering tes rectly into th CC for groum o-end verific s. A full test	published with the ces on the ddition to ation. The ssociation the SDLS n this area sions and owever, in ritical that railable to nt. dustry the nt of a full prototype ed by ESA bination of oment will exible and he context ty and/or s required tition with e used to into space oment Lab st beds for te state-of- nd). These cation and campaign



	is performed future ESA r	l as part of this activ nissions as a default	ity to v security	validate the suitability y layer.	y to deploy SDLS in
Deliverables:	The tasks to analysis and rele requirer the relev architec prototyp element impleme deploym compose ESA En Secure S execution Software and	be done in the frame of the SDLS and SDI vant legacy space-lin nents Specification for vant state-of-the-art for tural Design taking is be into the relevant related to function is entation of space and tent into an end-te end of the space and g gineering Developm systems Engineering n of a full test campa d Hardware.	of this LS Exte k secur or spac echnol nto acc verifica solatior ground o-end round ent Lal test bee ign.	activity are the follow ended Procedures CCS ity implementations e and ground implen ogies, count (1) The seamles ation environments n for FPGA reprogram d prototypes, verification and te segment reference im o for ground and the ds for space),	wing: SDS documentation (e.g. Sentinels), nentations based on ss integration of the (2) The key design ming, sting environment plementations (the e SAVOIR-SAT and
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 6 by 20	19.			

imen ame.

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Avionics Embedded Systems (2016).



## 3.5.4. CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC

## 3.5.4.1. TD03 - Spacecraft Electrical Power

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC
Tech. Domain	03 - Spacecraft Electrical Power
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT17-031EP Budget (k€):</b> 1,000
Title:	Improving density of power modules by up to a factor 2
Objectives:	The present activity is meant to boost dramatically the capability of power modules by targeting the performance bottleneck constituted by the flat derating rules applied on electronic components. A PCDU module design that is representative of all the main component families used in power system shall be taken as a reference. A power conversion, distribution and/or thermal knife modules are the possible target options. The activity objectives are the following:
	• Re-formulate the derating rules for key components in view of the relevant life test results.
	• Assess the impact at module level of applying the newly derived derating rules.
<b>Description</b> :	The rationale behind the proposed activity is that the currently applied derating rules are in general de-correlated from the way the ratings of components have been selected, resulting in a situation where even some component manufacturers report that derating rules should be disregarded for their components. For electronic units developed for space applications, it is well known that the application of required derating rules to some key EEE components constitute a performance bottleneck. These components can be e.g. capacitors or MOSFET's, owing to derated temperature allowance, or connectors due to voltage derating limitation. On the other side derating rules applied in Europe for space electronics have been established long ago for component technologies that now have evolved, and a precise correlation between expected reliability in time versus derating
	coefficients has not been established. While derating rules are meant to secure the operational lifetime of the spacecraft, it is striking to note that derating coefficients are still applied as flat rules to component families with no exhaustive regard to specificities such as the maturity of the technology, the process of a given manufacturer or the way the rating limits have been determined by the manufacturers. Moreover, derating rules were derived many decades ago and, since then, technology, materials and processes have radically evolved. Thus, it is unlikely that the same rule could be applied to completely different devices. In this context, derating rules are reported even by some manufacturers as unnecessary to secure the lifetime of their components. Such a situation may conceal huge margins which we can no longer afford to ignore nowadays, in an environment of fierce competition for better performances and lower costs. While it is not demonstrated that operating a MOSFET up to its rated temperature is going to be compatible to its lifetime, this exercise illustrates anyhow the tremendous potential of the proposed activity. In this context, a three steps shall be follow:
	• First the components, or component families, for which derating rules recurrently result in bottleneck from one design to another within products are to be identified.



	<ul> <li>Second on int</li> <li>This the car goi cor</li> </ul>	condly, information is how rating limits hav the respective cases. irdly, the rationale f ese components, supp npaign to compleme ing to result in new e nponents within space	s to be e been s or appl orted w nt insu electrica ce electr	collected with compo stated and how derati ication of derating r herever needed by ap fficient or missing i al allowance being giv onic units.	nent manufacturers ng rules make sense ules is revisited for propriate life testing nformation. This is ven for the usage of
	Accordingly boostin lowerin better u reducin have hi	y, the key technical ol ng functional perform ng dissipation levels utilisation), ng volume and mass igher density),	ojective ances ( (relaxin (lower	s of the activity are th do more with same ha ng derating on comp relaxing derating on	e following ones: urdware), onents allows their components allows
	The tasks to Electric Design Critical Revisit Manufa Benefit	o be done in the fram cal design performand or identification of a l analysis of rating lin ing components quali acturing of the selecte analysis at unit level	e of this ce bottle PCDU M nits vers ification ed modu and wa	s activity are the follow eneck identification. Aodule based on tradi sus derating rules. In for better derating a le with the new derat y-forward.	wing: tional derating rules pplication. ting rules.
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Report				
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	30
Target Application/ Timeframe:	2020.				

**Applicable THAG Roadmap:** Power Management and Distribution (2013).



Domain	Generic Technolog	gies - CD4 - Ele	ectric Arc	chitecture / Power an	d Energy / EMC	
Tech. Domain	03 - Spacecraft Ele	ectrical Power				
Ref. Number:	GT17-032EP			Budget (k€):	600	
Title:	Integrated Powe	er Switch AS	IC for si	nall DC/DC conve	rters	
Objectives:	The objective of th conditions a proto shall include: a d implementation, st	is activity is to otype of an AS lriver, a PWM tart-up circuiti	develop, IC for sp 1, an oso ry directly	build and test in rele ace environment. Th cillator, an OP-Amp y from the bus and th	evant temperature le ASIC prototype for control loop e power switch.	
Description:	The activity aims a the oscillator, a si circuit. It should protection and an of In this IC, the mai much as possible to supplies, auxiliary If this chip was avai by making power a output diode, the of power supply. As a upper side drivers, the high compactn if needed. This wou voltage range of op The key advantage start switching im characteristics sho European satellites	at developing a mple PWM, a have a built enable pin to t n target is not the design of s supplies, etc. T illable, it will et available when output filter an a consequence , start up syste ess of the IC w uld enable mor otions. e is the ability mediately with ould be compa s: 28 V, 50 V a	In IC that n Op-An in overe- urn-off th performs simple Do the target nable the e is need d the feece- e, issues 1 ms, etc. v ould allow e comple- to be cor- hout exte tible with nd 100 V	t includes the power s op for the control loc current protection, on he switch. ance but having a de C-DC converters for topology is mainly a l possibility of simplify ed. Only the magnetic lback network will be ike having isolated p will not be a problem w having multiple sup x electrical systems w nuected directly to the rnal circuitry. Thus, in the typical bus volt	switch, the driver, op and a start-up over temperature vice to simplify as local small power Flyback converter. ving many designs ic component, the eneeded to build a ower supplies for anymore. In fact, oplies in one board ith a wider supply e bus voltage and the input voltage age levels used in	
	<ul> <li>The development plan shall include:</li> <li>Consolidation of the set of requirements.</li> <li>Conceptual functional block design.</li> <li>Development of all blocks to achieve radiation tolerance.</li> <li>Design of the prototype with all functionalities.</li> <li>Manufacturing of a prototype.</li> <li>Test campaign.</li> </ul> The test campaign shall include: <ul> <li>Functional electrical tests.</li> <li>Thermal cycles at ambient pressure.</li> </ul>					
<b>Deliverables</b> :	TID/SEE radia     Prototype	ation campaigi	1 to asses	s the validity of the d	esign.	
a	-		_	Duration		
Current TRL:	3 <b>Ta</b>	rget TRL:	5	(months):	24	
Target	This is an activity t		logy TDI	5 but he and of 2010		

**Application**/ This is an activity to push technology. TRL 5 by the end of 2019. **Timeframe:** 

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Power Management and Distribution (2013).



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC				
Tech. Domain	03 - Spacecraft Electrical Pow	/er			
Ref. Number:	GT17-033EP	Budget (k€):	500		
Title:	High Frequency DC/DC co	nverter module with Digita	l Control		
Objectives:	<ul> <li>The objectives of the activities</li> <li>develop an Array Power R Primary Power System,</li> <li>reach a switching frequence</li> <li>implement the control sys</li> <li>integrate the TM/TC and t device,</li> <li>rationalise the external integrate in parallel.</li> </ul>	are to: egulator (APR) DC/DC converter cy of at least 600 kHz. The end ta tem of the converter with a digita the intra-unit communications in cerfaces in view of having more n	r module for the arget is 1MHz, al device, 1 the same digital nodules		
Description:	<ul> <li>The future of DC/DC converter systems points at two main targets:</li> <li>High switching frequency</li> <li>Digital control</li> <li>At the moment, state of the art DC/DC converters used in European Space applications lag far behind in terms of innovation. The typical switching frequency is still below 200 kHz in most of the cases and the ancillary electronics are mainly discrete analogue. As a consequence, the power density is still quite low and the topological implementations are still relying on the heritage-rich old designs.</li> </ul>				
	This activity aims at developin and get closer to the technolog The objective is to develop frequency. The ambition is to designs. As a minimum, the s exercise. As an option aside in in principle, they are especially In order to show the highest (APR) is the target module. candidate to suit this applicati	ig knowledge and technology to gies that will be state of the art is a DC/DC converter module s reach 1 MHz since this would en witching frequency shall be 600 this activity, GaN devices might y suitable for high frequency switt impact at PCDU level, the Array Thus, a non-isolated topology on.	come up to speed in the near future. switching at high able very compact b kHz to be a valid also be used since, tching. y Power Regulator will be the best		
	Moreover, this activity will performance of digital control concept has been proven m situation is mature now. Digita standalone converters. Howev complex applications where, a running. This would be the case the conversion itself, there are In principle, an FPGA seem However, a microcontroller b computing performance is fast	serve a second purpose which in a more demanding scenario. any times in terrestrial applich l control has not replaced analog ver, it has become more and me apart from the converter, there e of power units in space systems many other functions. s to be the best candidate for based system could also be a ver- tenough.	ch is to test the The validity of the rations where the ue control in small ore used in more are other systems where, apart from this application. alid option of the		
	Since the digital device is goin also explore the possibility of as possible. Typically TM/TC functions cannot be implement is not acceptable.	g to be there for control purpose using that device for as many ad and monitoring functions. No ited in the same device because,	es, this activity will Iditional functions te that protection reliability wise, it		



Linking digital control to DC/DC converters can enable the use of more complex topologies like multi-phase converters or topologies with soft-switching properties that would enable higher switching frequencies. Hence, having both concepts together in the same activity could potentially give place to very advanced concepts in power supplies. Since the next step would be to integrate this module with other modules to build a power unit, this activity shall pave the way by rationalising the interfaces that will be used to interconnect modules. Mainly the power interface and the intra box communication interface. Thus, potential follow up activities building other modules could be connected to this one to perform a unit level demonstration in the future. This proposal aims at a proof of concept and, as a consequence, the target is to build an elegant breadboard with flight equivalent commercial components. **Deliverables:** Breadboard Duration 3 5 **Current TRL: Target TRL:** 24 (months): Target Application/ This is an activity to push technology. TRL 5 in 2018. Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Power Management and Distribution (2013).



					esa
Domain	Generic Tech	hnologies - CD4 - Ele	ectric A	rchitecture / Power a	nd Energy / EMC
Tech. Domain	03 - Spacecr	aft Electrical Power			
Ref. Number:	GT17-034E	P		Budget (k€):	1,000
Title:	Semicondu 33% Efficie	ictor Bonded Low ency at EOL	-Mass	Space Solar Cells a	nd SCAs with
Objectives:	The objective is to develop the technology building blocks for a high efficient, cost competitive solar cell based on the semiconductor bonding technology (SBT).				
Description:	Within this a device inclu optimized ar Ground-brea materials the electrical cha is the key per demonstrate the selected is to produce Semiconduct suited mater quality in the not exclude a efficiency tar	activity all technolog ding an optimized an industrialization king efficiency leaps at are perfectly align tracteristics. Since for formance parameters a high tolerance to materials have to be the required photo tor bonding technolo- rials with each othe e electrical characteria alternative solar cell rgets of 33%.	y build wafer on plan s are or ned to r space r, this n wards j matche ocurren ogy is l r while stics of design	ling blocks required for bonding process sh shall be established. Ily possible by combin each other in terms of solar cells the end of li- neans that materials sh particle irradiation in ed in terms of their end ts for an optimized pelieved to allow for ce at the same time m the solar cells. However s that would allow to b	or a full SBT based hall be developed, ing semiconductor of their optical and ife (EOL) efficiency hall be selected that space. In addition, d of life capabilities solar cell design. combining the best haintaining highest er, the activity does meet the high EOL
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering	Model			
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 6 in 202	20.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Solar Generators and Solar Cells (2015).



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC				
Tech. Domain	03 - Spacecra	aft Electrical Powe	r		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-035E	P		Budget (k€):	400
Title:	High Power	r, long duration 1	<b>Fitanate</b>	technology batte	eries
Objectives:	The objectiv Commercial against typica	ve is to assess H Off The Shelf (CO' al Low Earth Orbit	ligh Tecl TS) terres (LEO) and	nnology Readiness strial Lithium Titar d Launcher mission	Level (TRL) and nate cell technology profiles,
Description:	Lithium Titanate (LTO) is a form of Lithium ion technology that has a reduced energy density (typically 60-80 Wh/Kg@ Cell translating to 50 Wh/kg at pack) but has considerably higher power density(1-4kW/kg), durability over a higher temperature range and can sustain higher lifetime energy throughput compared to a classic LMO/Graphite li-ion technology, while utilising a wide Depth of discharge window. LTO also has the benefit of lower severity failure modes than traditional Li-ion and increased shelf life.				
	<ul> <li>When compared to operational usable energy density of typical LEO missions 50 wh/kg during mission phase) LTO could represent a credible alternative option potential benefits in durability and performance.</li> <li>The tasks of the activity include: <ul> <li>characterise electrical performance across a range of temperatures,</li> <li>assess lifetime degradation behaviour over a limited set of representa cycles,</li> <li>characterising failure modes vs. typical abuse conditions.</li> </ul> </li> <li>The assessment would primarily concentrate on the merit of the chemistry rational aspecific COTS supplier at this stage.</li> </ul>				
Deliverables:	Report				
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL6 in 2019	Э.			

**Applicable THAG Roadmap:** Electrochemical Energy Storage (2014).



### 3.5.4.2. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques

Domain	Generic Tec	hnologies - CD4 - El	ectric Ar	rchitecture / Power a	nd Energy / EMC
Tech. Domain	07 - Electro	magnetic Technolog	ies and '	Techniques	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-036I	EP		Budget (k€):	1,000
Title:	Qualificati	ion of novel grour	ding fo	r composite struct	tural panels
Objectives:	Qualification through the connection to (bonding st grounding a Qualification direct electr	n of the grounding ir feet by the way of to the CFRP via river ud + grounding str t high frequency. n of the electrical be ical connections to t	of equip modifie s. Impro ap + de onding b ne CFRP	ment housings to the d inserts implemention wement with respect edicated insert), which etween structural particle via rivets.	ne structural panel ing direct electrical to current practice ch results in poor anels by the way of
Description:	<ul> <li>Quantication of the electrical bonding between structural panels by the way of direct electrical connections to the CFRP via rivets.</li> <li>The current practice of grounding on CFRP-skin structural panels is to ignore the electrical properties of the CFRP (conductivity approx. 0.001 that of aluminium) and to set-up a network of so-called 'ground rails' usually implemented as aluminium strips a few cm wide and a few tenths of mm thick, that interconnect the chassis of the various electronic units.</li> <li>This recurrent design practice involves constraints in terms of mass and layout and results in a mediocre high-frequency grounding of the electronic units to the panel, with consequences in terms of common mode and radiated emission.</li> <li>Precursor R&amp;D activities have shown that, unless the rails would be made very wide and would track the harness throughout the satellite, which would virtually result in implementing an aluminium ground plane on top of the CFRP, only the low frequency part of spurious currents (common mode currents) flows through such rails (approximately up to a few 100 kHz). Higher frequency common mode interference actually flows through the panel in spite of its lower conductivity, simply because of its shape as a panel.</li> <li>As a consequence, the standard design would benefit from being modified by:</li> <li>replacing the flat ground rails with round wires easier to implement and sufficient to handle fault currents and to ensure low frequency bonding,</li> <li>ensuring inductance-free bonding of the electronics units to the CFRP through their feet and rivet connections,</li> <li>inter-panel continuity should be ensured by similar techniques.</li> <li>The tasks of the activity include:</li> <li>requirements specification of the novel grounding method,</li> <li>qualification plan,</li> <li>design and manufacturing of breadboards,</li> <li>characterisation of the grounding before environment tests,</li> </ul>				
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype			Deside	
<b>Current TRL:</b>	3	Target TRL:	6	Juration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Industrial co	ompetitiveness (All S	pacecrat	ft)/2020.	



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD4 - Electric Architecture / Power and Energy / EMC					
Tech. Domain	07 - Electroi	magnetic Technolog	ties and T	<i>Techniques</i>		
Ref. Number:	GT17-037E	P		Budget (k€):	1,000	
Title:	Immunity Frequency	to In-Band Electr Receivers using	omagne Signal M	etic Interference for Iodulation	or Radio-	
Objectives:	System for q interference equipment i modulation.	System for quantitative determination of the immunity levels to electromagnetic interference (EMI) for spacecraft radio-frequency (RF) receiver and transponder equipment inside the transmission bandwidth due to the utilization of signal modulation.				
Description:	Signal modulation influences the susceptibility to various types of EMI. Modulation is used in intentional RF signals transmitted to and received by spacecraft and the receiver for a specific RF transmission is most sensitive to this specific, modulated RF signal, i.e. for example an X-band receiver is most sensitive to a legitimate X-band transmission signal. The sensitivity to other RF signals with different or even without modulation will be reduced, i.e. the immunity to such signal will be higher.					
	<ul> <li>Nevertheless the receiver sensitivity for intentional signals is typically used as worst-case to derive also the susceptibility level for other types of RF signal of unintentional RF emissions within the receiver bandwidth.</li> <li>To quantify the actual immunity a dedicated test bench system is needed the evaluate susceptibility levels for specific interference signals by test.</li> <li>The functional principle can be verified with generic RF receivers and signals generators, application to space missions requires representative modulate signals and validation on actual spacecraft receivers, e.g. engineering models.</li> <li>With the resulting quantification of actual RF receiver susceptibility the requirements on tolerable radiated emissions of other spacecraft equipment can be tailored.</li> </ul>					
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Prototype					
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	All spacecra	ft and satellites rece	iving RF :	signals / TRL 6 by 20	021.	



## 3.5.5. CD5 - End-to-End RF & Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing

### 3.5.5.1. TD06 - RF Systems, Payloads and Technologies

	•					
Domain	<i>Generic Technolog for Navigation, Co</i>	ties - CD5 - End Communication a	l-to-End . and Remo	RF & Optical Sy ote Sensing	vstems and Products	
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Systems, F	Payloads and T	echnolog	ies		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-038EF			Budget (k€):	700	
Title:	Broadband and high frequency f	low-loss 3D `ront-ends an	RF mic d distri	ro-structure bution netwo	for high integrated rks	
Objectives:	The objectives of t microstructure for components.	his activity are or microwave	to inve routing	stigate and dev and interco	elop low loss compact nnection with active	
<b>Description:</b>	High frequency systems (Ka-band and beyond) are characterized by high losses, high integration density and, in most of the cases, stringent thermal properties. Potential solutions are based on purely waveguide technology which, although is performing low loss features, is bulky and does not allow a high integration level. Additionally, when moving to high frequency it could be beneficial to be able to work in multi-band by using the same hardware. This is not possible with the traditional waveguide technology, where the mono-mode operation is narrow. The customization of the waveguide cross-section together with the operational mode (e.g. TEM mode) can provide wider band features. This activity aims to develop low-loss wide band micro-structures for high integrated systems (front-ends, Solid State Power Amplifier combiners, distributions networks, BFN, etc.). Both RF design and manufacturing challenges must be carefully studied in the frame of the activity considering the limitations imposed by one of them into the other.					
	together with suitable interfacing with external modules. Thermal issues shall also be reviewed and considered during the design phase.					
	As proof of concept frequency shall be campaign.	t, a high integra e designed, ma	ited 4-poi inufactur	rt Wilkinson div ed and validat	vider/combiner at high ed with adequate test	
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard					
Current TRL:	2 <b>Ta</b>	rget TRL:	5	Duration (months):	30	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Combiners for Soli	d State Power A	Amplifier	, T/R modules,	BFN. TRL 5 by 2021.	

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Additive Manufacturing (2015).



Domain	Generic Tech for Navigatio	nologies - CD5 - En on, Communication	d-to-End and Ren	RF & Optical Sys	stems and Products
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Syste	ems, Payloads and T	Technolog	gies	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-039E	F		Budget (k€):	700
Title:	Developme switches an	nt of High Perfo d isolators	rmance	ferrite materia	al very high power
Objectives:	The objective ferrite mate magnetizatio	es of this activity ar rials able to featu n for radar and teleo	e to inve ire high com appli	stigate and devel linearity, low ications.	op high performance losses and low de-
Description:	A need for high power ferrite components such as high speed switches and isolators has been identified for future EO and other missions where the switches and isolators will be subjected to very high peak powers (> few kW) and high CW powers (> few hundred W).				
	The design challenges are exacerbated at high frequencies (Ku, Ka), where the increasingly small physical size of the devices, together with a limited selection of suitable ferrite materials, introduce additional problems with linearity, multipaction and thermal dissipation.				
	This activity aims to develop a suitable ferrite material (European source) for high power ferrite components. The material shall exhibit high thermal stability of saturation and residual magnetization. This last parameter is especially critical in ferrite switches where the residual magnetization shall ensure the junction stays permanently biased after the removal of the biasing magnetic field.				
Dalivarahlas	The suitabili campaign in	ty of the developed two switch breadboa Model	material ards.	l shall be validate	ed through a full test
Denverables.	Lingineering	Wibuci		<b>D</b>	
<b>Current TRL:</b>	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Beam-hoppir	ng systems, scatteron	neters, S	AR. TRL 5 by 202	20.



					esa
Domain	Generic Tecl for Navigati	hnologies - CD5 - End on, Communication a	l-to-Ena and Ren	l RF & Optical System note Sensing	ns and Products
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Syst	ems, Payloads and T	echnolog	gies	
Ref. Number:	GT17-040E	F		Budget (k€):	600
Title:	Next Gener on Novel M	ration Temperatur laterials	e Comp	ensated High Pow	er Filters Based
Objectives:	The objective for tempera materials.	e of this activity is the ture compensated F	develoj Iigh Po	oment and evaluatior wer Filters making	n of novel concepts use of advanced
Description:	High power filters are key elements at the payload output section to filter signals previously amplified. The ohmic losses of the materials contribute to increase the temperature in the device. Thermal issues related with these losses in high power operation dictate the complexity of the design, which, in turn, impacts the overall mass. Classical materials are aluminium in configurations with thermal compensation mechanisms and INVAR for medium/high power.				
	INVAR has a low thermal expansion coefficient but it has very high density and low thermal conductivity. This leads to bulky solutions. Aluminium has lower density and higher thermal conductivity than INVAR but it presents a very high thermal expansion coefficient. This high thermal expansion dictated the need for temperature compensation mechanisms to achieve the required frequency stability for high power levels. These compensation mechanisms introduce an added risk/complexity that is preventing the commercial widespread of these solutions.				
	Novel materials, like those based on metal-matrix composites or advanced alloys, offer the possibility to overcome current limitations and eliminate the need for complex temperature compensation mechanisms while also exhibiting mass reductions up to 30% in comparison to INVAR designs.				or advanced alloys, inate the need for o exhibiting mass
Deliverables:	In this activi material loca using the nov Breadboard	ty, two strategies will Illy as an insert in the vel material as the ma	l be inve comple iterial fo	estigated, one based e ete structure, and and or the complete struct	on using the novel other one based on ture.
Current TRL:	2	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	30
Target Application/ Timeframe:	High Power 1 by 2021.	Filters (OMUX, Narro	ow-band	l diplexers, Output fil	lters, etc.). TRL 5



Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD5 - End-to-End RF &amp; Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing</i>					
Tech. Domain	06 - RF Syste	ems, Payloads and	Technolo	ogies		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-041EB	1		Budget (k€):	600	
Title:	Waveguide	switches based o	on fricti	on-free mechanis	sms	
Objectives:	The objective switch with h need of lubrid	The objectives of this activity are to investigate and develop an RF waveguide switch with high RF, thermal and mechanical performance without friction and need of lubricant.				
Description:	Waveguide switches are extensively used in microwave systems for space. Mechanical switches are mostly used when a low number of actuation are required such as performing redundancy for Solid State Power Amplifiers (SSPAs), Low Noise Amplifiers (LNAs) or implementing gateways smart diversity. Thanks to their excellent low insertion loss characteristics, waveguide switches are preferred.					
	In the last years, longer lifetime for satellites in space but also extended on groun storage for some Earth observation missions is required (e.g. MTG, METOP, etc Switches manufacturers are struggling to satisfy customer requirements in term of lifetime operation due to risks such as contamination, degraded lubricant risk of sticking. In the last years mechanisms concepts based on pivots have been developed whice replace traditional solutions based on bearing surfaces. The new solution perfor friction-free, non-contamination and non-lubricant actuator which make the approach suitable for long lifetime missions.					
	In this activit shall be desig switches (Ka selected.	y waveguide micro ned, manufactured -band downlink fo	wave me and test r two d	chanical switches ba ed. As a proof of con ifferent application	used on flexible pivot acept, two waveguide concepts ) shall be	
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Breadboard					
Current TRL:	2	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	30	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	High Power F 2021.	Redundancy switch	es (SAR,	Scatterometers, KA	T, etc). TRL 5 by	



### 3.5.5.2. TD07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques

Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD5 - End-to-End RF &amp; Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing</i>				
Tech. Domain	07 - Electroi	nagnetic Technolog	gies and T	<i>Techniques</i>	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-042E	F		Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Large cent	er-fed deployable	e reflecto	or for small satel	lite
<b>Objectives:</b>	The objective reflector ante	e of this activity is to enna for small satel	o design a lite.	nd develop a large co	enter fed deployable
Description:	Space applications such as Earth Observation, Science and Navigation are more and more based on small satellite platforms of typically 1 m^3 volume. In order to save on-board power resources that are inherently limited due to the platform size, and consequently relax requirements on the active amplification stage in transmission or reception, there is a need to have large aperture based passive antennas. This very often results into a difficult accommodation exercise since the relatively large aperture antenna need to installed on small platforms. This exercise is in general concluded by the need to have the aperture antennas to be deployed in-orbit.				
	In this activity, it is proposed to design and develop a large center fed reflector with very low stowage ratio. It is proposed as baseline that the antenna shall be able to operate in any frequency band from L to Ka-band, and its radiating aperture shall range from 10 to 20 m <sup>2</sup> .				
	A mission scenario shall be identified and selected and the associated antenna requirements shall be derived.				
	Several reflector antenna concepts shall be investigated and traded off. The selected concept of large reflector antenna shall then be designed and analyzed in detail.				
Dalivarables	The reflector antenna shall be manufactured and tested. The testing campaign shall include as minimum a reflector surface accuracy measurement, a demonstration of the antenna deployment repeatability, and a RF test (absolute gain, pattern) of the antenna.				
Denverables:	Dieauboaru				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Radar/radio Science. TRI	meter applications .5 by 2020.	for vario	us missions like Ear	rth Observation or

**Applicable THAG Roadmap:** Reflector Antennas (2016).



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD5 - J for Navigation, Communication	End-to-End RF & Optical Syst on and Remote Sensing	ems and Products		
Tech. Domain	07 - Electromagnetic Technolo	gies and Techniques			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-043EF	Budget (k€):	300		
Title:	Antenna Measurement Acquisition	Methods for Phase-les	s Gain Pattern		
Objectives:	Key objective of this activity is field-to-far-field transforma electromagnetic field magnitud	s the development of a softwa tion method, solely re le (i.e. scalar) information.	re based on a near- quiring measured		
<b>Description:</b>	Accurate antenna gain measur a precise knowledge of the a magnetic near-field over a cer- high costs for correspondingly space applications, this will accuracy, as especially for su determination over the entire relative movement of measure antenna measurement. In this activity, a softwar transformation shall be develo less transformation methods a sub-millimeter wave applicati package shall be developed and application. The targeted improvements of • reduction of antenna r • increase of the maxim measurements by a face	<ul> <li>electromagnetic field magnitude (i.e. scalar) information.</li> <li>Accurate antenna gain measurements based on near-field data currently require a precise knowledge of the amplitude as well as the phase of the electric or magnetic near-field over a certain measurement sampling grid. This results in high costs for correspondingly suited RF measurement equipment. For upcoming space applications, this will significantly limit the achievable measurement accuracy, as especially for sub-millimeter wave antennas, an accurate phase determination over the entire sampling grid is not possible due to the necessary relative movement of measurement probes and attached waveguides during the antenna measurement.</li> <li>In this activity, a software based on phase-less near-field-to far-field transformation shall be developed. In a first step, the state-of-the-art of phase-less transformation methods shall be investigated and a method best suited for sub-millimeter wave applications shall be justified. A corresponding software package shall be developed and presented demonstrating a sample measurement application.</li> <li>The targeted improvements of this activity are the following:     <ul> <li>reduction of antenna measurement equipment costs by a factor of 5,</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Software				
Current TRL:	2 Target TRL:	4 <b>Duration</b> (months):	24		
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Sub-millimeter wave antenn antenna measurements. TRL 4	a measurements, low-cost a 4 by 2020.	and low-complexity		



Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD5 - End-to-End RF &amp; Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing</i>
Tech. Domain	07 - Electromagnetic Technologies and Techniques
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT17-044EF Budget (k€):</b> 300
Title:	Fast Diagnostic Methods for Large-Scale Full-Satellite Antenna Measurements
<b>Objectives:</b>	The key objective of this activity is the development of a software based on fast source reconstruction for full-satellite antenna measurement diagnostics.
<b>Description</b> :	Modern space satellites show an increased density of instruments and equipment with a variety of different materials and hence various electromagnetic properties. Whereas the single instruments can usually be well-characterized in the design phase, the complex electromagnetic environment on platform level can usually not be entirely characterized. The trend towards increased frequency sub- millimeter wave instruments further complicates the accurate modelling of the antenna platform. When anomalies during final antenna measurements on spacecraft level occur, it is hence not possible to identify unintended scattering or coupling effects out of the measurement data with reasonable computational demands and in limited time. As these problems usually occur in late project phases close to the proposed launch date of the respective space mission, very fast diagnostic methods are required.
	In this activity, a fast source reconstruction method for very large-scale electromagnetic problems, i.e. sub-millimeter wave full-satellite platform analysis, shall be investigated, developed and software-implemented. Out of measured far-field as well was near-field data, equivalent sources like electric or magnetic surface currents shall be computed, which shall help identifying sources of anomalies at final spacecraft antenna measurements. Although asymptotic assumptions can be considered for sub-millimeter modelling of parts of the spacecraft platform, the method shall capture near-field coupling effects where unneglectable. The software shall be demonstrated with a real large-scale measurement example.
	<ul> <li>Targeted improvements:</li> <li>reduction of full spacecraft computation time by factor 100,</li> <li>increase of maximum transformation frequency on platform level by a factor of 10,</li> <li>evaluation of such large-scale electromagnetic field transformation on single workstations with a maximum memory demand of 150C Bute PAM</li> </ul>
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Software
Current TRL:	2 Target TRL: 4 Duration 24 (months):
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Full-spacecraft and full-wave high-accuracy RF diagnostics, fast radiation source reconstruction for RF anomaly detection, sub-millimetre wave instrument RF diagnostics. TRL 4 by 2020.



### 3.5.5.3. TD16 - Optics

Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD5 - End-to-End RF &amp; Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing</i>					
Tech. Domain	16 - Optics					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-045N	1M		Budget (k€):	500	
Title:	Optomech	anical mounts for	large le	enses		
Objectives:	Develop and optimize in Europe the methods to mount large optical lenses and elements requiring high accuracy and thermo-mechanical stability. The peculiarity of mechanical mounts of lenses for space is to achieve the mechanical robustness while keeping low contamination and stress on the glass when the optical systems are exposed to temperature variation, vibrations and shocks					
Description:	The technology for the mounting of optical components has become more challenging in the past years due to the more stringent requirements for positioning accuracy and long-term stability. In addition, requirements or cleanliness limit standard mounting techniques used on commercial optics based on adhesives. Space missions that are becoming more and more demanding tend to use larger refractive elements, such as lenses and gratings. Furthermore, the materials used in the UV or infrared wavelength spectrum have poor mechanical properties, and are susceptible to plastic deformation.					
	<ul> <li>The following tasks shall be performed:</li> <li>design and development of mounts for large lens, e.g. 200 mm diameter,</li> <li>breadboarding activities of at least two mounting concepts to cover UV and infrared applications,</li> <li>perform thermal-vacuum and vibration tests of the breadboards,</li> <li>perform optical tests as stability of the wave front, polarization, birefringence, stress measurement at the interface between the optical element of the mount.</li> </ul>					
Deliverables:	<ul> <li>The lessons learnt of the activity will be used for the definition of the methodology for mounting large refractive elements for space.</li> <li>The methodology will cover: <ul> <li>description and design files,</li> <li>manufacturing process and procedures,</li> <li>recommendations and guidelines.</li> </ul> </li> <li>Report on the Optical Mount Methodology that covers: description and design, and an an</li></ul>					
	tiles, manufa test results.	acturing process and	procedu	res, recommendation	is and guidelines,	
<b>Current TRL</b> :	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24	
Target Application/	Any optical s	system using refracti	ve eleme	nts. TRL 6 by mid-20	019.	

Timeframe:



Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD5 - End-to-End RF &amp; Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing</i>					
Tech. Domain	16 - Optics					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-046M	М		Budget (k€):	500	
Title:	Diffractive o	optical elements	for metu	rology		
Objectives:	This activity a Elements (DC free form opti	ims to develop and DEs) to simplify th cal systems.	l optimize e alignme	technologies using D nts and calibration o	iffractive Optical f a spherical and	
Description:	Recent progree Elements (DC greatly simpli symmetric ele designers from that are costly can be used for achieve high spectrometers	ess in the design ar DEs) allows the ma fy the AIV of inno- ements, as free for n the necessity to p v and with long del or any optical system accuracy alignments.	nd manufa nipulation vative opt m mirror urchase C ivery time m. Furthe nt of mu	acturing of complex D a of a laser beam. The ical designs based on s. The technology car omputer Generated H e. Differently from the rmore, this method ca ltiple instruments, as	iffractive Optical e use of DOE can non-rotationally n free the optical olograms (CGH), e CGH, the DOEs m also be used to s telescopes and	
	The benefit of the optical metrology using DOEs is the miniaturization of setup, the possibility to work at sub aperture. Finally, DOEs can also be more inside of flight optical instruments to verify alignment of the optical elements launch and during operations.					
	<ul> <li>The activity will target two applications:</li> <li>Shearing interferometry to check the collimation or focusing of an opt beam using diffractive elements,</li> <li>modulation of the wavefront to check the co registration, the alignment pointing accuracy between several telescopes or spectrometers.</li> </ul>					
	<ul> <li>The following tasks will be carried out within the project:</li> <li>design of a Diffractive Optical Element and its optimization to generate shearing effect in collimation or focusing mode,</li> <li>manufacturing, assembly and test of the DOE. The DOE will be tested or conventional telescope to assess the quality and the reliability of measuring system,</li> <li>test of the DOE to align the line of sight of multiple imaging systems telescopes or spectrometers.</li> </ul>					
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard					
<b>Current TRL:</b>	4	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	24	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Any complex o Payloads requ 2020.	optical systems usi uiring very accura	ng non-ro te alignm	tationally symmetric ent of optical instrur	optical elements. nents. TRL 5 by	



## 1.1.1.1 TD17 - Optoelectronics

Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD5 - End-to-End RF &amp; Optical Systems and Products for Navigation, Communication and Remote Sensing</i>					
Tech. Domain	17 - Optoelee	ctronics				
Ref. Number:	GT17-047N	IM		Budget (k€):	600	
Title:	Versatile la frequency	aser terminal for a dissemination	metrolo	ogy, communicat	ion and time and	
Objectives:	<ul> <li>This activity shall pave the way to extend the capabilities of laser communication terminals to:</li> <li>time and frequency dissemination,</li> <li>laser ranging.</li> <li>The possible impact on the communication link performance shall be assessed.</li> </ul>					
Description:	<ul> <li>laser ranging.</li> <li>The possible impact on the communication link performance shall be assessed.</li> <li>To develop two building blocks, one for ranging and one for time and frequency (T&amp;F) dissemination that can be added to an existing optical communication terminal with a minimum of changes. These building blocks shall be implemented into a proof-of-concept demonstrator. In addition to the communication link, the ranging capability shall be used to improve knowledge of the orbital trajectory of the spacecraft, while the T&amp;F dissemination shall allow for accurate synchronization of the on board clocks.</li> <li>The sequence of implementation shall be:</li> <li>Implementation of time and frequency (T&amp;F) transfer, which requires a modulation scheme (RF signal at 12 GHz was proposed) to the existing optical communication link. Within the current implementation of optical inter-satellite links (EDRS), T&amp;F transfer will provide high-accurate time synchronization of timestamps generated on board of the two spacecraft. An engineering model shall be built to demonstrate the T&amp;F transfer and to assess its impact on the communication performance.</li> <li>Once a common time base is established between two optically interlinked spacecraft to improve orbital parameters and shall also be applicable for a bi-directional links from space to ground. An engineering model of the ranging building block shall be developed to demonstrate its accuracy and to assess its impact on the communication performance.</li> <li>The contractor shall design the ranging and T/F building blocks in collaboration</li> </ul>					
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering	Model				
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	24	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 8 by 20	21.				

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Optical Communication for Space (2012).



## 3.5.6. CD6 - Life / Physical Science Payloads / Life Support / Robotics and Automation

## 3.5.6.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD6 - Life / Physical Science Payloads / Life Support / Robotics and Automation			
Tech. Domain	01 - Onboard Data Systems			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT17-048ED Budget (k€):</b> 200			
Title:	Independent verification of new Synthesizable VHDL IP Cores for space			
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to offer the possibility to the European Industry that could have a special interest in using one or more of the existing ESA VHDL IP Cores (e.g. Space Fibre, CCSDS Lossless Image Compression, DSP fixed and floating point, SpW Node etc.,), and have them perform an independent validation of the quality of the source code and documentation The ESA IP Cores Service has been facilitating the re-use of many IP Cores (e.g. LEON, CAN, SpaceWire, Telecomand decoder, Telemetry encoder, EDAC, etc.) since 2002, and European space industry has re-used hundreds of times these valuable ASIC and FPGA building blocks, in particular inside Data Handling and Control systems of payloads and platforms.			
<b>Description</b> :	<ul> <li>payloads and platforms.</li> <li>After selection of one or more of the existing new ESA IP Cores on which the independent validation will be performed, the following tasks will be carried out: <ul> <li>assessment of quality and completeness of the documentation (IP user manual, IP specification), and improvement if gaps, errors are found,</li> <li>source code inspection, analysis, behavioral simulation,</li> <li>for several technologies (FPGA, ASIC) to be agreed with contractor based on ESA's interests and contractor access to FPGA and ASIC Design Kits: <ul> <li>gate synthesis,</li> <li>gate simulation,</li> <li>timing analysis,</li> <li>power consumption analysis,</li> <li>area / resources occupation analysis,</li> </ul> </li> <li>instantiation in FPGA technology to validate through hardware test the correct functionality and expected performance,</li> <li>improvement and correction of source code, as errors or weaknesses can be found,</li> <li>improving and expanding as needed the simulation test bench environment (more test cases to approach 100% functional and fault test coverage) to be provided to IP users to run their own independent validation of the IP, and to</li> </ul> </li> </ul>			
Deliverables:	Validated IP Cores (VHDL code, test bench environment, documentation), validation reports (multi-technology analysis, simulation, synthesis, tests).			
<b>Current TRL</b> :	4 Target TRL: 5 Duration 12 (months):			
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Scientific instruments / Rovers. TRL 5 by 2019.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Microelectronics: ASIC & FPGA (2016).



# 3.5.7. CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles

## 3.5.7.1. TD18 - Aerothermodynamics

Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles</i>			
Tech. Domain	18 - Aerothermodynamics			
Ref. Number:	<b>GT17-049MP Budget (k€):</b> 3,600			
Title:	Enabling Technologies for Advanced Orbital Transfer Capabilities			
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to systematically assess by means of dedicated breadboards, the main technologies needed to validate advanced Orbital Transfer Capabilities for the transfer of satellites from low Earth orbit (LEO) to geostationary Earth orbit (GEO) and return to LEO.			
Description:	Mission scenarios involving orbital transfer are many, from space transportation to exploration. The present study focusses on technologies needed for a reusable vehicle for orbital transfer technologies of e.g. communication satellites, from LEO to GEO and return to LEO. In order to optimize the economic benefits of such a system, a reusable orbital transfer vehicle could be realized adopting an air-breathing electric propulsion, i.e. an electric propulsion system in which the lifetime is considerably extended by adding propellant, capturing the molecules from the atmosphere at the front of the spacecraft, compressed them with an appropriate intake and feed them into the engine.			
	Further, in the way back from GEO to LEO, the excess of delta V of the OTV can be adjusted taking advantage of the Earth atmosphere by means of braking manoeuvres either aero-assisted (by means of deployable or inflatable systems) or using retro-propulsion. In all the cases a re-usable Thermal Protection System will be required.			
	<ul> <li>The purpose of the activity is many-fold: <ul> <li>to provide with first evidences of a long life serving possibility on LEO-GEO-LEO missions, via the transfer vehicle with an air-breathing electric propulsion,</li> <li>to demonstrate the feasibility of performing aero-braking manoeuvre by asymmetrical deployment of a retractable TPS membrane, or inflatable devices,</li> <li>To demonstrate the feasibility of drag modulation by hypersonic/supersonic retro-rocket deceleration.</li> </ul> </li> <li>The proposed activity aims to demonstrate: (The realization of a reusable OTV by means of a breadboard of the air-breathing electric propulsion system, optimized in a ground facility. The design will be a result of dedicated engineering models</li> </ul>			
	and algorithms to address the insertion methods and operation of the spacecraft throughout its lifetime. Optimization of the on-board propellant and altitude/orbital changes as result of a trade-off between the assisted braking devices, the associated TPS, and the propulsion system, will be carried out. The modelling will also account for external perturbations like electrical power drop during the orbit raising, e.g. eclipses, and will also account for internal perturbations like momentum wheel imbalances, etc.			



	The realizat	ion of aero-braking r	nanoeuv	res using asymmet	rical deployment of a
	retractable	TPS membrane or	inflatabl	le device. For bot	ch cases, breadboard
	systems wil	Il be developed and	dynami	cally tested in gro	ound facilities under
	conditions s	similar to those encou	intered d	luring flight. Trans-	ient effects during the
	deployment	t/inflation, as well as	s potent	ial flow impingem	ent on body/payload
	will be studi	ied. Limitations on th	e applic:	ability of aero-brak	ing manoeuvring due
	to CG disp	lacement will be det	ermined	l. Lifetime of the	deployable/inflatable
	membrane	and thermal protection	on agein	g capability will be	assessed.
	The realizat	of braking mano-	euvres us	sing hypersonic/su	personic retro-rocket
	deceleration	n. A breadboard sys-	tem will	be developed and	d tested in a ground
	facility to	analyze if superson	nic retro	o propulsion can	provide significant
	deceleration	n benefits, at the exp	ense of t	the fuel required to	o generate the thrust.
	The investi	gation will discuss a	lso the	propulsive-aerodyn	namic interaction, to
	determine t	he flight implications	s of empl	loying such system	
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard e	elements will be develog	oed for ev	ery one of the object	ives of the activity. The
	breadboards	will be tested on groun	d in repre	esentative environme	nt;
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/	Space trans	portation, exploratio	n. TRL 6	by 2020.	

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Fluid Mechanic & Aerothermodynamic Tools (2012).



### 3.5.7.2. TD19 - Propulsion

Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD7 - Propulsion, Space Transportation and Re-entry Vehicles</i>			
Tech. Domain	19 - Propulsion			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT17-050MP Budget (k€):</b> 700			
Title:	Development and performance demonstration of a high specific impulse propulsion system for micro/nano/cubesat class spacecraft.			
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to identify candidate thruster technology from existing developments. Once the technology is selected, the objective will be to develop a sun-beam to ion-beam system specification and unit level specifications compatible with cubesat requirements and constraints, and to develop to an EM standard for characterization.			
	High specific impulse EP (Isp > 1000s) is enabling for micro/nano/cubesat class of spacecraft. A number of miniaturized thruster concepts exist ranging from TRL3 to TRL5. In some instances prototype power conditioning and flow control systems also exist for specific applications, e.g. NGGM, but these are incompatible with the requirements and constraints imposed by the micro/nano/cubesat class of spacecraft.			
Description:	<ul> <li>of spacecraft.</li> <li>For the purposes of this activity the sun-beam to ion-beam system shall be comprised of: <ul> <li>thruster and Neutralizer,</li> <li>power conversion and control,</li> <li>propellant storage and management,</li> <li>cabling and any necessary pipework.</li> </ul> </li> <li>The following tasks are foreseen in the frame of this activity: <ul> <li>mission analyses and requirements derivation.</li> </ul> </li> <li>development of system and unit level specifications. These shall be developed collaboratively between propulsion system specialists and a system integrator with practical experience in the integration of cubesat systems. A system requirements review will be held to finalize specifications and once completed the design and development of the system will commence.</li> <li>detailed design of the system elements. Prototypes, structural thermal models and components shall be manufactured and tested as necessary to de-risk final designs, and validate design/performance models. A complete EM standard system shall be manufactured and tested to characterise coupled system performance, validate performance models and initial lifetime analysis. The latter shall be achieved via an endurance test of the thruster and propellant system of at least 3000hrs duration. This shall conclude with a system CDR.</li> </ul>			
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Engineering Model			
<b>Current TRL:</b>	4 Target TRL: 6 Juration 24 (months): 24			
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Electric Propulsion systems. TRL 6 by 2020.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Electric Propulsion Technologies (2009).



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD7 - 1 Vehicles	Propulsion, Space Transportatic	on and Re-entry
Tech. Domain	19 - Propulsion		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-051MP	Budget (k€):	2,500
Title:	High Temperature thruste	r engine chambers	
Objectives:	The objective of the activity is generation of in-space chemica	to identify and mature technol Il propulsion combustion chamb	ogies for the next ers
Description:	Current in-space engines are p material. Many are historically not optimized for the higher in- performance. Those that are no expensive commodity metals a options are from export control issues. Previous efforts to adva- been tied to specific engine des by the industrial entities. This objectively validated option. In for programmatic reasons and In recent years there has been new candidate materials are ceramic formulations. These m materials and ablatives. Nor regenerative or radiation cooli propulsion; such as heat sink should also be assessed in the fi would require ancillary technon joining methods; surface treatr the associated production tech activity. The overall plan for this activit of the candidate materials at promising candidates into o representative, production and produce the highest fidelity co- identified early and addressed project. Failure to do this in th the industrialization issues v necessary ancillary technologi sufficient level to similarly min justified catalogue of candida maturity that they are ready European chemical propellant final aspect would be to identi spin out materials that have f example erosion resistant cerar and other non-space domains. The tasks to be done in the fram • survey candidate materials • test large field at sample le • test best candidates at char	erformance limited by their com y derived from the gas turbine i space engine temperatures requi- ot derived from the gas turbine in and have a history of cost volat led countries and raise Europear nce the material options for engi- igns and have typically been an a selection was based on availabili- n most cases the material failed the technology was left uncompl- an improvement in the product emerging such as high entropy naterials would include both cer- n-traditional cooling strategies ng) that could be reasonably add materials or external augmente- rame of this activity. Many of these logies to enable their application nents for erosion resistance; imp- miques, would also be necessari y is to conduct an in depth surve- sample level, downselect and chamber battleships, for testi- d test conditions. It is imperativo onditions. Shortcomings in the r fully at this level before applica- te context of a general material st vill jeopardize the application. The sensed to be identified and d imize the application risks. This va- te combustion chamber material for implementation into the n thrusters with a high degree o fy and provide the development open assessed over the course co- mics could have applications in e- me of this activity are the followi s, design approaches and process vel (torch testing), mber level.	nbustion chamber ndustries and are ired for maximum dustry tend to use ility. Many of the non-dependence ine evolution have pproach preferred ity, rather than an to reach maturity eted. ion processes and y alloys and new amic and metallic (alternatives to opted for in-space d cooling systems se exotic materials ns. Topics such as roved cooling and ily covered in this ey and assessment develop the most ng under highly we that these tests naterials must be ation to a specific udy and deferring . In parallel the emonstrated at a will result in a well rials of sufficient ext generation of f confidence. The planning for any of the activity, for ess,

#### **Deliverables:** Prototype demonstration of the chamber is a relevant environment



Current TRL:2Target TRL:6	Duration 36 (months):	
---------------------------	-----------------------	--

Target Application/ Next generation of chemical propulsion engines. TRL 6 by 2021. Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Chemical Propulsion - Components (2012).


Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD7 - Pi Vehicles</i>	ropulsion, Space Transportat	ion and Re-entry
Tech. Domain	19 - Propulsion		
Ref. Number:	GT17-052MP	Budget (k€):	2,500
Title:	Building blocks for enhance	ed apogee and RCS engine	S
Objectives:	The objective of the activity is blocks for the next generation of	to identify and develop the t European chemical propulsion	echnology building on engines.
Description:	Apart from advanced combust chemical engines will require propulsion systems are facing e present challenge, however th fundamental overhaul of the en of the REACh propellant option monopropellant replacement is been developed beyond TRL 4, n candidates suffer significant bipropellants. One major eleme systems. These systems need to low number of firing cycles asso number of cycles required of the not exist yet. The goal of this activity is to dev chambers that will be needed f activity will capture all the rele the green space and cost re-ev- sector. The objective l is to advance a co of engines: components, design uptake of the technologies for th include the obvious items such include items such as low cost valves, lower thrust and lower c constellations, and alternative gr combinations. The means to achieve this wo technologies and to develop the European industry. The proposed activity includes t generate an agreed prioritiz develop and demonstrate t lower the risk of implements.	ion chamber materials, the a suite of new technologies. xisting and emerging challen e regulatory challenge of R tire chemical propulsion sectors are not well understood. fairly mature. No bipropella nost are at lower levels. Many limitations when compare ent, for example, is the need f function in a vacuum and to ciated with the apogee engine e reaction control thrusters. The relop the components other the for the next generation of in- vant technology strands that aluations currently underway llection of building blocks for approaches and processes. The e next generation of in space of as such as the afore mention injectors, new catalysts, low ost apogee engines for smalle reen bi-propellants to replace to uld be to identify and prior individual items de-risking the he following tasks : ed building block list, he high priority elements to ation for industry, alogue incorporating all the ous.	next generation of Current chemical ges. Cost is an ever EACh threatens a or in Europe. Many Only one potential nt candidates have of the bi-propellant d to the current for reliable ignition do so, for both the es and the very high his technology does nan the combustion space engines. The are emerging from y in the propulsion the next generation nese will enable the engines. This would ned igniter but also y cost flow control r satellites used for the current storable itize the emerging e technology for the a relevant level to elements and their
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Processes validation. Breadboard demonstration in a	laboratory environment.	
Current TRL:	2 <b>Target TRL:</b>	4 <b>Duration</b> (months):	36



Target<br/>Application/Next generation of chemical propulsion engines. TRL 4 by 2021.Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Chemical Propulsion - Green Propulsion (2012).



# 3.5.8. CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations

# 3.5.8.1. TD08 - System Design & Verification

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD8 -	Ground Data Systems / Mission C	perations
Tech. Domain	08 - System Design & Verifica	tion	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-053SW	Budget (k€):	1,500
Title:	<b>RATIO-SIM Rationalizatio</b>	n of Simulators	
Objectives:	The objective of this activi development, integration, val smooth process covering the co- well as cross-missions buildir and quality while reducing commercial viability. The acti- blocks that are beneficial to joi standards (e.g. SMP E-40-07) (SSRA/REFA) and process mo- simulators targeted in this act domain specific ones (thermal	ty is to rationalize the Europ idation and execution support to omplete project life cycle and allow g blocks exchange, improve over cost and development time ar vity should select those compone ntly develop and or maintain. Ado as well as definition of a Referen del (ETM-10-21) are relevant elem ivity are the System level Simular power etc.).	bean simulators bools to enable a ring cross-tool as rall functionality and increase the nts or buildings ption of relevant nce Architecture ents. The type of tor tools not the
Description:	The ECSS-TM-10-21 System I the different types of System le is required today to support f licensing, maintenance and tra Current Simulation infrastruct is not first choice, time to look such software infrastructure is Commercial tools (e.g. Mathwo implementation specific which compatibility, availability and the space domain. There exists on European lev simulator configurations defir and exchange. Also an agreed system level tools doesn't exist For the different workflow phat terms of methods and tools ba later analysis. The SMP (Simulation Modelin while level 2 will be worked on mandates, impose nor guara reference architecture is required components or building blocks With next generation of simula based on state-of-the art techn By identifying the most appro- among the stakeholders the effi- overall costs will be reduced. preventive (increasing mainta- adaptive (modifying to cope w	Modelling and Simulation (ETM- evel Simulator tools. No single tool ull life-cycle, with associated incr- ining. ures are more than 10 years old, s into future. Long term maintenan difficult. ork) are often vendor depended (ven does not always guarantee long support (upward version) specific el no (conceptual) data model to itions and settings to allow data l simulator reference architectur- as mentioned in ETM10-21. ses, it is the Archiving phase that I ased on standards to enable re-us ng Platform) is currently standar in near future. This standard enal ntees successful model re-use a tired to guide scoping and select to be developed. tor(s) new added value features ca ology. priate rationalisation/re-use level ort of maintaining the common bu . Not only for the corrective (fix inability or reliability) maintenan- vith changes in environment) and	10-21) describes but a tool chain rease in cost for some technology nee (>5 years) of endor lock-in) or term backward cally considering o capture all the interoperability e for all type of acks the most in e, exchange and dized for level 1 oles but does not nd exchange. A tion of possible an be introduced l and by sharing ilding blocks the cing errors) and nce but also for perfective (new



By using the same components or building blocks the interfaces by definition are standardized and allow for extension of third party entities or vendors. The aim is to improve overall functionality and quality while reducing cost and development time and increase the commercial viability.

This activity aims at preparing an agreed approach with stakeholders and outlining a development plan and high level requirements. It should address as a minimum the related process, reference architecture and attractive technologies to be considered. The type of simulators targeted in this activity are the System level Simulator tools as defined in the ETM-10-21.

More specifically the FES (Functional Engineering Simulator), SVF (Software Validation Facility), AIVS (Assembly Integration & Verification Simulator) and TOMS (Training, Operations and Maintenance Simulator). The SCS (System Concept Simulator) and MPS (Mission Performance Simulator) are out of scope for the moment. Models and modelling methods are also not to be considered. Different workflow phases are to be considered: Preparation, Execution, Post-

processing and Archiving. Each phase could have specific tooling.

From the ETM-10-21 generic architecture the following first-cut components can be identified:

- Database
- Facility M&C
- Generic Infrastructure Control
  - Test Procedure Executor
  - OBSW debug
  - Visualisation
- Simulation Infrastructure
  - Simulation Engine executing models
  - OBC Emulator
- Front-Ends Equipment/SCOE
- Mission Control System
- Archive/Information repository

Depending on the targeted scope, a possible solution could be to select one existing implementation and improve it, to select different implementations, merge and improve it or develop a new implementation. Note that existing implementations could either be proprietary or COTS products. One specific, obvious aspect to be considered is the inclusion of the EGS-CC building block, currently under development, for the monitoring and control functionality. This is a collaborative proposal between TEC-SWG, OPS-G and SCI-OP.

The proposed activity includes the following tasks:

- Analysis of current Simulation Infrastructure.
- Survey / Selection of technologies.
- Reference Architecture.
- Reusability analysis (e.g. potential reusability of EGS-CC building blocks foer M&C).
- Selected Building Blocks Design & Implementation.
- Prototype.

**Deliverables:** Software

<b>Current TRL:</b>	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	All missions	s. This is a European	strategi	c initiative. TRL 7 by 2020.	

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Not related to the Harmonisation subject.



# 3.5.8.2. TD09 - Mission Operation and Ground Data Systems

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD8 - Gr	ound Data Systems / Mission	Operations
Tech. Domain	<i>09 - Mission Operation and Grou</i>	Ind Data Systems	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-054GI	Budget (k€):	500
Title:	GEMCAV: Generic Monitoria TC including Audio and Vide	ng and Control system for o	high rate TM /
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to based generic multi-mission n acquisition, distribution and proc rates. The incoming and outgoing levels of storage, distribution and	b define and deploy a pre-oper nonitoring and control syste ressing of very high incoming a data may be heterogeneous an processing.	rational EGS-CC em enabling the and outgoing data ad require distinct
<b>Description:</b>	<ul> <li>levels of storage, distribution and The future EGS-CC based MCS performance for the various stag Telemetry data can for example b Mbps) but the full data processing rate (up to 0.5 Mbps), two order EGS-CC guaranteed performance the need of processing high data in one day and received via the p short times.</li> <li>The required analysis encompass</li> <li>reception, routing, storage an at high-rates (including audio</li> <li>high-level design of an optim analysis of playback data bas performance of 3 Mbps (correc of HK TM generated at 120 completion shall be considered</li> <li>generation, multiplexing and from heterogeneous sources,</li> <li>ability to achieve a seamless of the (unmodified) EGS-CC,</li> <li>automatic generation of repor- outputs of the playback data</li> </ul>	processing. infrastructure will support d ges of the data reception and p e received at a relatively high d g is expected to take place at a s rs of magnitude smaller. This e levels may not necessarily be volumes (e.g. all data generate playback datastream in a visib es the: nd distribution of heterogeneo p/video transfers), nised processing engine enabli- ed on fast processing data tec sponding to the capability of p kbps) within 30 minutes fol ed, I release of high rate outgoing integration of the high-rate me ports and corresponding alerts processing following a visibilit	lifferent levels of processing chain. lata rate (up to 50 ignificantly lower difference in the e compatible with ed by a spacecraft ility pass) within us data incoming ng the quick look hniques. A target rocessing one day llowing downlink g data originating odules on the top summarising the
	<ul> <li>support infrastructure of infrastructure (e.g. raw data such to enable an efficient amounts of data required by</li> </ul>	EGS-CC based mission archive, file archive, engineer and performing managemen future missions.	y pass, control support ing data archive) t of the massive
	<ul> <li>This activity will include among of support of 'application S/W f</li> <li>support of modern storage ar</li> <li>support of powerful and effic</li> <li>support of efficient (as administration capabilities.</li> </ul>	others: ree' data layer, nd retrieval technologies, ient data back-up and restore of far as possible automated)	capabilities, ) data archives
	<ul><li>The proposed activity includes th</li><li>conceptual Specification and</li><li>high level design,</li></ul>	e following tasks: architecture,	



an operational prototype to be deployed on top of EGS-CC based MCS to demonstrate the capability to process high incoming and outgoing data rates.
 Deliverables: Software
 Current TRL: 3 Target TRL: 6 Duration (months): 12

TargetApplication/TRL 7 by 2020.Timeframe:



			esa
Domain	Generic Technologies - CD8 - Gi	round Data Systems / Mission C	perations
Tech. Domain	09 - Mission Operation and Gro	und Data Systems	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-055GI	Budget (k€):	500
Title:	GOSADD (GrOund StAtion collection, archiving, int preparation for post process	Data Discovery) - Ground egration, correlation, dis sing	l Station data tribution and
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is t Ground Station systems data distribution and preparation ena	o develop a pre-operational sys collection, archiving, integrati bling data analytics.	tem to allow the ion, correlation,
Description:	Every ESTRACK Ground Static receivers, High Power Amplifie Tracking, Telemetry & Comma Delta-Differential One-way Ra Station, etc.). Each subsystem pr stored in different distributed fil hardware and servers. Some da access for the monitoring and co is scattered and accessed eith performing a very limited Grou technologies allow to improve decision quality and the optimization	on is composed by ca. 15-20 S c, Frequency Converters, Front and processor, Frequency and f inge Correlator, Station Com oduces daily an important amou ing systems (i.e. databases, files) ta is categorized and arranged ntrol of the Ground Station. The ner locally and remotely. ESC and Station data post processin the forecasting of events, the ation of mitigation risks for Oper	Subsystems (e.g. End Controller, Timing systems, puter, Weather int of data that is across different to allow its easy e rest of the data OC is currently g. New big data improvement of rations.
	The first step to achieve these g archiving, integration, correla processing. It is becoming imperative to ana post processing analytics to anti	bals is to guarantee a systematic tion, distribution and prepar lyze the variety of Ground Statio cipate the potential future syste	e data collection, ration for post on data to allow a ems behavior. In
	<ul> <li>order to perform this, the data has</li> <li>collected from several types quality, reliability and weath</li> <li>archived at the Ground Stainfrastructure or a private Gabstributed, to the ESOC Contime, file based),</li> <li>integrated and stored at ESOC basis of structured, unstainnotation, cleansing, transfactore correlated with data general Dynamics Systems</li> </ul>	as to be: of data sources, including enginer er conditions data, ation, into distributed database round Station Cloud), ontrol Centre via different mean OC, by categorizing and arranging ructured and semi-unstructure formation, preservation, segrega ted by the different Mission Co	neering, logging, es (e.g. physical as (e.g. near real g the data on the ured data (e.g. tion), ontrol and Flight
	<ul> <li>The activity shall consist of the fe</li> <li>perform the system-level and of Use Cases, volume of data including a wide range of se generated and processed),</li> <li>determine the content and the products at each stage of the required historical data and the produce the pre-operational processing chain by:</li> </ul>	ollowing tasks: alysis of the required capabilitie , variety of data from all Ground ources and formats, speed at w he format of all data structures a acquisition and processing chain its correlation requirements, l prototype of the end-to-end	s (e.g. definition Station systems which the data is nd of processing n, identifying the acquisition and



- defining the architectural design of the end-to-end system. This activity shall make use, to the possible extent, of existing OPS-G infrastructure products (i.e. LMS -Lightweight Monitoring System-, GFTS -Generic File Transfer System-, EDDS -EGOS Data Disposition System-, ARES -Alarm reporting System-, etc.),
- develop/assemble the complete end-to-end acquisition and processing chain,
- perform the full validation process, based on the data of one sample mission,
- produce the complete set of Test Reports, which will include a catalogue containing samples of each processing product.

One of the most important use cases to address is the Spacelink communications link performance monitoring and analysis. In order to allow the analysis of TT&C link margin values and planning of proper data rates during mission phases, it is required to monitor the performances of the space link during operations. To this end, a set of data processing elements is required, which provide: configuration, performance and weather conditions data collection from the ground stations and from other elements of the ground segment (on-board parameters from mission control system, orbit information from Flight Dynamics System, navigation data etc.).

**Deliverables:** Software

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	12
m					

Target Application/ TRL 8 by 2020. Timeframe:



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations				
Tech. Domain	09 - Mission Operation and Ground Data Systems				
Ref. Number:	GT17-056GI	Bud	lget (k€):	900	
Title:	C2SoS: Monitoring constellations of satell	and Control of lites and complex n	System etwork of	of Systems Ground Statio	for ons
Objectives:	The objective of this active infrastructure to allow a monitoring and control of network of Ground Station	ity is to enhance the fu radical simplification large 'systems of system's).	unctionality n (i.e. addi ems' (e.g. co	of the new ESA tional layers) o nstellations, con	M&C of the nplex
Description:	<ul> <li>The EGS-CC has been dessupport monitoring and compositions of controll provide the functional simplification of the mon 'systems of systems' (e.g. Description</li> <li>When executing operation to be given to the followin</li> <li>Layering of supervisis monitor a large numinformation in a properation of the followin</li> <li>Layering of supervision Model and the constellation Model and the constellation Material and the constellation for the following of the constellation for the constellation of the constellation for the constellation</li></ul>	signed in order to be a control of basic sy ed systems. The EG layer which is nec itoring and control ta constellations, comple ns of a 'system of syste g aspects: on and monitoring ta mber of systems by erly aggregated manned del. nagement. nd Stations Manageme hive and post-processi rations cycle (from pla e ability to effectively n order to achieve a fu xecution, whereby the elated to the manager product. E.g.: edule and Status. und Segment Infrastru- maly / Alarm Manage ations artefacts (such ations attefacts (such ations attefacts (such ations attefacts (such ations attefacts (such ations attefacts (such ations attefacts (such attes) among the indiv as an optimal use of t as an optimal use of t as a Service (e-SaaS) cture as a Service (e-Ia	scalable in the stems as we as CC doesn to sessary to the sessary to the sks for oper exact network of the ems' appropriates, enabling presser. E.g. : The ent. The second	ooth directions i yell as the com of thowever nation introduce a ra- ators responsible f ground station riate attention r g a few operator ented with relean onent. The execution of ed monitoring of only presented ution of any require toring and Contra- initions, proceed ms belonging to lation). The seamless addition necessary scala- ng resources. The -CC based 'Systemetric instance of the systemetric contract of the sy	tion), of the of
	The tasks to be done in th - conceptual specification - high-level design,	e frame of this activity on,	v are the follo	owing:	



- an operational prototype (beta version) of the 'System of systems operations service' layer to be deployed on the top of one or more EGS-CC based applications supporting the monitoring and control of the individual controlled systems.

<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype
----------------------	-----------

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	12
--------------	---	-------------	---	-----------------------	----

TargetTo be used by future Earth Observation / Science / Navigation (i.e. Galileo nextApplication/Generation) constellations, large formation flying, and large network of ground<br/>stations. TRL 7 by 2020.



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD8 - Grou	und Data Systems / Mission (	Operations
Tech. Domain	09 - Mission Operation and Groun	nd Data Systems	
Ref. Number:	GT17-057GI	Budget (k€):	800
Title:	C2LOCO Generic MCS / EGSE	for smallsats and low cos	t operations
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to pr ESA Monitoring and Control infrast monitoring and control of differ cubesats, smallsats, recurrent OPS	ovide an end-to-end solution tructure enabling a radical sim ent types of small satellites SATs, EO low cost missions, e	based on the new pplification of the s (e.g. nanosats, etc.).
<b>Description</b> :	Low Cost Operations can only be a way which enables a radically diff principles are expected to be applie ground segment, in particular the development, integration and vali and powerful platform to develop specific controlled system. The dev system is expected to be minimus spacecraft) complies to the releva customize and validate EGS-CC bas small and low budget missions. T material and/or example reference adaptation.	cchieved if the overall mission ferent approach to be adopted d across the board, including to e elements which attract the dation costs. The EGS-CC pr full monitoring and control a velopment effort to provide a m if the controlled system ( nt standards. However, the sed solutions can be seen as pr he availability of sufficient h missions will contribute to th	a is designed in a ed. The low cost the space and the majority of the rovides a generic applications for a n EGS-CC based in particular the effort to deploy, ohibitive for very lelp and training e acceptance and
	<ul> <li>The main objective of this activity i enabling the adoption of EGS-CC missions which are prepared to sa mission return in favour of a red operate the full mission.</li> <li>Possible ideas / approaches to be e</li> <li>'Installation free' Operations S are provided with Internet base the necessary M&amp;C access to team is not at all involved in the and operation of the mission necessary inputs, such as the format/standard. This approa which do not have a critical ma have EGSE product lines.</li> <li>'Shared M&amp;C systems', wherel EGS-CC based system inst software). This is considered as many low cost missions all mate. End-to-end File based Distributions between the controvia discrete data units such as the same system instance i deployed) and used across all m phases. This could be achieved commanding and reception recoperation could be executed in a mate in the same system instance.</li> </ul>	s therefore to identify the pos- based solutions for low bud acrifice aspects such as the re- uction in the budgetary need applied are (non-exhaustive le- gervices, whereby the mission ed access to an EGS-CC based of the controlled system. The o- e design, development, deploy control system but rather o M&C data definitions accord ch could be very attractive f ass of missions to manage in p by a low cost mission is 'adde- tance through configuration of the most promising approach naged within the same organi- ributed Operations Services obling and the controlled system files. This approach would a s set-up (customized, confi- nission preparation, validation ed by leveraging on the EGS poutes, whereby exactly the s the pre- and post-launch phase	sible approaches get missions i.e. eliability and the ds to set-up and ist): a / test operators system providing perations or test /ment, validation nly provides the ing to an agreed for organizations barallel or do not ed' to an existing (n/tailoring (no h e.g. to deal with zation. s', whereby the m only take place llow that exactly igured, tailored, n and operational G-CC concepts of ame (file based) ses by interfacing



The tasks to be done in the frame of this activity are the following: Analysis and tailoring of EGSE / MCS requirements for smallsats and low cost operations.

- Identification of EGSE / MCS building blocks and design architecture for smallsats and low cost operations.
- Build prototype of a system EGSE / MCS for a selected smallsat demonstrating its capability and the required low cost operations.

**Deliverables:** Software

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	12
current rite.	0	Tanget TAL.	0	(months):	1/

Target

**Application**/ All future EGSE. MCS for smallsats and low cost operations. TRL 7 by 2020. **Timeframe:** 



# 3.5.8.3. TD12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations				
Tech. Domain	12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks				
Ref. Number:	<b>GT17-058GS Budget (k€):</b> 1,000				
Title:	Water cooled 2-10kW X-Band Solid State Power Amplifier (SSPA)				
Objectives:	<ul> <li>The objectives of this activities are:</li> <li>to design a modular water cooled X-Band SSPA based on high efficiency semiconductor technology,</li> <li>to manufacture and test a prototype able to deliver 2kW output power,</li> <li>to design an X-Band SSPA able to deliver 10kW output power.</li> </ul>				
Description:	Presently in ESA Deep Space Antennas X-Band uplink capability is achieved by different power amplifiers: Solid State Power Amplifiers (400W), Low Power Amplifiers (2kW) and High Power Amplifiers (20kW). X-Band Low Power Amplifiers (X-LPA) and X-Band High Power Amplifiers (X-HPA) are Klystron amplifiers while the X-Band Solid State Power Amplifiers (X-SSPA) are amplifiers based on solid state GaAs technology. Both X-LPAs and X-SSPAs are air cooled while X-HPAs are water cooled (deionized water).				
	In order to improve the reliability of the present 2kW LPAs, limited by the use of klystron technology (single point of failure) and cooling system based on a powerful air turbine, a new 2kW amplifier shall be developed based on a combination of solid state amplifiers modules, e.g. in GaN or GaAs technology, providing higher power efficiency and reliability, cooled with a water system (more efficient than air cooling). This machine will have a graceful degradation (output power) in case of failure based on the modular design.				
	Water cooling has the following advantages over air cooling: higher cooling efficiency (especially at high altitude station sites), less noisy, reduced size of the overall amplifier and better frequency stability (Allan deviation).				
	The development of the new 2kW amplifier will allow reduction in running costs being both the present 400W SSPA and 2kW LPA replaced by only the new 2kW SSPA.				
	It is intended to further extend in the future the output power range up to 10kW, thus the preliminary design of the 10kW amplifier will also be performed in the frame of this activity.				
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype				
Current TRL:	3 Target TRL: 5 Duration 24 (months):				
Target Application/ Timeframe:	2019. Deep Space Antennas.				



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations					
Tech. Domain	12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks					
Ref. Number:	GT17-059	GS		Budget (k€):	600	
Title:	Enhanced condition	antenna servo co s	ntroller	performance und	ler high wind	
Objectives: Description:	Due to the l wind condi- performance The activity • select a compro- • conside The best suf- Feedback T best control and the rel behavior in expected th Numerical a the newly p data (servo partially ava conditions of As part of th by applying real antenna	arge diameter of the itions (above 50 km e. aims at improvement servo control algoritoring insing the controller or suitable metrology itable antenna servo heory (QFT). The me ller (e.g. PI, PID, LQC evant boundary con- vestigated in an ear at with QFT, this stal models (Matlab/Simp proposed control algoritories / mo ailable to enhance the using additional senses he activity, the predict the new concept to a requires the impler controller software/1	main refl n/h) deg at in 2 doi thm best robustne to includ controller ethod pre G, etc.) co ditions. S lier study oility issu ulink) of t orithms a tor torqu e servo co ors (metr cted perfo an ESA o nentation hardware	ector of ESAs deep s grade distinctly the mains: suited for wind gus ess, e the wind effect in the shall be selected usi sents a toolbox, which nsidering the dynam Servo controllers wi y revealed severe st es can be successfull he antenna system w and metrology. Furth e, etc. versus wind s ontroller performance ology).	pace antenna, high antenna pointing at rejection without he servo controller. ng the Quantitative ch helps to find the nics of the structure th promising wind ability issues. It is y tackled. will be used to study hermore, empirical peed / direction) is ce under high wind mts shall be verified This testing with a sed algorithms into	
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard	l				
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Improved p to 100 km/]	ointing of ESA deep h) conditions. TRL 6	space ant by 2019.	ennas at Ka-band du	ıring high wind (up	

F



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD8 - Ground Data Systems / Mission Operations				
Tech. Domain	12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks				
Ref. Number:	GT17-060G	S		Budget (k€):	3,400
Title: Objectives: Description:	Automated The objective step to be in Cooperative achieve the n fully auto laser rando day and n hand-oved develope follow-ord (note that system for This activity Ranging Statt which is currate approach to an night as well The overall at interwoven b High Pul pulse end (space de Laser Satt to meet r Photon-ord time-gate visible sp Automatt a fully au Real-time (500 K€)	Laser Ranging f of this activity is the mplemented on the Targets (planned to ext level of capability omated operation we ging to known nor- night, er from passive d under GSTP) of a laser tracking at least this capability is or the laser-based re- is a substantial of ion for Cooperative rently under IPC a nove towards rangi- as to fully automated ctivity to arrive at the uilding blocks: lese Energy Laser Targey laser transmitted bris), Tety Sub-system (500 egulatory eye-safet ounting, time-gate ed ranging detector feet anging detector feet ange, ed Laser Ranging S tomated Laser Ran- e Orbit Determina : development of a	or Uncoo he addition he first I be opera- ty that en- ithout any n-cooperati- survey ol un-know east in the a necessar emoval of apability Targets (t pproval). ing to non ed operati- he desireco transmitter ter for rar 00 K€): de y and air t d ranging for 1064 tation Cor ging Stati- tion Algor real-time,	perative Targets nal technology devel aser Ranging Stat ational before end o compasses the follow y operator interventi- tive (space debris) of bservations (e.g. T n non-cooperative to most congested 800 ry first step towards ~10cm objects). upgrade of the pro- o be developed in the It is the second ste -cooperative targets on. I functionality consis- er (1,200 K€): deven aging to non-cooper velopment of a laser raffic requirements, detector (700 K€): nm wavelength, i.e. htrol System (500 Ke on Control and Echo ithm for Handover first order orbit dete	opment as the next ion Prototype for f 2019) in order to ving: on, bjects during both Cestbed Telescope targets of <1m for D-km altitude band a potential future ototype of a Laser previous first step p in the step-wise during both day & sts of the following lopment of a high ative space objects protection system development of a infrared instead of €): development of p Processing, and to Laser Tracking ermination to allow
	telescope	e) to Laser Tracking			
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype			Duration	
<b>Current TRL</b> :	4	Target TRL:	7	(months):	20
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 7 by 202	21.			



					esa	
Domain	Generic Tec	hnologies - CD8 - Gr	ound D	ata Systems / Mission	Operations	
Tech. Domain	12 - Ground	Station Systems and	d Netwo	orks		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-061G	S		Budget (k€):	500	
Title:	Low Cost <b>F</b>	ointing Calibration	on Syst	em for Antennas		
Objectives:	The objectiv system for diameter.	e of this activity is th use primarily at 26	e develo GHz fo	opment of a low cost po or antenna in the rang	inting calibration ge of 6-35 meter	
	Besides a sir cost radiom noise tempe	nple software to con eter breadboard sha rature between 8 - 3	trol the ll be de 2 GHz.	antenna and drive the veloped, suitable to me	radiometer, a low easure the system	
Description:	Antenna po antenna sys total power SCI (8 GHz,	inting calibration sy tem. The core of the radiometer covering 26 GHz, 32 GHz).	stem ar propos 8 - 32 (	e currently tailored fo ed system consists of a GHz. This will include i	r each individual generic low cost EO (26 GHz) and	
	The software part consists of a basic software to control the radiometer and the antenna control unit of different types/manufacturers. The software shall simplify the collecting of pointing data required for the subsequent generation of the pointing error model. It is assumed that already available software packages are used for the evaluation of the data.					
	The overall system shall be mobile and shall be of plug-and-play type. No down- converter is required as the interface is directly after the LNA.					
	The softwar class antenn	e shall have a librar as.	y with r	adio stars/ planets sui	table also for 6m	
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Breadboard					
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Calibration	of pointing for anten	nas ope	rating at 8/26/32 GHz.	TRL 6 by 2020.	



# 3.5.9. CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions

# 3.5.9.1. TD08 - System Design & Verification

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions				
Tech. Domain	08 - System Design & Verifie	cation			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-062GE	Budget (k€):	1,300		
Title:	ADGE - Advanced Digital	Ground Segment Engineering	<b>f</b>		
Objectives:	The objective is to develop a that provides the capabilitie centric operations and science	digital framework for ground engir to enable missions to migrate t te ground segment engineering app	eering processes o a fully model- roach.		
Description:	Currently ground segment engineering applied in the operations a ground segments is a largely document-centric process. This approa information being distributed in a large number of documents, often and inconsistent. It is rather cumbersome to retrieve the informat mission operations and science ground segment engineering becom complex with each mission, moving the engineering processes from a centric to a model-centric system engineering approach, is a necess improve efficiency and robustness of the process.				
	The Paperless E2E Ground technology baseline for d engineering. On the science Infrastructure (SOCCI) prov system engineering. These p ground segment engineering engineering approach to a engineering data repository/ segment engineering model operations centres. On the b data import, model manipula be developed. They will allo paper-less execution of s requirements generation & t Where possible, existing engineeric generic interface to access th are pursued between the tech ADGE activity in order to en space segment engineering.	Segment Engineering TRP study igital, model-based operations g side, the Science Operations Confi ides a single, highly customizable recursor activities define an initial processes away from the current model-centric one that revolves a model. ADGE will develop a unifie concept for the mission operati asis of this model, tools and applic tion and model data export/ model w real-time collaborative engineer ystem development activities su raceability, test automation, and ge ineering tools shall be re-used and he engineering model. It is envisag mologies across the Digital Model H sure the capability to exchange model	is establishing a ground segment guration Control platform for E2E concept to move document-based round a central d generic ground ons and science ations for model exploitation will ing and efficient ich as reviews, eneral validation. provided with a ed that synergies Iub initiative and dels also with the		
	<ul> <li>Phase 1: The main concertasks are to:         <ul> <li>assess the achievement gaps,</li> <li>define use cases and</li> <li>assess the technolog an engineering and e</li> <li>produce a digital fraengineering,</li> <li>define the models, commission specific element</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	ptual and development phase (900 ents under the precursor TRP activ the associated requirements, baseline, prototype and Lessons Lo nd-user perspective, mework for operations and science nsidering the layering between gene ents,	) K€, 12 months) ities and identify earned both from ground segment eric elements and		



	<ul> <li>integrate engineering tools and implement new tools where necessary.</li> <li>Phase 2: The Use Case Demonstration Phase (400 K€,4 months) tasks are to:         <ul> <li>demonstrate the framework, possibly as a shadow engineering environment,</li> <li>provide recommendation for the further integration of model-centric engineering.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>					
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Software	-				
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18	
Target	Applicable t	o all future ground a	ormont	anging aning appahili	itian TDL 6 by 2020	

**Application**/ Applicable to all future ground segment engineering capabilities. TRL 6 by 2020 **Timeframe:** 



	esa
Domain	Generic Technologies - CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions
Tech. Domain	08 - System Design & Verification
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT17-063SW Budget (k€):</b> 1,900
Title:	Information Systems & Ontologies & Semantic modelling for Semantic Interoperability
Objectives:	Develop a key methodology and tool to solve the problem of sharing and exchanging digital information between partners (customers and suppliers) in a space system project, where the partners use different tools, and where the tools handle similar, in principle map-able information, in different representations The goal is to finalize a rigorous knowledge representation formalism that is founded on formal logic and called Object Role Modeling (ORM), as a semantic model of concepts that precisely capture the information to be shared and exchanged. A secondary objective is to assess how the ORM methodology can be integrated with, and leverage the use of, the mainstream semantic web technology (such as the Resource Description Framework (RDF), or the Web Ontology Language (OWL)), including automated reasoning.
Description:	Reliable and efficient exchange of knowledge between all partners participating in a space system project over the whole lifecycle has always been a critical issue, for ESA, industry and national agencies. With more than 120 standards, ECSS is a major enabler in facilitating the communications between all partners but this is not sufficient. Digital information/knowledge still does not flow seamlessly between customers and suppliers and this causes inefficiencies, information loss and error-prone manual rework. Today know-how is supported by many software systems and information systems/data repositories. Knowledge is everywhere but knowledge exchange, true sharing and reuse of information is far from optimal. This results in major problems when developing and operating 'large systems' implying a waste of resources, additional risks and delays, and therefore very significant cost increases. The major cause for this is the inadequate way in which information and knowledge is modelled. Decades of academic research - related to fact based modelling (FBM), ontology definition languages, common / formal logic as well as controlled natural languages - have permitted to develop information modelling methodologies enabling capturing the semantics of the information, i.e. capturing all stakeholders' knowledge representation needs at the 'what?' level without committing to a particular 'how?' a solution might be implemented. This is a prerequisite for reaching semantic interoperability. In the context of the FAMOUS TRP activity, the Agency has played an important role to capture worldwide academic expertise into a methodology that can be used to develop new or adapt existing information systems, ensuring their semantic interoperability. In the frame of this activity, the demonstration has been made on how powerful transformation engines can (semi-)automatically generate solutions based on different information modelling technologies: e.g. object- oriented, relational, hierarchical networks, data serialization formats suc



modelling tools and automated reasoners are available as COTS and Open Source software tools. A smart combination of the Fact Based Modelling methodology and semantic web technology has the potential to unite the more academic Fact Based Modelling approaches with mainstream semantic web technologies that are known to and used by a much wider community of practice. The activity consists of the following tasks: complete the FAMOUS methodology specification, extending the currently existing conceptual data modelling specification to encompass all means to model at global level in order to achieve the stated goal of semantic interoperability, complete the mapping to RDF/OWL and develop conceptual models reasoners to assist and facilitate the verification of produced models, specify and develop means to transform conceptual information models into logical and physical data models to facilitate the production of software applications, specify and develop means to reverse engineer existing solutions (implemented at logical or physical data model level) in order to construct conceptual information models that can be integrated to the global model, i.e. realizing semantic interoperability, verify the adequacy of the new specifications by prototyping (i.e. adapting existing tools/prototypes), formulate alternative development strategies for the realization of the FAMOUS tool, taking into account re-use of existing FBM tools/modules, new development, re-use of / integration with RDF(S)/OWL frameworks, and perform a trade study to select a preferred strategy, develop a version one of the FAMOUS tool that supports conceptual modelling at local and global level, verify and validate the FAMOUS methodology and tool through use of representative test cases. This activity aims at implementing the first version of a tool supporting the ECSS-E-TM-10-23 Space System Data Repository. Addressing the knowledge at semantic level ensures persistency of that knowledge within and across projects and independency of any implementation technology that by nature is not long term stable. Using formal logic representation, the captured knowledge can be used to automate the development of products i.e. reducing in a long term their development and maintenance cost. **Deliverables:** Enhanced specification of the FAMOUS methodology, System and software specification of the associated FAMOUS software, Space system representative test cases specifications, development and evaluation reports including prototype demonstrators. First version of the FAMOUS software with associated documentation. Duration **Current TRL:** 3 30 **Target TRL:** 6 (months):

TargetApplication/All ESA missions. TRL 6 by 2020.Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: System Data Repository (2014).



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions					
Tech. Domain	08 - System Design & Verification					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-064GE	Budget (k€):	1,500			
Title:	E2E Reference Environme	nt for Space Missions (ERE	S)			
Objectives:	The objective of this activity is to develop an E2E Reference Environment, spanning across the different segments of a Space Mission, for E2E demonstration and validation of capabilities required to meet present and future mission objectives.					
<b>Description</b> :	<ul> <li>End-to-end (E2E) demonstratipresent and future mission utilization for this purpose of ediscipline level within each seg</li> <li>replication of validation components,</li> <li>late identification of sub-specific later in the mission limited capability for E2E concepts and standards prior</li> </ul>	on and validation of capabilities objectives is critical for miss environments confined to segme ment entails a number of shortc efforts and different matu ystem and system level problem ifecycle, validation and demonstration c or to mission adoption.	s required to meet ion success. The nt level or even at omings like: urity for system s, increased IV&V f innovation, new			
	The end result is often increase resistance and longer lead tim mentioned shortcomings it representative environment, sp far as possible, which enab activities in an efficient and effi	ed risk and cost for space mission e to innovation. In order to ov is necessary to move towa panning across space segments les E2E integration, validatio ective manner.	ns, but also higher ercome the above rds a reference, and disciplines as n, demonstration			
	This activity will develop an (ERES), including space, miss which elements of existing loo blocks, specifically from the E Ground Segment Reference Environment. ERES will be op the future to enable new cap stakeholders and support collal presence space. Aspects of sec suitably managed. Due to its co parallel activities etc. the mana- trivial challenges. The activity system that will act as its co situational awareness and con demonstrated on or more straw	E2E Reference Environment for ion operations and science segre- cal environments can be taken STEC Avionics Test bench (ATI Facility (GSRF), the ESAG been and scalable, in order to be a pabilities. It shall be remotely poration at the maximum extent, urity, privacy and other legal co- mplexity, distribution, multiple a gement and control of this enviro will therefore also include the pontrol centre, providing contin- trol capability. The results of the v man missions.	or Space Missions nents initially, for as input building 3), the ESOC E2E C/SOC Reference able to extend it in accessible by all ideally in a virtual onstraints shall be and remote access, onment poses non- development of a uous and shared e activity shall be			
	<ul> <li>For Phase 1 (1000 KEuro),</li> <li>detailed system require</li> <li>development of the system and monitoring and co</li> <li>definition of straw maring</li> <li>implementation and do</li> <li>demonstration.</li> </ul>	the tasks are the following: ements specification, stem architecture, including coll ntrol capabilities, n mission(s) and demonstration eployment at the different ESA S	aboration support scenarios, iites,			



• For Phase 2 (500 KEuro), the task is the development of ERES monitoring and control system and advanced collaboration capabilities.

**Deliverables:** Study report, reference environment and demonstrator.

<b>Current TRL:</b>	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
---------------------	---	-------------	---	-----------------------	----

Target Application/ Timeframe: All missions will benefit from this development. It will provide the capability to assess, validate and demonstrate E2E new concepts, standards, applications, to perform E2E test campaigns on main stream developments, and consequently support innovation, standards adoption, IV&V efficiency and effectiveness for software intensive domains, ultimately reduction of risks and costs for missions. TRL 6 by end 2019.



				esa
Domain	Generic Technologies - CD	9 - Digital Eng	gineering for Space	Missions
Tech. Domain	08 - System Design & Veril	fication		
Ref. Number:	GT17-065GE		Budget (k€):	1,000
Title:	SSE4Space - Secure Sys	tems Engine	eering for Space M	Aissions
Objectives:	The aim of this activity is engineering technology bui framework of methodologie	to consolidat lding blocks a es and tools for	e and expand exist nd create a Secure S r unclassified space	ing secure systems ystems Engineering missions.
Description:	ESA has invested in recent by providing a Secure Soft tools that help developers a proposal moves the concept security engineering metho Today, there is no generi processes for space mission of systems that are vulner Agency assets. The European community I Engineering Standard which at Mission System level an has been developing a m building blocks, with the p systems engineering as defi implement the secure syste way and thus allowing se SSE4Space will consolidate easy to use Secure Systems data. This framework will s processes as defined by the a set of connected software The tools will support the er possible to allow for efficien A low-complexity security SSE4Space activity will developments towards di information into the engine The tasks to be done in the review of existing techno identification of techno consolidation of the framework of methodo specification and imple demonstration of the fr	years to impro- ware Enginee ind technical of one level up to dologies and t is approach to asystems. This able and ultin has invested in has an expand to and effective certification of also prepare gital enginee has a prepare gital engin	ove the security of the ring standard along fficers to implement of the system enginee ools are equally imp o support secure as a leads to the produce mately the risk to 1 in the development of t Secure Systems Engine ciently and effective ndard. The tools have g processes in an effective ndard. The tools have g processes in an effective ndard. The tools have g processes in an effective ndard and effective ndard. The tools have g processes in an effective ndard and tools have g processes in an effective not be used with a methose er-security related s are framework of metho er-security related s are implementation of concept and toolset for a future inter ring, tying the se activity are the follow tents and secure engine mal gaps, mology component re tools, and support a certification conceptive real mission to be pro-	he software systems g with a number of t it. The SSE4Space ring domain, where ortant. system engineering ction and operation ose or damage the f a Secure Software gineering is applied . So far the Agency heering technology ely enabling secure we been designed to ficient and effective and dologies, tools, and ystems engineering accessible through m engineers. d patterns wherever 'security processes. will be developed. egration with the curity engineering ving: ineering standards, s into an overall ting data, pt and tool, re-selected,
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Software		<b>_</b>	
<b>Current TRL:</b>	4 Target TR	L: 6	Duration (months):	18



Target<br/>Application/Applicable to all ESA systems. TRL 6 by 2020.Timeframe:



	(Cesa				
Domain	Generic Technologies - CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions				
Tech. Domain	08 - System Design & Verification				
Ref. Number:	<b>GT17-0660S Budget (k€):</b> 1,900				
Title:	Data Analytics for multiple Space Applications (DASA)				
<b>Objectives</b> :	The objective of this activity is to design and implement Data Analytics applications for specific space problems and assess the impact of using those applications. Recommend further exploitation of data analytics in suitable space domains.				
Description:	Data Analytics is the science of examining raw data with the purpose of drawing conclusions about that information, to enhance productivity and business and to support smart decision making. Data analytics develop very quickly in a wide range of applications.				
	European space industry and space mission operations have a big potential to benefit respectively in their competitiveness and in the (scientific) return by better exploiting their large set of data. Operational assessment of precursor space related data analytics activities is very promising.				
	<ul> <li>Significant added value can be created from extraction of useful information out of big data stores and data streams, supporting knowledge building and decision making for space Industry, National Agencies and ESA. Target space processes that can benefit from data analytics and machine learning include:</li> <li>space strategies decision making,</li> <li>space scenarios assessment,</li> <li>spacecraft &amp; components design,</li> <li>spacecraft assembly, integration and testing,</li> <li>spacecraft and ground operations,</li> <li>risk assessment.</li> </ul>				
	Available data repositories for such applications include satellite/module design and test data, operations data (spacecraft, mission control system, ground stations, flight dynamics, navigations), earth observation data and crew data.				
	<ul> <li>DASA targets the implementation and validation of a suite of data analytics applications for space. Examples are:</li> <li>image analysis and knowledge extraction, to enhance the classification and identification of feature of interests (automatic discarding of cloudy pictures, automatic recognition of solar events precursor, rover image/sensors in-situ processing for opportunistic science),</li> <li>time series analysis applied to knowledge extraction, model behavior to make prediction of spacecraft performance and sensors, anomaly root cause identification, early detection and prevention of security issues (e.g. space cyber security),</li> <li>decision making in design (e.g. which component is most suitable for a</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>accession making in design (e.g. which component is most suitable for a specific mission), in testing (which tests are more effective and how to optimize the test plan), in operations (optimal allocation of resources, optimization of science return data, mitigation of operational risks),</li> <li>enhanced monitoring, early anomaly detection, support to diagnostics, from preventive maintenance to predictive, dynamic assessment of probability of failure/reliability, availability and maintainability characteristics,</li> </ul>				



• data visualization, by performing synthesis of data into information to have full awareness of complex system status.

Many technical challenges typical of data analytics, in order to implement features outlined above include:

- how to efficiently use deep learning, random forests, support vector machines for time-series and images analysis,
- how to effectively perform knowledge extraction and dependency analysis for a variety of applications,
- how to visualize and present extracted information and knowledge from data in an effective way for decision makers,
- how to optimize the contribution of data analytics in mission design, mission operations and quality.
  - For Phase 1, the tasks are the following:
    - analysis and classification of initial suite of use cases; assessment and selection of suitable data analytics technology,
    - selection of use cases for phase 1, with higher level of readiness (mature requirements, availability of use case data and identified suitable technology),
    - parallel iterative prototyping, validation and assessment,
    - parallel development of final applications for the selected use cases; evaluation of impact of implemented applications, and lessons learnt.
- For Phase 2, the tasks are:
  - lessons learnt from phase 1 applied to refinement/update of additional use cases (now ready to be implemented),
  - iterative implementation, validation,
  - evaluation of impact of implemented applications,
  - final assessment and recommendation of future adoptions.

Adoption of data analytics in sectorial space areas: e.g. earth observation, science and exploration, operations, space situation awareness, etc. Spin-off of data analytics space applications.

**Deliverables:** Software

Current TRL: 4 Target TRL: 7 Duration (months):	24
---	----

TargetApplication/All ESA and industry participating. TRL 7 by 2019.Timeframe:



# 3.5.9.2. TD09 - Mission Operation and Ground Data Systems

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions					
Tech. Domain	09 - Mission Operation and Ground Data Systems					
Ref. Number:	GT17-067GI	Budget (k€):	3,500			
Title:	FASSADE - Federation of Access to spacecraft Data	<sup>•</sup> Assets supporting the Stor for Engineering analysis	age, Search and			
<b>Objectives:</b>	<ul> <li>The objectives of this activity</li> <li>federate and preserve all</li> <li>payload / user data (a</li> <li>S/C design lifecycle d</li> <li>operations/housekee planning / execution, data.</li> <li>Enable easy access and industry, public): <ul> <li>end users: enable openew data products an</li> <li>industry / Agencies: industry / agenc</li></ul></li></ul>	are: space related data assets (commo- e.g. Earth Observation, Science), ata, ping, ground segment data (f flight dynamics) including in-orl max. exploitation of data as en portal solutions and complex d services, mprove quality in design, develo- ital engineering, manage risk an creased level of autonomous op liability, enable data analytics ( edge).	on approach): telemetry, mission oit failure/anomaly ssets (institutions, processing, enable opment, modelling, d margins, erations, increase (across-system and			
Description:	Currently, the storage, retu generated by space missions i individual projects, organisat scattered through many disco any analysis across projects, sufficiently exploited to targe many cases, engineering data retrieved.	rieval and post-processing of relies on proprietary solutions w ions and data source. This mean nnected archives and databases, organizations or systems, mean t improvements in existing and is only captured in documents a	engineering data hich are specific of is data is generally which discourages ing the data is not future missions. In nd cannot be easily			
	This engineering data contain number of characteristics lik failure modes and mechanis mission environments and degradation by life time and u means systematically exploite be used by the development missions in their decision n mission planning or anomaly data analytics methods, the generate a body of knowledge	is inherently highly valuable info te achieved performance and re- ms, compatibility of technologi d specific operations, obser- usage profile. This data is current ed to provide an information re- teams of future spacecraft or op- naking on design concepts, tech recovery. Thanks to the application stakeholders can extract value for from historical events.	prmation on a large eliability, observed es or designs with ved performance thy rarely and by no pository that could perators of current mology selections, on of new advanced rom this data and			
	The added value is to allow ear generated by different or communities are all the Eur involved in the analysis an throughout the various phase Provide stakeholders with a p • omparing and aggregatin • producing a high level rep	asy distributed access to historic ganisations and projects. The opean industrial, research and d post-processing of engineerin s of a given mission as well as by ractical decision-support tool by g non-homogeneous data, presentation of complex results,	al engineering data e envisaged user institutional teams ng data generated previous missions. :			



- identifying patterns and dependencies for new anomalies detection,
- predicting trends and preventing recurrences of failures,
- promote knowledge information sharing between experts of different disciplines.

The main functions of the FASSADE system are:

- secure the storage of and the access to engineering data in the long term (i.e. preservation), up to decades after the end of the mission, along with sufficient metadata enabling their unambiguous interpretation,
- federate geographically distributed archives through a single service interface point,
- search and navigate the available catalogue information at a high abstraction level,
- provide basic post-processing/visualisation capabilities of the retrieved data.

Several technical challenges typical of big data / cloud based systems are to be faced in order to implement the features outlined above, e.g.:

- characterise and define the engineering data at semantic level so that they can be interpreted and post-processed without an a-priori specialist knowledge,
- store any relevant context information which is necessary in order to properly assess the engineering data (e.g. environmental conditions, events/operations history),
- federate potentially heterogeneous archives to act as a single source of data,
- ensure adequate performance in the searching of data matching a given set of criteria,
- ensure scalability of the storage capacity and the ability to manage the huge amount of data in the long term (decades),
- ensure inter-operable access to and dissemination of data stored using heterogeneous technologies,
- achieve an adequate level of data segregation and ensure secure and controlled access to the historical data without endangering integrity and confidentiality,
- ensure scalable and real-time processing to permit optimal visualization of large stored data-sets or live-stream data,
- design appropriate interface points that can allow post-processing applications to access the available data in a convenient and performing way.

The tasks for Phase 1 (1 Meuro, 9 months) are:

- analysis of relevant existing solutions,
- conceptual definition, use cases definition,
- technology analysis,
- inter-operability standards analysis, data model definition,
- high-level technical specification and architectural concept,
- proof of concept prototyping.

The tasks for Phase 2 (15 months, 2.5 Meuro) are:

- development of a pre-operational system based on FASSADE Building Blocks,
- tailoring and Population of a mission pilot sample archive at ESA and Prime different sites, including selected historical engineering / payload data,
- final demonstration.

This activity will prepare the path for an operational development and deployment of a FASSADE based federation of data archives.



<b>Deliverables:</b>	Software				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	7	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	All ESA and I	Primes sites Archive	s partici	pating in the Federat	ion. TRL 8 by 2021.
<b>Applicable THAG Roadmap:</b> Functional Verification and Mission Operations Systems (2014).					



#### 3.5.9.3. TD26 - Others

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD9 - Di	gital Engineering for Space Mi	issions
Tech. Domain	26 - Others		
Ref. Number:	GT17-068EO	Budget (k€):	1,000
Title:	Microservices to Applicatio (MAGIC)	ons - a Generic Interdom	ain Composer
Objectives:	Develop and implement a methor of complex applications by allow creation of new processing micro	dology and related tools to simp ring composition of existing pro oservices, and interactive analys	lify the definition ocessing services, sis.
Description:	As many processing platforms encomputation by invoking a proces with a standalone application, to perform final presentation step paradigm is sometimes suppor difficulty of composing a comple multiple, interdomain distribu- interactive analyses) are currentle lacking is the possibility to in customise different processing Architectures (SOA) and cloud (SaaS) have made available initiat this task. Nevertheless, they have enable the above described we limitations (poor scalability and resource management, etc.). The most recent technology devi- and cloud computing, namely showing potential to solve decomposition of functions into functions, enabling scalability resources. The MAGIC project sl to provide a domain-independent the composition of processing set • a notation to specify the we applications, including a set catalogue of processing setvit • a simple way (e.g. containeriz- provide new microservices a new, on-demand services, • a workflow execution engine different computing infrastr machines) and control the e interactive steps, if required, • an Application Manager ca- computing cluster, sharing to lightweight virtualization to • an open repository of micro- transformers, data converte among the users for reuse.	nerge, it becomes common to pessing service on a platform, anathen send it to another process on the downloaded output ted by modern processing plex processing chain out of seruted platforms (incl. running on the shoulder of the user. We nteractively compose process tasks. Past and current S paradigms like e.g. the Softwal building blocks and pilot environent led to an end-to-end so orkflow, due to technical and lost effectiveness, security is elopments in the fields of software conservices architecture and these issues, promoting an independent blocks that perfer and dynamic provisioning on the and platform-independent grivices and interactive application of executable programs) has building blocks of the work e that is able to instantiate new uctures (e.g. cloud environment xecution of the workflow service area in the workflow service of the workflow service for the workflow service of the workflow service for the workflow service for the workflow service and the cluster resources between the minimize platform overhead, services (like e.g. downloaders rs, interactive applications) the services and interactive applications of the workflow service area to run and manage a the cluster resources between the minimize platform overhead, services (like e.g. downloaders rs, interactive applications) the services applications of the work applications of the work applications in the service applications is the service of the work applications of the workflow service applications of the workflow service applications is the service applications of the workflow service applications applic	erform part of the dysing the output ssing service and t. This workflow atforms, but the vices running on ng intermediate /hat is commonly sing, merge and Service Oriented ware-as-a-Service ronments to ease lution that could d administrative sues, demanding ware architecture d containers, are even stronger orm very specific of underlying IT such technologies generic model for ons, including: s and interactive e and enrich the by which user can flow, exposed as microservices on nts but also local ces, including the pplications on a he users and use at can be shared



The tasks are the following:

- state-of-the-art technology survey (with gap analysis) and analysis of requirements and needs, including selection of real applications that will be demonstrated with the proposed approach of composition of (micro)services and interactive applications,
- design of the workflow notation, possibly reusing and extending existing notations,
- design of a platform-independent workflow execution engine, featuring a modular and open source architecture,
- development of needed software components and integration onto selected infrastructures,
- validation and demonstration on identified use cases in multiple domains (Earth Observation, Space Science, Operations).

**Deliverables:** Prototype

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 5 by 2019	9.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions			
Tech. Domain	26 - Others			
Ref. Number:	GT17-069EO	Budget (k€):	700	
Title:	BlockChain for Space Ac	tivities (BC4SA)		
Objectives:	The aim is to develop and pr and traceable exploitation of capitalizing the emerging Blo	rototype a set of new technologies of data from space related activit ockChain technology.	to enable secured ies, adapting and	
Description:	The growing availability of I missions such as the Sentinel to further develop the marke involvement of new commun own domain knowledge, and discover, and process the rig data. This aspect has bee development of tools based of	arge volumes of data, in particula s, Euclid, Galileo, etc., represents a t of space related information. At hities represents a huge challenge a having specific community langu ght information from the large vo en partially addressed in the p on semantic knowledge and ontolo	ar from upcoming huge opportunity the same time, the as new users (with age) cannot easily lumes of available past through the gy.	
	Nevertheless, one of the main commercial and private d exploitation environments, moving them. It is therefore r is done in a secured manner time, data and correspondin technological approaches are and information gaps, that tailored and secured informat ensure traceability of the capabilities for both end-us sector.	n issues still open is related to the a atasets, combined with the av- where data can be processed a required to apply methods to enforce to avoid any leakage of sensible g metadata shall be verifiable. In e critically needed to overcome the prevent from effectively connec- ation, permitting to meet their spe- data. The new technology sha ers and data providers, in partic	wailability of huge ailability of data remotely, without that this process data. At the same this context, new technical barriers ting end-users to crific needs and to all empower new ular from private	
	This project aims at desi (originally developed for cry (like e.g. in EO and SCI); such of data, in particular from transfer of space applications technology will be used to gu of practitioners (farmers) will space (by S-2 and Vegetation provide an economic value (lit The idea of the activity is to	gning and developing a Block( ptography and virtual money) for a a technology shall ensure full tracea commercial and private sources, s to the marketplace. As an examp arantee 'smart & light contracts' an to share an asset (land) that can b on), and a third party (banking i end money) to the community.	Chain Technology space applications ibility and security hence supporting le, the BlockChain nong a community e monitored from ndustry) that can	
	space (of land parcel) and dia can enable new type of tra farmers). The concept illus community (fishers, build (infrastructures, buildings, v be monitored from space w (e.g. insurance industry, dev to ultimately create new type of space data, digital techno shall be demonstrated on a s	gital certification through the Block nsactions (e.g. bank landing mid strated in this example can be ers, wetland managers), and vater bodies, cultural heritage sites hile representing an economic val relopment agencies, ethical investors of digital marketplaces enabled l bologies and BlockChain. The devo et of use cases, like e.g.:	Chain technology cro-credit to poor extended to any any other asset s, forests) that can ue for third party prs), with the idea by the intersection eloped technology	



- insurance industry, dealing with secured risk information, where an in-depth understanding of both user practices and geospatial data access protocols is required,
- GNSS Science collaboration, dealing with secured risk information, where an in-depth understanding of both scientific practices and data access protocols is required.

#### This will promote:

- more effective uptake of space related data and services in existing and new markets, as well as market access for new suppliers;
- development of the new generation of innovative and agile secured ground segment infrastructures, with 'smart' contract components effectively linking secured and traceable user applications to satellite data;
- exploitation of upcoming satellite missions and integrated information services, in particular with integration of open data and commercial data and full traceability.

The activity is composed of the following tasks:

- State-of-the-art technology survey (with gap analysis) and analysis of requirements and needs, including selection of real applications for demonstration,
- design and development BlockChain functions, which shall establish the 'trust' among the community for sharing of the data,
- integration of developed software components onto the selected infrastructures,
- validation and demonstration on identified use cases.

**Deliverables:** Prototype

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 5 by 20	19.			

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



Domain	Generic Tec	hnologies - CD9 - D	igital Eng	gineering for Space N	Aissions
Tech. Domain	26 - Others				
Ref. Number:	GT17-0700	<b>GE</b>		Budget (k€):	600
Title:	Automate	d Fault Root Caus	e Analys	sis and Forecasting	g (ARCA)
Objectives:	The aim is forecasting building blo	to develop a toolk in software intensive ck towards automate	it for aut e environ ed, intelli	tomated fault root c ments. The toolkit w gent integration and	ause analysis and ill constitute a key test environments.
Description:	The more S their Integra SoS meets it itself becom disciplines, first difficul systems con in order to b and finding System test systems und targeting th information Incorrectly unnecessary direct confli and Industr strive to imp of predictive Intelligent a bring huge forecasting computer le data techno solutions in The activity their suitabi root cause a applied both representati The activity • survey o	pace Systems becom ation and Testing (18 is requirements in su- hes complex, it requises very effort intensi ity is to identify while prising the SoS, the beable to provide me a solution. engineers have limit der test. Nevertheles hese reports to the about the potentian targeting a fault reprise workload for softwater to workload for softwater workload for softwater or ove systems qualities models able of time and automated fault is benefits in this down has been conducted earning, multi-agent ologies have surface this area. will start with a su lity for the purpose. In alysis and forecasti in at subsystem and so we scenarios and dat is composed of the for for relevant technolog ping of a toolkit for fit tration in representation.	ne complete (aT) is crit upport of uires mul- ve and the nere the n the root aningful- ited visib ss they n the correct al cause (state) ort to the are develowed at y princip vanced st y and tes ely identifi- troot caussion in. Res el since m t systems ed and c rvey of re- t will pro- ng and or ystem lev (a, ollowing ies and d ault root ative envi-	ex Systems of System ical and instrumental the final mission objections itidisciplinary expert herefore costly. If a far fault has originated t cause of the fault new information for addre- ility of what is really must produce meaning t system components of the fault This he wrong system com- lopers and produces les being actively pur- ep is fault prediction ting efficiency throug fication of fault-prome e analysis and forecas earch on fault root of hore than a decade. s, testing optimisation an be applied to the elevant technologies stotype methodologies totype methodologies chestrate them into a el. The results shall b tasks: own-selection, cause analysis and for ronment.	ns (SoS), the more to ensure that the ectives. In turn I&T ise in a variety of nult is detected the within the many eds to be identified essing the problem a happening in the agful fault reports, int and providing is a big challenge. mponent generates waste, which is in rsued both by ESA , in the attempt to the employment e systems. Sting is expected to cause analysis and Also data mining, on techniques, big e development of and assessment of s and tools for fault toolkit that can be e demonstrated on precasting,
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype	T			
<b>Current TRL:</b>	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/	All software	e intensive domain	s and a Fest (I&T	ll missions. Instrum	nental to advance

Application/<br/>Timeframe:automation of Integration and Test (I&T) environments and enable higher I&T<br/>efficiency and effectiveness to reduced cost for missions. TRL 6 by 2020.



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD9 - Digital Engineering for Space Missions					
Tech. Domain	26 – Others					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-071GE	Budget (k€):	600			
Title:	EuGRA - European Ground R	eference Architecture				
Objectives:	The aim is to define a European elements and processes from A operations.	Ground Reference Architec ssembly, Integration and 7	ture covering all Festing (AIT) to			
Description:	Europe is currently lacking of a com a common reference architecture stakeholders is in many cases diffi on Functional Verification and I roadmap has identified the nee European level as one of the top th	nmon Ground Reference Arch , interoperability among di cult to achieve. The Europea Mission Operations Systems d for a Ground Reference ree Harmonisation priorities	itecture. Without fferent European n Harmonisation ; (FV and MOS) Architecture at			
	EuGRA will enable shared AIT as well as operations preparation and execution across European players. This is particularly important given the increasing complexity of future missions and the increasing distribution of mission operations.					
	<ul> <li>A ground reference architecture of</li> <li>direct support for collaborative capabilities,</li> <li>establishing interoperability evolving sub-systems, enabling ground systems,</li> <li>enabling large-scale re-use expressiveness to define com quickly and efficiently,</li> <li>enabling and justifying price elements and patterns and the through facilitation of trade-of</li> <li>reducing development and life</li> </ul>	fers a number of benefits: e ground system developmen and synergy between man g a plug-and-play-like intercl of components and the plex, federated systems for writies for the development fus also supporting efficient f analysis and evolution proj- cycle costs.	nt and operations ny different and hange concept for flexibility and specific missions of architecture decision making ections,			
	The activity will select a Mo development platform, and stand common ontology and taxonomy. to specify a high-level ground re Ground Segment Common Core spanning all processes from AIT t Mission Control Systems and Ele Validation Facility with common includes the definition of interface play-like capability. Documentatio best practices shall be produced. I the reference architecture, the who a steering board at European level	del-Based System Enginee ards to define and model the The chosen modelling frame ference architecture based of (EGS-CC) and other Europe o operations. The need for d ectric Ground System Equip elements shall be clearly ide s and re-usable patterns to en n such as architecting princip n order to achieve Europe-w oble activity will be performed	ring framework, he EuGRA and a work will be used on the European an architectures, ifferent views for ment / Software ntified. This also nsure a plug-and- les and modelling ide agreement on under the lead of			
	The task list is the following:	oround architecture and iden	tification of main			

• analysis of the current generic ground architecture and identification of main building blocks. Organization of workshops with mission operations engineers and stakeholders,



- selection of the MBSE framework, development platform, and standards. Definition of a common taxonomy and ontology for the architecture,
- modelling of the European Ground Reference Architecture,
- definition of re-usable patterns in line with the specified interfaces.

**Deliverables:** Software

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	16
--------------	---	-------------	---	-----------------------	----

Target<br/>Application/<br/>Timeframe:Standardisation and interoperability around a shared architecture will allow<br/>synergies and seamless exchanges and cooperation among European space<br/>partners. This will enable extended joined capabilities and increase efficiency.<br/>TRL 5 by 2019.


# 3.5.10. CD10 - Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space Environment

### 3.5.10.1. TD04 - Spacecraft Environments and Effects

Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD10 - Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space Environment</i>					
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecra	aft Environments a	and Effec	ts		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-072EI	)		Budget (k€):	500	
Title:	Low resour	ce spacecraft pla	asma me	onitor prototype		
Objectives:	The objective is to create a prototype plasma monitor with low requirements for mass and power, suitable as a standard equipment for spacecraft anywhere in the Earth's environment where hazardous charging levels may be encountered.					
Description:	Spacecraft plasma interactions are frequently the cause of anomalies and malfunctions on spacecraft. Particularly orbits that encounter hot electron populations, including GEO, MEO/Galileo and PEO are hazardous. There is a good heritage of science quality instruments that can measure the plasma environment and which can be used to infer the charging state of the spacecraft. These instruments generally have a performance that far exceeds the requirements for assessing charging hazards. However, they are demanding in terms of mass and power.					
	In this activity, a prototype of a plasma monitor will be created that will aim to achieve a mass of around 1kg or less, that can characterise the ambient electrons and ions in the energy range 30eV-30 keV. Miniaturisation of electronics and the electro-optics will be explored to reduce both mass and power requirements.					
	The prototype will be able measure the aspects of the plasma environment that control the spacecraft potential and to infer the potential of the spacecraft with respect to the ambient plasma. Rapid measurements, complete angular coverage and high energy resolution are not essential and could be sacrificed for a simpler design. A design that can easily be accommodated on different spacecraft and could, with little modification, be used in a range of orbits is preferred.					
	The following requirem conceptu detailed vibration fabricatio functiona	activities are fores ents and technolog al design, design including etc. n, l testing.	seen: gies trade analysis	-off, with respect to ra	diation assurance,	
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Engineering	Model				
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL6 by 202	0.				



					esa
Domain	Generic Tech Environment	nologies - CD10 - A t	strodyna	amics / Space Debris	s / Space
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecra	aft Environments a	nd Effect	ts	
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-073EI	2		Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Radiation of energy heav	energy effects or vy ion and electro	n electr on bean	onic components 15	s with very high
Objectives:	The objective very high end and compare that are routi to investigate COTS compo	is to evaluate the be ergy accelerators that with experiments a nely used for radiat e single event effect nents through irrad	ehaviour at realist at traditi ion hard ts caused iation of	of advanced compor- ically represent the so onal radiation facilit lness assurance. In a l by energetic electro complete units.	nent technologies in space environment, ies of lower energy ddition, it is aimed ons, and effects in
Delivorables:	Through colla collaboration These have a (SEE) behav physical proc generation to devices, micr used in space technologies new failure m will significan Experiments facilities will components, electron facil electrons of r processes res simulations. changes to ra The activity is • select tec availabili • perform a also using • evaluate Carlo par • propose v test meth	aboration with the G agreement, access lready shown that of iour than in lower esses at play. This ac- echnologies such a o-processors/contre e systems. At high is increasing, thus of nodes (gate rupture ntly affect the operative will be performed be used to irradiate to observe the beli ities will be used to relevance to MEO, O sponsible. All the The activity will c diation hardness as ncludes the followin hnologies for invest ty of appropriate face experiments at high g traditional space F the results, derive th ticle simulations, w ways forward in tec- tod and standards w	SI accele has been compone energy ctivity wi s power ollers, Fl energy, lecreasir , burnou tion of pe over a ra- complete haviour investig GEO and se exper reate, w surance og tasks: igation th cilities, energy se RHA faci ne mecha ith rever hnology	erator and in the scope gained to very high ents exhibit different facilities because o ll further investigate transistors and sy PGAs, ASICs and all the risk of multi-b ng the efficiency of E that and several clock- ower and integration ange of ions and en- e functioning units, a in flight conditions. ate single event effect EPOR environment riments will be sup here necessary, rec processes and standa hrough a consultation facilities, including C lities, unisms involved with se-engineered technis selection for space; propriate.	e of the ESA-CERN e energy ion beams. single event effect f various different these effects in new vstems, integration types of memories it upsets in digital CC and EDAC, and cycle disturbances) technologies. ergies. In addition, lso including COTS . Finally, energetic cts due to energetic ts, and quantify the oported by Geant4 ommendations for ards. n process; establish GSI and CERN, and the help of Monte- ology definitions, propose updates to
Current TDI -	processes and	l standards.	6	Duration	36
current i kL:	3	Target IKL:	U	(months):	30
Target Application/	2020.				

Timeframe:

Domain



	Environment		
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecraft Environments	and Effects	
Ref. Number:	GT17-074EP	Budget (k€):	700
Title:	Radiation monitor data and	lysis for radiation belt mod	lelling
Objectives:	The objective is to exploit data fin orbit for validation, new eng Inter-compare where conjunct establish a reference database using the appropriate response consolidated database, process adapted where necessary for dif	rom the expanding network of ra ineering models, and improven tions occur, consolidate calib of counts and fluxes. The fluxe e information and various algo statistically to derive new radia ferent spatial domain.	adiation monitors nent of processes. oration data and es will be derived orithms. With the ation belt models,
Description:	Following the development of t radiation monitor (NGRM) that advanced preparation, (e.g. for returning from the SREM net detector on Proba-V, and the C emerge from the EMU instrum units flying on Japanese spacec	he Prototype Flight Model of th will fly on EDRS-C, further pro MTG and Metop-SG). In add work, the EPT on Proba-V, th NES-funded ICARE instrumen tents on Galileo, augmented by raft.	e next generation ocurements are in ition, data is still e SATRAM pixel ts. Soon data will / data from EMU
	The data from all these sources fluxes, doses, etc. Thereafter th consolidated into reference dat belts. Where they occur, data Calibration and simulation meta then allow consistent processing in a transparent way. The data reference database, version con	will be processed into usable q e data will be analysed in a coo abase and new empirical model on solar particle events will a adata will be secured for all instr g via established means (SVD, NI abase will be established via O trolled and with community ope	uantities: particle rdinated way and is of the radiation also be analysed. ruments. This will N, etc.) into fluxes DI and will be a en access.
	Models will be established for a careful attention to data mergin steep gradients and atmospher altitude, external source magne induced enhancements will be c models will be made and diffe system and software will be can products will be pre-formed, tog	specific regions as part of a uni og issues. At low altitude, accoun ic control, as well as strong an tic field models will be employed lealt with statistically. Comparis rences explained in detail. De cried out. Validation of the sys gether with maintenance and up	fied system, with nt will be taken of isotropy. At high ed. Space weather sons with existing velopment of the tem and the data odates.
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Software		

Generic Technologies - CD10 - Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space

Current TRL:5Target TRL:7Duration<br/>(months):30

TargetApplication/TRL 8 by 2019.Timeframe:

Г



. . . . .

Domain	Generic Technologies - CD10 - Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space Environment				
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecraft Environi	nents and Effec	ts		
Ref. Number:	GT17-075EP		Budget (k€):	400	
Title:	Microparticle model v	validation bas	ed on in-flight data		
Objectives:	Develop a software frame with the predictions of developed with the aim to board the Proba-1 mission keep the tool versatile to a	work to compar `microparticle o analyze DEBIE on. Nevertheles allow the proces	e the data collected by models. The produc 2-1 data that is collecte s, the development sl using of other instrume	in-flight monitors ed tool shall be d continuously on 10uld also aim to ent/mission data.	
Description:	Microparticles pose a sign the flux of microparticles data on hypervelocity spacecraft location and microparticle models. Th board the Proba-1 missio is collected on ground an should develop a framewor microparticle models.	nificant risk to sp is not well kno particle impact d attitude car e DEBIE-1 dete on and is collect d has not been a ork to compare	bacecraft and in some p wn. Dedicated monito s. The collected ins help to validate/i ctor is operational for ing hypervelocity impa analyzed since about 2 the DEBIE-1 detector	Darameter regions rs in space collect trument data at improve existing about 15 years on act data. The data 2005. This activity data with existing	
	<ul> <li>Following steps are anticit</li> <li>analysis of DEBIE-1 mission,</li> <li>comparison of observed feedback of observed space debris).</li> </ul>	ipated to be nec data to derive red particle flux o fluxes into flux	essary in this activity: e particle flux proper data with various flux r x model development	ties over the full nodel predictions, (e.g. MASTER for	
	Previous work on DEBIE noise sources and a new methods shall be revisit analysis extended to the f	-1 data has been ed for sophistic ted in this con full mission dura	performed. The work cated data processing plementary assessme ation.	indicated various methods. These ent and the data	
	The outcome is expected reduce the related uncert 15 years is expected to pr debris and improve predi- science and telecommuni	d to validate/in tainties. The lor ovide valuable i ictions for futur ication missions	nprove microparticle ng-term evolution of th nformation on the tim e missions, covering E (esp. future constellat	flux models and ne flux over about le evolution of the Carth-observation, tions).	
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Software				
Current TRL:	3 Target T	<b>RL:</b> 6	Duration (months):	18	
Target					

.

. .

**Application**/ TRL-6 by 2019. **Timeframe:** 



# 1.1.1.2 TD10 - Flight Dynamics and GNSS

Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD10 - Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space Environment</i>
Tech. Domain	10 - Flight Dynamics and GNSS
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	<b>GT17-076GF Budget (k€):</b> 350
Title:	Challenges for the future Flight Dynamics system and processes
Objectives:	With its continuously evolving Flight Dynamics (FD) system, ESOC has successfully supported a large number and variety of missions. This evolution of the FD system has to continue to face the future challenges related to changing ground segment system environment, new technologies, cost pressure and small missions. The objective of this activity is to come up with recommendations for concrete changes to be made to the Flight Dynamics system and its processes in order to properly respond to these challenges.
Description:	<ul> <li>The activity shall start with reviewing, detailing and analysing the impact of the following challenges:</li> <li>the core business of FD will remain the support to ESA science and Earth observation missions. For this, the FD system will have to adapt to and interact with the ESA ground segment systems of the future (MCS, MPS, GS),</li> <li>there is an increased demand to provide tailored FD support to external control centers, particularly in the area of missions analysis, orbit determination and orbit control. These demands can be on short notice e.g. to respond to contingencies or in case of small projects with short life cycle. It is therefore important that the FD system and its external interfaces can be configured quickly and with minimum effort,</li> <li>cost reduction, and in particular mission specific development cost remains an important challenge.</li> <li>the FD system is a single multi-mission system. This significantly simplifies support and maintenance. As changes in the system impact all the supported mission, long term stability is very important. This has to be considered when using opportunities offered by new technologies and introducing dependencies on external systems.</li> <li>for small and short track projects it is anticipated that operations preparation and testing will be less consolidated as in the past and thus more flexibility will be need during operations to respond to unforeseen situations. This requires a high level of responsiveness not only in terms of operational procedures, but also in terms of updates to the FD system.</li> <li>Subsequently it shall be identified which changes have to be made to the Flight Dynamics system and its processes to properly respond to these challenges. Critical changes and developments, in particular the ones related to external interfaces, shall be protyped and evaluated in terms of performance, effort to implement, operational simplicity and compliance with the Flight Dynamics system and its mode of operation. It shall be considered</li></ul>
Dolivorablas	Prototypo Softwaro

**Deliverables:** Prototype Software



Current TRL:	3	<b>Target TRL:</b> 5	Duration (months):	18
Target	Flight I	Warmics systems for future F	SA missions 2010	

**Application**/ Flight Dynamics systems for future ESA missions. 2019. **Timeframe:** 



### 3.5.10.2. TD11 - Space Debris

Domain	<i>Generic Technologies - CD10 - Astrodynamics / Space Debris / Space Environment</i>				
Tech. Domain	11 - Space D	Debris			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT17-0770	R		Budget (k€):	500
Title:	Large imp momentui	act detectors for 1 m vectors	nm-par	ticles resolving in	mpact
Objectives:	This activity to use the v additional in and crater measuremen idea is to dra rate and sour	whole area of a sub whole area of a sate nformation on the i size (obtained from nts and sound detect aw from the flight pro- und-based measurem	-solar ce ellite cov mpacting n the w tors for a oven SOI nent unit	Il conductive grid tee ered by solar cells. g objects by combin /ire grid), with acc a full characterisatio LID technology and e s.	chnology that allows The goal is to gain ing impact position curate attitude rate n of the impact. The expand it for attitude
<b>Description:</b>	In recent years, novel types of impact detectors have been developed. In order to increase the sensitive detection area, which is essential to detect within the important mm-size regime, these novel detectors make use of the large solar array areas. For this, they are deployed between the solar arrays and the solar panel structure. The detectors consist of wire grids under voltage to measure also impact location and crater size. First prototypes are currently under test (e.g. SOLID onboard of the TechnoSat mission). In order to understand the space debris environment in the size range above 1mm size (where current space debris models deviate by a factor of 100), large detector sizes are required and the technology needs to involve in order to compute the impact vector. For this the detector design needs to be extended to combine impact location detection with attitude rate change measurements. The feasibility of computing impact momentum vectors from attitude rates has recently been demonstrated by the analysis of the Sentinel-1A impact into its solar arrays.				
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype				
Current TRL:	5	Target TRL:	7	Duration (months):	12
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Flight mode	el by 2020.			
Applicable TH	AG Roadma	<b>p:</b> Not related to a I	Harmoni	sation subject.	



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD10 Environment	- Astrodynamics / Space Debris /	/ Space
Tech. Domain	11 - Space Debris		
Ref. Number:	GT17-078GR	Budget (k€):	650
Title:	Advanced Collision Avoid	ance Techniques	
Objectives:	Upcoming mega-constellation of electric orbit raising with lo combination with a growth of of the population itself but also poses a challenge for the curren it would trigger a far larger nur costs of fuel, mission interrup aims at maturing approaches risk algorithms and avoidance	s for telecommunications in LEO, ong residence time in densely po the tracked space debris populati o due to the introduction of the ne nt operational approach to collision nber of avoidance manoeuvres wi tion on on-ground operations eff for automated decision taking, a manoeuvre approaches.	the upcoming use opulated region in on to the increase ew US space fence on avoidance since th their associated forts. This activity advanced collision
<b>Description</b> :	With the introduction of the n in Low Earth Orbit will inco- frequency of known close app upcoming mega-constellations use of electric orbit raising wir in combination with a grow automation in collision avoida required, the time consumir availability is subject to autom This need has also been recogn	ew US space fence the catalogue rease by an order of magnitude roaches with operational spacec s for telecommunications in LEO th long residence time in densely with of the space debris popul unce necessary. While a surveillan ng data monitoring, decision ta ation on-ground to achieve signifi nised in a recent council working	of tracked objects e and with it the raft. This and the and the upcoming populated region ation, will make nce system will be king and on-call icant cost savings. group paper.

This activity shall implement algorithms aiming at automating decisions on whether or not to perform collision avoidance manoeuvres and test them on the database of past close approach events by comparing with actual decisions taken, thus providing a basis for further automation of the operation collision avoidance process in preparation of the future 10-fold increase in the number of catalogued objects. Furthermore, the activity aims at testing advanced techniques to compute collision risks (e.g. taking realistic SC shapes and attitudes into account) and to perform avoidance manoeuvres (e.g. attitude manoeuvres or thrust profile modulation for low/continuous-thrust missions) with a view on their efficiency in reducing the overall collision risk for a mission when compared to traditional approaches

**Deliverables:** Prototype Software.

Current TRL: 3 Target TRL:

5 **Duration** (months):

18

Target Application/ 2019. Timeframe:

Г



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD10 - Environment	Astrodynamics / Space Debris	s / Space
Tech. Domain	11 - Space Debris		
Ref. Number:	GT17-079GR	Budget (k€):	400
Title:	Numerical simulation of h	ypervelocity collisions for l	oreakup model
Objectives:	<ul> <li>The objectives are to:</li> <li>use numerical hydrocodes impact geometries and spa</li> <li>show that hydrocodes can obtained results can be use tested,</li> <li>revise current state-of-the propose an improved mode</li> </ul>	to simulate hypervelocity collicecraft configurations, be validated, e.g. via impact ed to extrapolate for configurat -art breakup models for sate el which benefits from hydrococ	isions for different tests, and that the tions that were not llite collisions and de analysis.
Description:	The analysis of the long-term e to model collision events betw apply an empirical breakup mo or hypervelocity impact tests approach was only feasible fo possible observational errors, t small subset for the test setup f	volution of the space debris env een on-orbit objects. The curr del which was calibrated on rea under laboratory conditions. r a very small number of eve he latter approach suffers from rom a wide range of possible bu	vironment requires ent approach is to l breakups in space While the former nts and subject to n having to select a reakup conditions.
	Deriving model parameters from non-applicable to the model. Not a significantly larger space of the parameters more accurately or unmodelled effects. In this a simulate hypervelocity impact spacecraft configurations. It she validated, for example via seve other conditions can be evaluate benefits from a better knowled models but also covers breakup	om such analyses renders und umerical hydrocode analyses al oreakup conditions and therefor even derive additional parame ctivity, numerical hydrocodes s for a broad range of impa all be shown that the employed eral impact tests and the extra ed. A new breakup model shall lge of parameters also known o conditions that were not cover	bserved conditions low to sample from re to assess model eters for previously shall be used to ct geometries and hydrocodes can be polation errors for be proposed which to former breakup red before.
	The general application of nun impacts in spacecraft structure with the title 'Numerical Sim Analysis'.	nerical hydrocode to the proble as has been studied in a previo ulations for Spacecraft Catast	m of hypervelocity ous activity in GSP crophic Disruption
Deliverables:	Prototype: existing software for a specific problem of hyperve derived from the numerical and	numerical hydrocode analysis locity impacts. The deliverabl lysis.	shall be applied to e will be a model
Current TRL:	4 <b>Target TRL</b> :	6 <b>Duration</b> 6 <b>(months):</b> 18	
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Models for satellite breakups an assess the evolution of the space activity shall improve the curr evolution models. TRL 5 by 20	e used not only to evaluate past debris environment. The mod ent state-of-the-art and be use 20.	t events, but also to el developed in this d in the context of
Applicable TU	AC Deadman. Not related to a	Harmonization subject	



Domain	Generic Technologies - CD10 - Astr Environment	rodynamics / Space Debris /	/ Space	
Tech. Domain	11 - Space Debris			
Ref. Number:	GT17-080GR	Budget (k€):	500	
<b>141</b>				

#### Title: High-resolution spectroscopy of space debris fragments

**Objectives:** A proof-of-concept of optical reflectance spectroscopy of space debris fragments in orbit was achieved with ESA's Optical Ground Station in 2008/2009 with a low-resolution spectrograph originally designed for observations of comets. This activity shall extend the data acquisition to other spectrographs, potentially also using other sensors, such as, e.g. the Nordic Optical Telescope (NOT).

The hand-over of precise short-time predictions for space debris fragments shall be implemented first (including also high area-to-mass (HAMR) objects), possible improvements of using new instrumentation allowing for high resolution (in time and wavelength) of spectra of debris fragments shall be assessed, tested, and mounted (on loan). A larger sample of spectra from fragments in higher altitudes shall be acquired and stored in a easily accessible database. Based on initial work done with ESA on the change of material characteristics of objects after prolonged periods in space, a model to explain the observed reddening of spectrographic observations shall be proposed. Concepts to distinguish between debris fragments subject to reddening or inerts ones shall be derived.

**Description:** For the modelling of the generation and evolution of the population of small-size debris at high altitudes, especially after the discovery of high area-to-mass-ratio (HAMR) objects, not only astrometric and photometric data but also optical reflectance spectroscopy has proven to provide crucial and complementary data. Nevertheless, the origin of HAMR objects is still not fully understood, and further progress will provide very valuable information to satellite design and manufacturing, as well as to satellite operations.

Spectroscopic observations provide access to the material composition of the surfaces of satellites and fragments. Such observations of several faint HAMR debris have been demonstrated as proof-of-concept in 2008/2009 with a low-resolution spectrograph mounted at the RC-focus of the 1-meter ESA telescope at the Optical Ground Station at Tenerife. The spectrograph was originally designed for observations of comets and was not optimised at all for space debris observations.

Based on these previous findings the observation concept shall be revisited and generalised for different configurations of spectrographs. The baseline concept calls for support observations from other telescopes to acquire the study objects in the narrow field-of-view of a spectograph. Data exchange and timely hand-over processes and efficient interfaces shall be developed and tested. In parallel, the best suited available spectrographs for researching faint space debris in high altitudes shall be reviewed and suitable mounting options, not limited to ESA's OGS or the Nordic Optical Telescope (NOT) shall be studied. The activity shall then plan and conduct a first test campaign with the spectrograph on loan. From the findings of the test campaign the planning shall be revisited for a full campaign. The aim of the full campaign is acquire a substantial sample of measurements that allows to characterise the material properties of surfaces of small debris in high altitudes, in particular of HAMR objects. In the processing of the data significant effort shall be foreseen for the correction of the atmospheric extinction as the dominating error source, and that only photometric nights are



used where enough observations of well distributed solar analog calibration stars are acquired. Different approaches to correct the extinction shall be studied, and also a sufficient number of intact, attitude controlled spacecraft in GEO as references objects for the material characterisation are acquired.

The activity shall access and as well conduct lab measurements of reflection spectra of different relevant materials. All results from the labs and the conducted observation campaigns shall be made available in an easily accessible database. The database shall the allow to characterise materials, but shall also describe (based on earlier research) the change of material characteristics of objects after prolonged periods in space. Finally, with the help of the database models to explain the observed changes (such as reddening) of HAMR objects in GEO shall be proposed. These models shall then be employed to derive first concepts to distinguish between debris fragments subject to reddening and inerts.

**Deliverables:** Observational and lab data, database and numerical models.

Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
	C	4 . 1	. C		

Target Application/ Timeframe:	Space object characterisation, of prime importance to extension of the statistical small debris population models as well as model describing their genesis for future environment evolution. Distinguishing between deep space artificial and man-made objects. TRL 6 by 2020.
Target Application/ Timeframe:	small debris population models as well as model describing their genesis future environment evolution. Distinguishing between deep space artificial man-made objects. TRL 6 by 2020.



#### 1.1.1.3 TD20 - Structures

Title:	Development of an enhanced spacecraft fragmentation cod				
Ref. Number:	GT17-081GR	Budget (k€):	1,000		
Tech. Domain	20 - Structures				
Domain	Generic Technologies - CD10 - A. Environment	strodynamics / Space Debris /	/ Space		

**Objectives:** The objective of this activity is to accurately predict the fragmentation of a spacecraft during demise by developing a code that encompasses the aerodynamics, thermal and structural phenomena contributing to such event. This code will be used to improve the SCARAB tool so allowing for a better spacecraft design for demise and an improved calculation of the casualty risk probability.

The specific objectives of the activity are the following:

- Review of the existing aerothermodynamics/flight-mechanics coupled methodologies and tools employed currently as well as flow/structure coupled methodologies and tools. Identification of improvement and further development.
- Provide with a validated aerodynamic/flight-mechanic/thermal/structural analysis methodology and code, as part of and in support to the fragmentation analysis tools.
- Provide with an interface tool for re-defining and re-meshing the resulting geometry after each time step of the cycle analysis
- Provide with a communication platform for the interconnection of the different modules above mentioned within a time simulation strategy.
- Review of the existing structural analysis methods and tools employed currently as part of the fragmentation analysis tools. Identification of improvement and further development.
- Development of a validated structural analysis methodology and tool, as part of and in support to the existing fragmentation analysis tools.
- Integration of the structural analysis tool with the full analysis cycle.
- **Description:** Nowadays the aerodynamic and aero-thermal characterisation of demisable objects is performed with the so-called engineering methods (e.g. panel methods and/or newton methods) coupled with trajectory codes. Although these methods are computationally faster, they are not able to predict in a proper way, the pressure and heat fluxes resulting from complex multi-body configurations, embedded in high temperature thermo-chemical phenomena. Therefore, from these engineering methods it is difficult to assess the uncertainties on their aerothermodynamic predictions, while their validation is very cumbersome since their accuracy is strongly case dependent.

In this proposal, those engineering methods shall be replaced in the rarefied and transitional regime with a DSMC code for reacting flows, and if it is considered an advantage, with a CFD code for reacting flows in the continuous regime. While time dependent solutions of the body motion (coupling between aerodynamic and flight mechanic) are preferable, a loosely coupling where the aerodynamic module will provide the forces and the flight mechanics module will return the spacecraft attitude, is also acceptable.

Furthermore, a loosely coupled aerothermodynamics, thermal and structural analysis shall be performed. There, the aerothermodynamics module will provide the heat fluxes and surface pressure. Based on the heat fluxes the thermal model will derive relevant temperature ranges, which will have to be mapped into the



structural model. Relevant mapping techniques will have to be assessed and, in case, be adopted or developed.

The code should be able to account for main shape changes due to thermal demise and / or major shape changes due to structural splitting. An interface tool shall be provided, in order to redefine, if necessary, the new geometry resulting from each time step. The computational effort could be reduced by means of smart interpolations of the high fidelity solution towards the next time interval. An assessment will have to be done on whether and how chemical deposition processes (e.g. resins) will have to be reflected in the thermal model. Such functionality may eventually only be added in a future evolution, but should be considered already within this activity.

Structural analysis is required to determine the mechanical failure sequence during a re-entry into the atmosphere, which describes ultimately the fragmentation of the vehicle, i.e. the size, mass, momentum of fragments and the time of their appearance. The structural analysis is intended to determine the sequence of failure modes in the real configuration as a consequence of the timedependent aero-thermodynamic loads (pressure and temperature). Additional inputs to the structural analysis are provided by the thermal analysis, in terms of temperatures of all parts and materials subject to failure. The structural failure modes shall be analysed taking into account the thermal dependence of the materials allowable loads.

Inputs to the structural analysis are the Spacecraft geometry (CAD model) in operational configuration, FEM or similar model of SC in operational configuration, aerodynamic profile (pressure distribution on outer surfaces as a function of time), thermo-dynamic profile (temperatures of structural joints and structural members such as plates, beams, brackets as a function of time), allowable values related to the failure modes. The outputs shall include the failure sequence and time history, and the stress tensor time history of the critical parts. A validation of the methodologies and predictions of the code shall be performed by using existing data and ground testing.

**Deliverables:** Software, plus development and validations reports

Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target					

Application/ 2020. Timeframe:



# 3.6. Space Situational Awareness

# 3.6.1. Space Situational Awareness

# 3.6.1.1. TD01 - Onboard Data Systems

Domain	Space Situational Awareness		
Tech. Domain	01 - Onboard Data Systems		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT18-001ED	Budget (k€):	650
Title:	Prototype Remote Interface U	nit (RIU) for SWE hosted	payloads
Objectives:	The objective is to design and de handling unit for hosted payload in Miniaturisation of instrumentation systems is typically limited by the m in particular the power condition interfacing to the S/C bus and to instruments are necessary for the a hosting satellites in particular to m The activity shall develop a low-moptimised for space weather put instruments selected depending or	velop a prototype remote int istruments and SmallSat miss on for Space Weather (SWE eed to provide the interfaces to oning and voltage convers he isolation of potential fail cceptance of payloads on-boar realise flight opportunities we esource processing and inter rposes and suitable for a the flight opportunity.	erface and data ions. ) measurement o the spacecraft, ion. A flexible ures within the d of commercial ith short notice. face unit that is variable set of
<b>Description</b> :	This activity shall develop a Payload SWE hosted payloads which shal required by space weather/enviror for individual instrument voltage streams from instruments throu 422/485), SpaceWire, MIL-STD-1 single data interface adaptable to h the PIDHU will include on-board reduce the data bandwidth requi useable, processed data to be dow include an interface to a dedic downlink of data to a SSA or other consider the desired compatibility under study.	d Interface & Data Handling U l provide power supplies at ment instruments limiting th transformers. The PIDHU sl gh various protocols includi 553 and CAN Bus and provid osting spacecraft requiremen data processing and storag red and therefore increasing nlinked. As a further option, ated transmitter allowing f ground stations. The design with a SmallSat mission wh	nit (PIDHU) for various voltages e mass required hall receive data ong UART (RS- e data though a ts. As an option, e capabilities to g the volume of the system will or independent phase shall also hich is currently
	The mass, volume and power restrongly on the number of instrum conversion needed and the amoun The baseline PIDHU to support mo a 28 V (TBC) supply shall have a r less than 200 x 200 x 200 mm, whi a modular building blocks approace be further investigated during the o	quirement of such an PIDH nents to be supported, the ra t of on-board processing cap re than 5 instruments and com nass less than 2 kg and a volu ch can be traded versus recurn h. The power required by the design phase of the study.	IU will depend tio of the power ability required. vert power from ume envelope of rent costs versus instruments will
Deliverables:	A proto-flight model of the PIDHU of an identified flight oppo weather/environment instrument flight model shall undergo standa qualification tests with the instrum Prototype	shall be built to conform to the rtunity to test a select s presently under development and space environment tests tents identified as part of the p	ne requirements ion of space ent. This proto- and end-to-end payload.



Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
Target	0010 0				

**Application**/ 2019. Space Weather Payloads. **Timeframe:** 

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Data Systems and On-Board Computers (2016).



#### Domain Space Situational Awareness Tech. Domain 04 - Spacecraft Environments and Effects **Ref. Number:** GT18-002EP Budget (k€): 600 **Title:** Solar Activity Onset Modelling **Objectives:** Solar eruptions are at the source of almost all major space weather events. Including flares, Coronal Mass Ejection (CMEs) and filament eruptions, they constitute an explosive release of excess magnetic energy in the solar corona with the potential to drive conditions observed at Earth. Resulting space weather disturbances include geomagnetic storms and substorms, enhancement of the Earth's radiation belts, solar particle radiation storms and increased ionisation of the Earth's ionosphere. This activity will take existing physics-based models of solar active region magnetic fields, test/verify these in terms of ability to reproduce observed eruptive conditions and further analyse the computing resources required to run them in (near) real-time. **Description:** A software prototype shall be developed and verified in order to complement Space Situational Awareness (SSA) programme's existing products incorporated as part of its Space Weather element. Specifically, this activity shall be harmonised with developments taking place as part of ESA's Virtual Space Weather Modelling Centre (VSWMC) as it will form the first, crucial, element in a chain of space weather models. Following an assessment of relevant SSA and VSWMC requirements, a consolidated set of requirements for physics-based models of the evolution of the solar magnetic field and resulting eruptive processes in the solar corona shall be established to determine the development of the underpinning modelling to be carried out as part of this activity. These requirements will be focused on improving the prototype's forecast capability towards meeting the reliability requirements of SSA space weather customers. These requirements shall be driven by the corresponding data requirements of other elements in the end-to-end space weather modelling system to enable more accurate modelling of phenomena extending into the interplanetary medium, particle radiation propagation and energetic electromagnetic particle flux enhancements. The development shall take existing proven modelling concepts which describe processes in the corona, chromosphere and photosphere to build a model implementation including all established required functionality. It shall be possible to operate the developed model in near real-time based on a defined set of observables which are measured routinely as part of existing solar observations. The model operation shall be verified with a reproducible set of test data in order to ensure correct operation within a pre-defined parameter space of input variables. The model results shall then be validated against pre-defined observables in test data. The resulting model shall then be implemented on the SSA system via integration with the VSWMC and a final verification shall be performed to confirm the implemented model behaves as expected. The output of this model development will be harmonised with activities of the SSA Solar Weather Expert Service Centre (S-ESC) to facilitate integration. **Deliverables:** Software Duration **Current TRL: Target TRL:** 5 3 18

#### 3.6.1.2. TD04 - Spacecraft Environments and Effects

(months):



Target<br/>Application/<br/>Timeframe:TRL 5 by end 2019. Space Weather.Applicable THAG<br/>Roadmap:Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



					esa
Domain	Space Situational	Awareness			
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecraft En	vironments and	d Effect	ts	
Ref. Number:	GT18-003EP			Budget (k€):	600
Title:	<b>Radiation Monit</b>	or System in	a Pack	age	
Objectives:	The aim is to devel interfacing and low particles.	op a general-pu unit cost that is	urpose : s capab	radiation monitor wit le of registering and c	h small size, easy ategorizing single
Description:	Traditional radiation in relatively heavy recent advances in sensors allows the detection and proce	on monitoring instruments wi Systems In Pa development essing electroni	based o th relat ackages of high cs, and	on discrete componer ively high procureme 5 (SIPs), ASICs and N ly integrated package avoiding high voltage	nts usually results ent cost. However, Monolithic CMOS es containing the es.
	This activity will se the space and high monitor that can di a basis for general Spectroscopy may selection technique the baseline should for the system is <1	elect the most a energy physics of istinguish partic l purpose moni- be implemen es based on shie l be a stand-alo 00g.	appropr domain cle ener itoring ted in lding, s ne min	iate technology from is, and design and pro- gy deposits in well-de of electrons, protons follow-on developm stacking or magnetic f imal single sensor sys	previous R&D in totype a radiation efined volumes, as s and heavy ions. ent with add-on ield selection, but stem. Target mass
	The activity tasks a review miniat measurement n select appropri perform brea ASIC/detector screen with cos establish FM d	re to: urization techn requirements, ate technology, d-boarding an fabrication run smics and Co-60 esign, developn	nologies nd dev s, D; full c nent pla	s in space and HE relop prototype, if haracterisation in p, o an and costing.	P, in context of necessary with e beams,
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Prototype, beam ch	naracterization,	FM des	sign, development pla	ın and costing.
Current TRL:	3 <b>Ta</b> i	get TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	2020. Space Weath	ier.			



Domain	Space Situati	onal Awareness			
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecra	aft Environments a	and Effect	ts	
Ref. Number:	GT18-004E	P		Budget (k€):	1,000
Title:	Heliospher	ic modelling tecl	hniques		
Objectives:	Development propagation o	of a physics-bas of CMEs and solar of	ed mode energetic	els for operational particles to the Earth	prediction of the
<b>Description</b> :	The backgrou (CMEs) and interplanetary include geom interfering w spacecraft and (SEPs) and at been develop consisting of problem, thes particle-in-ce but require ac This activity s Mass Ejection 3D code. Out event-time pr and direction The inclusion shock shall 1 undertaken a but the creation of evolution is la	and solar wind and High-speed So y space are drivers hagnetically induc- ith GNSS systems d launchers resulti irora especially at ed for simulating p plasma, fields and se use a variety of ll, etc.). At this time dditional technical hall develop and en hall develop an hall develop	solar eru lar wind for space ed curre s, spaced ng from a high latiti barts of th l energeti modelling e such mo developm nhance ex propagat he predict a density e from a f ation moo ts to un SEPEM p European	aptions, such as coro 1 Streams (HSSs), weather phenomena. nts (GICs), ionosph raft charging, single accelerated Solar Ener- udes. Many physics-hased in Sun-to-Earth space c charged particles. g techniques (magnet odels exist in the form nent before a transition tisting physics-based ion and evolution creation tion of arrival times of along with the magn few solar radii up to lel driven by the modi- ify such codes have roject and the FP7 SI n operational model in the streat streat streat streat streat and evolution creation of the streat streat the solar radii up to the solar radii up to the solar model in the solar streat streat streat streat the solar streat streat streat streat streat the solar streat st	nal mass ejections propagate into Resulting impacts eric disturbances event effects on rgetic Particles based models have e weather system, Depending on the o hydrodynamics, of scientific codes on to operations. models of Coronal eating a full global f CMEs and HSSs, netic field strength and beyond 1 AU. lelled CME-driven e been previously EP Server projects for SEP onset and
Deliverables:	The model(s) Weather Mod Software	will be integrated lelling Centre.	d into th	e SWE Network via	the Virtual Space
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 6 by end	2019. Space Weat	her.		
Applicable THAG Roadmap: Radiation Environment and Effects (2015).					



Domain

Space Situational Awareness

Tech. Domain 04 - Spacecraft Environments and Effects

#### Ref. Number: GT18-005EP

#### **Budget (k€):** 800

#### Title: Virtual Space Weather Modelling Centre (VSWMC) - Part III

- **Objectives:** The objective is to continue the development of a system based on coupled, geographically-distributed models and data sources to provide space weather forecasts and specifications. The system couples models of space weather event initiation at the Sun, their propagation and acceleration, and the complex interactions with the Earth's magnetosphere, ionosphere and thermosphere leading to hazardous conditions such as hot plasma and radiation belt enhancements. Models and data sources will couple in assimilation methods. The distributed paradigm allows expert centres to maintain and develop components of the system transparently from end users. This part III activity is intended to extend the modelling chain, develop further the development environment for interfacing models, expanding visualisations and incorporating additional data sources.
- **Description:** The Virtual Space Weather Modelling Centre (VSWMC) Part 1 has successfully developed and demonstrated distributed, coupled model architecture and methods. This architecture has been enhanced to a software prototype level in Part 2 and is being integrated into the Space Situational Awareness (SSA) programme portal for exploitation by SSA users. The focus in these phases has been on coupling the high solar corona with propagation of resulting phenomena through the interplanetary medium to drive models of the Earth's magnetosphere and radiation belts. In Part 3, the system will be expanded to include additional models with a focus on extending the VSWMC capability to cover the lower solar corona, solar energetic particle propagation, the Earth's ionosphere and thermosphere, and models of variation in ground level magnetic field. As part of the activity the VSWMC outputs shall be interfaced to effects tools for spacecraft and ground-systems.

Real-time data streams are critical for the effectiveness of such a system and observational data integrated into the system shall be expanded with a focus on new data provided by the SSA programme. A further development of the VSWMC architecture shall expanding the model coupling interface to cover a range of computing languages and incorporate virtualisation where necessary in order to make the system more flexible. Focus will also be given to coordinated validation and establishing suitable end-to-end modelling concepts based on the available models.

In Part 2 the user interface was developed to deliver data output by models and visualisations to scientists, spacecraft operators and designers and operators of ground-based systems vulnerable to space weather effects to exploit the system and provide feedback. In Part 3 this capability shall be expanded but specific focus shall be placed on the enhancement of the VSWMC development environment allowing developers of space weather models to easily integrate their models into the VSWMC thus rapidly expanding the scope of the system.

At the end of Part 3, the updated system will be deployed by the SSA programme providing a key element of the SSA space weather service allowing timely end-toend simulations of space weather events, while allowing parallel development of the system and the models. This will require an increased focus on hardware **Deliverables:** 

Software



availability and load distribution, system reliability and system monitoring. The VSWMC web interface shall be updated considering evolving SSA portal requirements and the development team shall interact with scientists on the advisory team and SSA expert groups responsible for delivering products and services to end users.

Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 6 by er	nd 2020. Space Weat	her.		



Domain	Space Situat	ional Awareness			
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecr	aft Environments a	nd Effects		
Ref. Number:	GT18-006E	P	Budget	( <b>k€)</b> :	800
Title:	Fireball Mo	onitor for Space S	ituational Aware	ness	
Objectives:	Design and d detect, meas Objects wher observe Earth area and thus	levelop an optical m ure and record fire n entering the Earth h from a high space s observation statist	onitor and related in balls from large m atmosphere. The r altitude (e.g. GEO) ics.	mage processin eteoroids/smal nonitor shall be in order maxim	g software to 1 Near-Earth e designed to nize detection
Description:	The Earth is space. The sr camera syste These events centimeters. asteroids and equipped with decimeters t atmosphere. observations not known velike e.g. the in 1 m diameter in Peru. A b the impact rit To get a statis area has to geostationary fireball event An optical/II small (about monitor will monitor one impactors. S development be optimized degrees full a large field of Different wai investigated, which has to lightning flas fireball came The experier Sensor Head	constantly bombain maller the objects, t emising typically records are generated by p Objects in the size d are typically obset th CCD cameras. O o several tens of p They are too rat to date and the pre- ery well. On the other mpact of the Carance which produced a etter knowledge of sk on the Earth and stically significant m be as large as por y orbit and monitor rs. R monitor will be d 1 m or larger) near- be optimized for op complete hemispher tarting point of the of a wide-angle visi for a field of view c angle). The design f views from LEO a velength for the de An important aspec cope with a large am shes). The study sh era and correspondince gained from the (SPOSH) and SPOS	rded by objects in a he more frequent th l several to several particles in the size range of tens to hu rved far away from bjects in the interm neters in size caus re to have produc- cise number flux of er hand, they can pr as meteoroid on 15 13 m diameter crate the expected impac- this study will contru- umber of observation ssible. One solution the complete visible esigned and develo Earth objects when eration from a locati- ere and to determine edesign will be two ble light camera for f overing the complet of precursor activiti- altitudes, has to be tection of fireballs ( ct is the on-board of ount of data and witt all include the desi- ng on-board softwa- be previous studies SH-IR) should be us	all size ranges and size ranges and tens of meteor range from mindreds of meteor the Earth usin dediate size range so-called fire- ced statistically particles in this oduce damage Sep 2007, an ole r very close to t flux is import ribute to this ta ons of fireballs, n is to put a atmosphere of ped to detect fi they collide wite ion in GEO. It was a size and trajo o completed str faint meteors. The e size and trajo o completed str faint meteors. The faint meteors is a str faint meteor a starting e size and the size and th	coming from l-based video ors per hour. crometers to ers are called ng telescopes ge of several eballs in the y significant size range is on the Earth, bject of about a small town ant to assess sk. the detection camera into the Earth for ireballs from th Earth. The vill be able to fectory of the udies for the 'he optics will EO (about 18 optimised for this purpose. ible) shall be g and storage e.g. city lights, pment of the vel of TRL 5. amic Optical point for the
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Breadboard				
<b>Current TRL</b> :	4	Target TRL:	5 <b>Duratio</b>	n	24

(months):



Target<br/>Application/<br/>Timeframe:To derive population models for large meteoroids and small Near Earth<br/>Asteroids; needed for the NEO segment of SSA and to derive better meteoroid<br/>flux models which are applicable to all missions. The instrument will be an<br/>attached payload to a mission in high Earth orbits, preferentially GEO.



Domain	Space Situational Awareness			
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecraft Environments an	d Effects		
Ref. Number:	GT18-007EP	Bu	dget (k€):	500
Title:	Impact effects tool			
Objectives:	Determine the effects of an impa population when impacting our p impact trajectory and velocity and risk from a NEO has been identifi cause damage on the ground and tools are needed to analyze the co- break-up and energy release in the can reach the ground and impact e related models and tools are a knowledge and tools was perform SSA SN-VII) and a roadmap for the In addition to state of the art se assessment of impact effects and p able to provide easy to understand	cting Near E blanet depen I the impact ied it is imp the extent of mplete proce atmosphere ffects on gro vailable. A ed during the development cientific tools potential dam I but reliable	Carth Object (NEO) ding on its size, co location. When a p- ortant to know if th of such damage. En- ess from atmosphe e, assessment on wh und. A number of m review of the exi- e SSA preparatory p- nt of missing tools w s an operational to nage is required. Th results within min-	on assets and mposition, the otential impact ne object could geneering-type ric interaction, ich size objects nainly scientific isting relevant ohase (contract vas established. pool for a quick his tool shall be utes.
Description:	<ul> <li>An operational tool for the quick a asteroids shall be developed. It consists which are stored in a data interface should interpolate the state.</li> <li>This activity will consist of 3 main</li> <li>develop capabilities which are by the SSA roadmap. Example effects, realistic object break objects,</li> <li>produce the database of reference.</li> </ul>	assessment of buld be base base. A high ored results f tasks: missing in t es are: Elect -up modelli rence cases of	of effects resulting f d on a large numb er level tool with a for the specified inp he existing tools as romagnetic pulse e ng and the treatm covering the full ra	rom impacting er of reference a user friendly out parameters. recommended ffects, acoustic ent of smaller nge of realistic
	<ul><li>impact parameters,</li><li>develop the operational tool for</li></ul>	or a quick im	pact risk assessmen	it including the
<b>NH 11</b>	user interface.	-	-	U
Deliverables:	Sonware	_		
Current TRL:	3 Target TRL:	5 Du (m	ration onths):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	For SSA-NEO precursor services.	2019.		



Domain

Space Situational Awareness

Tech. Domain 04 - Spacecraft Environments and Effects

#### GT18-008EP **Ref. Number:**

Budget (k€):

# 1,800

Space Weather Instruments for SmallSat and Hosted Payloads **Title:** Missions

- **Objectives:** SSA is working towards a monitoring system that has the aim of providing services that are requested by the space weather community. Enabling all identified services demands a comprehensive set of measurements from ground, from airborne systems and from space. ESA has based on these studies recently proposed a system that is expected to enable in future, although not all, a majority of the identified and needed services by the implementation of an observational system that intends to make use of developments which have been initiated by ESA in the past for the monitoring of the environment in particular in the Earth space proximity. This system will make use of hosted payloads and potentially a SmallSat system carrying miniaturised instruments dedicated for the monitoring of the space weather conditions and its impact on the Earth. The system under development is therefore expected to be compatible with the elements needed for the establishment of a distributed Space Weather Sensor System.
- **Description:** The measurement requirements for an enhanced space weather monitoring system have been established by preparatory studies initiated within the SSA preparatory programme. In order to provide the necessary data enabling the requested services, it is necessary to perform a number of measurements at several observation points preferably in low, medium and high Earth orbits. The required set of instruments can be accommodated either as hosted payloads or as part of a payloads suite of a SmallSat mission. The assessment of the required instrumentation has been performed within the first part of a Space Weather SmallSat Phase 0 study.

Potential candidates for the in-situ instrumentation are currently: Atomic Oxygen sensor, magnetometer, radiation monitor (energetic electrons, protons, and ions), plasma analyser, Langmuir probe, energetic neutral atom imager, or a subset. To fit the resource constraints of hosted payload missions and a SmallSat mission all instruments are expected to have a high degree of miniaturisation. It is therefore expected that the developments will serve a dual purpose.

After completion of the PCR of the Space Weather SmallSat study, the foreseen payloads will be known and sufficiently defined to start the development of the instrumentation. The budget allocation includes the production of flight models, but will finally depend on the selected payload complement and number of instruments. It is expected that other ESA instrument developments can be reused and that this activity would focus on the adaptation to the foreseen architecture and to make the instruments flight ready. The instruments shall be developed towards the same interface requirements will be controlled and interfaced by a remote interface unit, which shall also provide data processing capability, so that the resource demands of the instruments can be minimised. The activity may include the production of the necessary hardware and qualifications, which would make them ready for inclusion in a flight opportunity. The actual production of the flight models can then be considered for realisation within the SSA programme.

**Deliverables**: Engineering/Qualification Model



Duration (months):	18
	Duration (months):

Target Application/ TRL 6 by 2019 or earlier. Space Weather Instruments. Timeframe:



					esa
Domain	Space Situat	tional Awareness			
Tech. Domain	04 - Spaceci	raft Environments a	nd Effe	cts	
Ref. Number:	GT18-0091	E <b>P</b>		Budget (k€):	600
Title:	3D Ionosp	heric Modelling			
Objectives:	This activity ionospheric multiple diff and forecast	will develop a prot modelling. The assi ferent sources, and products.	otype io imilatio will be t	onospheric service con n model itself will as ested in the frame of	ncept based on 3D similate data from providing nowcast
Description:	Characterisi currently in approximate of e.g. 350 k the ionosph complex stru- disturbed co	ng the ionosphere use for ionospheric v e the ionosphere usin an, which is an appr ere. 3D modelling h uctures and their ev inditions and hence	is cruc weather ag a sing roximat nas the volution improve	ial for radio link us nowcasting and forec le thin-shell approach ion suppressing the v potential to provide in electron density, p e overall accuracy.	sers. Most models asting applications with a fixed height ertical structure of resolution of more particularly during
	The software prototype shall be developed to demonstrate how the inclusion of a 3D model at the core of space weather service provision can improve the space weather services for satellite navigation and telecommunication users and complement existing 2D products such as TEC mapping. A set of priority requirements will be defined for further development of the underpinning modelling.				
	The development shall take existing proven modelling concepts, particularly the results of the TRP study (3-D Ionospheric Total Electron Content Modelling), which describe properties of the ionosphere to build a model implementation including all established required functionality.				
	The develop utilise meas radio occulta the measure operation sh correct oper model result in test camp in this activi shall be perf	ment shall target a m urements from grou ation measurements ement data is alrea hall be verified with a ration within a pre-c ts shall be validated aigns with other moo ity shall be impleme formed to confirm th	nodel th ind base . These ady part a reproc lefined against lels with nted on at the in	at can be operated in ed observations system observations are meas t of the SSA SWE sy lucible set of test data parameter space of ir pre-defined observab n similar capability. The the SSA system and nplemented model be	near real-time and ms and also GNSS sured routinely and ystem. The model in order to ensure put variables. The les in test data and he model developed a final verification shaves as expected.
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Software				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 6 by 20	19.			
Applicable TH	AG Roadma	<b>p:</b> Not related to a H	Iarmon	isation subject.	



Domain	Space Situat	tional Awareness			
Tech. Domain	04 - Spacecr	raft Environments a	nd Effect	ts	
Ref. Number:	GT18-010E	P		Budget (k€):	600
Title:	Global Mag	gnetospheric Mod	lelling t	o Drive Geomagn	etic Services
Objectives:	The objectiv predict the E space weathe	e is to advance geo Carth magnetosphere er conditions.	magnetic e, its inte	c forecasting model raction with the sola	s that describe and ar wind, and related
<b>Description:</b>	Global Magn domain to ga solar wind- underway to and forecasti and process a geomagnetic Most current the physical While this is these model Thus, these predict the in This activity prototype ta infrastructur electric power utilising the development	etohydrodynamics in a global view of th -magnetosphere-iom apply these codes t ing. Operational app solar and solar wind conditions faster th tly available scientif processes of the solar extremely important s are longer than th models cannot be to npacts. will develop an argeting the users re. The target user code er systems and resolar extremels of the ts in Europe.	(MHD) sine dynamiosphere o the applications measure at the ob- ic MHD ar wind-int for sci- he durations used to for advanced soperator global 3 prototype	imulations are used hic processes taking system. Increase plication of space we require that the mo- ement data and proce- served space weath models are focusing magnetosphere-ione- entific research, the ion of the actual sporecast the geomag orecast the geomag d geomagnetic con- ing and maintain ies include in partice- oitation systems. The BD MHD magneto- will be validated how the SS	within the research place in the coupled ingly, efforts are eather specification odels that can utilise duce forecasts of the er event progresses. g on the accuracy of osphere interaction. e execution times of oace weather event. gnetic conditions or additions forecasting ing ground based ular operators of the he prototype will be ospheric modelling
	existing emp terms of fore priority deve resources vs and recomm shall be repo	prical modelling tec cast accuracy. The v elopment of the und model accuracy and endations for both c rted.	niques alidation erpinnin timeline oding im	employed by the S results will be used g models. The trad ss of product deliver provement and futu	SA SWE network in to identify areas for e-offs in computing ry shall be evaluated re implementations
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Report				
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 5 by 201	19.			



# 3.6.1.3. TD09 - Mission Operation and Ground Data Systems

Domain	Space Situational Awareness						
Tech. Domain	09 - Mission Operation and Ground Data Systems						
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT18-011L	<b>Budget (k€):</b> 300					
Title:	Data Analy	ytics for Early Warning of Space Weather Events					
Objectives:	The objective space weath The system indicate how	ctive is to demonstrate the potential use of data analytics techniques in ather forecasting. A prototype system will be established and tested. em will provide the forecast along with confidence level forecast and how this varies with lead time.					
Description:	Space Weather events have a huge impact on spacecraft and other space and ground systems. Therefore, an early warning system is needed so that spacecraft can be put in a safe configuration as well as ground assets.						
	As the science the volumes being develo potential ber	the science behind space weather is becoming increasingly multidisciplinary, e volumes of data to be considered are rapidly expanding and new techniques ing developed in other domains to analyse large volumes of data may bring otential benefits in terms of both forecasting and stimulating targeted research.					
	This study w Prediction, p experts in la to address da spacecraft te data analytic space weathe	vill build on activities already carried out in the field of Space Weather particularly, those using a data-driven approach. It will bring together arge volume data analytics and experts in the space weather domain lata from a variety of sources including space weather parameters and celemetry data. The results will be used to assess the potential use of ics in a forecast capacity and also the potential value in terms of future her development through stimulating targeted research.					
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Report						
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	5	Duration (months):	15		
Target Application/ Timeframe:	TRL 5 in 201	9.					
Applicable THA Roadmap:	AG	Not related to a H	armon	isation subject.			



### 3.6.1.4. TD11 - Space Debris

Title:	Streak detection algorithm validation through field campaign data			
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT18-012GR	Budget (k€):	300	
Tech. Domain	11 - Space Debris			
Domain	Space Situational Awareness			

- **Objectives:** The activity shall acquire a substantial set of ground-based and space-based optical observations that contain streak features for space objects. Opportunities for dedicated and 'piggy-back' observations using optical systems, such as telescopes and star trackers shall be evaluated, tested and finally exploited. The acquired data shall be reviewed and shall be arranged in a new database structure. The development of this database in the activity shall support design, test and validation of streak detection algorithms and generate the required processing software for space surveillance and tracking (SST) applications and for the characterisation of the small-sized space debris population.
- **Description:** Novel planned ground-based and space-based optical observation systems for space objects, especially space debris, will often provide observations of streak-like features. The astrometric and photometric reduction (processing) of such features has been addressed in a TRP study that delivered a prototype algorithm tailored for the detection and processing of weak signals as resulting from faint objects. Such objects are of particular interest when either small objects or fast objects in LEO are observed. This is the case for larger field-of-views of survey systems in Space Surveillance and Tracking (SST), and for space-based sensors acquiring a statistical sampling of very small centimetre to millimetre-sized objects.

An on-going GSTP activity 'Optical In-situ Monitor' develops a test-bed and breadboard instrument for a space-based mission to support SST needs and the small-sized space debris characterisation. The activity also implements starting from the TRP prototype the on-board detection and processing algorithm and trains the algorithm with simulated data.

It has been found essential to support the design and development of large ground-based sensors, as well as of the space-based instrument, with an extensive set of real streaks and other features, such as cosmic ray events and detector defects, as acquired from a field campaign. Some existing sensors can be configured or temporarily modified or operated in a way to provide such data, as well as it is possible to access the raw data from star trackers of operational missions. It is nevertheless of paramount importance to support this evaluation of existing data sources with expertise from the optical instrument engineers developing the instrument for the planned novel observation systems, too.

The evaluation of the data and review of planned use cases in the new observations system shall result in the design of a database of test data. This shall ensure the easy and seamless access through appropriate interfaces to the acquired data. From agreed existing sensors a large data set of streak features shall be acquired and inserted into the database. A final task shall be the documentation of the dataset, the database and in particular the interface for the subsequent use in the engineering activities for ground-based and space-based instruments.

Deliverables: Test Data, Software, Reports



#### **Current TRL:**

**Target TRL:** 

6 **Duration** (months):

12

TargetApplication/TRL 6 by 2019.Timeframe:

4

Applicable THAG Roadmap:

Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



Domain	Space Situa	tional Awareness					
Tech. Domain	11 - Space D	ebris					
Ref. Number:	GT18-0130	R		Budget (k€):	500		
Title:	Maturing ( space-base	the sub-catalogue ed optical compon	debris ent	characterisatio	n capabilities of a		
O <u>bj</u> ectives:	This activity of a space-b debris in LE SSA program the processin and test-bed to the space simulated an	y shall further develop pased optical sensor CO. Based on the mat mme focussing on sp ng algorithm (from a l for the in-situ monite e debris environmer nd tested.	p the da to acqui tured sys bace surv n on-goi tor) the d nt model	ta acquisition and ire statistical data tem design of the i reillance and tracking GSTP study dev lata flow from the a	processing approach of small-sized space instrument (from the ing (SST) needs) and eloping a breadboard cquired observations d validation shall be		
Description:	Previous act space survei statistical ch may cause disagreemen the debris m In the SSA w hosted paylo will conduct consolidatio engineering and develop coordination already a te pursues the previous TR Based on th processing a small-sized particular to environmen test the on-1 based on th performance reduction fre ESA's MAST It is import industrial to simulated da shall finally catalogue de use case to t	ace debris environment model improvement and validation shall be and tested. activities revealed that a space-based optical instrument dedicated to veillance can provide substantial contributions to the observation and characterisation of small-sized millimetre and centimetre particles that is the of end a mission. A significant knowledge gap and also ient for LEO debris between 1 mm and 10 cm size has been identified in models used by ESA and NASA. A workplan, dedicated activities target at preparing and implementing a yload development and mission assessment addressing SST needs. SSA uct related activities including the Systems Requirement review and tion of a space based optical component in SST, development of an ng model of the payload, development of the related ground segment, lopment and qualification of components. In parallel and close ion an on-going GSTP activity (Optical In-situ Monitor) develops test-bed and breadboard infrastructure of the payload, as well as he development of on-board detection algorithms starting from a TRP-developed prototype. these preparatory and related activities, the data acquisition and g approach of a space-based optical sensor to acquire statistical data of d space debris in LEO needs to be further matured. This applies in to the data flow from the acquired observations to the space debris ent model improvement and validation. This activity shall simulate and n-board processing of the data and focus on modelling the data flow a matured system design and detailed expertise on the optical from observed brightness and object counts to a statistical model, as in STER (Meteoroid and Space Debris Terrestrial Environment). ortant to include optical and system engineering expertise in the team to validate the data flow. The activity shall create and use data for observations of small-sized space debris in LEO. The activity by davelop and deliver the science data processing chain for the science					
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Software						
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18		

TargetApplication/TRL 6 by 2020.Timeframe:



	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
Domain	Space Situational Awareness	Space Situational Awareness				
Tech. Domain	12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks					
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT18-014GS	Budget (k€):	1,000			
Title:	Optimisation of L-Band Transmit/Receive Modules used in Surveillance Radar Antenna Arrays					
Objectives:	SSA Radar antennas will be composed by thousands of radiating elements. Each element will include a Transmit/Receive module. This module needs to be optimised in terms of power efficiency, mechanical integration, cooling, industrial manufacturing, and cost. This activity shall develop an optimised module that provides the best performance for the final radar system.					
<b>Description</b> :	The SSA final surveillance radar will require very powerful transmitters (order of Megawatts). Each 1% increase in the power efficiency means tenths of kilowatts saved on electrical power with the associated operations costs reduced. The dissipation will be lower and the cost of the cooling systems will drop accordingly. State of the art topologies for solid state power amplifiers (SSPA) (like Class D, E and F) show theoretical efficiencies up to 80%, but still at academic level and there is no information available about phase stability and phase linearity.					
	The SSA radar will be based on dual-polarisation receivers to cover unknown backscattering behaviour of space debris and the depolarization effects of the ionosphere. Compact Receive antenna elements capable of receiving the two polarization components shall be developed. The digital receiver is in charge of Analog/Digital conversion, Digital Down Conversion, and (Adaptive) Digital Beamforming.					
	Physical constraints of a phased array antenna (spacing between elements) ask for a demanding mechanical and thermal design. The design shall also consider the cost savings during manufacturing, testing and future maintenance phases. A prototype shall be built both for the transmitter and receiver. A first batch of 5 to 10 pre-series units will be manufactured after prototype acceptance to analyse the yield of the production process.					
<b>Deliverables</b> :	Prototype					
Current TRL:	4 Target TRL:	6 <b>Duration</b> (months):	24			
Target Application/ Timeframe:	SSA radar systems. TRL 6 by 202	21.				

#### 3.6.1.5. TD12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Ground Station Technology (2015).



# 3.6.1.6. TD16 - Optics

Domain	Space Situational Awareness				
Tech. Domain	16 - Optics				
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT18-015MM			Budget (k€):	1,200
Title:	Compact EUV	Imager for the La	grange	Space Weather r	nission
Objectives:	The aim to perfore Space Weather M complex low solat assess likelihood on monitoring the impacting zone. Weather purpose Previous studies I Space Weather Furthermore it is the gap between starting at a distant	rm the pre-develop Aission. The purpose ir corona for monitor of flares or CMEs. Fr e development of act Current heritage in s and the observation have indicated that r applications and of desirable to cover a the Sun disk observation nce of 2.5 Sun radii	nents of se of thi oring act om the ive region nstrume n of the nore that bservations from the	the EUV imager for s instrument will b ive region magnetic L5 position, the emp ns before they rotat nts are not optim Sun from the Lagra on one wavelength a ons in the EUV s ield of View (FoV) in and the FoV of the Sun.	or the Lagrange be to image the c complexity to obhasis would be e into the Earth ised for Space ngian Point L5. re desirable for pectral region. n order to cover e Coronagraph
Description:	This activity will field of view cov- initial design pha- to expand the field demonstrated to of state-of-the-ar- that allows detect The spatial resolu- a goal and 5 arcse Cassegrain or an coatings to provid the sun. These lines (to be 19.3 nm, the He I instrument may of PROBA-2/SWAP recent developmed would allow the in- while maintainin. The study shall be instrument stud compatible with of budget an optical allows the demon PDR. Critical tech	In the Sun disk observations and the FoV of the Coronagraph stance of 2.5 Sun radii from the Sun. ill demonstrate the feasibility of a EUV imager with appropriate overing the Sun disk and preferably multiple wavelengths. The hase and review of heritage instruments shall explore the ability field of view well beyond the size of the Solar disk as has been to some degree with SWAP on Proba 2. This may employ the use art detector technology combined with a special operating mode octing the signal decreasing with increasing distance from the Sun. olution according to the mission requirements shall be 2 arcsec as csec as a threshold value. Possible designs of the instrument are a an off axis Newtonian, with mirror coatings, and multilayer vide sufficient reflectivity for one or more EUV emission lines of be confirmed in the Phase A studies) are expected to be the Fe XII e II 30.4 nm, the Fe IX 17.1 nm and the Fe XIV 21.1 nm lines. The y draw heritage from past missions such as SOHO/EIT, SDO/AIA, AP, STEREO/EUVI and Solar Orbiter EUI, as well as ESIO, a ment by ESA. The study shall investigate compact solutions that e implementation of observations with more than one wavelength ing a high reliability of the instrument for operational purposes. be incorporated into the Lagrange Mission Phase A/B system and udies and pre-developments, and the instrument shall be h during the study agreed performance specifications. Within the cal engineering model or elegant breadboard shall be built, which			
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering/Qua	lification Model.		Dunation	
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	(months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	EUV imager for t	he Lagrange Space V	Veather	Mission. 2019.	
<b>Applicable THA</b>	AG Roadmap:	Not related to a Ha	armonis	ation subject.	



# 3.7. Design to Produce

# 3.7.1. Design to Produce

3.7.	1.1.	<b>TD08</b> -	System	Design	&	Verification
------	------	---------------	--------	--------	---	--------------

Domain	Design to Produce		
Tech. Domain	08 - System Design & Verification		
Ref. Number:	GT1P-001MX	Budget (k€):	1,200
Title:	Procedure viewer and author	ing tool for ground AIV/AIT	applications
Objectives:	The main goal is to collect and con of a space system in a central rep as single truth source, reducing making this information available it will be required.	nnect all the data contributing to ository (or cloud of repositories) inconsistencies and increasing to the location where it is needed	the development which would act g efficiency and at the time when
	The activity aims to contribute tow (or Digital Twin) of the space sys built and as-tested configuration execution and results.	vards the creation of the end-to-en tem by establishing the necessar of the space system, including tr	nd Digital Model y link to the as- aceability to test
<b>Description:</b>	The international procedure view access all operation procedures for the task descriptions also reference It supports the execution of the pro- of the accomplishment of the pro- people continue to use paper versi- experiments and studies were ru companies investigating a full d various numerical models and of succeeded yet. A tool based on a h of procedural information in cor- information, compatible with th verification control and quality m	ver is well established and used rom a central server. The system e information that is required for rocedures and allows the trackir edural steps. In the field of the AI on for the execution of procedure n in the recent years by several igitization of the AIT/AIV proc various input sources. No full imp armonized standard covering the nbination with the creation of n the full process of traceability, anagement is considered benefici	by astronauts to provides beside the correct step. ag and recording T/AIV activities, the correct step. ag and recording T/AIV activities, the correct step. (as run). Some institutions and ess enclosing of elementation has digital handling umerical as-run configuration & tal.
	A similar system as iPV onboar considered beneficial to manage introduction of such a tool togethe procedures and the enables a fully produce validation and verification procedures inherits potential con- configuration control needs whe printed paper in cleanroom and contamination and serves a more evolution of the international pro- in space industry as well as inter AIV/AIT exchange standards.	d ISS, tailored for ground AIV/ and control various procedural is or with a centralized repository of a traceable and transparent end-to on flow. Moreover, the introduct st savings related to the reduce n compared to printed information integration areas reduces the r sustainable execution of AIT/AI cedure viewer holds the potentia rnationally across Agencies by a	AIT activities is nformation. The AIV/AIT related to-end, design to ion of paperless d archiving and tion. Using less isk of undesired V activities. The l to be deployed setting common
	Based on the existing internat procedure viewer tool and related based AIV/AIT activities on space generation of procedures that a	ional procedure viewer capabi l recording and authoring capabi craft. This tool shall allow a user f are typically used during space	lities develop a lities for ground riendly and easy ecraft assembly,



integration and test. Tailor the resulting prototype towards a typical assembly procedure and to an integrated test procedure with the functionality of multiple teams working on the same procedure simultaneously. The development shall be based on the existing (ESA-owned) execution environment, establish the necessary modifications to ingest and modify existing procedures, and enhance the user interface as required by the AIT/AIV needs. It shall provide all relevant data interfaces to existing repositories in test centres. Where applicable, recommendations for the development of new or adaptation of existing standards concerning electronic procedures shall be established together with main AIV/AIT stakeholders within ESA, industry and other agencies.

For certain instructions in test and assembly procedures, application of virtual and augmented reality (VR/AR) will improve overall assembly and test performance and quality. In a second phase the interfaces to allow such capabilities shall be developed for tight integration with the procedure viewer. Note that the availability of this feature is also beneficial for training of staff involved in the S/C assembly and test processes, as well as early procedure validation through simulation support.

The first phase of this activity encompasses the following tasks (750kEuro):

- review the capabilities and identify constraints of existing numerical procedure handling tools and processes applied in space and aeronautic industry and define requirements for the procedure viewer tool to be developed covering user, functional, hardware and software aspects,
- establish and propose a harmonized standard for data repository and information exchange covering the main formats used during a space system AIT/AIV process,
- develop a generic interface standard for procedures between satellite production centres, test centres, projects in consultation with industry and European space agencies,
- develop authoring capabilities including import functionality and a publishing capability compatible with the current test centre documentation repository.
- implement concurrent support of multiple AIV/AIT teams at multiple locations,
- tailor the system to two (2) application scenario (including hardware), one in the ESTEC test centre and one in an AIT/AIV scenario of an ESA project,
- convene a usability test with real end users about 2/3 into the study time and demonstrate both tailored applications in a final presentation,
- provide a training session on the use and administration of the system.

In a second phase 450kEur (phase 2 AR/VR interface), the task is to

• develop authoring capabilities for VR and AR content and a module for AR/VR execution that shall integrate with the main procedure viewer.

The activity aims to study and identify goals, objectives, tools, needs and constraints for a numerical procedure handling tool for AIT/AIV activities and derive harmonized requirements in consultation with ESA AIV and industry experts of major spacecraft prime. Based on this develop procedure authoring capabilities that allow a quick, user-friendly, easy, MS-office-like or web-based authoring of procedures tailored to the needs of the AIV/AIT community. This shall include an import functionality allowing the use of existing procedures that are currently available in pdf and MS-word format. The new system test procedure authoring and execution tools shall allow traceable monitoring of the evolution of products e.g. procedures used in production, in cross-validation up to the as-run procedures of final acceptance and exhibit an on-the-fly procedure variation capability with related multi-disciplinary approval i.e. red marking of as-run procedures. Moreover, the system shall allow the coordination of multiple AIV/AIT teams to


work at multiple locations on the same procedure simultaneously. The system shall work seamlessly with the current documentation management systems and provide an interface to a planning/scheduling tool. The output results and documented information produced by the system shall be in common, open standard formats with the aim to allow the future exchange with other tools of the end to end system development process.

The activity aims to contribute towards the creation of the end-to-end Digital Model (or Digital Twin) of the space system by establishing the necessary link to the asbuilt and as-tested configuration of the space system, including traceability to test execution and results. The evolution of the international procedure viewer holds the potential to be promoted and deployed in space industry as well as on international level across Agencies by setting common AIV/AIT exchange standards.

**Deliverables:** Standard for data repository and information exchange covering interface standard of the procedure viewer tool, Procedure viewer tool for AIV/AIT activities, Complete procedure authoring and publishing software , Complete content for 2 demonstration scenarios as outlined above; System installation, administration and user manual, Training material, Hardware.

Current TRL:	5	Target TRL:	7	Duration (months):	18
Target Application/	TRL 7 by De	cember 2018. AIV/A	IT appli	cations.	

Timeframe:

**Applicable THAG Roadmap:** Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



Ref. Number:	GT1P-002SW	Budget (k€):	800	
Tech. Domain	08 - System Design & Verification			
Domain	Design to Produce			

#### Title: Optimization by Digital Engineering applied in Projects

**Objectives:** The objective is to define and apply digital engineering methods to support system engineering aspects and design optimization between different domains at system level.

**Description:** ESA has supported several developments in the field of Model Based Systems Engineering (MBSE) in the last decade. Although MBSE has started to be used in early phases, it is still not yet fully applied in current projects throughout the full life-cycle. Lack of an established and accepted overall methodology, in addition to a steep learning curve for some of these methods and tools are a stumbling block, as they require too much time for systems engineers to use the available frameworks which often have their roots in the software domain.

By identifying suitable areas of early application of MBSE aspects and their continuation in the development phase will allow benchmarking and focus related developments, also providing evaluation of benefits and lessons learned. Application of multidisciplinary modelling to support analysis and optimization in a real project is considered a suitable use case to demonstrate feasibility and benefits of the consistent application of modelling at system level. It will also identify areas for further improvement/developments, based on the solution for the multidisciplinary aspects.

The activity aims at implementing one of the first steps towards the creation of the end-to-end digital model of the space system. The goal is to collect and connect all the data contributing to the development of a space system in a central repository (or cloud of repositories) which would act as single source of truth, reducing inconsistencies and increasing efficiency.

This activity encompasses the following tasks:

- Adopt and apply a consistent model based approach to perform a multidisciplinary optimization exercise involving at least 3 disciplines plus the system engineering coordination layer. A suitable subject for the multidisciplinary optimization should be defined and is depending on the system criticalities. Typical problems are e.g. combination of thermal, mechanical and functional challenges, driven by complex operational scenarios.
- Demonstrate coherency and consistency of data and information for the selected scenario to ensure system level benefit by coordinating at model level. Perform the multi-disciplinary optimization, based on the linked models. This task can be based on commercial tools, but will require additional work to map models and analyses to the ECSS-E-TM-10-23 for further interchange.
- Based on the results, document the method and process for the multidisciplinary optimization workflow, the data exchange strategy with the customer, and the margin philosophy and uncertainty management strategy.
- **Deliverables:** In native format and in established open standard format: Product Tree, Functional Architecture, Objective Functions used in the optimisation exercise and Budgets Methodology: Report on multi-discipline optimisation method,



Report on data exchange strategy, Report on margin philosophy and uncertainty management.

Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	9
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Ready to be	applied to the projec	t proce	sses of future missions.	. 2018.

Applicable THAG Roadmap: System Data Repository (2014).

Γ



Domain
Tech. Domain
Ref. Number:
Title:
Objectives:
Description:



of the pilot shall be evaluated and a final report with practical recommendations on how to improve the procurement process shall be produced. The activity includes the following tasks:

- Conceive an integrated digital procurement methodology, that allows for an iterative and agile, but still well-controlled, process.
- Prototype a collaborative / concurrent digital environment, that:
  - supports the procurement process and paperless exchange of multidisciplinary data of contractual, managerial and technical nature,
  - ensures version control and exchange of data across the customersupplier chain following a 'single source of truth' principle,
  - enables assessment and monitoring of cost, risk and integrated logistics in support of project management,
  - addresses the digital approval process across the supply chain and along the lifecycle milestones.
- Find and describe a representative (but sufficiently small) procurement activity that is suitable for a pilot execution. This could be a procurement at e.g. component or unit level, or related to a cubesat mission. Define evaluation criteria to assess the new approach.
- Apply the methodology and prototype to the pilot procurement activity and evaluate with respect to the established criteria.
- Produce a final report and executive summary that document the evaluation, provide recommendations to improve the space system procurement process (ESA procurement process, ECSS, other standards, etc.), and describe the lessons learned from the study.

The main information areas to be addressed are:

- ITT and business agreement (contracts),
- project plan/schedule, WBS and configuration item list (project management),
- product assurance artefacts,
- concept of operations, technical requirements specification tree (including tailoring of ECSS/external requirements), function tree, product tree, interface control, technology development planning, MAIT/V&V planning (system engineering, including cost, risk, integrated logistics engineering).

There are a number of project activities that play a major role in the procurement process, namely: ITT production, tender evaluation, contract negotiation, project milestone review and final acceptance. The pilot shall as much as possible address how integrated digitalization and collaborative/concurrent work flows can help make each of these more efficient and effective.

The prototype environment should as much as possible make use of open standards for exchanging and sharing data.

The activity aims at making a further small step towards the realization of an integrated digital procurement process in which the collaboration between the four major discipline areas of contracts, project management, product assurance and engineering is improved. The long term future perspective is an integrated end-to-end process and digital environment. In this environment all necessary views (e.g. web forms, dashboards, diagrams, documents and any other presentations) on the totality of information needed to successfully conceive and execute a space system project, are consistent with a single source of truth. Such a fully digitalized model including a so-called Digital Twin of the eventual space system product - would also enable capture of, and access to, corporate knowledge that is hitherto impossible to realize.

**Deliverables:** Digital procurement methodology white paper, Prototype digital environment, Pilot procurement activity description.



Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	(months):	

TargetApplication/All programmes. TRL 6 by 2020.Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: System Data Repository (2014).



Domain	Design to Pı	roduce			
Tech. Domain	23 - EEE Co	mponents and Qua	lity		
Ref. Number:	GT1P-0041	ED	Bu	dget (k€):	1,500
Title:	Improvem embedded	ent of design and sensors	d product, ba	ased on analy	sis of data from
Objectives:	The objective to be flown today) in ord and use the o	e of this activity is to on our future spac ler to analyze the r collected data to say	) design and pro e craft (just lil eal space envir ve on the margi	oduce a suite of ke standalone i onment seen by in of today's req	embedded sensors radiation monitors y EEE components juirements.
Description:	The aim is to further refin application. even mega c margin taken time and c requirement The aim is to (as already h of hermetici cavity) and h away from th It is also in acceptance c actual space example aut space applic The activity • Phase 2 tempera most att • Phase 3 of appli tempera	b design a suite of a craft and allowing ne ESA requirem When reviewing ne onstellations) today n until now on EEE ost constraints no s that deserve serio o review 3 major set being done but now ty (by accurate mo- ast but not least the ne actual need cons nportant to note of COTS EEE parts requirements may comotive EEE parts is requirements may comotive Sele parts ations. will be established is l: (200K): Review ture) and suitability ractive solution (in (800K): Procurem ture)development a, breadboarding e embedded sensor (500K): First flight cable EEE require ture.	embedded sens to collect accu ents related t ew types of spa y, it is becomin parts were com wadays, they us review and p s of requirement taking the actu- nitoring of the e temperature r idering the there that this active for space applie reveal that a si s are already h in 3 different pl w of existing y for space appli- cluding also ba- ent of the selec- of a common and testing. A suite and final demonstration ments in term	sors aiming at h urate in flight d to EEE compo- ce missions (e.g or more and mo- nfortable and m have probably refinement. nts, namely radi- ual shielding in pressure evolu- range definition rmal control an ity is expected cations as a pre- ignificant numb by nature suita hases: sensors (Ra- ication followed ck-up solutions cted sensors (R electronic cont Assembly and test and valida- t, collection of d as of radiation	being embarked on lata information to onents for spaces g. constellations or ore evident that the ice to have. Due to y become 'luxury' lation environment to effect), the need tion inside a given n which is today far d compensation. I to speed up the cise redefinition of oer of COTS (as for ble candidates for diation, pressure, to selection of the s). adiation, pressure, rol and command packaging of the tion. ata and refinement , hermeticity and
Deliverables:	Breadboard		_		
Current TRL:	4	Target TRL:	7 <b>Du</b> 7 <b>(m</b>	ration onths):	30
Farget Application/ Timeframe:	Refine requi acceptance.	rements with respe 2020.	ct to the Space	environment fo	or COTS EEE parts
Applicable THA Roadmap:	AG	Not related to a	Harmonisation	subject.	

### 3.7.1.2. TD23 - EEE Components and Quality



DomainDesign to ProduceTech. Domain23 - EEE Components and QualityRef. Number:GT1P-005EDBudget (k€):800

#### Title: Embedded Sensors for AIT

**Objectives:** The objective to improve Assembly & Integration Testing by developing the use of 'disposable' wireless sensors for the monitoring of the spacecraft during AIT. The 'disposable' wireless sensors shall replace the existing wired sensors. The activity will focus on a maximum of 4 types of sensors considered as the most relevant when it comes to time and cost during AIT. These are: temperature sensors, strain gauges, accelerometers and contaminations monitors.

**Description:** It is absolutely vital to permanently improve Assembly & Integration Tests process in order to be competitive. The R&D axis proposed here is focused on the use of 'disposable' wireless sensors for the monitoring of the spacecraft during AIT with the objective to replace the existing wired sensors. It has been demonstrated that self-powered wireless sensors offer significant benefits in terms of flexibility, time consumption, easiness of integration with subsequent cost and schedule reduction. Such sensors are generally installed several months before the beginning of test and the measurement campaign may last one or two months. Since these test devices are highly invasive and represent a significant weight they cannot be left inside the satellite and have to be removed before launching.

The installation, management and removal of such an infrastructure introduce critical issues concerning the time for deployment and removal of probes, the risk to damage the satellite devices under test, and the overall high cost of involved staff and instrumentation. There is therefore a recognized need to move from a wired architecture to a wireless one, involving very low power autonomous sensors with aim to simplify the on-board accommodation with great freedom in sensors placement, to enable last minute implementations, to simplify the hardware interface and, on the whole, to speed-up the integration schedule, reducing drastically the cost of the AIT. Innovative technologies using MEMS or even Nanomaterials based devices are small, low cost have the potential to be so light that they could be used as consumable devices which if correctly attached to the structure could be left on the spacecraft once the AIT is completed, leading to the notion of 'disposable' AIT sensors. The invaluable asset of those AIT sensors is that being used for on ground testing only, they do not need to be Rad-Hard or even Rad-Tolerant, allowing the use for purely commercial technologies and among others COTS sensors.

The activity will address 4 sensors: accelerometers (for shock and vibration monitoring), temperature , strain gauges and contaminations monitors and will be divided in 4 major tasks:

- Feasibility and compatibility of wireless sensors usage with the AIT environment, this task should deliver a go/no-go with respect to the usage wireless sensors during AIT activities.
- Disposable sensors trade-off and selection addressing accelerometers (for shock and vibration monitoring, temperature, strain gauges and contaminations monitors. Depending on the conclusions reached during Task 1the wireless candidates will be considered or discarded. Focus will also be put in the availability of self-powered sensors when they exist. Due to the fact that radiation is not an issue when looking at sensors for on-ground AIT,



preference will be given to existing low cost COTS sensors today available for testing, instrumentation or other on ground applications.

- Development of the required accompanying architecture and hardware and the prototyping of a first couple of AIT embedded sensors suites ready for use.
- Demonstration phase to be conducted at ESTEC test centre as the team is one of the partner involved in this activity. deployment to other non ESA test centres may also be envisaged for accelerating the pilot cases and acceptance.

**Deliverables:** Engineering Model

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	7	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	Reduce AI	Γ duration and associ	ated cos	st. 2019.	
Applicable THA Roadmap:	AG	Not related to a H	Iarmon	isation subject.	



### 3.7.1.3. TD26 - Others

Domain	Design to Produce		
Tech. Domain	26 - Others		
Ref. Number:	GT1P-006SY	Budget (k€):	800
Title:	Digital Engineering Hub Pa	athfinder (CD09)	
Objectives:	<ul> <li>The objectives are the following</li> <li>Ensure seamless exchange all disciplines in teams that enhance the digitalisation the early lifecycle phases (</li> <li>Foster an interoperable ar eco-system in which ever a available to run European</li> <li>Ensure that the data excha phases to the complete space</li> </ul>	g: e and sharing of engineering inform it develop space systems in order to of the space system lifecycle proce b, A, B. id future-proof (community-)open more capable data exchange solution space projects more effectively. ange capabilities will scale from the ace system lifecycle (i.e. phases 0 to	nation between o facilitate and sses, starting in -source evolvable ons become e early lifecycle o F).
Description:	<ul> <li>As written in clause 4 of ECS: data needed during the lifecycle efficiency and effectiveness or lifecycle activities and processes too often, getting the right dat enormous challenge. Finding a from previous versions can be both engineering (e.g. m communication, software) and space projects have well est improvements needs to come f the project teams.</li> <li>A major enabler for successful of Industry 4.0 is the exchange data between multiple disciplin data formats to be supported. T integrated toolsets (across disc: work for the following reasons:</li> <li>Tools are selected by enging processes by their own wo</li> <li>Many organizations work top-level customers / prim for years and typically try during the project.</li> <li>No organization can affor essentially cover similar building up proficiency) at Newcomers on the tool mata exchange based on open standards must be comprehens 20 years many standards have example, ISO 10303 'STEP' (in version 1 (XMI format), de facture universal File Format (origina HDF5), Hierarchical Data Form</li> </ul>	S-E-TM-10-23: 'Reliable electronic of a space system is essential to fu f the engineering processes, and s. Unfortunately, as many projects a at the right moment to the right he right version of the data and over very inefficient. Now that all indiv- echanical, electrical, optical, non-engineering (e.g. cost, project ablished methods and tools, the rom better integration of the lifecy digitalisation of the engineering mode eand sharing of engineering mode eas. There will always be a large va- op-down standardization on tools plines) has been attempted in the p- neering organizations for their op rkforce. simultaneously in multiple proje the contractors. In addition, many st to avoid the risks of changing ( ard to be effective in many alter functionality. The costs (licence re too high. arket should have a fair chance of s standards is the only viable way fe ive, fit for purpose and long-term s- been developed, with varying degree particular AP 203, 214, 242, 239) o industrial or open source standarr lly by SDRC), Matlab results form nat v5 (HDF5), Common Data Form	c exchange of the rther improve the indeed all other have experienced stakeholder is an letails of changes vidual disciplines, radio-frequency t management) in e next round of cle processes and ocesses at the core els and associated ariety of tools and (per discipline) or oast but will never timal use in their cts with different pace projects run versions of) tools mative tools that tes, training and success. orward. The open stable. In the past ses of success. For and OMG SysML ds like Excel CSV, tats (MAT, JSON, nat (CDF), Eclipse



Modeling Framework (Ecore) XMI, OMG ReqIF, OSLC, ASN1.There is no single standard that solves completely the multi-disciplinary engineering data exchange problem, but there are many partial solutions. Within the European space sector two very relevant ECSS TMs have been developed:

- E-TM-10-25 'Engineering model data exchange (CDF)' implemented in the Open Concurrent Design Tool (OCDT) and in Concurrent Design Platform v4.
- E-TM-10-23 'Space system data repository' validated in Virtual Spacecraft Design (VSD) and used as a basis for EGS-CC.

For the conceptual design phase, OCDT is in operational use since 2014 in the ESA CDF studies and has proven to be a successful and very stable implementation of E-TM-10-25. A number of initial bi-directional interfaces have been developed with MagicDraw v17 / SysML v1 (SW TRL 4 Alpha), ESA-AF (SW TRL 4 Alpha), Matlab (SW TRL 4 Alpha), Catia v5 (SW TRL 5 Beta), DOORS (SW TRL 4 Alpha via ReqIF by RHEA Group), VSD (SW TRL 4 Alpha).

With E-TM-10-25 and OCDT, highly suitable technology governed under ESA Community Software Licences has become available. A Digital Engineering Hub based on the proven E-TM-10-25 / OCDT implementation can be used as an evolvable eco-system to start realising the benefits of an integrated MBSE / Digital Engineering approach. The precursor to a standard as well as the implemented software have matured to Software TRL 6 to 7, and provide a solid basis to make substantial and scalable improvements on the kind of engineering data that can be reliably exchanged between a very relevant multi-disciplinary set of engineering tools. It will also serve as valuable input to future standard.

Within this activity, a selection of engineering tools frequently used in European space projects will be connected through adapters to the 'Hub' for instantaneous data exchange and data sharing. Initially there will be a single persistent data store database, but the OCDT architecture is designed to allow for a distributed federation of databases that form together one logical database. With suitable adapters other kinds of databases could be integrated. The capabilities of the 'Digital Engineering Hub Pathfinder' and the number of integrated tools will be incrementally increased. In addition to data exchange and sharing use cases, also long term archiving of data will be addressed. It is proposed to first start with the integration of typical system engineering tools like MagicDraw/SysML (v1) and Arcadia / Capella. An interface with DOORS for requirements engineering is already taken care of in the frame of the Flexible Wiki-Based Requirements Engineering activity that will be completed in 2017. In addition, the following engineering tools are to be considered: Matlab/Simulink, EcosimPro, OpenModelica, Rhapsody SysML, Nastran, Adams, ESATAN TMS or ThermXL, STK, VTS (CNES), and more if possible. As part of continuous evaluation of the operation use of OCDT in the ESA CDF a number of potential improvements to E-TM-10-25 have been collected as recommendations. A subset of improvements for implementation is to be selected.

- This activity encompasses the following tasks:
- Elaborate an eco-system architecture for the Digital Engineering Hub based on the existing E-TM-10-25 and OCDT. The architectural design must support future extensibility such that the resulting eco-system can later be transformed to use a different open MBSE/data exchange standard. In particular the Common Information Platform that is being developed in the ESA MARVL activity shall be taken into account.
- Define a number of representative use cases.
- Implement and demonstrate a data exchange interface with the Capella tool, at least of a subset of the modelling concepts used in Phases 0 and A.
- Implement and demonstrate a data exchange interface with the Matlab tool, at least of a subset of the modelling concepts used in Phases 0 and A.
- Implement and demonstrate a data exchange interface with the ESOC Paperless E2E Ground Station Engineering Environment.



- Implement and demonstrate a data exchange interface with the EcosimPro tool, at least of a subset of the modelling concepts used in Phases 0 and A. Target in particular the EcosimPro tools for Propulsion and Electric Power.
- Implement and demonstrate a data exchange interface with thermal analysis tools via the ECSS-E-ST-31-04C (STEP-TAS) standard and possible ThermXL, at least of a subset of the modelling concepts used in Phases 0 and A.
- Implement and demonstrate various viewpoint/view as well as report generator applications that support suitable views and reports from the perspective of different engineering disciplines.
- Collect, analyse and implement improvements to the E-TM-10-25 Annexes A, B and C.
- Produce end user documentation and training materials in order to make the results available for the widest possible set of end users in the European space industry.

The activity can use the OCDT portal (ocdt.esa.int) for collaboration, documentation, software configuration and version control (Gitlab), issue tracking and agile software engineering, continuous integration, continuous delivery and code quality analysis. The activity aims at implementing a first version of a working digital engineering hub that can over time be transformed into a full-fledged operational eco-system, when improved, richer data exchange standards have matured. It allows to realise an initial version of Digital Twin representation of a progressing architectural design of a space mission as well as the realisation of the idea of a 'single source of truth' data.

**Deliverables:** Study report, Guidelines for the applicability of the proposed methodology, any developed tool, and the results of simulations and/or tests performed.

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
Target Application/ Timeframe:	AIT operatio	ons. TRL 6 by 2019.			

**Applicable THAG Roadmap:** Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



Domain	Design to Produce		
Tech. Domain	26 - Others		
<b>Ref. Number:</b>	GT1P-007MX	Budget (k€):	700
Title:	D2P - Multidisciplinary 3D Dig	ital Models for AIT envir	ronment
Objectives:	The objective is to increase the in improve the efficiency and effecti procedures and documentation, fu- lifecycle.	tegration of 3D digital mod vity of the assembly, integ ly integrated into the overa	lels in order to ration and test ll space system
Description:	Currently a wide variety of digital particular when dealing with m phenomena, e.g. thermoelastic beh kinds of information at different let the true baseline of the 'as tested' of test facility, sensor locations and ar the combination of diverse physic consuming and therefore error-promaintain the as tested configuration Since 1994 when the first ISO 1030 become the global reference for m geometry and topology. Since them larger amount of information to be standard could be beneficial for the its lifetime. The adoption of the STEP AP 242 under test (e.g. the typical spaced including its instrumentation, mengineering analysis / simulation metest meta-data, test results, etc. we exactly has been tested and where format. This format is also suitable used in case of later on-orbit anoma past AIT configurations looked like number of versions ahead of the veractual AIT activities. Data-fusion of multi-disciplinary, thermal, electrical, optical), and the facilities, MGSE - Mechanical Grippic considerable savings in time, and rethoughout the design phase and the would allow to emulate its behavites the integration of subsys. In the mechanical domain, an atterm on going and it is referred as Virtual have been developed and used in campaigns, by linking the models of model of the item under test and by to correlate the results of the simuliapproach could then be extended	models are used during the pulti-disciplinary aspects / aviour. The models often co- vels of detail. Establishing a onfiguration of the item und- other properties and param- ical parameters is a cuml- ne procedure. Defining a for- is therefore a crucial step. 03 STEP standard was relea- eutral open standard repress , several editions were relea- captured. The exploitation of representation of the space data format to capture the s- raft physical models STM, naterial properties, links nodels, digital images (pictur- uld allow to establish unam- all sensors were located in a for long term archiving, so lies to provide detailed infor- e, in tools of the day that sions of the tools that were fulli-physics digital mod- eir integration into AIT en- ound Support equipment- nent) would improve the of duction of anomalies and m- it digital models of the spa- AIT processes, in one word for, therefore helping the v- virtual testing, the combi- tem and system level testing pt to increase the test effective Testing. Ad-hoc virtual testing the preparation of specifies of mechanical facilities (e.g. of mechanical facilities (e.g.) of the domains by definition at to other domains by definition.	AIT phases, in multi-physics ontain different ind maintaining ler test and the eters, as well as persome, time- rmat capable to sed, 'STEP' has sentation of 3D used, allowing a of the enhanced e system during state of an item EM, QM, FM) to associated res and videos), biguously what an open neutral it could also be mation on what are probably a used during the els (structural, vironment (e.g. - and EGSE - efficiency, with istakes. ce system used the data-fusion, rerification and ination of test senss is already ng workbenches c vibration test shakirs) to then n, till the extent l test case. This ing a common



approach to the multi-physics modelling, starting from a common data format (e.g. STEP file) for capturing the state of the item under test.

The activity aims to develop the process and identify models required to demonstrate feasibility and benefits of integrating data from multi-physic models into AIT environment.

The activity shall consider a use case requiring diverse (2 or more) models (such as thermal, structural or optical) to be cross-linked (e.g. data fusion) to perform a representative analysis for AIT operations.

This activity encompasses the following tasks:

- Review of the new release of STEP AP 242.
- Define the level of information to be encompassed in the file format.
- Draft guidelines for the use of the common file format (STEP) and for the subsequent integration and/or mapping of the domain specific physical models (e.g. Thermal model, mechanical model).
- Propose and agree with the Agency a representative use case, covering different domains relevant to AIT activities and requiring different models (e.g. structural, thermal) to interact (data exchange).
  - Analyse the state of the art in terms of available tools and models solution for the selected use cases.
  - Define the process required to perform the tasks associated to the use case.
  - Identify available models and/or tools supporting the process, exploiting at the maximum extent their capabilities and their customization.
  - Define potential gaps and identify solutions to bridge them.
- Select the baseline of the representative models to be used, analysis and generalization.
  - Determine and implement the data exchange/data fusion among the selected models, and where possible, use of multi-physics models and simulation tools.
  - Demonstrate the feasibility and the benefits of the approach to the use case.
- Update the guidelines, including the workflow supporting the implementation of the data fusion and a set of guidelines and information to be used in similar cases in future development.

The activity aims at implementing one of the first steps towards the creation of the end-to-end Digital Model (or Digital Twin) of the space system. The goal is to collect and connect all the data contributing to the development of a space system in a central repository (or cloud of repositories) which would act as 'single truth source', reducing inconsistencies and increasing efficiency.

**Deliverables:** Study report, Guidelines for the applicability of the proposed methodology, any developed tool, and the results of simulations and/or tests performed.

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	24
--------------	---	-------------	---	-----------------------	----

Target Application/ AIT operations. Timeframe:

#### Applicable THAG Roadmap:

Not related to a Harmonisation subject.



# 3.8. Deep-space Optical Communication System

# 3.8.1. Deep-space Optical Communication System

## 3.8.1.1. TD12 - Ground Station Systems and Networks

Domain	Deep-space Optical Communication System				
Tech. Domain	12 - Ground Station Systems a	and Networks			
Ref. Number:	GT1D-001GS	Budget (k€):	6,500		
Title:	Deep-space Optical Con Demonstration (IOD) Gro	nmunication System (l und Terminal Technology	DOCS) In-Orbit Developments		
Objectives:	This frame proposal combine ground terminal of the Deep-s Orbit Demonstration (IOD). T the timeframe 2017-2019, see DOCS-Ground-7.	es the technology development pace Optical Communication his proposal is for the first 3 pr e below: DOCS-Ground-1, DO	nts needed for the System (DOCS) In- riority 1 activities in DCS-Ground-3 and		
Description:	Future deep space communicat of 12m The aim for DOCS v addition a photon-counting op under TRP has started. An ada under preparation, that shoul optical receiver filter system infrared (SWIR) 2D tracking funded low TRL technology de a complete optical terminal the	tion ground terminals will need will be for a 4-6m diameter of tical communications detector ptive optics feasibility study fu d be followed by a TRP fund breadboard, and a photon-co detector array breadboard. E velopment activities and the m e following additional activities	I to have a diameter optical antenna. In breadboard funded unded under CTE is led highly selective bunting short wave Based on the above nissing elements for s are proposed.		
	<ul> <li>The priority 1 activities propose Ground-7.</li> <li>DOCS-Ground-1: Deep Spe Development of a deep sp CCSDS High Photon Effic Pulse Position Modulation</li> <li>DOCS-Ground-3: Deep Sp Space Low Cost 4-6m cla Detailed Design and breact</li> <li>DOCS-Ground-7: Deep Sp Development of a High P optical terminal, laser transport</li> </ul>	ed are: DOCS-Ground-1, DOCS ace High Rate Optical Ground bace optical communication m ciency (HPE) standard (Serial , SCPPM). 1,500 kEUR. ace 4-6m Optical Antenna Det ass Optical Antenna for Day, lboarding of critical elements. bace High Power (5 kW) Upli Power (5 kW) Uplink Beacor ismitter, and safety system. 3,0	S-Ground-3, DOCS- Receiver (SCPPM). odem according to lly Concatenadated tailed Design. Deep /Night Operations, 2,000 kEUR. ink Beacon System of System including 000 kEUR.		
	<ul> <li>For reference, the other (priori</li> <li>DOCS-Ground-2: Deep S Detector. Development communication detector (f</li> <li>DOCS-Ground-4: Deep Sp Space Photon-counting SI Tracking) Detector Array I</li> <li>DOCS-Ground-5: Deep S Development of a combine rejection during day-time (follow-on from TRP).</li> </ul>	ty 2) DOCS-Ground activities a pace Photon-Counting Optica of a deep space photon follow-on from TRP). 700 kEU ace Photon-Counting Acquisit nort Wave Infrared (SWIR) 21 Development (follow-on from T Space Optical Background d adaptive optics and filter syste operation, and small Sun-I	are the following al Communications a-counting optical R tion Detector. Deep D (Acquisition and TRP). Rejection System. tem for background Earth-Probe angles		



- DOCS-Ground-6: Deep Space 4-6m Optical Antenna Prototype. Deep Space Low Cost 4-6m class Optical Antenna for Day/Night Operations, Prototype development for deployment of the DOCS in-orbit demonstration on the SWE L5 mission.
- DOCS-Ground-8: Integration SWE L5 4-6m Optical Ground Station. Integration and Validation of the 4-6m optical antenna and all subsystems at a suitable site, e.g. Tenerife, as part of the DOCS SWE L5 in-orbit demonstration.

**Deliverables:** Prototype

Current TRL:	3	Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18			
Target	DOCS IOD for launch in SSA SWE L5 mission in 2023. TRL 6 by 2019 for PDR.							
Application/	(The priority 1 activities in the timeframe 2020-2023 will lead to the prototype							
Timeframe:	terminal for the SWE L5 mission in-orbit demonstration).							

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Ground Station Technology (2015).



## 3.8.1.2. TD17 - Optoelectronics

Domain	Deep-space Optical Communication System							
Tech. Domain	17 - Optoelectronics							
Ref. Number:	GT1D-002MM	Budget (k€):	5,900					
Title:	Deep-space Optical Com Demonstration (IOD) Space	nunication System (1 Terminal Technology D	DOCS) In-Orbit evelopments					
Objectives:	This frame proposal combines the terminal of the DOCS IOD. Thi timeframe 2017-2019, see below 5, DOCS-Space-6 and DOCS-Spa	e technology developments r s proposal is for 5 priority : DOCS-Space-1, DOCS-Spa ce-7.	needed for the space 7 1 activities in the nee-3, DOCS-Space-					
Description:	Future deep space optical communication terminals on spacecraft at distanced up to 3 AU (Mars) will require a telescope assembly with a diameter of 200 mm, a laser and data modulator, a highly efficient amplifier, a communication and ranging receiver, an acquisition and tracking sensor, an optical bench with fine pointing assembly and terminal control system and finally a data coding and modulation system. The above mentioned technologies have been developed to low TRL level and the following activities are proposed to develop an engineering model of a complete optical space terminal:							
	<ul> <li>The priority 1 activities proposed are: DOCS-Space-1, DOCS-Space-3, DOCS-Space-5, DOCS-Space-6 and DOCS-Space-7.</li> <li>DOCS-Space-1: Telescope Assembly. Development of an a-thermal optical communication telescope with 200 mm aperture diameter, without central obscuration and large corrected field of view. 1,500 kEUR.</li> <li>DOCS-Space-3: Laser amplification system. Development of a deep-space laser amplification system with high peak to average power ratio and single-mode (TEM00) operation in a wavelength range between 1530 and 1577 nm. 1,200 KEUR.</li> <li>DOCS-Space-5: Acquisition and tracking sensor. To increase the technology readiness level of an IR enhanced CMOS sensor for earth beacon acquisition, tracking and tele-command reception. 1,000 kEUR.</li> <li>DOCS-Space-6: Optical bench inclusive fine pointing assembly and terminal control system to design and environmentally test an a-thermal optical bench and to add a tip/tilt mechanism and a terminal control system. 1,500 kEUR.</li> <li>DOCS-Space-7: Digital Modulator for Deep Space Optical Missions Study, design and develop (up to EM) the digital functionalities of a deep space pulsed position modulator (PPM) based on the relevant CCSDS draft standard with a target data rate of about 10 Mbit/s and the potential to scale to 100 Mbit/s. 700 kEUR.</li> </ul>							
	<ul> <li>For reference, the other (priority 2) activities will depend on the achievements of the preceding TRP activities. The activities will lead to the engineering model of a deep-space optical communication terminal for the SWE L5 mission in-orbit demonstration. These activities are: DOCS-Space-2 and DOCS-Space-4.</li> <li>DOCS-Space-2: Laser and Modulator. Development of a laser source and modulator system for data rates between 100 kbps and 10 Mbps. 800 KEUR.</li> <li>DOCS-Ground-4: Communication and ranging data receiver. Development of a communication and ranging receiver for encoded deep-space optical beacons. 1,000 KEUR.</li> </ul>							
<b>Deliverables:</b>	Engineering Model							



Current TRL: 4 Target TRL:	6	Duration (months):	18
----------------------------	---	-----------------------	----

Target Application/ DOCS IOD for launch in SSA SWE L5 mission in 2013. TRL6 by 2019 for PDR. Timeframe:

Applicable THAG Roadmap: Optical Communication for Space (2012).